# The Media Streaming Journal

October 2020

Covering Audio and Video Internet Broadcasting

Brought To You By

# RADIOSOLUTION

www.radiosolution.info



publicdomainvectors.org/en/free-clipart/Vintage-microphone-vectorgraphics/6111.html Derek Bullard <u>Publication Director</u> info@radiosolution.info

David Childers Editor In Chief editor@radiosolution.info

Advertising advertising@radiosolution.info

### www.radiosolution.info

### Welcome to The Media Streaming Journal

Welcome to the latest installment of The Media Streaming Journal.

It is essential to understand and correctly use Social Media in the world of business. Social media provides the ability to promote, market, and provide recognition. Unlike other aspects of promotion and marketing, Social Media requires a hands on approach for optimum performance.

Please feel free to contact either the Publication Director (Derek Bullard) or myself if you have any questions or comments regarding The Media Streaming Journal.

Namaste

**David Childers** 

The Grand Master of Digital Disaster (Editor In Chief)

www.linkedin.com/pub/david-childers/4/736/72a

### **David Childers**

### The Grand Master of Digital Disaster

Current Member: International Association Of Internet Broadcasters

Former Member: Society of Motion Picture and Television Engineers

### **Published Author**

Introduction To Internet Broadcasting Amazon Publishing

30 Creative Commons Computer, Technical and Internet Broadcasting Guides

### **Newspaper Interviews**

New York Times

Lagniappe - "Something Extra for Mobile"

Internet TV: Don't Touch That Mouse! Tim Gnatek July 1, 2004

### **Cited By**

Five Essays on Copyright In the Digital Era Ville Oksanen 2009 Mobile Gets Hoaxed Rob Holbert Mar 16, 2016

Turre Publishing Helsinki Finland

### **Open Source Developer**

Developed software architecture to continuously source multimedia content to Youtube Live servers. Scenic Television – The sights and sounds of nature on the Internet. <u>http://www.ScenicTelevision.com</u>

### **Projects**

Researched and developed documentation for Peercast P2P multimedia streaming project. <u>http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/PeerCast</u>

Researched and developed technical documentation for NSV / Winamp Television. <u>http://web.archive.org/web/20080601000000\*/http://www.scvi.net</u>

### **MidSummer Eve Webfest**

A virtual International festival focusing on Digital art and Free Software that was coordinated by OrganicaDTM Design Studio.

Presentation and discussion regarding Internet multimedia content distribution. http://web.archive.org/web/20061104230522/http://www.organicadtm.com/index.php? module=articles&func=display&catid=37&aid=61

### LinkedIn Contact Information

http://www.linkedin.com/pub/david-childers/4/736/72a

### The Media Streaming Journal

### What is in this edition of the Media Streaming Journal

The Complete Guide to Social Media The Social Media Guys



### Join our technical discussion on Facebook

http://www.facebook.com/groups/internetradiosupport/

Magazine cover:

https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:PCExpanion.jpg

The Media Streaming Journal is licensed under the Attribution-ShareAlike 4.0 International (CC BY-SA 4.0) Creative Commons License.

www.creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/4.0/



# RADIOSOLUTION

### www.radiosolution.info

### **Our Mission**

Let our friendly, knowledgeable staff assist you to build your project, such as an online radio station using our high end reliable video and audio streaming technologies. We want to become your partner for all your hosting needs, as well as your one stop shop for radio products such as custom DJ drops and radio ID's.

### Start An Internet Radio Station

Whatever you need to start Internet radio station, we will deliver! We provide high quality Internet Radio services to make your music radio project a success. We can provide Wowza, Icecast, SHOUTcast hosting and internet radio services to hobbyists, deejays, amateurs and established professionals. No radio station client is too big or too small for Radiosolution.

Choose between complete hassle-free service packages or new features to add to start internet radio station. Benefit from customized services and the latest in internet radio technology. You will receive professional, personalized and better Internet Radio Station services than you have received up till now. If you already have an Icecast or SHOUTcast hosting provider, we can still help you transfer your radio server over to us with no hassle and at no charge.

### **Internet Radio Station Services**

Launch your internet, digital, satellite or AM/FM radio station anywhere in the world with all of the right tools. A broadcasting specialist is on standby to help you get started with an SHOUTcast or Icecast hosting package. We have servers ready for reliable streaming in North America and Europe. Our hosting packages have all the features you need to make your radio station project a success.

If you stream live or with an Auto DJ, we can provide you with the latest in web-based Cloud technology. You will love the simple to use control panel. Discover how easy it is to manage live deejays, upload fresh music and create custom scheduled programming. You will be able to track your listeners by getting real time statistics.

Starting your own Internet radio has never been easier. Get in touch with us anytime to start your Internet radio station.

Radiosolution is a SHOUTcast hosting provider located in Quebec Canada. We also offer Icecast, Wowza and Web Hosting services. Contact us to discuss the best option available as you start internet radio station. Radiosolution can provide personalized service in English, Dutch, and French. Starting an internet radio station can be intimidating, many people want to start one, but have no idea where to start. Radiosolution will be there for you every step of the way. Everyday people are searching the internet for free SHOUTcast servers. With Radiosolution SHOUTcast hosting we will allow you to try our services for FREE. By trying our services, you can be confident that you have chosen the best radio server hosting provider. You have nothing to loose because we offer a 30 day satisfaction guarantee. What are you waiting for? Contact us now! Radiosolution offers everything you need to start internet radio station. You will not need to go anywhere else. We can create your website, market your station and help you submit your station to online directories. We also feature the voice of Derek Bullard aka Dibblebee He can create affordable commercials, DJ intros, sweepers, jingles, ids and so much more.



Relax With The Sights And Sounds Of Nature

# Scenic Television

## Your Window To The World

Scenic Television is an Internet television station that broadcasts the sights and sounds of nature 24 hours a day. Savor exotic tropical beaches, or relax in a remote rain forest. Meditate at a bubbling stream, or relish the view of soft rolling waves at a lake. We have beautiful nature video from locations all around the world.

Scenic Television originates from the Gulf coast of South Alabama and broadcasts to a global audience. The television broadcast is accessible on any device with an Internet connection. Such electronic devices include desktop computers, laptops, tablets, smartphones, game platforms, and Internet-connected televisions.

### http://www.scenictelevision.com



We Are Your Information Resource

Are you looking for specialized data?

Are you swamped with information overload?

Do you need help finding the right information?

We Can Help You Find The Information That You Need

Our experienced data research analysts can wade through the vast information wasteland and find the information that you need.

We can save you both time and money.

We can streamline data requirement planning.

We can provide business critical information acquisition.

Contact us today

info@radiosolution.info

### The Complete Guide to Social Media

Understanding the application and use of Social Media.

### Hey You! Yes, You! Why Should Anyone Listen to You?!

Do you need compelling, clever copy or catchphrases for your Internet station? If you do, please visit and lets talk!

http://www.ielectrify.com/work-with-me/

I am a professional writer with 15+ years of experience creating high-converting copy, for a variety of radio, broadcasting and marketing applications.



https://www.wpclipart.com/people/professions\_3/ radio\_announcer.png.html

The Order of the Iron Test Pattern is an association of people who have had the opportunity to work in or around the television and broadcast / cable industry. People who have an interest in television broadcasting are also welcome.



https://www.facebook.com/Order-Of-The-Iron-Test-Pattern-103689774780581/

# The Complete Guide to Social Media

From The Social Media Guys

### Contents

### Articles

Social media	1
Social web	6
Social media measurement	8
Social media marketing	9
Social media optimization	11
Social network service	12
Digg	24
Facebook	33
LinkedIn	48
MySpace	52
Newsvine	70
Reddit	74
StumbleUpon	80
Twitter	84
YouTube	98
XING	112
ferences	

### References

Article Sources and Contributors	115
Image Sources, Licenses and Contributors	123

### Article Licenses

License	125
---------	-----

### Social media

**Social media** are media for social interaction, using highly accessible and scalable publishing techniques. Social media uses web-based technologies to turn communication into interactive dialogues. Andreas Kaplan and Michael Haenlein define social media as "a group of Internet-based applications that build on the ideological and technological foundations of Web 2.0, which allows the creation and exchange of user-generated content."<sup>[1]</sup> Businesses also refer to social media as consumer-generated media (CGM). Social media utilization is believed to be a driving force in defining the current time period as the Attention Age. A common thread running through all definitions of social media is a blending of technology and social interaction for the co-creation of value.

### Distinction from industrial media

People gain information, education, news, etc., by electronic media and print media. Social media are distinct from industrial or traditional media, such as newspapers, television, and film. They are relatively inexpensive and accessible to enable anyone (even private individuals) to publish or access information, compared to industrial media, which generally require significant resources to publish information.

One characteristic shared by both social media and industrial media is the capability to reach small or large audiences; for example, either a blog post or a television show may reach zero people or millions of people. The properties that help describe the differences between social media and industrial media depend on the study. Some of these properties are:

- 1. Reach both industrial and social media technologies provide scale and enable anyone to reach a global audience.
- 2. Accessibility the means of production for industrial media are typically owned privately or by government; social media tools are generally available to anyone at little or no cost.
- 3. Usability industrial media production typically requires specialized skills and training. Most social media does not, or in some cases reinvent skills, so anyone can operate the means of production.
- 4. Recency the time lag between communications produced by industrial media can be long (days, weeks, or even months) compared to social media (which can be capable of virtually instantaneous responses; only the participants determine any delay in response). As industrial media are currently adopting social media tools, this feature may well not be distinctive anymore in some time.
- 5. Permanence industrial media, once created, cannot be altered (once a magazine article is printed and distributed changes cannot be made to that same article) whereas social media can be altered almost instantaneously by comments or editing.

Community media constitute an interesting hybrid of industrial and social media. Though community-owned, some community radios, TV and newspapers are run by professionals and some by amateurs. They use both social and industrial media frameworks.

In his 2006 book, *The Wealth of Networks: How Social Production Transforms Markets and Freedom*, Yochai Benkler analyzed many of these distinctions and their implications in terms of both economics and political liberty. However, Benkler, like many academics, uses the neologism network economy or "network information economy" to describe the underlying economic, social, and technological characteristics of what has come to be known as "social media".

Andrew Keen criticizes social media in his book *The Cult of the Amateur*, writing, "Out of this anarchy, it suddenly became clear that what was governing the infinite monkeys now inputting away on the Internet was the law of digital Darwinism, the survival of the loudest and most opinionated. Under these rules, the only way to intellectually prevail is by infinite filibustering."<sup>[2]</sup>

There are various statistics that account for social media usage and effectiveness for individuals worldwide. Some of the most recent statistics are as follows:

- Social networking now accounts for 22% of all time spent online in the US.<sup>[3]</sup>
- A total of 234 million people age 13 and older in the U.S. used mobile devices in December 2009.<sup>[4]</sup>
- Twitter processed more than one billion tweets in December 2009 and averages almost 40 million tweets per day.<sup>[5]</sup>
- Over 25% of U.S. internet page views occurred at one of the top social networking sites in December 2009, up from 13.8% a year before.<sup>[6]</sup>
- Australia has some of the highest social media usage statistics in the world. In terms of Facebook use Australia ranks highest with almost 9 hours per month from over 9 million users.<sup>[7] [8]</sup>

### Social media, Marketing, and "social authority"

One of the key components in successful social media marketing implementation is building "social authority". Social authority is developed when an individual or organization establishes themselves as an "expert" in their given field or area, thereby becoming an "influencer <sup>[9]</sup>" in that field or area. <sup>[10]</sup>

It is through this process of "building social authority" that social media becomes effective. That is why one of the foundational concepts in social media has become that you cannot completely control your message through social media but rather you can simply begin to participate in the "conversation" in the hopes that you can become a relevant influence in that conversation. <sup>[11]</sup>

However, this conversation participation must be cleverly executed because while people are resistant to marketing in general, they are even more resistant to direct or overt marketing through social media platforms. This may seem counter-intuitive but is the main reason building social authority with credibility <sup>[12]</sup> is so important. A marketer can generally not expect people to be receptive to a marketing message in and of itself. In the Edleman Trust Barometer report <sup>[13]</sup> in 2008, the majority (58%) of the respondents reported they most trusted company or product information coming from "people like me" inferred to be information from someone they trusted. In the 2010 Trust Report <sup>[14]</sup>, the majority switched to 64% preferring their information from industry experts and academics. According to Inc. Technology's Brent Leary, "This loss of trust, and the accompanying turn towards experts and authorities, seems to be coinciding with the rise of social media and networks."<sup>[15]</sup> <sup>[16]</sup>

Thus, using social media as a form of *marketing* has taken on whole new challenges. As the 2010 Trust Study <sup>[14]</sup> indicates, it is most effective if marketing efforts through social media revolve around the *genuine* building of authority. Someone performing a "marketing" role within a company **must** *honestly* convince people of their *genuine* intentions, knowledge, and expertise in a specific area or industry through providing valuable and accurate information on an ongoing basis without a marketing angle overtly associated. If this can be done, trust with, and of, the recipient of that information – and that message itself – begins to develop naturally. This person or organization becomes a thought leader and value provider - setting themselves up as a trusted "advisor" instead of marketer. "Top of mind awareness" develops and the consumer naturally begins to gravitate to the products and/or offerings of the authority/influencer. <sup>[17]</sup> [18]

Of course, there are many ways authority can be created – and influence can be accomplished – including: participation in Wikipedia which actually verifies user-generated content and information more than most people may realize; providing valuable content through social networks on platforms such as Facebook and Twitter; article writing and distribution through sites such as Ezine Articles and Scribd; and providing fact-based answers on "social question and answer sites" such as EHow and Yahoo! Answers.

As a result of social media – and the direct or indirect influence of social media marketers – today, consumers are as likely – or more likely – to make buying decisions based on what they read and see in platforms we call "social" but only if presented by someone they have come to trust. That is why a purposeful and carefully designed social media strategy has become an integral part of any complete and directed marketing plan but must also be designed using newer "authority building" techniques.<sup>[19]</sup>

### **Examples**

Social media can take many different forms, including Internet forums, weblogs, social blogs, microblogging, wikis, podcasts, pictures, video, rating and social bookmarking. By applying a set of theories in the field of media research (social presence, media richness) and social processes (self-presentation, self-disclosure) Kaplan and Haenlein created a classification scheme for different social media types in their Business Horizons article published in 2010. According to Kaplan and Haenlein there are six different types of social media: collaborative projects, blogs and microblogs, content communities, social networking sites, virtual game worlds, and virtual communities. Technologies include: blogs, picture-sharing, vlogs, wall-postings, email, instant messaging, music-sharing, crowdsourcing, and voice over IP, to name a few. Many of these social media services can be integrated via social network aggregation platforms.

### Communication

- Blogs: Blogger, ExpressionEngine, LiveJournal, Open Diary, TypePad, Vox, WordPress, Xanga
- Microblogging: FMyLife, Foursquare, Jaiku, Plurk, Posterous, Tumblr, Twitter, Qaiku, Yammer, Google Buzz
- Location-based social networks: Foursquare, Gowalla, Facebook places, The Hotlist
- Social networking: ASmallWorld, Cyworld, Facebook, Hi5, LinkedIn, MySpace, Orkut, Tagged, XING
- Events: Eventful, The Hotlist, Meetup.com, Upcoming
- Information Aggregators: Netvibes, Twine (website)
- Online Advocacy and Fundraising: Causes, Kickstarter

### **Collaboration/authority building**

- Wikis: PBworks, Wetpaint, Wikia, Wikimedia
- Social bookmarking (or social tagging):<sup>[20]</sup> CiteULike, Delicious, Diigo, Google Reader, StumbleUpon, folkd
- Social news: Digg, Mixx, NowPublic, Reddit, Newsvine, MyWeboo
- Social navigation: Trapster, Waze<sup>[21]</sup>
- Content Management Systems: Wordpress
- Document Managing and Editing Tools: Google Docs, Syncplicity, Docs.com, Dropbox

### Multimedia

- Photography and art sharing: deviantArt, Flickr, Photobucket, Picasa, SmugMug, Zooomr, BetweenCreation
- Video sharing: sevenload, Viddler, Vimeo, YouTube, Dailymotion, Metacafe, Nico Nico Douga, Openfilm, TubeMogul
- Livecasting: Justin.tv, Livestream, OpenCU, Skype, Stickam, Ustream
- Music and audio sharing: ccMixter, Pandora Radio, Last.fm, MySpace Music, ReverbNation.com, ShareTheMusic, The Hype Machine
- Presentation sharing: scribd, SlideShare

### **Reviews and opinions**

- Product reviews: epinions.com, MouthShut.com
- Business reviews: Customer Lobby, Yelp, Inc.
- Community Q&A: Askville, EHow, Stack Exchange, WikiAnswers, Yahoo! Answers

### Entertainment

- Media and entertainment platforms: Cisco Eos
- Virtual worlds: Active Worlds, Forterra Systems, Second Life, The Sims Online
- Game sharing: Kongregate, Miniclip

### **Brand monitoring**

• Social media measurement: Attensity, Statsit, Sysomos, Vocus

### See also

- Brand infiltration
- Citizen media
- Connectivism (learning theory)
- The Facebook Era (book)
- Metcalfe's law
- Networked learning
- New media
- Online research community
- · People's Voice Media
- Social media marketing
- Social media optimization
- Social sculpture
- Social television
- Social web
- Social software
- Tribe (internet)
- Participatory media

### References

- Kaplan, Andreas M.; Michael Haenlein (2010). "Users of the world, unite! The challenges and opportunities of Social Media" (http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/B6W45-4XFF2S0-1/2/600db1bd6e0c9903c744aaf34b0b12e1). Business Horizons 53 (1): 59–68. doi:10.1016/j.bushor.2009.09.003. ISSN 0007-6813. . Retrieved 2010-09-15.
- [2] Keen, Andrew. The Cult of the Amateur. Random House. p. 15. ISBN 9780385520812.
- [3] http://blog.nielsen.com/nielsenwire/global/social-media-accounts-for-22-percent-of-time-online/
- [4] http://digital.venturebeat.com/2010/02/10/54-of-us-internet-users-on-facebook-27-on-myspace/trackback/
- [5] http://digital.venturebeat.com/2010/02/10/54-of-us-internet-users-on-facebook-27-on-myspace/trackback/
- [6] http://digital.venturebeat.com/2010/02/10/54-of-us-internet-users-on-facebook-27-on-myspace/trackback/
- [7] http://www.socialmedianews.com.au/social-media-stats-in-australia-facebook-blogger-myspace/
- [8] http://www.socialmedianews.com.au/
- [9] http://wiki.smac.org/social-consumers/influencer
- [10] European Journal of Social Psychology (http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1002/ejsp.355/abstract)
- [11] Research Survey (http://mprcenter.org/blog/2010/08/04/
  - research-survey-launched-social-media-and-influence-of-photos-on-body-image/)
- [12] http://wiki.smac.org/social-equity-terms/credibility
- [13] http://www.edelman.com/trust/2008/

- [14] http://www.edelman.com/trust/2010/
- [15] Inc. Technology Brent Leary Article (http://technology.inc.com/internet/articles/201003/leary.html)
- [16] Edelman 2010 Trust Barometer Study (http://www.edelman.com/trust/2010/)
- [17] Search Engine Watch (http://searchenginewatch.com/3640221)
- [18] Inc. Technology Brent Leary Article (http://technology.inc.com/internet/articles/201003/leary.html)
- [19] Business Expert Brent Leary on Inc Technology Website (http://technology.inc.com/internet/articles/201003/leary.html)
- [20] Golder, Scott; Huberman, Bernardo A. (2006). "Usage Patterns of Collaborative Tagging Systems" (http://www.hpl.hp.com/research/ idl/papers/tags/tags.pdf). Journal of Information Science 32 (2): 198–208. doi:10.1177/0165551506062337.
- [21] 10 Ways Geolocation is Changing the World (http://www.tonic.com/article/10-ways-geolocation-is-changing-the-world/)

### **Further reading**

- Benkler, Yochai (2006). *The Wealth of Networks*. New Haven: Yale University Press. ISBN 0300110561. OCLC 61881089.
- Gentle, Anne (2009). Conversation and Community: The Social Web for Documentation. Fort Collins, Colo: XML Press. ISBN 9780982219119. OCLC 464581118.
- Johnson, Steven Berlin (2005). *Everything Bad Is Good for You*. New York: Riverhead Books. ISBN 1573223077. OCLC 57514882.
- Li, Charlene; Bernoff, Josh (2008). *Groundswell: Winning in a World Transformed by Social Technologies*. Boston: Harvard Business Press. ISBN 9781422125007. OCLC 423555651.
- Scoble, Robert; Israel, Shel (2006). *Naked Conversations: How Blogs are Changing the Way Businesses Talk with Customers*. Hoboken, N.J: John Wiley. ISBN 047174719X. OCLC 61757953.
- Shirky, Clay (2008). *Here Comes Everybody*. New York: Penguin Press. ISBN 9781594201530. OCLC 458788924.
- Surowiecki, James (2004). *The Wisdom of Crowds*. New York: Anchor Books. ISBN 0385721706. OCLC 156770258.
- Tapscott, Don; Williams, Anthony D. (2006). Wikinomics. New York: Portfolio. ISBN 1591841380. OCLC 318389282.

### **External links**

 Using Social Media to Build Community and Resistance (http://www.democracynow.org/2010/7/23/ using\_social\_media\_to\_build\_communityand) - video roundtable by *Democracy Now!*

### Social web

The **Social Web** is a specified term for the World Wide Web as a kind of Social Media. The term is currently used to describe how people socialize or interact with each other throughout the Web. The **Social Web** mostly refers to social networking, myspace for example, and content-sharing sites (which also offer a social networking functionality) within Web 2.0.

These social websites are mostly formed around the connections of people of the same interest, but there are several theories that specifies exactly how this formation works. There are for example said to be "people focus" websites such as Bebo, Facebook, and Myspace, that focus of social interaction, often by making the user create an online identity (and a profile). There is also socializing on the web that is typified by "hobby focus". For example, if one is interested in photography and wants to share this with like-minded people, then there are photography websites such as Flickr, Kodak Gallery and Photobucket.

Often when speaking about the **Social Web**, collective intelligence is mentioned. Collective intelligence refers to the phenomena of internet users getting together, sharing content, in order to create something bigger than one single person could do. Sometimes, this is also called Wisdom of Crowds.Wikipedia is a perfect example of this.

### The Social Web as a current description

The social web can be described as people interlinked and interacting with engaging content in a conversational and participatory manner via the Internet.<sup>[1]</sup>

Since social web applications are built to encourage communication between people, they typically emphasize some combination of the following social attributes:<sup>[2]</sup>

- Identity: who are you?
- Reputation: what do people think you stand for?
- Presence: where are you?
- Relationships: who are you connected with? who do you trust?
- Groups: how do you organize your connections?
- Conversations: what do you discuss with others?
- Sharing: what content do you make available for others to interact with?

Examples of social applications include Twitter, Facebook, and Jaiku.

### The Social Web as a future network

The first is an open global distributed data sharing network similar to today's World Wide Web, except instead of linking documents, the Social Web will link people, organizations, and concepts.

The use of the term in this context was introduced in 1998 by a paper called "CSCW research at GMD-FIT<sup>[3]</sup>]: From Basic Groupware to the Social Web"<sup>[4] [5]</sup>. The paper identifies 6 research topics relevant to the Social Web: personal representation and virtual identities; mutual perception and social awareness; formation and establishment of norms and conventions; self organisation of groups and communities; social contruction of community knowledge; software agents as mediators in social processes.

In July 2004 the paper "The Social Web: Building an Open Social Network with XDI" describes how the introduction of a new protocol for distributed mediated data sharing and synchronization, XDI, could enable a new layer of trusted data interchange applications. The key building blocks for this layer are I-names and I-numbers (based on the OASIS XRI specifications), Dataweb pages, and link contracts.<sup>[6]</sup>

Open social networks using FOAF<sup>[7]</sup> has been around since 2000.

Perhaps the best analogy for the Social Web is the worldwide banking and credit card system. This infrastructure has evolved over centuries to facilitate the global exchange of a very sensitive form of data — money — by establishing a common means of exchange among trusted third party service providers — banks. The Social Web takes the same approach for exchange of private, sensitive information by establishing a common means of exchange among trusted third party service providers — banks. The social Web takes the same approach for exchange of private, sensitive information by establishing a common means of exchange among trusted third party service providers — banks.

Earlier uses of the term include:

 In 1955 the term "Social Web" was introduced by August C. Krey in the essay collection History and the Social Web published by the University of Minnesota press.<sup>[8]</sup>

### See also

- Online identity
- Online participation
- Presence information
- Sociology of the Internet
- Social media
- Social network service

social web systems

- Blog
- Wiki
- Social networking site
- Microblogging
- Social bookmarking

technical aspects

- FOAF (software)
- I-broker
- I-name
- I-number
- Identity Commons
- XRI
- XDI
- Activity Streams

### References

- Hoschka, Peter (1998). "CSCW Research at GMD-FIT: From Basic Groupware to the Social Web" <sup>[9]</sup>. ACM SIGGROUP Bulletin 19 (2): 5-9.
- Kraut, Robert; et al. (2002). "Internet Paradox Revisited" <sup>[10]</sup>. Journal of Social Issues **58** (1): 49–74.
- Berslin, John G.; Passant, Alexandra; Decker, Stefan (2010), *The Social Semantic Web*, Springer, ISBN 978-3-642-01171-9
- Gruber, Tom (2007). "Collective Knowledge System: Where the Social Web meets the Semantic Web" <sup>[11]</sup>. *Journal of Web Semantics* **6** (1): 4-13.

### Notes

- [1] A discussion of how the social web relates to the semantic web can be found at (http://videolectures.net/iswc06\_gruber\_wswms/).
- [2] http://connollyshaun.blogspot.com/2008/05/7-key-attributes-of-social-web.html
- [3] http://www.fit.fraunhofer.de/index\_en.html
- [4] Social Web Research Program (http://www.fit.fhg.de/~hoschka/Social Web.htm)
- [5] From Basic Groupware to the Social Web (http://portal.acm.org/citation.cfm?id=290576)
- [6] "The Social Web: Building an Open Social Network with XDI" (http://journal.planetwork.net/article.php?lab=reed0704&page=1), published in the PlaNetwork Journal (http://journal.planetwork.net/) by members of the OASIS XDI Technical Committee
- [7] http://xmlns.com/foaf/0.1/
- [8] http://www.worldcat.org/oclc/1153026?tab=details#tabs
- [9] http://doi.acm.org/10.1145/290575.290576
- [10] http://www.webuse.umd.edu/webshop/resources/kraut.pdf
- [11] http://tomgruber.org/writing/collective-knowledge-systems.htm

### **External links**

- The Augmented Social Network: Building Identity and Trust into the Next-Generation Internet (http:// firstmonday.org/htbin/cgiwrap/bin/ojs/index.php/fm/article/view/1068/988)
- Social Web Incubator Group at the W3C (http://www.w3.org/2005/Incubator/socialweb/)

### Social media measurement

**Social media measurement** refers to the tracking of various social media content such as blogs, wikis, micro-blogs, social networking sites, video/photo sharing websites, forums, message boards, and user-generated content in general as a way for marketers to determine the volume and sentiment around a brand or topic in social media.<sup>[1]</sup>

### See also

- Vocus
- Free Tools<sup>[2]</sup>

### References

- Li, Charlene, Bernoff, Josh (2008). Groundswell: Winning in a World Transformed by Social Technologies. Boston, Massachesetts: Harvard Business Press
- [2] List of Free Social Media Monitoring tools (http://takemetoyourleader.com/2009/03/24/free-social-media-monitoring-tools/)

### **External links**

- Dow Jones Insight Media Services (http://www.dowjones.com/solutions-pr-corp-comm.asp)
- How to track Social Media (http://talkbackmedia.com/blog/2010/03/16/tracking-tweet-success/)

### Social media marketing

**Social media marketing** is a recent addition to organizations' integrated marketing communications plans. Integrated marketing communications is a principle organizations follow to connect with their targeted markets. Integrated marketing communications coordinates the elements of the promotional mix; advertising, personal selling, public relations, publicity, direct marketing, and sales promotion.<sup>[1]</sup> In the traditional marketing communications model, the content, frequency, timing, and medium of communications by the organization is in collaboration with an external agent, i.e. advertising agencies, marketing research firms, and public relations firms.<sup>[2]</sup> However, the growth of social media has impacted the way organizations communicate. With the emergence of Web 2.0, the internet provides a set of tools that allow people to build social and business connections, share information and collaborate on projects online.<sup>[3]</sup>

Social media marketing programs usually center on efforts to create content that attracts attention and encourages readers to share it with their social networks. A corporate message spreads from user to user and presumably resonates because it is coming from a trusted source, as opposed to the brand or company itself.

Social media has become a platform that is easily accessible to anyone with internet access, opening doors for organizations to increase their brand awareness and facilitate conversations with the customer. Additionally, social media serves as a relatively inexpensive platform for organizations to implement marketing campaigns. Organizations can receive direct feedback from their customers and targeted markets.

### **Platforms**

Social media marketing which is known as **SMO** Social Media Optimization benefits organizations and individuals by providing an additional channel for customer support, a means to gain customer and competitive insight, and a method of managing their reputation online. Key factors that ensure its success are its relevance to the customer, the value it provides them with and the strength of the foundation on which it is built. A strong foundation serves as a stand or platform in which the organization can centralize its information and direct customers on its recent developments via other social media channels, such as article and press release publications.<sup>[4]</sup>

The most popular platforms include:

- Facebook
- YouTube
- LinkedIn
- Twitter
- MySpace
- Reddit
- Delicious
- More...

### See also

- Social Media
- Marketing
- Internet Marketing
- Integrated Marketing Communications
- Web 2.0

### References

- [1] W. Glynn Mangold, David J. Faulds. Social media: The new hybrid element of the promotion mix. *Business Horizons*, The Journal of the Kelley School of Business, Indiana University
- [2] W. Glynn Mangold, David J. Faulds. Social media: The new hybrid element of the promotion mix. Business Horizons, The Journal of the Kelley School of Business, Indiana University
- [3] (http://online.wsj.com/article/SB122884677205091919.html)
- [4] [[Imediaconnection (http://www.imediaconnection.com/content/24165.asp)]

### Social media optimization

Internet marketing
Display advertising
E-mail marketing
E-mail marketing software
Interactive advertising
Social media optimization
Web analytics
Cost per impression
Affiliate marketing
Cost per action
Contextual advertising
Revenue sharing
Search engine marketing
Search engine
optimization
Pay per click advertising
Paid inclusion
Search analytics
Mobile advertising

**Social Media Optimization** (SMO) or Social SEO is the methodization of social media activity with the intent of attracting unique visitors to website content. SMO is one of two online methods of website optimization; the other method is search engine optimization or SEO.

There are two categories of SMO/Social SEO methods:

(a) Social media features added to the content itself, including: RSS feeds, social news and sharing buttons, user rating and polling tools, and incorporating third-party community functionalities like images and videos

(b) Promotional activities in social media aside from the content being promoted, including: blogging, commenting on other blogs, participating in discussion groups, and posting status updates on social networking profiles

Social media optimization is related to search engine marketing, but differs in several ways, primarily the focus on driving traffic from sources other than search engines, though improved search ranking is also a benefit of successful SMO.

Social media optimization is in many ways connected as a technique to viral marketing where word of mouth is created not through friends or family but through the use of networking in social bookmarking, video and photo sharing websites. In a similar way the engagement with blogs achieves the same by sharing content through the use of RSS in the blogosphere and special blog search engines.

Social Media optimization is considered an integral part of an online reputation management (ORM) or Search Engine Reputation Management (SERM) strategy for organizations or individuals who care about their online presence.

Social Media Optimisation (SMO), is not limited to marketing and brand building. Increasingly smart businesses are integrating social media participation as part of their knowledge management strategy (ie. product/service development, recruiting, employee engagement and turnover, brand building, customer satisfaction and relations, business development and more). Additionally, Social Media Optimization is oftentimes implemented to foster a community of the associated site, allowing for a healthy business to consumer relationship.

### Origins

According to search engine expert Danny Sullivan<sup>[1]</sup>, the term "social media optimization" was first used and described by Rohit Bhargava. Bhargava's original five rules for conducting social media optimization are:<sup>[2]</sup>

- 1. Increase your linkability
- 2. Make tagging and bookmarking easy
- 3. Reward inbound links
- 4. Help your content travel
- 5. Encourage the mashup
- 6. Get communities connected

Several authors added new rules to the original post. Today there are 16 rules, which were translated into French, Dutch, Italian, Spanish, German, Japanese, Greek, Portuguese, Russian, Hebrew and recently also in Thai.

### See also

- Customer engagement
- Search engine marketing
- Online Identity Management

### References

- Danny Sullivan (August 29, 2006). "Social Media Optimization: It's Like SEO, For Social Sites" (http://blog.searchenginewatch.com/blog/ 060829-150053). blog.searchenginewatch.com. . Retrieved 2007-09-06.
- [2] Rohit Bhargava (August 10, 2006). "5 Rules of Social Media Optimization (SMO)" (http://rohitbhargava.typepad.com/weblog/2006/08/ 5\_rules\_of\_soci.html). rohitbhargava.typepad.com. . Retrieved 2007-09-06.

### Social network service

A social network service is an online service, platform, or site that focuses on building and reflecting of social networks or social relations among people, e.g., who share interests and/or activities. A social network service essentially consists of a representation of each user (often a profile), his/her social links, and a variety of additional services. Most social network services are web based and provide means for users to interact over the internet, such as e-mail and instant messaging. Although online community services are sometimes considered as a social network service. In a broader sense, social network service usually means an individual-centered service whereas online community services are group-centered. Social networking sites allow users to share ideas, activities, events, and interests within their individual networks.

The main types of social networking services are those which contain category places (such as former school-year or classmates), means to connect with friends (usually with self-description pages) and a recommendation system linked to trust. Popular methods now combine many of these, with Facebook and Twitter widely used worldwide; MySpace and LinkedIn being the most widely used in North America;<sup>[1]</sup> Nexopia (mostly in Canada);<sup>[2]</sup> Bebo,<sup>[3]</sup> Hi5, Hyves (mostly in The Netherlands), StudiVZ (mostly in Germany), iWiW (mostly in Hungary), Tuenti (mostly in Spain), Nasza-Klasa (mostly in Poland), Decayenne, Tagged, XING,<sup>[4]</sup> Badoo<sup>[5]</sup> and Skyrock in parts of Europe;<sup>[6]</sup> Orkut and Hi5 in South America, India and Central America;<sup>[7]</sup> and Friendster, Mixi, Multiply, Orkut, Wretch, renren and Cyworld in Asia and the Pacific Islands and Twitter, Orkut and Facebook in India.

There have been attempts to standardize these services to avoid the need to duplicate entries of friends and interests (see the FOAF standard and the Open Source Initiative).

Although some of the largest social networks were founded on the notion of digitizing real world connections, many networks focus on categories from books and music to non-profit business to motherhood as ways to provide both

services and community to individuals with shared interests.

### History

The potential for computer networking to facilitate new forms of computer-mediated social interaction was suggested early on.<sup>[8]</sup> Efforts to support social networks via computer-mediated communication were made in many early online services, including Usenet, ARPANET, LISTSERV, and bulletin board services (BBS). Many prototypical features of social networking sites were also present in online services such as America Online, Prodigy, and CompuServe.

Early social networking on the World Wide Web began in the form of generalized online communities such as Theglobe.com (1994),<sup>[9]</sup> Geocities (1994) and Tripod.com (1995). Many of these early communities focused on bringing people together to interact with each other through chat rooms, and encouraged users to share personal information and ideas via personal webpages by providing easy-to-use publishing tools and free or inexpensive webspace. Some communities - such as Classmates.com - took a different approach by simply having people link to each other via email addresses. In the late 1990s, user profiles became a central feature of social networking sites, allowing users to compile lists of "friends" and search for other users with similar interests.

New social networking methods were developed by the end of the 1990s, and many sites began to develop more advanced features for users to find and manage friends.<sup>[10]</sup> This newer generation of social networking sites began to flourish with the emergence of Friendster in 2002,<sup>[11]</sup> and soon became part of the Internet mainstream. Friendster was followed by MySpace and LinkedIn a year later, and finally, Bebo. Attesting to the rapid increase in social networking sites' popularity, by 2005, MySpace was reportedly getting more page views than Google. Facebook,<sup>[12]</sup>, launched in 2004, has since become the largest social networking site in the world.<sup>[13]</sup>

Today, it is estimated that there are now over 200 active sites using a wide variety of social networking models.<sup>[14]</sup>

### Social impacts

Web based social network services make it possible to connect people who share interests and activities across political, economic, and geographic borders.<sup>[15]</sup> Through e-mail and instant messaging, online communities are created where a gift economy and reciprocal altruism are encouraged through cooperation. Information is particularly suited to gift economy, as information is a nonrival good and can be gifted at practically no cost.<sup>[16]</sup> [17]

Facebook and other social networking tools are increasingly the object of scholarly research. Scholars in many fields have begun to investigate the impact of social networking sites, investigating how such sites may play into issues of identity, privacy<sup>[18]</sup>, social capital, youth culture, and education<sup>[19]</sup>

Several websites are beginning to tap into the power of the social networking model for philanthropy. Such models provide a means for connecting otherwise fragmented industries and small organizations without the resources to reach a broader audience with interested users.<sup>[20]</sup> Social networks are providing a different way for individuals to communicate digitally. These communities of hypertexts allow for the sharing of information and ideas, an old concept placed in a digital environment.

### **Typical structure**

### **Basics**

Social networking sites tend to share some conventional features. Most often, individual users are encouraged to create profiles containing various information about themselves. Users can often upload pictures of themselves to their profiles, post blog entries for others to read, search for other users with similar interests, and compile and share lists of contacts. In addition, user profiles often have a section dedicated to comments from friends and other users. To protect user privacy, social networks usually have controls that allow users to choose who can view their profile,

contact them, add them to their list of contacts, and so on.

In recent years, it has also become common for a wide variety of organizations to create profiles to advertise products and services.

#### **Additional features**

Some social networks have additional features, such as the ability to create groups that share common interests or affiliations, upload or stream live videos, and hold discussions in forums. Geosocial networking co-opts internet mapping services to organize user participation around geographic features and their attributes.

There is also a trend for more interoperability between social networks led by technologies such as OpenID and OpenSocial.

Lately, mobile social networking has become popular. In most mobile communities, mobile phone users can now create their own profiles, make friends, participate in chat rooms, create chat rooms, hold private conversations, share photos and videos, and share blogs by using their mobile phone. Mobile phone users are basically open to every option that someone sitting on the computer has. Some companies provide wireless services which allow their customers to build their own mobile community and brand it, but one of the most popular wireless services for social networking in North America is Facebook Mobile.

### **Emerging trends in social networks**

As the increase in popularity of social networking is on a constant rise,<sup>[21]</sup> new uses for the technology are constantly being observed.

At the forefront of emerging trends in social networking sites is the concept of "real time" and "location based." Real time allows users to contribute content, which is then broadcasted as it is being uploaded - the concept is similar to live television broadcasts. Twitter set the trend for "real time" services, where users can broadcast to the world what they are doing, or what is on their minds within a 140 character limit. Facebook followed suit with their "Live Feed" where users' activities are streamed as soon as it happens. While Twitter focuses on words, Clixtr, another real time service, focuses on group photo sharing where users can update their photo streams with photos while at an event. Friends and nearby users can contribute their own photos and comments to that event stream, thus contributing to the "real time" aspect of broadcasting photos and comments as it is being uploaded. In the location based social networking space, Foursquare gained popularity as it allowed for users to "check-in" to places that they are frequenting at that moment. Gowalla is another such service which functions in much the same way that Foursquare does, leveraging the GPS in phones to create a location based user experience. Clixtr, though in the real time space, is also a location based social networking site since events created by users are automatically geotagged, and users can view events occurring nearby through the Clixtr iPhone app. Recently, Yelp announced its entrance into the location based social networking space through check-ins with their mobile app; whether or not this becomes detrimental to Foursquare or Gowalla is yet to be seen as it is still considered a new space in the internet technology industry.<sup>[22]</sup>

One popular use for this new technology is social networking between businesses. Companies have found that social networking sites such as Facebook and Twitter are great ways to build their brand image. According to Jody Nimetz, author of Marketing Jive,<sup>[23]</sup> there are five major uses for businesses and social media: to create brand awareness, as an online reputation management tool, for recruiting, to learn about new technologies and competitors, and as a lead gen tool to intercept potential prospects.<sup>[23]</sup> These companies are able to drive traffic to their own online sites while encouraging their consumers and clients to have discussions on how to improve or change products or services.

One other use that is being discussed is the use of Social Networks in the Science communities. Julia Porter Liebeskind et al. have published a study on how New Biotechnology Firms are using social networking sites to share exchanges in scientific knowledge.<sup>[24]</sup> They state in their study that by sharing information and knowledge with one

another, they are able to "increase both their learning and their flexibility in ways that would not be possible within a self-contained hierarchical organization." Social networking is allowing scientific groups to expand their knowledge base and share ideas, and without these new means of communicating their theories might become "isolated and irrelevant".

Social networks are also being used by teachers and students as a communication tool. Because many students are already using a wide-range of social networking sites, teachers have begun to familiarize themselves with this trend and are now using it to their advantage. Teachers and professors are doing everything from creating chat-room forums and groups to extend classroom discussion to posting assignments, tests and quizzes, to assisting with homework outside of the classroom setting. Social networks are also being used to foster teacher-parent communication. These sites make it possible and more convenient for parents to ask questions and voice concerns without having to meet face-to-face.

Social networks are being used by activists as a means of low-cost grassroots organizing. Extensive use of an array of social networking sites enabled organizers of the 2009 National Equality March to mobilize an estimated 200,000 participants to march on Washington with a cost savings of up to 85% per participant over previous methods.<sup>[25]</sup>

The use of online social networks by libraries is also an increasingly prevalent and growing tool that is being used to communicate with more potential library users, as well as extending the services provided by individual libraries.

A final rise in social network use is being driven by college students using the services to network with professionals for internship and job opportunities. Many studies have been done on the effectiveness of networking online in a college setting, and one notable one is by Phipps Arabie and Yoram Wind published in *Advances in Social Network Analysis*.<sup>[26]</sup>

### Social network hosting service

A social network hosting service is a web hosting service that specifically hosts the user creation of web-based social networking services, alongside related applications. Such services are also known as vertical social networks due to the creation of SNSes which cater to specific user interests and niches; like larger, interest-agnostic SNSes, such niche networking services may also possess the ability to create increasingly-niche groups of users.

#### **Business model**

Few social networks currently charge money for membership. In part, this may be because social networking is a relatively new service, and the value of using them has not been firmly established in customers' minds. Companies such as MySpace and Facebook sell online advertising on their site. Their business model is based upon large membership count, and charging for membership would be counterproductive.<sup>[27]</sup> Some believe that the deeper information that the sites have on each user will allow much better targeted advertising than any other site can currently provide.<sup>[28]</sup>

Social network's operate under an autonomous business model, in which a social network's members serve dual roles as both the suppliers and the consumers of content. This is in contrast to a traditional business model, where the suppliers and consumers are distinct agents. Revenue is typically gained in the autonomous business model via advertisements, but subscription-based revenue is possible when membership and content levels are sufficiently high.<sup>[29]</sup>

### Issues

### Privacy

On large social networking services, there have been growing concerns about users giving out too much personal information and the threat of sexual predators. Users of these services also need to be aware of data theft or viruses. However, large services, such as MySpace and Netlog, often work with law enforcement to try to prevent such incidents.

In addition, there is a perceived privacy threat in relation to placing too much personal information in the hands of large corporations or governmental bodies, allowing a profile to be produced on an individual's behavior on which decisions, detrimental to an individual, may be taken.

Furthermore, there is an issue over the control of data—information that was altered or removed by the user may in fact be retained and/or passed to 3rd parties. This danger was highlighted when the controversial social networking site Quechup harvested e-mail addresses from users' e-mail accounts for use in a spamming operation.<sup>[30]</sup>

In medical and scientific research, asking subjects for information about their behaviors is normally strictly scrutinized by institutional review boards, for example, to ensure that adolescents and their parents have informed consent. It is not clear whether the same rules apply to researchers who collect data from social networking sites. These sites often contain a great deal of data that is hard to obtain via traditional means. Even though the data are public, republishing it in a research paper might be considered invasion of privacy.<sup>[31]</sup>

Privacy on social networking sites can be undermined by many factors. For example, users may disclose personal information, sites may not take adequate steps to protect user privacy, and third parties frequently use information posted on social networks for a variety of purposes. "For the Net generation, social networking sites have become the preferred forum for social interactions, from posturing and role playing to simply sounding off. However, because such forums are relatively easy to access, posted content can be reviewed by anyone with an interest in the users' personal information".<sup>[32] [33] [34]</sup>

Following plans by the UK government to monitor traffic on social networks<sup>[35]</sup> schemes similar to E-mail jamming have been proposed for networks such as Twitter and Facebook. These would involve "friending" and "following" large numbers of random people to thwart attempts at network analysis.

### Notifications on websites

There has been a trend for social networking sites to send out only 'positive' notifications to users. For example sites such as Bebo, Facebook, and Myspace will not send notifications to users when they are removed from a person's friends list. Similarly Bebo will send out a notification if a user is moved to the top of another user's friends list but no notification is sent if they are moved down the list.

This allows users to purge undesirables from their list extremely easily and often without confrontation since a user will rarely notice if one person disappears from their friends list. It also enforces the general positive atmosphere of the website without drawing attention to unpleasant happenings such as friends falling out, rejection and failed relationships.

### Access to information

Many social networking services, such as Facebook, provide the user with a choice of who can view their profile. This prevents unauthorized user(s) from accessing their information.<sup>[36]</sup> Parents who want to access their child's MySpace or Facebook account have become a big problem for teenagers who do not want their profile seen by their parents. By making their profile private, teens can select who may see their page, allowing only people added as "friends" to view their profile and preventing unwanted parents from viewing it. Teens are constantly trying to create a structural barrier between their private life and their parents.<sup>[37]</sup>

To edit information on a certain social networking service account, the social networking sites require you to login or provide an access code. This prevents unauthorized user(s) from adding, changing, or removing personal information, pictures, and/or other data.

### Potential for misuse

The relative freedom afforded by social networking services has caused concern regarding the potential of its misuse by individual patrons. In October 2006, a fake Myspace profile created in the name of Josh Evans by Lori Janine Drew led to the suicide of Megan Meier.<sup>[38]</sup> The event incited global concern regarding the use of social networking services for bullying purposes.

In July 2008, a Briton, Grant Raphael, was ordered to pay a total of GBP £22,000 (about USD \$44,000) for libel and breach of privacy. Raphael had posted a fake page on Facebook purporting to be that of a former schoolfriend Matthew Firsht, with whom Raphael had fallen out in 2000. The page falsely claimed that Firsht was homosexual and that he was dishonest.

At the same time, genuine use of social networking services has been treated with suspicion on the ground of the services' misuse. In September 2008, the profile of Australian Facebook user Elmo Keep was banned by the site's administrators on the grounds that it violated the site's terms of use. Keep is one of several users of Facebook who were banned from the site on the presumption that their names aren't real, as they bear resemblance the names of characters like Sesame Street's Elmo.<sup>[39]</sup>

### **Risk for child safety**

Citizens and governments have been concerned by a misuse by child and teenagers of social network services, particularly in relation to online sexual predators. A certain number of actions have been engaged by governments to better understand the problem and find some solutions. A 2008 panel concluded that technological fixes such as age verification and scans are relatively ineffective means of apprehending online predators.<sup>[40]</sup> In May 2010, a child pornography social networking site with hundreds of members was dismantled by law enforcement. It was deemed "the largest crimes against children case brought anywhere by anyone."<sup>[41]</sup>

### Trolling

A common misuse of social networking sites such as Facebook is that it is occasionally used to emotionally abuse individuals. Such actions are often referred to as trolling. It is not rare for confrontations in the real world to be translated online. Trolling can occur in many different forms, such as (but not limited to) defacement of deceased person(s) tribute pages, calling "Australians" "Austrians", playing online pranks on volatile individuals and controversial comments with the intention to cause anger and cause arguments. Trolling is not to be confused with cyber-bullying.

### **Online bullying**

Online bullying (aka "Cyber-bullying") is a relatively common occurrence and it can often result in emotional trauma for the victim. Depending on the networking outlet, up to 39% of users admit to being "cyber-bullied".<sup>[42]</sup> danah boyd, a researcher of social networks quotes a teenager in her article, Why Youth (Heart) Social Network Sites. The teenager expresses frustration towards networking sites like MySpace because it causes drama and too much emotional stress.<sup>[43]</sup> There are not many limitations as to what individuals can post when online. Inherently individuals are given the power to post offensive remarks or pictures that could potentially cause a great amount of emotional pain for another individual.

### **Interpersonal communication**

Interpersonal communication has been a growing issue as more and more people have turned to social networking as a means of communication."Benniger (1987) describes how mass media has gradually replaced interpersonal communication as a socializing force. Further, social networking sites have become popular sites for youth culture to explore themselves, relationships, and share cultural artifacts". A Privacy Paradox <sup>[44]</sup> Many teens and social networking users may be harming their interpersonal communication by using sites such as Facebook and MySpace. Stated by Baroness Greenfield, an Oxford University Neuroscientist, "My fear is that these technologies are infantilizing the brain into the state of small children who are attracted by buzzing noises and bright lights, who have a small attention span and who live for the moment."<sup>[45]</sup>

#### **Patent Issues**

On June 15, 2010, the United States Patent and Trademark Office awarded Amazon.com a patent for "Social Networking System" based on its ownership of PlanetAll.<sup>[46]</sup> The patent describes a Social Networking System as

A networked computer system provides various services for assisting users in locating, and establishing contact relationships with, other users. For example, in one embodiment, users can identify other users based on their affiliations with particular schools or other organizations. The system also provides a mechanism for a user to selectively establish contact relationships or connections with other users, and to grant permissions for such other users to view personal information of the user. The system may also include features for enabling users to identify contacts of their respective contacts. In addition, the system may automatically notify users of personal information updates made by their respective contacts.<sup>[47]</sup>

The patent has garnered attention due to its similarity to the popular social networking site Facebook.<sup>[48]</sup>

### Investigations

Social network services are increasingly being used in legal and criminal investigations. Information posted on sites such as MySpace and Facebook has been used by police (forensic profiling), probation, and university officials to prosecute users of said sites. In some situations, content posted on MySpace has been used in court.<sup>[49]</sup>

Facebook is increasingly being used by school administrations and law enforcement agencies as a source of evidence against student users. The site, the number one online destination for college students, allows users to create profile pages with personal details. These pages can be viewed by other registered users from the same school which often include resident assistants and campus police who have signed-up for the service.<sup>[50]</sup> One UK police force has sifted pictures from Facebook and arrested some people who had been photographed in a public place holding a weapon such as a knife (having a weapon in a public place is illegal).<sup>[51]</sup>

### **Application domains**

#### **Government applications**

Social networking is more recently being used by various government agencies. Social networking tools serve as a quick and easy way for the government to get the opinion of the public and to keep the public updated on their activity. The Centers for Disease Control demonstrated the importance of vaccinations on the popular children's site Whyville and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration has a virtual island on Second Life where people can explore underground caves or explore the effects of global warming.<sup>[52]</sup> Similarly, NASA has taken advantage of a few social networking tools, including Twitter and Flickr. They are using these tools to aid the Review of U.S. Human Space Flight Plans Committee, whose goal it is to *ensure that the nation is* on a vigorous and sustainable path to achieving its boldest aspirations in space.<sup>[53]</sup>

#### **Business applications**

The use of social network services in an enterprise context presents the potential of having a major impact on the world of business and work (Fraser & Dutta 2008).

Social networks connect people at low cost; this can be beneficial for entrepreneurs and small businesses looking to expand their contact bases. These networks often act as a customer relationship management tool for companies selling products and services. Companies can also use social networks for advertising in the form of banners and text ads. Since businesses operate globally, social networks can make it easier to keep in touch with contacts around the world.

One example of social networking being used for business purposes is LinkedIn.com, which aims to interconnect professionals. LinkedIn has over 40 million users in over 200 countries.<sup>[54]</sup>

Another is the use of physical spaces available to members of a social network such as Hub Culture, an invitation only social network for entrepreneurs, and other business influentials, with Pavilions in major cities such as London, UK. Having a physical presence allows members to network in the real world, as well as the virtual, adding extra business value.

Applications for social networking sites have extended toward businesses and brands are creating their own, high functioning sites, a sector known as brand networking. It is the idea a brand can build its consumer relationship by connecting their consumers to the brand image on a platform that provides them relative content, elements of participation, and a ranking or score system. Brand networking is a new way to capitalize on social trends as a marketing tool.

#### **Dating applications**

#### see also: Online dating service

Many social networks provide an online environment for people to communicate and exchange personal information for dating purposes. Intentions can vary from looking for a one time date, short-term relationships, and long-term relationships.<sup>[55]</sup>

Most of these social networks, just like online dating services, require users to give out certain pieces of information. This usually includes a user's age, gender, location, interests, and perhaps a picture. Releasing very personal information is usually discouraged for safety reasons.<sup>[56]</sup> This allows other users to search or be searched by some sort of criteria, but at the same time people can maintain a degree of anonymity similar to most online dating services. Online dating sites are similar to social networks in the sense that users create profiles to meet and communicate with others, but their activities on such sites are for the sole purpose of finding a person of interest to date. Social networks do not necessarily have to be for dating; many users simply use it for keeping in touch with friends, and colleagues.<sup>[57]</sup>

However, an important difference between social networks and online dating services is the fact that online dating sites usually require a fee, where social networks are free.<sup>[58]</sup> This difference is one of the reasons the online dating industry is seeing a massive decrease in revenue due to many users opting to use social networking services instead. Many popular online dating services such as Match.com, Yahoo Personals, and eHarmony.com are seeing a decrease in users, where social networks like MySpace and Facebook are experiencing an increase in users.<sup>[59]</sup>

The number of internet users in the U.S. that visit online dating sites has fallen from a peak of 21% in 2003 to 10% in 2006.<sup>[60]</sup> Whether its the cost of the services, the variety of users with different intentions, or any other reason, it is undeniable that social networking sites are quickly becoming the new way to find dates online.

### **Educational applications**

#### see also: Socio-Academic Networks

The National School Boards Association reports that almost 60 percent of students who use social networking talk about education topics online and, surprisingly, more than 50 percent talk specifically about schoolwork. Yet the vast majority of school districts have stringent rules against nearly all forms of social networking during the school day — even though students and parents report few problem behaviors online.

Social networks focused on supporting relationships between teachers and between teachers and their students are now used for learning, educator professional development, and content sharing. Ning for teachers, Learn Central,<sup>[61]</sup> TeachStreet and other sites are being built to foster relationships that include educational blogs, eportfolios, formal and ad hoc communities, as well as communication such as chats, discussion threads, and synchronous forums. These sites also have content sharing and rating features.

### **Medical applications**

Social networks are beginning to be adopted by healthcare professionals as a means to manage institutional knowledge, disseminate peer to peer knowledge and to highlight individual physicians and institutions. The advantage of using a dedicated medical social networking site is that all the members are screened against the state licensing board list of practitioners.<sup>[62]</sup>

The role of social networks is especially of interest to pharmaceutical companies who spend approximately "32 percent of their marketing dollars" attempting to influence the opinion leaders of social networks.<sup>[63]</sup>

A new trend is emerging with social networks created to help its members with various physical and mental ailments.<sup>[64]</sup> For people suffering from life altering diseases, PatientsLikeMe offers its members the chance to connect with others dealing with similar issues and research patient data related to their condition. For alcoholics and addicts, SoberCircle gives people in recovery the ability to communicate with one another and strengthen their recovery through the encouragement of others who can relate to their situation. DailyStrength is also a website that offers support groups for a wide array of topics and conditions, including the support topics offered by PatientsLikeMe and SoberCircle. SparkPeople offers community and social networking tools for peer support during weight loss.

### **Open source software**

There are couple of projects that aim to develop free and open source software to use for social networking services. The projects include Diaspora, Appleseed Project<sup>[65]</sup> and OneSocialWeb.<sup>[66]</sup>

### See also

- Distributed social network
- Enterprise bookmarking
- · Gender differences in social network service use
- Geosocial networking
- Lateral diffusion
- List of social networking websites
- Mobile social network
- Professional network service
- Social bookmark link generator

- Social identity
- Social network
- · Social network aggregation
- Social networking in the Philippines
- Social software
- User profile
- Virtual community
- Web 2.0

### References

- Boyd, Danah; Ellison, Nicole (2007). "Social Network Sites: Definition, History, and Scholarship" <sup>[67]</sup>. Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication 13 (1).
- Boyd, Danah (2006). "Friends, Friendsters, and MySpace Top 8: Writing Community Into Being on Social Network Sites" <sup>[68]</sup>. *First Monday* 11 (12).
- Ellison, Nicole B.; Steinfield, Charles; Lampe, Cliff (2007). "The benefits of Facebook "friends": Exploring the relationship between college students' use of online social networks and social capital" <sup>[69]</sup>. *Journal of Computer-Mediated Communication* 12 (4).
- Fraser, Matthew; Dutta, Soumitra (2008). *Throwing Sheep in the Boardroom: How Online Social Networking Will Transform Your Life, Work and World* <sup>[70]</sup>. Wiley. ISBN 978-0470740149.
- Mazer, J. P.; Murphy, R. E.; Simonds, C. J. (2007). "I'll See You On "Facebook": The Effects of Computer-Mediated Teacher Self-Disclosure on Student Motivation, Affective Learning, and Classroom Climate" <sup>[71]</sup>. *Communication Education* 56 (1): 1–17. doi:10.1080/03634520601009710.

### Notes

- "Social Nets Engage in Global Struggle" (http://www.adweek.com/aw/national/article\_display.jsp?vnu\_content\_id=1003653287) 66% of MySpace and Facebook users come from North America: Adweek website. Retrieved on January 15, 2008.
- [2] Nexopia stats on Alexa.com (http://www.alexa.com/data/details/traffic\_details/nexopia.com)
- Bebo (http://www.techcrunch.com/2007/08/20/windows-live-messaging-coming-to-bebo/) most popular of its kind in UK, (August 2007): TechCrunch website. Retrieved on January 15, 2008.
- [4] German Xing Plans Invasion of LinkedIn Turf (http://www.marketingvox.com/german-xing-plans-invasion-of-linkedin-turf-030727/): article from the MarketingVox website.
- [5] Elevator Pitch: Why Badoo wants to be the next word in social networking (http://blogs.guardian.co.uk/digitalcontent/2008/03/ elevator\_pitch\_why\_badoo\_wants.html), Mark Sweney , The Guardian, December 24, 2007 , Accessed March 2008.
- [6] Hi5 popular in Europe (http://www.pbs.org/mediashift/2007/06/try\_try\_againorkut\_friendster.html): article from the PBS *MediaShift* website. Retrieved on January 18, 2008.
- [7] "Why Users Love Orkut" (http://usability.about.com/od/websiteaudiences/a/Orkut.htm) 55% of users are Brazilian: About.com website. Retrieved on January 15, 2008,
- [8] The Network Nation by S. Roxanne Hiltz and Murray Turoff (Addison-Wesley, 1978, 1993)
- [9] Cotriss, David (2008-05-29). "Where are they now: TheGlobe.com" (http://www.thestandard.com/news/2008/05/29/ where-are-they-now-theglobe-com). *The Industry Standard*.
- [10] Romm-Livermore, C. & Setzekorn, K. (2008). Social Networking Communities and E-Dating Services: Concepts and Implications. IGI Global. p.271
- [11] Knapp, E. (2006). A Parent's Guide to Myspace. DayDream Publishers. ISBN 1-4196-4146-8
- [12] Steve Rosenbush (2005). News Corp.'s Place in MySpace (http://www.businessweek.com/technology/content/jul2005/ tc20050719\_5427\_tc119.htm), BusinessWeek, July 19, 2005. (MySpace Page Views figures)
- [13] "Social graph-iti" (http://www.economist.com/business/displaystory.cfm?story\_id=9990635): Facebook's social network graphing: article from The Economist's website. Retrieved on January 19, 2008.
- [14] Over 200 social networking sites (http://www.infojuice.org/subjects/social-networking-using-the-internet/): InfoJuice website. Retrieved on January 19, 2008
- [15] comScore. (2007). Social networking goes global. Reston, VA. Retrieved September 9, 2007 (http://www.comscore.com/press/release. asp?press=1555)
- [16] Mackaay, Ejan (1990). "Economic Incentives in Markets for Information and Innovation". *Harvard Journal of Law & Public Policy* 13 (909): 867–910.
- [17] Heylighen, Francis (2007). "Why is Open Access Development so Successful?". In B. Lutterbeck, M. Barwolff, and R. A. Gehring. Open Source Jahrbuch. Lehmanns Media.
- [18] Gross, R and Acquisti, A (2005). Information Revelation and Privacy in Online Social Networks (The Facebook case) (http://www.heinz. cmu.edu/~acquisti/papers/privacy-facebook-gross-acquisti.pdf). Pre-proceedings version. ACM Workshop on Privacy in the Electronic Society (WPES)
- [19] danah boyd, (2007), Why Youth (Heart) Social Network Sites (http://www.mitpressjournals.org/doi/pdf/10.1162/dmal.
  9780262524834.119), MacArthur Foundation Series on Digital Learning Youth, Identity, and Digital Media Volume (ed. David Buckingham). MIT Press
- [20] A New Generation Reinvents Philanthropy (http://online.wsj.com/public/article/SB118765256378003494.html), Wall Street Journal website.

- [21] Search for "e-commerce, social networking" (http://www.google.com/trends?q=e-commerce,+social+networking&ctab=0&geo=all& date=all&sort=1). Google Trends. Accessed 26 October 2009.
- [22] Yelp Enables Check-Ins On Its iPhone App; Foursquare, Gowalla Ousted As Mayors (http://www.techcrunch.com/2010/01/15/ yelp-iphone-app-4-check-ins/)
- [23] Nimetz, Jody. "Jody Nimetz on Emerging Trends in B2B Social Networking" (http://www.marketing-jive.com/2007/11/ jody-nimetz-on-emerging-trends-in-b2b.html). Marketing Jive, November 18, 2007. Accessed 26 October 2009.
- [24] Liebeskind, Julia Porter, et al. "Social Networks, Learning, and Flexibility: Sourcing Scientific Knowledge in New Biotechnology Firms" (http://www.jstor.org/pss/2635102). Organization Science, Vol. 7, No. 4 (July-August 1996), pp. 428–443.
- [25] Carlson, Ben (April 28, 2010). "March 2.0: Success of the National Equality March relied on social media tools" (http://www. mediabullseye.com/mb/2010/04/march-2-0-success-of-the-national-equality-march-relied-on-social-media-tools.html#idc-container). Media Bullseye. Retrieved 2010-04-29.
- [26] Arabie, Phipps, and Yoram Wind. "Marketing and Social Networks" (http://books.google.com/books?hl=en&lr=& id=C6juDKDmvCcC&oi=fnd&pg=PR9&dq=social+networking&ots=Aw9oXw-AtG& sig=CPAZMmPPnAhSZzAu0lh-k4iUXt4#PRA1-PA254,M1). In Stanley Wasserman and Joseph Galaskiewicz, Advances in Social Network Analysis: Research in the Social and Behavioral Sciences. Thousand Oaks, Calif.: Sage Publications, 1994, pp. 254–273. ISBN 0-8039-4302-4
- [27] Chambers, Clem. "Murdoch Will Earn a Payday from MySpace" (http://www.forbes.com/technology/ebusiness/2006/03/29/ microsoft-myspace-newscorp-in\_cc\_0330soapbox\_inl.html). Forbes, March 30, 2006. Accessed 26 October 2009.
- [28] Tynan, Dan. "As Applications Blossom, Facebook Is Open for Business" (http://www.wired.com/techbiz/startups/news/2007/07/ facebook\_platform) Wired, July 30, 2007. Accessed 26 October 2009.
- [29] Flor, Nick V. (2000). Web Business Engineering: Using Offline Activities to Drive Internet Strategies. Reading, Mass.: Addison-Wesley. ISBN 0-201-60468-X; Flor, Nick V. "Week 1: The Business Model Approach to Web Site Design" (http://www.informit.com/articles/ article.aspx?p=20882). InformIT, March 2, 2001. Accessed 26 October 2009. Description of the autonomous business model used in social network services.
- [30] Social network launches worldwide spam campaign (http://www.e-consultancy.com/news-blog/364182/ social-network-launches-worldwide-spam-campaign.html) *E-consultancy.com*, Accessed 10 September 2007
- [31] Moreno MA, Fost NC, Christakis DA (2008). "Research ethics in the MySpace era". *Pediatrics* 121 (1): 157–61. doi:10.1542/peds.2007-3015. PMID 18166570.
- [32] David Rosenblum (2007). "What Anyone Can Know: The Privacy Risks of Social Networking Sites" (http://www.computer.org/portal/ web/csdl/doi/10.1109/MSP.2007.75).
- [33] Henry Jenkins and Danah Boyd (2006-05-24). "Discussion: MySpace and Deleting Online Predators Act (DOPA)" (http://www.danah. org/papers/MySpaceDOPA.html). Retrieved 2006-05-26.
- [34] Susan B. Barnes (2006-09-04). "A privacy paradox: Social networking in the United States" (http://firstmonday.org/htbin/cgiwrap/bin/ ojs/index.php/fm/article/viewArticle/1394/1312).
- [35] BBC (2009-03-25). "Social Network Sites 'Monitored'" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/uk\_politics/7962631.stm). BBC News. . Retrieved 2009-03-25.
- [36] http://www.facebook.com/policy.php?ref=pf
- [37] boyd, danah. "Why Youth (Heart) Social Network Sites: The Role of Networked Publics in Teenage Social Life"
- [38] Fatal MySpace internet hoax mother is charged, Herald Sun, 17 May 2008 (http://www.news.com.au/heraldsun/story/ 0,21985,21775032-11869,00.html)
- [39] Banned for keeps on Facebook for odd name, Sydney Morning Herald, 24 September 2008 (http://www.smh.com.au/news/biztech/ banned-for-keeps-on-facebook-for-odd-name/2008/09/25/1222217399252.html)
- [40] Enhancing Child Safety and Online Technologies (http://cyber.law.harvard.edu/pubrelease/isttf/). Internet Safety Technical Task Force, Final Report of the Internet Safety Technical Task Force to the Multi-State Working Group on Social Networking of State Attorneys General of the United States. 2008 (published 31 December 2008). ; Mangu-Ward, Katherine (May 2009). "MySpace = Safe Space". *Reason* 41 (1): 16.
- [41] Wilson, Charles (May 27, 2010). *Child porn 'social networking site' busted by feds* (http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/content/ article/2010/05/27/AR2010052700559.html). Associated Press.
- [42] Computer Science Illuminated
- [43] Boyd, Danah. "Why Youth (Heart) Social Networking Sites: The Role of Networked Publics in Teenage Social Life." Dokutech Eres. Web. <a href="http://eres.ucsc.edu/eres/coursepage.aspx?cid=3840&page=docs#">http://eres.ucsc.edu/eres/coursepage.aspx?cid=3840&page=docs#</a>>.
- [44] http://firstmonday.org/htbin/cgiwrap/bin/ojs/index.php/fm/article/viewArticle/1394/1312#note4
- [45] Derbyshire, David (24 February 2009). "Social websites harm children's brains: Chilling warning to parents from top neuroscientist" (http:// www.dailymail.co.uk/news/article-1153583/Social-websites-harm-childrens-brains-Chilling-warning-parents-neuroscientist.html). Daily Mail (London).
- [46] http://blogs.forbes.com/docket/2010/06/17/amazon-secures-patent-for-social-networking-system/
- [47] US Patent and Trademark Office (http://patft.uspto.gov/netacgi/nph-Parser?Sect1=PTO1&Sect2=HITOFF&d=PALL&p=1&u=/ netahtml/PTO/srchnum.htm&r=1&f=G&l=50&s1=7,739,139.PN.&OS=PN/7,739,139&RS=PN/7,739,139) Patent number 7,739,139
- [48] Network World (http://www.networkworld.com/news/2010/061710-amazon-social-network-patent.html)

- [49] "MySpace exposes sex predators" (http://www.news.com.au/heraldsun/story/0,21985,,00.html), use of its content in the courtroom: Herald and Weekly Times (Australia) website. Retrieved on January 19, 2008.
- [50] "Getting booked by Facebook" (http://www.jsonline.com/story/index.aspx?id=670380), courtesy of campus police: Milwaukee Journal Sentinel website. Retrieved on January 19, 2008.
- [51] "Police use Facebook to identify weapon carriers" (http://www.journal-online.co.uk/article/ 5410-police-use-facebook-to-identify-weapon-carriers) The Journal (England) website. Retrieved on May 11, 2009
- [52] Government Agencies Establishing Presence on Social-Networking Sites (http://www.itbusinessedge.com/topics/reader. aspx?oss=37848)
- [53] OSTP Press Release Announcing Review (pdf, 50k) (http://www.nasa.gov/pdf/358006main\_OSTP Press Release.pdf)
- [54] Latest LinkedIn Facts (http://press.linkedin.com/about)
- [55] MySpace, Facebook Add Opportunity for Love, Trouble to Online Dating (http://www.foxnews.com/story/0,2933,396461,00.html), FOXNews.com website.
- [56] MySpace Adds a Security Monitor (http://www.npr.org/templates/story/story.php?storyId=5336688), NPR.com website.
- [57] Dating: Can Social Networks Cut In? (http://www.internetnews.com/ec-news/article.php/3659911"Online), internetnews.com website.
- [58] Dating vs. Social Networking Which Will Emerge as Premier Matchmaker? (http://localtechwire.com/business/local\_tech\_wire/ opinion/story/2449164/"Online), WRAL.com website.
- [59] networks vs. dating sites Commentary: Fragmenting may save online dating sites (http://www.marketwatch.com/news/story/story. aspx?guid={4640E6FF-17B8-40D5-901C-098EE74B03DD}"Social), *marketwatch.com* website.
- [60] Love Around The Web (http://www.forbes.com/2007/12/20/online-dating-love-tech-personal-cx\_wt\_1221dating.html"Seeking), *Forbes.com* website.
- [61] learncentral.org
- [62] Social Networking: Now Professionally Ready (http://www.primarypsychiatry.com/aspx/articledetail.aspx?articleid=975), PrimaryPsychiatry.com website.
- [63] Social Networks Impact the Drugs Physicians Prescribe According to Stanford Business School Research (http://www.medadnews.com/ News/index.cfm?articleid=424455), Pharmalive.com website.
- [64] Comprehensive listing of medical applications using social networking (http://www.doseofdigital.com/ healthcare-pharma-social-media-wiki/) via Dose of Digital
- [65] http://opensource.appleseedproject.org
- [66] http://onesocialweb.org/
- [67] http://jcmc.indiana.edu/vol13/issue1/boyd.ellison.html
- [68] http://www.firstmonday.org/issues/issue11\_12/boyd/index.html
- [69] http://jcmc.indiana.edu/vol12/issue4/ellison.html
- [70] http://books.google.com/?id=SP92NwAACAAJ
- [71] http://www.informaworld.com/smpp/ftinterface~content=a769651179~fulltext=713240930

### **Further reading**

- Alemán, Ana M. Martínez; Wartman, Katherine Lynk, "Online social networking on campus: understanding what matters in student culture" (http://books.google.com/books?id=GH4KOM3MS-sC&printsec=frontcover), New York and London : Routledge, 1st edition, 2009. ISBN 0-415-99019-X
- Baron, Naomi S., Always on : language in an online and mobile world (http://books.google.com/ books?id=X8-gaJM6NUIC&printsec=frontcover), Oxford ; New York : Oxford University Press, 2008. ISBN 978-0-19-531305-5
- Cockrell, Cathy, "Plumbing the mysterious practices of 'digital youth': In first public report from a 'seminal' study, UC Berkeley scholars shed light on kids' use of Web 2.0 tools" (http://www.berkeley.edu/news/media/ releases/2008/04/28\_digitalyouth.shtml), UC Berkeley News, University of California, Berkeley, NewsCenter, 28 April 2008
- Davis, Donald Carrington, "MySpace Isn't Your Space: Expanding the Fair Credit Reporting Act to Ensure Accountability and Fairness in Employer Searches of Online Social Networking Services" (http://www.law.ku. edu/publications/journal/pdf/v16n2/davis.pdf), 16 Kan. J.L. & Pub. Pol'y 237 (2007).
- Else, Liz; Turkle, Sherry. "Living online: I'll have to ask my friends" (http://web.mit.edu/sturkle/www/ pdfsforstwebpage/ST\_Living Online.pdf), *New Scientist*, issue 2569, 20 September 2006. (interview)
- Glaser, Mark, Your Guide to Social Networking Online (http://www.pbs.org/mediashift/2007/08/ digging\_deeperyour\_guide\_to\_so\_1.html)," PBS MediaShift, August 2007

• Powers, William, *Hamlet's Blackberry : a practical philosophy for building a good life in the digital age*, 1st ed., New York : Harper, 2010. ISBN 978-0-06-168716-7

### Digg

	digg
Туре	Private
Founded	San Francisco, California, United States <sup>[1]</sup>
Founder	Kevin Rose <sup>[2]</sup>
Headquarters	San Francisco, California, United States
Area served	Worldwide
Key people	Matt Williams <sup>[3]</sup> (CEO) Kevin Rose (Founder) (ex-CEO) Jay Adelson (ex-CEO) John Moffett (CFO) Owen Byrne (Co-Founder) Ron Gorodetzky (Co-Founder)
Revenue	US\$8.5 million (2008 est.) <sup>[4]</sup>
Employees	77 <sup>[2]</sup>
Website	digg.com <sup>[5]</sup>
Alexa rank	113 <sup>[6]</sup>
Type of site	Social news
Advertising	Banner ads, referral marketing
Registration	Optional
Available in	Multilingual
Launched	December 5, 2004
Current status	Active

**Digg** is a social news website. Formerly, the site's cornerstone function consisted of letting people vote stories up or down, called *digging* and *burying*, respectively, but as of Digg v4, the "bury" function has been removed. Digg's popularity has prompted the creation of other social networking sites with story submission and voting systems.<sup>[7]</sup> The website traffic ranked 117th by Alexa.com as of October 20, 2010.<sup>[6]</sup> Quantcast estimates Digg's monthly U.S. unique visits at 15.1 million.<sup>[8]</sup>

### History and description



Digg started out as an experiment in November 2004 by Kevin Rose, Owen Byrne, Ron Gorodetzky, and Jay Adelson. Only Rose and Gorodetzky still play an active role in the management of the site. The original design was free of advertisements, and was designed by Dan Ries. As Digg became more popular, Google AdSense was added to the website. In July 2005, the site was updated to Version 2.0. The new version featured a friends list, the ability to "digg" a story without being redirected to a success page, and a new interface designed by web design company silverorange.<sup>[9]</sup> The site developers have stated that in future versions a more minimalist design will likely be employed. On Monday June 26, 2006 version 3 of Digg was released with

specific categories for Technology, Science, World & Business, Videos, Entertainment and Gaming as well as a View All section where all categories are merged. Digg has grown large enough that submissions sometimes create a sudden increase of traffic to the "dugg" website. This is referred to by some Digg users as the "Digg effect" and by some others as the site being "dugg to death." However, in many cases stories are linked simultaneously on several popular bookmarking sites. In such cases, the impact of the "digg effect" is difficult to isolate and assess. On August 27, 2007, Digg altered its main interface, mostly in the profile area. The domain "digg.com" attracted at least 236 million visitors annually by 2008 according to a Compete.com survey.<sup>[10]</sup>

Digg CEO Jay Adelson explained at the 2010 "Bigg Digg Shindigg," which is part of the South by Southwest Interactive Conference, that Digg is getting a major overhaul and redesign.<sup>[11]</sup> In an interview with Wired magazine, Adelson explained that "Every single thing has changed" and that "the entire website has been rewritten."<sup>[12]</sup> Adelson explains that the new Digg will essentially eliminate the duplication problem. It will also help prevent so called 'power users' from dominating the site with their submissions. The new Digg will also offer users a personalized homepage, based on their diggs, that is tailored to their specific interests. The commenting system will be updated to "help fight bad behavior like trolling or group-burying." The entire look of the site will also change. Adelson summed up the new Digg by saying, "We've got a new backend, a new infrastructure layer, a new services layer, new machines — everything." John Quinn wrote in a Digg blog post that the company was going to stop using MySQL and begin using Cassandra, a distributed database system.<sup>[13]</sup>

On April 5, 2010, Kevin Rose announced that he would be assuming the position of CEO as Jay Adelson had stepped down.<sup>[14]</sup> Although, some time later he has disclosed that he is actively seeking a replacement CEO as the role takes up too much of his time that he would rather spend doing other things, such as angel investing.

On August 25, 2010, Digg released v4. The site experienced a number of bugs and glitches that has resulted in a backlash from Digg users in the form of verbal opposition and, initially, heavy posting of articles from Reddit - a competitor of Digg's. Digg's business development director Matt Van Horn left Digg after the official update of version 4.<sup>[15]</sup>

On September 1, 2010, Matt Williams took over as CEO, ending Rose's troubled tenure as interim chief executive.

### **Potential sale**

Several reports have come forward claiming Digg has been trying to sell itself to a larger company since early 2006.<sup>[16]</sup> While Adelson claims that Digg will meet with any potential buyers, he denies that they will actively begin talks for a sale. The most recent sale talks were with Google in July 2008 for approximately \$200 million. On July 25, during the due diligence part of the potential sale, Google informed Digg that they were not interested in the purchase.<sup>[17]</sup> As a result of Google's decision, Digg entered into a third round of funding, receiving \$28.7 million

from investors such as Highland Capital Partners. With this funding, the company plans to move from their current offices to accommodate a bigger staff base.<sup>[18]</sup> On December 2, 2008, *BusinessWeek* reported "Digg Chief Executive Officer Jay Adelson says the popular news aggregation Web site is no longer for sale, and the focus of the company is to build an independent business that reaches profitability as quickly as possible. That means the four-year-old startup will dial back some of its expansion plans, instead prioritizing projects that generate revenue and profit."<sup>[19]</sup> On December 18, 2008, *BusinessWeek* analyzed Digg's financial statements. They reported that Digg lost \$4 million on \$6.4 million of revenue in the first three quarters of 2008.<sup>[4]</sup>

### Features

### **Facebook Connect**

In May 2009, Digg launched a new feature integrating Facebook Connect with Digg.<sup>[20]</sup> The Digg integration with Facebook connect allows users of Digg and Facebook to connect their accounts. When a Facebook account is connected to a Digg account, Digg articles can then be shared on the user's Facebook page.<sup>[21]</sup> Facebook Connect also allows Facebook users to log into Digg with their Facebook account, thus bypassing the normally required Digg registration.

### **Digg Dialogg**

Digg Dialogg allows Digg users to submit questions to a preselected famous individual who agrees to do an interview with a reporter chosen by Digg.<sup>[22]</sup>

### **Digg Bar**

On April 2, 2009, Digg released the Digg Bar, which provides a toolbar above the top of a site allowing the user to produce shortened urls, or access digg comments and analytics without leaving the page.<sup>[23]</sup> On April 5, 2010, Kevin Rose announced on the official Digg blog that the controversial DiggBar would be eliminated with the implementation of the 4th version of the website.<sup>[24]</sup> This was Rose's first major announcement since succeeding Jay Adelson as CEO.

### **Digg API**

On April 19, 2007, Digg opened their API<sup>[25]</sup> (Application Programing Interface) to the public.<sup>[26]</sup> This allowed software developers to write tools and applications based on queries of Digg's public data, dating back to 2004. Since then, many blogs<sup>[27]</sup> <sup>[28]</sup> have sought to keep up with all of the ongoing Digg API projects.

### Criticism

### Digg v4

On August 25, 2010, when Digg updated to version 4, the site was unreachable or unstable during the launch day and the weeks following. A large number of the site's members have complained about the new design and removed features (such as bury, favorites, friends submissions, upcoming pages, subcategories, and history search).<sup>[29]</sup> Kevin Rose replied to complaints on his blog where he promised to restore upcoming pages and fix the algorithm.<sup>[30]</sup>

In an open letter to Rose, Alexis Ohanian, founder of rival site Reddit, said :

this new version of digg reeks of VC meddling. It's cobbling together features from more popular sites and departing from the core of digg, which was to "give the power back to the people."<sup>[31]</sup>

Ian Eure, former Digg engineer, explained on his blog why the update cannot be reverted, but the old features can still be ported to the new architecture.<sup>[32]</sup>

Disgruntled Digg users declared August 30, 2010 as the 'quit Digg day' and began digging up stories submitted by Reddit's auto submitting publisher account filling up the front page.<sup>[33] [34] [35]</sup> Reddit also temporarily added the Digg shovel to their logo to welcome fleeing Digg users.<sup>[36]</sup>

Digg's traffic dropped significantly after the launch of version 4,<sup>[37]</sup> and publishers reported a drop in direct referrals from stories on Digg's front page.<sup>[38]</sup> Recently hired CEO Matt Williams attempted to address some of the users' concerns in a blog post on October 12, 2010, promising to reinstate many of the features that had been removed.<sup>[39]</sup>

### **Moderation and algorithms**

The purpose of Digg was to give editorial powers back to the masses. However, the second version of Digg began using a secret algorithm that blurs the transparency that was expected by the users. In 2006, the site began to be gamed by their top users.<sup>[40]</sup> Supernova17 was banned after agreeing to promote a story for cash to an undercover Digg sting operation.<sup>[41]</sup> Another group of users openly formed a niche 'bury brigade'.<sup>[42]</sup> The users defended themselves claiming their actions were in accordance with the wishes of Digg users. Digg tried to offset criticism by hiring computer scientist Anton Kast to develop a diversity algorithm to prevent special interest groups from dominating Digg. A townhall was organized and the users demanded the shouts feature be discontinued.<sup>[43]</sup> By 2008, Google increased their page rank for Digg and many 'pay for Diggs' startups were created to profit from the opportunity. According to a popular blog a single front page story was sold for \$500 at that time.<sup>[44]</sup> Usocial and Diggfront were given cease and desist notices from Digg which they ignored.

### Mob mentality

Unlike the present Digg algorithm, which works on user diversity, in 2006 it was much more dependent on flocking behavior among users to determine the promotion of content. During this period an anonymous user posted a blog accusing an O'Reilly writer of stealing Digg's CSS.<sup>[45]</sup> The Digg mob flocked to the story and it was promoted with nearly 3000 votes. Digg founders Kevin Rose, Jay Adelson and Daniel Burka expressed dissatisfaction on finding Digg's code on Mallett's sites.<sup>[46]</sup> Mallett responded and clarified that the theft of code was committed by the contributors to the open source Digg clone, Pligg, which he was using.<sup>[47]</sup> Kevin acknowledged the misunderstanding and notified Pligg developers of the issue.<sup>[48]</sup> Adelson contacted Mallett thanking him for clearing the issue and expressed support for his claims. Another O'Reilly blogger in defense of Mallett posted a criticism of Digg's mob mentality.<sup>[49]</sup> Digg mob's failure to the Mallett story has also been attributed to 'groupthink' which is different from the wisdom of the crowds which requires independence among the nodes.<sup>[50]</sup>

### AACS encryption key controversy

On May 1, 2007, an article appeared on Digg's homepage that contained the encryption key for the AACS digital rights management protection of HD DVD and Blu-ray Disc. Then Digg, "acting on the advice of its lawyers," removed posting submissions about the secret number from its database and banned several users for submitting it. The removals were seen by many Digg users as a capitulation to corporate interests and an assault on free speech.<sup>[51]</sup> A statement by Jay Adelson attributed the article's take-down to an attempt to comply with cease and desist letters from the Advanced Access Content System consortium and cited Digg's Terms of Use as justification for taking down the article.<sup>[52]</sup> Although some users defended Digg's actions,<sup>[53] [54] [55]</sup> as a whole the community staged a widespread revolt with numerous articles and comments being made using the encryption key.<sup>[56] [57]</sup> The scope of the user response was so great that one of the Digg users referred to it as a "digital Boston Tea Party".<sup>[58]</sup> The response was also directly responsible for Digg reversing the policy and stating: "But now, after seeing hundreds of stories and reading thousands of comments, you've made it clear. You'd rather see Digg go down fighting than bow down to a bigger company. We hear you, and effective immediately we won't delete stories or comments containing the code and will deal with whatever the consequences might be."<sup>[59]</sup>
#### Organized ideologically-motivated censorship

On August 5, 2010, progressive blogger Ole Ole Olson (aka "Novenator") posted a report to AlterNet about a year-long effort of organized burying of seemingly-liberal articles from the Upcoming module of Digg by a conservative Yahoo! Groups mailing list known as *DiggPatriots* and an associated page on coRank; he also accused leading members of the mailing list of participating in behavior which violated the Digg Terms of Usage, such as creating "sleeper" accounts in the event of administrators banning their main accounts for terms-violating behavior as well as vexatious "reporting" of seemingly-liberal users for banning.<sup>[60]</sup> <sup>[61]</sup> The post was immediately followed by the disbanding and closure of the DiggPatriots list, and an investigation into the matter by Digg.<sup>[62]</sup>

# Timeline

October 2004	Development on digg.com begins <sup>[63]</sup>	
December 1, 2004	Kevin Rose creates the first profile	
December 3, 2004	The first story is submitted to Digg <sup>[64]</sup>	
December 5, 2004	Digg is open to public	
December 13, 2004	Kevin Rose shows off Digg on The Screen Savers <sup>[65]</sup>	
January 2, 2005	Comment section introduced for stories	
February 28, 2005	Digg 1.6: duplicate story detection	
March 19, 2005	Profile page now includes comment histories and sort by category	
May 9, 2005	Digg spy is released	
May 27, 2005	Digg 2.0 is released. Friends feature, ajax buttons for Digg/bury, and a non-linear promotion algorithm are implemented.	
July 2, 2005	Diggnation podcast begins with Alex and Kevin <sup>[66]</sup>	
October 2005	Raises \$2.8 million in venture capital	
December 2005	Digg Spy 2.0 released	
December 2005	KoolAidGuy saga results in anti-spam tools being introduced <sup>[67]</sup>	
January 17, 2006	Top user Albertpacino resigns after accusations of him being on Digg payroll <sup>[68]</sup>	
January 18, 2006	Digg Clouds is introduced, Search is improved	
January 25, 2006	Acquisition rumors begins	
February 2, 2006	Report stories as 'inaccurate' and Profanity filters are introduced	
February 15, 2006	Digg widget for blogs and share by email is released	
March 1, 2006	New Digg Comment System Released, threaded and Diggable comments.	
April 20, 2006	Digg Army Saga: after an exposé by forevergeek.com Kevin bans dozens of top users. <sup>[69]</sup>	
June 26, 2006	Digg v3 rolled out, site redesign, shouts, new categories: politics and sports.	
July 24, 2006	Digg Labs Launches	
August 15, 2006	Thumbnails added	
August 27, 2006	Digg begins enforcing trademark rights	

# Digg

(			
September 6, 2006	User rebellion against Friends System and vote rigging results in promises about the diversity algorithms and other tools that were never implemented. Top user p9 resigns.		
September 8, 2006	diggriver.com is launched for mobile devices		
September 12, 2006	#1 Story feature added later renamed as favorites		
December 18, 2006	New features: Podcast, Videos, Top 10 sidebar, wide-screen support and friends page		
February 2, 2007	Top Diggers list removed after user complaints <sup>[70]</sup>		
February 2, 2007	Big Spy Launched		
February 26, 2007	The new US Elections 2008 section creates lots of buzz		
March 1, 2007	Blog post leads to concern about 'bury brigades'. Digg investigates and find no evidence for these allegations		
April 19, 2007	Digg API is made public, Contest launched for best app using the API		
May 1, 2007	HD-DVD saga regarding the censorship of the leaked encryption key, Kevin sides with the users and ends the censorship		
June 4, 2007	Facebook app is launched		
June 21, 2007	New Comment System - Joe Stump edition. Instant backlash from community after slow loading.		
July 10, 2007	iphone App beta launched		
July 25, 2007	Ad partnership with Microsoft		
August 27, 2007	Customizable homepage options. Images and videos now back to homepage.		
September 19, 2007	New Digg profiles, story suggestion, email alerts		
November 20, 2007	Digg the Candidates: Presidential candidates get their Digg accounts		
February 1, 2008	Digg Town Halls		
May 15, 2008	New comments system is released		
June 30, 2008	Recommendation engine is released		
July 23, 2008	facebook minifeeds of digg stories		
July 31, 2008	m.digg.com - Mobile site is released		
August 6, 2008	Firefox Extension released		
August 25, 2008	Digg Dialogg		
September 8, 2008	Digg warns users against script for auto digging friends stories.		
September 24, 2008	\$28.7 million capital raised with Highland Capital Partners.		
October 3, 2008	Many power users banned after they fail to follow guidelines against script digging. <sup>[71]</sup>		
October 9, 2008	Digg Spy and podcasts discontinued		
December 18, 2008	Related stories and "People who Dugg this also Dugg" boxes added to individual stories		
April 2, 2009	DiggBar and short url launched		
April 9, 2009	New Search		
May 6, 2009	Facebook Connect		

May 26, 2009	Shouts feature is removed
August 6, 2009	Diggable ads implemented
October 16, 2009	Partners with WeFollow for categorizing user in the upcoming version 4 release
November 4, 2009	Digg Trends launched
January 17, 2010	Chrome extension launched
March 23, 2010	iPhone app is launched
April 1, 2010	Android app is launched
April 5, 2010	Jay Adelson Steps Down as CEO, Kevin Rose becomes interim CEO
July 2, 2010	Digg version 4 alpha testing begins
August 3, 2010	Digg takes down new user registration in preparation for Digg 4.0 <sup>[72]</sup>
August 25, 2010	Digg v4 is released: My News and Publisher Streams launched

# October 27, 2010 Digg lays off 37% of its staffs along with refocusing the service<sup>[73]</sup>

Matt Williams replaces Kevin Rose as CEO

## See also

September 1,

2010

- Delicious
- Fark
- Mixx
- Propeller.com
- Reddit
- Slashdot
- · Social bookmarking
- StumbleUpon
- Web 2.0

# References

- Corporate Profile Digg, Inc. (http://techaddress.wordpress.com/2006/09/28/corporate-profile-digg-inc/), 2006-09-28, , retrieved 2009-01-18
- [2] "Digg / About Us" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080329121633/http://digg.com/about/). Archived from the original on 29 Mar 2008.
- [3] "Company Update" (http://about.digg.com/blog/company-update). .
- [4] "A Wrench in Silicon Valley's Wealth Machine" (http://www.businessweek.com/magazine/content/08\_52/b4114082618241.htm). 2008.
  Retrieved 2008-12-30.
- [5] http://www.digg.com/
- [6] "digg.com Traffic Details from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/digg.com). Alexa Internet, Inc. . Retrieved 2009-10-17.
- [7] Pat McCarthy (2006-09-10). "Revisiting Top 10 Web Predictions of 2006" (http://www.conversionrater.com/index.php/2006/09/10/ revisiting-top-10-web-predictions-of-2006/). Conversionrater.com. . Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [8] "digg.com Quantcast Audience Profile" (http://www.quantcast.com/digg.com). Quantcast.com. 2010-10-27. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [9] "Digg" (http://www.silverorange.com/a/portfolio/digg). silverorange. . Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [10] "Compete.com" (http://siteanalytics.compete.com/digg.com?metric=uv). Siteanalytics.compete.com. Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [11] "New Version of Digg" (http://mashable.com/2010/03/13/new-digg/). Mashable. . Retrieved 2010-03-15.
- [12] "Wired Interview" (http://www.wired.com/epicenter/2010/03/digg-redesign-social-web/). Wired. . Retrieved 2010-03-15.
- [13] "Cassandra Switch" (http://about.digg.com/blog/saying-yes-nosql-going-steady-cassandra/). Digg. . Retrieved 2010-03-15.
- [14] "Update from Jay | Digg About" (http://about.digg.com/blog/update-jay). About.digg.com. 2010-04-04. Retrieved 2010-09-01.

- [15] McCarthy, Caroline (2010-08-26). "Digg's Matt Van Horn leaving for start-up Path" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-13577\_3-20014852-36. html). CNET News. Retrieved 2010-09-02.
- [16] Arrington, Michael (2007-11-07). "Just Sell Digg Already, Jay" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2007/11/07/just-sell-digg-already-jay/). Techcrunch.com. Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [17] Arrington, Michael (2008-07-26). "Google Walks Away From Digg Deal" (http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/content/article/ 2008/07/26/AR2008072601421.html). washingtonpost.com. Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [18] "Digg the Blog » Blog Archive » Big News: Expanding & Growing Digg" (http://blog.digg.com/?p=256). Blog.digg.com. 2008-09-24. . Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [19] Ante, Spencer E. (2008). "Digg: Not For Sale" (http://www.businessweek.com/technology/content/dec2008/tc2008121\_004686.htm). . Retrieved 2008-12-09.
- [20] Rose, Kevin (May 6, 2009). "Facebook Connect Launches Today!" (http://blog.digg.com/?p=729). .
- [21] Arrington, Michael (May 6, 2009). "Facebook Connect Now Live On Digg" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2009/05/06/ digg-to-launch-facebook-connect-today/). Retrieved May 9, 2009.
- [22] "Digg.com" (http://digg.com/dialogg/). Digg.com. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [23] Rose, Kevin (April 2, 2009). "DiggBar Launches Today!" (http://blog.digg.com/?p=591). .
- [24] Rose, Kevin (April 5, 2010). "The Digg iFrame Toolbar is Dead / Unbanning Domains" (http://about.digg.com/blog/ digg-digg-iframe-toolbar-dead-unbanning-domains).
- [25] "Digg.com" (http://apidoc.digg.com/). Apidoc.digg.com. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [26] "Digg.com" (http://blog.digg.com/?p=72). Blog.digg.com. 2007-04-19. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [27] "Techipedia.com" (http://www.techipedia.com/2007/digg-api-tools/). Techipedia.com. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [28] "QuickOnlineTips.com" (http://www.quickonlinetips.com/archives/2005/09/complete-digg-tools-collection/). QuickOnlineTips.com. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [29] Mathew Ingram (Aug. 26, 2010). "Digg Redesign Met with a Thumbs Down" (http://gigaom.com/2010/08/26/ digg-redesign-met-with-a-thumbs-down/). Retrieved 29 August 2010.
- [30] Kevin Rose (Aug 27 2010). "Digg v4: release, iterate, repeat." (http://kevinrose.com/blogg/2010/8/27/digg-v4-release-iterate-repeat. html). . Retrieved 27 August 2010.
- [31] Alexis Ohanian (May 28, 2010). "An open letter to Kevin Rose" (http://alexisohanian.com/an-open-letter-to-kevin-rose). Retrieved 29 August 2010.
- [32] Ian Eure (Aug 30, 2010). "THEY CAN'T GO BACK" (http://atomized.org/2010/08/they-canâl0t-go-back/). . Retrieved 31 August 2010.
- [33] "Digg User Rebellion Continues: Reddit Now Rules the Front Page" (http://www.readwriteweb.com/archives/

digg\_user\_rebellion\_reddit\_on\_front\_page.php). ReadWriteWeb. . Retrieved August 31, 2010.

- [34] "Digg Users Lash Out At New Format, Join Forces with Reddit" (http://newsfeed.time.com/2010/08/30/ digg-users-lash-out-at-new-format-join-forces-with-reddit/). Time Magazine. Retrieved August 31, 2010.
- [35] "Angry Digg users flood home page with Reddit links" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-13577\_3-20015042-36.html?part=rss& amp;subj=news&tag=2547-1\_3-0-20). CNet News. . Retrieved August 31, 2010.
- [36] "Angry Users SLAM Digg With Links From Rival Reddit" (http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2010/08/30/ reddit-digg-rivalry-heats\_n\_699225.html). The Huffington Post. . Retrieved August 31, 2010.
- [37] "Digg's traffic is collapsing at home and abroad" (http://thenextweb.com/socialmedia/2010/09/23/ diggs-traffic-is-collapsing-at-home-and-abroad/). The Next Web. . Retrieved October 20, 2010.
- [38] "The Digg Effect v4" (http://socialkeith.com/the-digg-effect-v4/). Social Keith. . Retrieved October 20, 2010.
- [39] "Greetings from the new CEO" (http://about.digg.com/blog/greetings-new-ceo). Digg About. . Retrieved October 20, 2010.
- [40] Dave (Apr. 20 2006). "Digg Corrupted: Editor's Playground, not User-Driven Website" (http://www.forevergeek.com/2006/04/
- digg\_corrupted\_editors\_playground\_not\_userdriven\_website/). Forevergeek. . Retrieved 4 August 2010. [41] Greg Sandoval (December 18, 2006). "Digg continues to battle phony stories" (http://news.cnet.com/
- Digg-continues-to-battle-phony-stories/2100-1025\_3-6144652.html). CNET News. . Retrieved 4 August 2010.
- [42] Adam (December 23, 2007). "Digg's Ron Paul 'Bury Brigade' exposed" (http://message2paulspammers.blogspot.com/2007/12/ diggs-ron-paul-bury-brigade-exposed.html). Retrieved 4 August 2010.
- [43] Ben (February 26th 2008). "Digg's 20 Questions: a Town Hall Recap" (http://bloggingexperiment.com/archives/ diggs-20-questions-a-town-hall-recap.php). Bloggingexperiment. Retrieved 4 August 2010.
- [44] Michael Arrington (Sep 3, 2008). "Want On The Digg Home Page? That'll Be \$1,200." (http://techcrunch.com/2008/09/03/ want-on-the-digg-home-page-thatll-be-1300/). Techcruch. . Retrieved 4 August 2010.
- [45] Anonymous (JANUARY 09, 2006). "Steve Mallett from O'Reilly has stolen digg's code" (http://steveisbad.blogspot.com/2006/01/ steve-mallett-from-oreilly-has-stolen.html). STEVE'S THEFT. Retrieved 5 August 2010.
- [46] Digg (JANUARY 09, 2006). "Archive.org mirror of the deleted Digg story" (http://web.archive.org/web/20060113141457/http://digg. com/security/O\_Reilly\_writer\_Steve\_Mallett\_has\_stolen\_digg\_s\_code). Digg. Archived from the original (http://digg.com/security/ O\_Reilly\_writer\_Steve\_Mallett\_has\_stolen\_digg\_s\_code) on 2006-01-13. Retrieved 5 August 2010.
- [47] Steve Mallett (January 10th, 2006). "Archive.org mirror of the deleted blog post" (http://web.archive.org/web/20060412182316/http:// steve.tawkr.com/2006/01/10/my-response/). Archive. Archived from the original (http://steve.tawkr.com/2006/01/10/my-response/) on 2006-04-12. Retrieved 5 August 2010.

- [49] Nat Torkington (Jan 9 2006). "Digging The Madness of Crowds" (http://radar.oreilly.com/archives/2006/01/ digging-the-madness-of-crowds.html). O'Reilly. Retrieved 5 August 2010.
- [50] Pete Cashmore. "Digg and the So-Called "Wisdom of Mobs"" (http://mashable.com/2006/01/10/ digg-and-the-so-called-wisdom-of-mobs/). Mashable. . Retrieved 5 August 2010.
- [51] Stone, Brad (2007-05-03). "In Web Uproar, Antipiracy Code Spreads Wildly" (http://www.nytimes.com/2007/05/03/technology/ 03code.html). *The New York Times*. Retrieved 2007-07-02.
- [52] Jay Adelson. "Digg the Blog: What's Happening with HD-DVD Stories?" (http://blog.digg.com/?p=73). .
- [53] "Cease and desist letters backfire horribly against AACS" (http://www.tgdaily.com/content/view/31859/97/). TGdaily. 2007-05-01. . Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [54] "Digg losing control of their site" (http://weblog.infoworld.com/railsback/archives/2007/05/digg\_losing\_con.html). Weblog.infoworld.com. Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [55] Sanders, Tom. "DRM lobby tries to get HD DVD genie back into the bottle" (http://www.computing.co.uk/vnunet/news/2188970/ drm-lobby-tries-hd-dvd-genie). Computing.co.uk. . Retrieved 2009-02-27.
- [56] Marcus Yam. "DailyTech: AACS Key Censorship Leads to First Internet Riot" (http://www.dailytech.com/article.aspx?newsid=7129). . Retrieved 2007-05-02.
- [57] "BBC News: DVD DRM row sparks user rebellion" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/technology/6615047.stm). 2007-05-02. Retrieved 2007-05-02.
- [58] Forbes.com (http://www.forbes.com/technology/2007/05/02/digital-rights-management-tech-cx\_ag\_0502digg.html), Digg's DRM Revolt
- [59] Kevin Rose (2007-05-01). "Digg This: 09 F9 [...]" (http://blog.digg.com/?p=74). Digg the Blog. Digg Inc. . Retrieved 2007-05-02.
- [60] Ole Ole Olson (4:40 am, August 5, 2010). "Massive Censorship of Digg Uncovered" (http://blogs.alternet.org/oleoleolson/2010/08/05/ massive-censorship-of-digg-uncovered/). AlterNet. .
- [61] Ole Olson (Aug 5th, 2010). "The Rigging Of Digg: How A Covert Mob Of Conservatives Hijacked The Web's Top Social News Site" (http://pubrecord.org/special-to-the-public-record/8121/rigging-of-digg-covert-mob-conservatives/). The Public Record.
- [62] Josh Halliday (Friday 6 August 2010 12.29 BST). "Digg investigates claims of conservative 'censorship'" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/ technology/2010/aug/06/digg-investigates-claims-conservative-censorship). The Guardian (London).
- [63] Richard MacManus (2006-02-01). "Interview with Digg founder Kevin Rose" (http://www.zdnet.com/blog/web2explorer/ interview-with-digg-founder-kevin-rose-part-1/108). Web 2.0 Explorer. ZDNet. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [64] "API query for story #01" (http://services.digg.com/story/001?appkey=http://wikipedia.com/). API. Digg. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [65] "Kevin Rose shows off Digg on The Screen Savers" (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=W1\_YoG7lqI4). The Screen Savers. TechTV. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [66] "Digg Podcast #001 Released" (http://revision3.com/diggnation/2005-07-01). Diggnation. Revision3. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [67] Richard MacManus (2005-12-27). "Gaming Digg: the KoolAidGuy saga" (http://www.zdnet.com/blog/web2explorer/ gaming-digg-the-koolaidguy-saga/90). Web 2.0 Explorer. ZDNet. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [68] "Dan Huard is digg user AlbertPacino" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080120235857/http://digg.com/tech\_news/ Dan\_Huard\_is\_digg\_user\_AlbertPacino). wehatetech. Archived from the original (http://digg.com/tech\_news/ Dan\_Huard\_is\_digg\_user\_AlbertPacino) on 2008-01-20. Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [69] Macgyver (2006-04-19). "Digg Army: Right in Line" (http://www.forevergeek.com/2006/04/digg\_army\_right\_in\_line/). Forever Geek. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [70] Kevin Rose (2007-02-1). "A couple updates..." (http://about.digg.com/blog/couple-updatesâll). Digg blog. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [71] Jen Burton (2008-10-03). "Update on Script Abuse" (http://about.digg.com/blog/digg-update-script-abuse). Community blog. Digg. . Retrieved 2010-08-02.
- [72] [ IAlex, Willhelm (http://thenextweb.com/members/alexwillhelm/profile/)] (2010-08-03). "The New Digg Cometh?" (http:// thenextweb.com/apps/2010/08/03/the-new-digg-cometh/). . Retrieved 2010-08-06.
- [73] Michael Arrington Oct 25, 2010 (2010-10-25). "Digg To Layoff 37% Of Staff, Product Refocus Imminent" (http://techcrunch.com/2010/ 10/25/digg-to-lay-off-37-percentof-staff/). Techcrunch.com. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.

# **External links**

- Official site (http://digg.com/)
- Inc. Magazine profile of Kevin Rose (http://www.inc.com/magazine/20081101/keeevviin.html/)

Retrieved 5 August 2010.

# Facebook

	facebook.		
Туре	Private		
Founded	Cambridge, Massachusetts <sup>[1]</sup> (2004)		
Founder	Mark Zuckerberg Chris Hughes Dustin Moskovitz Eduardo Saverin		
Headquarters	Palo Alto, California, U.S. (main headquarters; serves the Americas) Dublin, Ireland (headquarters for Europe, Africa, Middle East) Seoul, South Korea (headquarters for Asia) Wellington, New Zealand (headquarters for Oceania), Hyderabad, India <sup>[2]</sup> (Headquarters for South Asia)		
Area served	Worldwide		
Key people	Mark Zuckerberg (CEO) Chris Cox (VP of Product) Sheryl Sandberg (COO)		
Revenue	▲ US\$800 million (2009 est.) <sup>[3]</sup>		
Employees	1700+ (2010) <sup>[4]</sup>		
Slogan	1		
Website	facebook.com <sup>[5]</sup>		
Alexa rank	■ 2 (November 2010) <sup>[6]</sup>		
Type of site	Social network service		
Advertising	Banner ads, referral marketing, Casual games		
Registration	Required		
Users	500 million <sup>[7]</sup> (active in July 2010) <sup>[8]</sup>		
Available in	Multilingual		
Launched	February 4, 2004		
Current status	Active		

**Facebook** is a social network service and website launched in February 2004 that is operated and privately owned by Facebook, Inc.<sup>[1]</sup> As of July 2010 Facebook has more than 500 million active users,<sup>[7]</sup> which is about one person for every fourteen in the world.<sup>[9] [8]</sup> Users may create a personal profile, add other users as friends and exchange messages, including automatic notifications when they update their profile. Additionally, users may join common interest user groups, organized by workplace, school, or college, or other characteristics. The name of the service stems from the colloquial name for the book given to students at the start of the academic year by university administrations in the US with the intention of helping students to get to know each other better. Facebook allows anyone who declares themselves to be at least 13 years old to become a registered user of the website.

Facebook was founded by Mark Zuckerberg with his college roommates and fellow computer science students Eduardo Saverin, Dustin Moskovitz and Chris Hughes.<sup>[10]</sup> The website's membership was initially limited by the

founders to Harvard students, but was expanded to other colleges in the Boston area, the Ivy League, and Stanford University. It gradually added support for students at various other universities before opening to high school students, and, finally, to anyone aged 13 and over.

Facebook has met with some controversy. It has been blocked intermittently in several countries including Pakistan,<sup>[11]</sup> Syria,<sup>[12]</sup> the People's Republic of China,<sup>[13]</sup> Vietnam,<sup>[14]</sup> Iran,<sup>[15]</sup> Uzbekistan<sup>[16]</sup> and North Korea. It has also been banned at many places of work to discourage employees from wasting time using the service.<sup>[17]</sup> Facebook's privacy has also been an issue, and the safety of their users has been compromised several times. Facebook settled a lawsuit regarding claims over source code and intellectual property.<sup>[18]</sup>

A January 2009 Compete.com study ranked Facebook as the most used social network by worldwide monthly active users, followed by MySpace.<sup>[19]</sup> *Entertainment Weekly* put it on its end-of-the-decade "best-of" list, saying, "How on earth did we stalk our exes, remember our co-workers' birthdays, bug our friends, and play a rousing game of Scrabulous before Facebook?"<sup>[20]</sup> Quantcast estimates Facebook has 135.1 million monthly unique U.S. visitors.<sup>[21]</sup>

### History

Mark Zuckerberg wrote Facemash, the predecessor to Facebook, on October 28, 2003, while attending Harvard as a sophomore. The site represented a Harvard University version of Hot or Not, according to the Harvard Crimson.<sup>[22]</sup> According to *The Harvard Crimson*, Facemash "used photos compiled from the online facebooks of nine Houses, placing two next to each other at a time and asking users to choose the 'hotter' person".<sup>[23]</sup>



Mark Zuckerberg co-created Facebook in his Harvard dorm room.

To accomplish this, Zuckerberg hacked into the protected areas of Harvard's computer network and copied the houses' private dormitory ID images. Harvard at that time did not have a student directory with photos and basic information, and the initial site generated 450 visitors and 22,000 photo-views in its first four hours online.<sup>[23]</sup> That the initial site mirrored people's physical community—with their real identities—represented the key aspects of what later became Facebook.<sup>[24]</sup>

The site was quickly forwarded to several campus group list-servers but was shut down a few days later by the Harvard administration. Zuckerberg was charged by the administration with breach of security, violating copyrights, and violating individual privacy, and faced expulsion, but ultimately the charges were dropped.<sup>[25]</sup> Zuckerberg expanded on this initial project that semester by creating a social study tool ahead of an art history final by uploading 500 Augustan images to a website, with one image per page along with a comment section.<sup>[24]</sup>

He opened the site up to his classmates and people started sharing their notes.

The following semester, Zuckerberg began writing code for a new website in January 2004. He was inspired, he said, by an editorial in *The Harvard Crimson* about the Facemash incident.<sup>[26]</sup> On February 4, 2004, Zuckerberg launched "Thefacebook", originally located at thefacebook.com.<sup>[27]</sup>

Just six days after the site launched, three Harvard seniors, Cameron Winklevoss, Tyler Winklevoss, and Divya Narendra, accused Zuckerberg of intentionally misleading them into believing he would help them build a social network called HarvardConnection.com, while he was instead using their ideas to build a competing product.<sup>[28]</sup> The three complained to the *Harvard Crimson* and the newspaper began an investigation. The three later filed a lawsuit against Zuckerberg, later settling.<sup>[29]</sup>

Membership was initially restricted to students of Harvard College, and within the first month, more than half the undergraduate population at Harvard was registered on the service.<sup>[30]</sup> Eduardo Saverin (business aspects), Dustin Moskovitz (programmer), Andrew McCollum (graphic artist), and Chris Hughes soon joined Zuckerberg to help promote the website. In March 2004, Facebook expanded to Stanford, Columbia, and Yale.<sup>[31]</sup> This expansion

continued when it opened to all Ivy League schools, Boston University, New York University, MIT, and gradually most universities in Canada and the United States.<sup>[32]</sup>

Facebook incorporated in the summer of 2004 and the entrepreneur Sean Parker, who had been informally advising Zuckerberg, became the company's president.<sup>[34]</sup> In June 2004, Facebook moved its base of operations to Palo Alto, California.<sup>[31]</sup> Facebook received its first investment later that month from PayPal co-founder Peter Thiel.<sup>[35]</sup> The company dropped *The* from its name after purchasing the domain name facebook.com in 2005 for \$200,000.<sup>[36]</sup>

Date	Users	Days later	Monthly growth <sup>[37]</sup>
August 26, 2008	100 <sup>[38]</sup>	1665	178.38%
April 8, 2009	200 <sup>[39]</sup>	225	13.33%
September 15, 2009	300 <sup>[40]</sup>	150	10%
February 5, 2010	400 <sup>[41]</sup>	143	6.99%
July 21, 2010	500 <sup>[7]</sup>	166	4.52%
_	600	110 (ongoing)	

I+ Total active users<sup>[8]</sup> (in millions) Facebook launched a high school version in September 2005, which Zuckerberg called the next logical step.<sup>[42]</sup> At that time, high school networks required an invitation to join.<sup>[43]</sup> Facebook later expanded membership eligibility to employees of several companies, including Apple Inc. and Microsoft.<sup>[44]</sup> Facebook was then opened on September 26, 2006, to everyone of ages 13 and older with a valid e-mail address.<sup>[45]</sup>

On October 24, 2007, Microsoft announced that it had purchased a 1.6% share of Facebook for \$240 million, giving Facebook a total implied value of around \$15 billion.<sup>[47]</sup> Microsoft's purchase included rights to place international ads on Facebook.<sup>[48]</sup> In October 2008, Facebook announced that it was to set up its international headquarters in Dublin, Ireland.<sup>[49]</sup> In September 2009, Facebook claimed that it had turned cash flow positive for the first time.<sup>[50]</sup> In June 2010, an online marketplace for trading private company stock reflected a valuation of \$11.5 billion.<sup>[51]</sup>

Traffic to Facebook has increased steadily since 2009. More people visited Facebook than Google.com for the week ending March 13, 2010.<sup>[52]</sup> Facebook has also become the top social network across eight individual markets in the region, Philippines, Australia, Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore, New Zealand, Hong Kong and Vietnam, while other brands commanded the top positions in certain markets, including Google-owned Orkut in India, Mixi.jp in Japan, CyWorld in South Korea and Yahoo!'s Wretch.cc in Taiwan.

### Company



the Stanford Research Park, Palo Alto, California.

Most of Facebook's revenues comes from advertising. Microsoft is Facebook's exclusive partner for serving banner advertising,<sup>[53]</sup> and as such Facebook only serves advertisements that exist in Microsoft's advertisement inventory. According to comScore, an internet marketing research company, Facebook collects as much data from its visitors as Google and Microsoft, but considerably less than Yahoo!.<sup>[54]</sup> In 2010, the security team began expanding its efforts to counter threats and terrorism from users.<sup>[55]</sup> On November 6, 2007, Facebook launched Facebook Beacon, which was an ultimately failed attempt to advertise to friends of users using the knowledge of what purchases friends made.

Facebook generally has a lower clickthrough rate (CTR) for advertisements than most major websites. For banner advertisements, they have generally received one-fifth the number of clicks on Facebook compared to the Web as a whole.<sup>[56]</sup> This means that a smaller percentage of Facebook's users click on advertisements than many other large websites. For example, while Google users click on the first advertisement for search results an average of 8% of the time (80,000 clicks for every one million searches),<sup>[57]</sup> Facebook's users click on advertisements an average of 0.04% of the time (400 clicks for every one million pages).<sup>[58]</sup>

Sarah Smith, who was Facebook's Online Sales Operations Manager, confirmed that successful advertising campaigns can have clickthrough rates as low as 0.05% to 0.04%, and that CTR for ads tend to fall within two weeks.<sup>[59]</sup> Competing social network MySpace's CTR, in comparison, is about 0.1%, 2.5 times better than Facebook's but still low compared to many other websites. Explanations for Facebook's low CTR include the fact that Facebook's users are more technologically savvy and therefore use ad blocking software to hide advertisements, the users are younger and therefore are better at ignoring advertising messages, and that on MySpace, users spend more time browsing through content while on Facebook, users spend their time communicating with friends and therefore have their attention diverted away from advertisements.<sup>[60]</sup>

Year	Revenue	Growth
2006	\$52 <sup>[61]</sup>	_
2007	\$150 <sup>[62]</sup>	188%
2008	\$280 <sup>[63]</sup>	87%
2009	\$800 <sup>[3]</sup>	186%
2010 <sup>[64]</sup>	\$1100 <sup>[65]</sup>	38%

I+ Revenues

(estimated, in millions US\$) On Pages for brands and products, however, some companies have reported CTR as high as 6.49% for Wall posts.<sup>[66]</sup> Involver, a social marketing platform, announced in July 2008 that it managed to attain a CTR of 0.7% on Facebook (over 10 times the typical CTR for Facebook ad campaigns) for its first client, Serena Software, managing to convert 1.1 million views into 8000 visitors to their website.<sup>[67]</sup> A study found that for video advertisements on Facebook, over 40% of users who viewed the videos viewed the entire video, while the industry average was 25% for in-banner video ads.<sup>[68]</sup>

Facebook has approximately 1,400 employees and offices in eight countries.<sup>[69]</sup> Regarding Facebook ownership, Mark Zuckerberg owns 24% of the company, Accel Partners owns 10%, Dustin Moskovitz owns 6%, Digital Sky

Technologies owns 5%, Eduardo Saverin owns 5%, Sean Parker owns 4%, Peter Thiel owns 3%, Greylock Partners and Meritech Capital Partners own between 1 to 2% each, Microsoft owns 1.3%, Li Ka-shing owns 0.75%, the Interpublic Group owns less than 0.5%, a small group of current and former employees and celebrities own less than 1% each, including Matt Cohler, Jeff Rothschild, California U.S. Senator Barbara Boxer, Chris Hughes, and Owen Van Natta, while Reid Hoffman and Mark Pincus have sizable holdings of the company, and the remaining 30% or so are owned by employees, undisclosed number of celebrities, and outside investors.<sup>[70]</sup> Adam D'Angelo, chief technology officer and friend of Zuckerberg, resigned in May 2008. Reports claimed that he and Zuckerberg began quarreling, and that he was no longer interested in partial ownership of the company.<sup>[71]</sup>

### Website

Users can create profiles with photos, lists of personal interests, contact information and other personal information. Communicating with friends and other users can be done through private or public messages or a chat feature. Users can also create and join interest groups and "like pages" (formerly called "fan pages" until April 19, 2010), some of which are maintained by organizations as a means of advertising.<sup>[72]</sup>





To allay concerns about privacy, Facebook enables users to choose their own privacy settings and choose who can see what parts of their profile.<sup>[73]</sup> The website is free to users and generates revenue from advertising, such as banner ads.<sup>[74]</sup> Facebook requires a user's name and profile picture (if applicable) to be accessible by everyone. Users can control who sees other information they have shared, as well as who can find them in searches, through their privacy settings.<sup>[75]</sup>

The media often compares Facebook to MySpace, but one significant difference between the two websites is the level of customization.<sup>[76]</sup> Another difference is Facebook's requirement that users utilize their true

identity, a demand that MySpace does not make.<sup>[77]</sup> MySpace allows users to decorate their profiles using HTML and Cascading Style Sheets (CSS), while Facebook only allows plain text.<sup>[78]</sup> Facebook has a number of features with which users may interact. They include the Wall, a space on every user's profile page that allows friends to post messages for the user to see;<sup>[79]</sup> Pokes, which allows users to send a virtual "poke" to each other (a notification then tells a user that they have been poked);<sup>[80]</sup> Photos, where users can upload albums and photos;<sup>[81]</sup> and Status, which allows users to inform their friends of their whereabouts and actions.<sup>[82]</sup> Depending on privacy settings, anyone who can see a user's profile can also view that user's Wall. In July 2007, Facebook began allowing users to post attachments to the Wall, whereas the Wall was previously limited to textual content only.<sup>[79]</sup>

Over time, Facebook has added features to its website. On September 6, 2006, a News Feed was announced, which appears on every user's homepage and highlights information including profile changes, upcoming events, and birthdays of the user's friends.<sup>[83]</sup> This has enabled spammers and other users to manipulate these features by creating illegitimate events or posting fake birthdays to attract attention to their profile or cause.<sup>[84]</sup> Initially, the News Feed caused dissatisfaction among Facebook users; some complained it was too cluttered and full of undesired information, while others were concerned it made it too easy for other people to track down individual activities (such as changes in relationship status, events, and conversations with other users).<sup>[85]</sup>

In response to this dissatisfaction, Zuckerberg issued an apology for the site's failure to include appropriate customizable privacy features. Since then, users have been able to control what types of information are shared automatically with friends. Users are now able to prevent friends from seeing updates about certain types of activities, including profile changes, Wall posts, and newly added friends.<sup>[86]</sup> On February



23, 2010, Facebook was granted US patent 7669123<sup>[87]</sup> on certain aspects of their News Feed. The patent covers News Feeds where links are provided so that one user can participate in the same activity of another user.<sup>[88]</sup> The patent may encourage Facebook to pursue action against websites that violate the patent, which may potentially include websites such as Twitter.<sup>[89]</sup>

One of the most popular applications on Facebook is the Photos application, where users can upload albums and photos.<sup>[90]</sup> Facebook allows users to upload an unlimited number of photos, compared with other image hosting services such as Photobucket and Flickr, which apply limits to the number of photos that a user is allowed to upload. During the first years, Facebook users were limited to 60 photos per album. As of May 2009, this limit has been increased to 200 photos per album.<sup>[91] [92] [93] [94]</sup>

Privacy settings can be set for individual albums, limiting the groups of users that can see an album. For example, the privacy of an album can be set so that only the user's friends can see the album, while the privacy of another album can be set so that all Facebook users can see it. Another feature of the Photos application is the ability to "tag", or label users in a photo. For instance, if a photo contains a user's friend, then the user can tag the friend in the photo. This sends a notification to the friend that they have been tagged, and provides them a link to see the photo.<sup>[95]</sup>

Facebook Notes was introduced on August 22, 2006, a blogging feature that allowed tags and embeddable images. Users were later able to import blogs from Xanga, LiveJournal, Blogger, and other blogging services.<sup>[45]</sup> During the week of April 7, 2008, Facebook released a Comet-based<sup>[96]</sup> instant messaging application called "Chat" to several networks,<sup>[97]</sup> which allows users to communicate with friends and is similar in functionality to desktop-based instant messengers.

Facebook launched Gifts on February 8, 2007, which allows users to send virtual gifts to their friends that appear on the recipient's profile. Gifts cost \$1.00 each to purchase, and a personalized message can be



attached to each gift.<sup>[98]</sup> <sup>[99]</sup> On May 14, 2007, Facebook launched Marketplace, which lets users post free classified ads.<sup>[100]</sup> Marketplace has been compared to Craigslist by CNET, which points out that the major difference between the two is that listings posted by a user on Marketplace are only seen by users that are in the same network as that user, whereas listings posted on Craigslist can be seen by anyone.<sup>[101]</sup>

On July 20, 2008, Facebook introduced "Facebook Beta", a significant redesign of its user interface on selected networks. The Mini-Feed and Wall were consolidated, profiles were separated into tabbed sections, and an effort was made to create a "cleaner" look.<sup>[102]</sup> After initially giving users a choice to switch, Facebook began migrating all users to the new version beginning in September 2008.<sup>[103]</sup> On December 11, 2008, it was announced that Facebook was testing a simpler signup process.<sup>[104]</sup>



On June 13, 2009, Facebook introduced a "Usernames" feature, whereby pages can be linked with simpler URLs such as http://www.facebook.com/facebook <sup>[105]</sup> as opposed to http://www.facebook.com/profile. php?id=20531316728 <sup>[106]</sup>.<sup>[107]</sup> Many new smartphones offer access to the Facebook services either through their web-browsers or applications. An official Facebook application is available for the iPhone OS, the Android OS, and the WebOS. Nokia and Research in Motion both provide Facebook applications for their own mobile devices. More than 150 million active users access Facebook through mobile devices across 200 mobile operators in 60 countries.

## Reception

According to comScore, Facebook is the leading social networking site based on monthly unique visitors, having overtaken main competitor MySpace in April 2008.<sup>[108]</sup> ComScore reports that Facebook attracted 130 million unique visitors in May 2010, an increase of 8.6 million people.<sup>[109]</sup> According to Alexa, the website's ranking among all websites increased from 60th to 7th in worldwide traffic, from September 2006 to September 2007, and is currently 2nd.<sup>[110]</sup> Quantcast ranks the website 2nd in the U.S. in traffic,<sup>[111]</sup> and Compete.com ranks it 2nd in the U.S.<sup>[112]</sup> The website is the most popular for uploading photos, with 50 billion uploaded cumulatively.<sup>[113]</sup> In 2010, Sophos's "Security Threat Report 2010" polled over 500 firms, 60% of which responded that they believed that Facebook was the social network that posed the biggest threat to security, well ahead of MySpace, Twitter, and Linkedln.<sup>[55]</sup>

Facebook is the most popular social networking site in several English-speaking countries, including Canada,<sup>[114]</sup> the United Kingdom,<sup>[115]</sup> and the United States.<sup>[116]</sup> [117] [118] [119] In regional Internet markets, Facebook penetration is highest in North America (69 percent), Middle East-Africa (67 percent), Latin America (58 percent), Europe (57 percent), and Asia-Pacific (17 percent).<sup>[120]</sup>

The website has won awards such as placement into the "Top 100 Classic Websites" by *PC Magazine* in 2007,<sup>[121]</sup> and winning the "People's Voice Award" from the Webby Awards in 2008.<sup>[122]</sup> In a 2006 study conducted by Student Monitor, a New Jersey-based company specializing in research concerning the college student market, Facebook was named the second most popular thing among undergraduates, tied with beer and only ranked lower than the iPod.<sup>[123]</sup>

On March 2010, Judge Richard Seeborg issued an order approving the class settlement in *Lane v. Facebook, Inc.*, the class action lawsuit arising out of Facebook's Beacon program.

In 2010, Facebook won the Crunchie "Best Overall Startup Or Product" the third year in a row<sup>[124]</sup> and was recognized as one of the "Hottest Silicon Valley Companies" by Lead411.<sup>[125]</sup> However, in a July 2010 survey performed by the American Customer Satisfaction Index, Facebook received a score of 64 out of 100, placing it in

the bottom 5% of all private sector companies in terms of customer satisfaction, alongside industries such as the IRS e-file system, airlines, and cable companies. Reasons for why Facebook scored so poorly include privacy problems, frequent changes to the website's interface, the results returned by the News Feed, and spam.<sup>[126]</sup>

In December 2008, the Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory ruled that Facebook is a valid protocol to serve court notices to defendants. It is believed to be the world's first legal judgement that defines a summons posted on Facebook as legally binding.<sup>[127]</sup> In March 2009, the New Zealand High Court associate justice David Glendall allowed for the serving of legal papers on Craig Axe by the company Axe Market Garden via Facebook.<sup>[128]</sup> Employers (such as Virgin Atlantic Airways) have also used Facebook as a means to keep tabs on their employees and have even been known to fire them over posts they have made.<sup>[129]</sup>

By 2005, the use of Facebook had already become so ubiquitous that the generic verb "facebooking" had come into use to describe the process of browsing others' profiles or updating one's own.<sup>[130]</sup> In 2008, Collins English Dictionary declared "Facebook" as their new Word of the Year.<sup>[131]</sup> In December 2009, the New Oxford American Dictionary declared their word of the year to be the verb "unfriend", defined as "To remove someone as a "friend" on a social networking site such as Facebook. As in, "I decided to unfriend my roommate on Facebook after we had a fight" ".<sup>[132]</sup>

As of April 2010, according to *The New York Times*, countries with most Facebook users are the United States, the United Kingdom and Indonesia.<sup>[133]</sup> Indonesia has become the country with the second largest number of Facebook users, after the United States, with 24 million users, or 10% of Indonesia's population.<sup>[134]</sup> Also in early 2010, Openbook was established, an avowed parody website (and privacy advocacy website)<sup>[135]</sup> that enables text-based searches of those Wall posts that are available to "Everyone", i.e. to everyone on the Internet.

Writers for *The Wall Street Journal* found in 2010 that Facebook apps were transmitting identifying information to "dozens of advertising and Internet tracking companies". The apps used a "referrer" which exposed the user's identity and sometimes their friends'. Facebook said, "We have taken immediate action to disable all applications that violate our terms".<sup>[136]</sup>

# **Political impact**

Facebook's role in the American political process was demonstrated in January 2008, shortly before the New Hampshire primary, when Facebook teamed up with ABC and Saint Anselm College to allow users to give live feedback about the "back to back" January 5 Republican and Democratic debates.<sup>[137]</sup> <sup>[138]</sup> <sup>[139]</sup> Charles Gibson moderated both debates, held at the Dana Center for the Humanities at Saint Anselm College. Facebook users took part in debate groups organized around specific topics, register to vote, and message questions.<sup>[140]</sup>

Over 1,000,000 people installed the Facebook application 'US politics' in order to take part, and the application measured users' responses to

The stage at the Facebook – Saint Anselm College debates in 2008.

specific comments made by the debating candidates.<sup>[141]</sup> This debate showed the broader community what many young students had already experienced: Facebook was an extremely popular and powerful new way to interact and voice opinions. An article written by Michelle Sullivan of Uwire.com illustrates how the "facebook effect" has affected youth voting rates, support by youth of political candidates, and general involvement by the youth population in the 2008 election.<sup>[142]</sup>

In February 2008, a Facebook group called "One Million Voices Against FARC" organized an event that saw hundreds of thousands of Colombians march in protest against the Revolutionary Armed Forces of Colombia, better known as the FARC (from the group's Spanish name).<sup>[143]</sup> In August 2010, one of North Korea's official government

websites, Uriminzokkiri, joined Facebook.<sup>[144]</sup>

# In media

- At age 102, Ivy Bean of Bradford, England joined Facebook in 2008, making her one of the oldest people ever on Facebook. An inspiration to other residents,<sup>[145]</sup> she quickly became more widely known and several fan pages were made in her honor. She visited Prime Minister Gordon Brown and his wife, Sarah, in Downing Street early in 2010.<sup>[146]</sup> Some time after creating her Facebook page, Bean also joined Twitter, when she passed the maximum number of friends allowed by Facebook. She became the oldest person to ever use the Twitter website. At the time of her death in July 2010, she had 4,962 friends on Facebook and more than 56,000 followers on Twitter. Her death was widely reported in the media and she received tributes from several notable media personalities.<sup>[147]</sup>
- "FriendFace", a December 2008 episode of the British sitcom, *The IT Crowd*, parodied Facebook and social networking sites, in general.<sup>[148]</sup>
- American author, Ben Mezrich, published a book in July 2009 about Mark Zuckerberg and the founding of Facebook, titled *The Accidental Billionaires: The Founding of Facebook, A Tale of Sex, Money, Genius, and Betrayal*.<sup>[149]</sup>
- In response to the Everybody Draw Mohammed Day controversy and the ban of the website in Pakistan, an Islamic version of the website was created, called MillatFacebook.<sup>[150]</sup>
- "You Have 0 Friends", an April 2010 episode of the American animated comedy series, *South Park*, parodied Facebook.<sup>[151]</sup>
- *The Social Network*, a drama film directed by David Fincher about the founding of Facebook, was released October 1, 2010.<sup>[152]</sup> The film features an ensemble cast consisting of Jesse Eisenberg as Mark Zuckerberg, Andrew Garfield as Eduardo Saverin, Justin Timberlake as Sean Parker, and Armie Hammer as Cameron and Tyler Winklevoss. The film was written by Aaron Sorkin and adapted from Ben Mezrich's 2009 book. The film was distributed by Columbia Pictures. No staff members of Facebook, including Zuckerberg, was involved with the project. However, one of Facebook's co-founders, Eduardo Saverin, was a consultant for Mezrich's book. Mark Zuckerberg has said that *The Social Network* is inaccurate.<sup>[153]</sup>

# See also

- Ambient Awareness
- CampusNetwork
- Diaspora (software)
- List of social networking websites
- Social media
- The Facebook Era (book)
- Wirehog

### Notes

- Eldon, Eric. (2008-12-18). "2008 Growth Puts Facebook In Better Position to Make Money" (http://venturebeat.com/2008/12/18/ 2008-growth-puts-facebook-in-better-position-to-make-money/). VentureBeat. . Retrieved 2008-12-19.
- [2] "Niet compatibele browser | Facebook" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=360924937130). Blog.facebook.com. Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [3] "Facebook '09 revenue neared \$800 mn" (http://economictimes.indiatimes.com/infotech/internet/ Facebook-09-revenue-neared-800-mn-Sources/articleshow/6063819.cms). The Economic Times. . Retrieved 18 Jun 2010.
- [4] "Press Info" (http://www.facebook.com/press/info.php), Facebook. Retrieved May 27, 2010.
- [5] http://www.facebook.com/
- [6] Facebook.com Traffic Details from Alexa (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/facebook.com). Alexa Internet, Inc. . Retrieved 2010-10-25
- [7] Zuckerberg, Mark (2010-07-21). "500 Million Stories" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=409753352130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2010-07-21.
- [8] An "active user" is defined by Facebook as a user who has visited the website in the last 30 days.
- [9] "Facebook Statistics" (http://www.facebook.com/press/info.php?statistics). . Retrieved July 21, 2010.
- [10] Carlson, Nicholas (2010-03-05). "At Last The Full Story Of How Facebook Was Founded" (http://www.businessinsider.com/ how-facebook-was-founded-2010-3#we-can-talk-about-that-after-i-get-all-the-basic-functionality-up-tomorrow-night-1). Business Insider. .
- [11] Cooper, Charles (2010-05-19). "Pakistan Bans Facebook Over Muhammad Caricature Row Tech Talk" (http://www.cbsnews.com/ 8301-501465\_162-20005388-501465.html). CBS News. . Retrieved 2010-06-26.
- [12] "Red lines that cannot be crossed" (http://www.economist.com/world/mideast-africa/displaystory.cfm?story\_id=11792330). The Economist. July 24, 2008. Retrieved August 17, 2008.
- [13] "China's Facebook Status: Blocked" (http://blogs.abcnews.com/theworldnewser/2009/07/chinas-facebook-status-blocked.html). ABC News. July 8, 2009. . Retrieved 13 July 2009.
- [14] Ben Stocking (2009-11-17). "Vietnam Internet users fear Facebook blackout" (http://www.sfgate.com/cgi-bin/article.cgi?f=/n/a/2009/ 11/17/international/i033256S37.DTL). The San Francisco Chronicle. Associated Press. . Retrieved 2009-11-17.
- [15] Shahi, Afshin. (July 27, 2008). "Iran's Digital War"" (http://dailystaregypt.com/article.aspx?ArticleID=15313). Daily News Egypt. . Retrieved August 16, 2008.
- [16] (Russian) "Uzbek authorities have blocked access to Facebook" (http://www.ferghana.ru/news.php?id=15794&mode=snews). . Retrieved 21 October 2010.
- [17] Benzie, Robert (May 3, 2007). "Facebook banned for Ontario staffers" (http://www.thestar.com/News/article/210014). Toronto: TheStar.com. Retrieved August 16, 2008.
- [18] Stone, Brad (April 7, 2008). "Facebook to Settle Thorny Lawsuit Over Its Origins" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2008/04/07/ facebook-to-settle-thorny-lawsuit-over-its-origins/). The New York Times (blog). . Retrieved November 5, 2009.
- [19] Kazeniac, Andy (2009-02-09). "Social Networks: Facebook Takes Over Top Spot, Twitter Climbs" (http://blog.compete.com/2009/02/ 09/facebook-myspace-twitter-social-network/). Compete.com. Retrieved 2009-02-17.
- [20] Geier, Thom; Jensen, Jeff; Jordan, Tina; Lyons, Margaret; Markovitz, Adam; Nashawaty, Chris; Pastorek, Whitney; Rice, Lynette; Rottenberg, Josh; Schwartz, Missy; Slezak, Michael; Snierson, Dan; Stack, Tim; Stroup, Kate; Tucker, Ken; Vary, Adam B.; Vozick-Levinson, Simon; Ward, Kate (December 11, 2009)). "THE 100 Greatest Movies, TV Shows, Albums, Books, Characters, Scenes, Episodes, Songs, Dresses, Music Videos, and Trends that entertained us over the 10 Years". Entertainment Weekly.
- [21] "facebook.com Quantcast Audience Profile" (http://www.quantcast.com/facebook.com). Quantcast.com. 2010-10-27. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [22] Tabak, Alan J. (February 9, 2004). "Hundreds Register for New Facebook Website" (http://web.archive.org/web/20050403215543/ www.thecrimson.com/article.aspx?ref=357292). Harvard Crimson. . Retrieved 2008-11-07.
- [23] Locke, Laura. "The Future of Facebook" (http://www.time.com/time/business/article/0,8599,1644040,00.html), Time Magazine, July 17, 2007. Retrieved November 13, 2009.
- [24] McGirt, Ellen. "Facebook's Mark Zuckerberg: Hacker. Dropout. CEO." (http://www.fastcompany.com/magazine/115/ open\_features-hacker-dropout-ceo.html), Fast Company, May 1, 2007. Retrieved November 5, 2009.
- [25] Kaplan, Katherine (2003-11-19). "Facemash Creator Survives Ad Board" (http://www.thecrimson.com/article.aspx?ref=350143). The Harvard Crimson. Retrieved 2009-02-05.
- [26] Hoffman, Claire (2008-06-28). "The Battle for Facebook" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080703220456/http://www.rollingstone. com/news/story/21129674/the\_battle\_for\_facebook/). Rolling Stone. Archived from the original (http://www.rollingstone.com/news/ story/21129674/the\_battle\_for\_facebook/) on July 3, 2008. . Retrieved 2009-02-05.
- [27] Seward, Zachary M. (2007-07-25). "Judge Expresses Skepticism About Facebook Lawsuit" (http://online.wsj.com/article/ SB118539991204578084.html?mod=googlenews\_wsj). *The Wall Street Journal*. Retrieved 2008-04-30.
- [28] Carlson, Nicolas (2010-03-05). "In 2004, Mark Zuckerberg Broke Into A Facebook User's Private Email Account" (http://www. businessinsider.com/how-mark-zuckerberg-hacked-into-the-harvard-crimson-2010-3). Business Insider. . Retrieved 2010-03-05.
- [29] Brad Stone (2008-06-28). "Judge Ends Facebook's Feud With ConnectU" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2008/06/26/ judge-ends-facebooks-feud-with-connectu/index.html). The New York Times.

- [30] Phillips, Sarah (2007-07-25). "A brief history of Facebook" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/technology/2007/jul/25/media.newmedia). The Guardian (London). Retrieved 2008-03-07.
- [31] "Press Room" (http://www.facebook.com/press/info.php?timeline). Facebook. 2007-01-01. . Retrieved 2008-03-05.
- [32] Rosmarin, Rachel (2006-09-11). "Open Facebook" (http://www.forbes.com/2006/09/11/facebook-opens-up-cx\_rr\_0911facebook. html). Forbes. . Retrieved 2008-06-13.
- [33] "Online network created by Harvard students flourishes" (http://www.tuftsdaily.com/2.5541/1.600318). Tufts Daily. . Retrieved 2009-08-21.
- [34] Rosen, Ellen (2005-05-26). "Student's Start-Up Draws Attention and \$13 Million" (http://www.nytimes.com/2005/05/26/business/ 26sbiz.html?\_r=2&scp=1&sq=thefacebook+parker&st=nyt). The New York Times. Retrieved 2009-05-18.
- [35] "Why you should beware of Facebook" (http://www.theage.com.au/news/general/beware-facebook/2008/01/18/1200620184398. html?page=fullpage#contentSwap2). *The Age* (Melbourne). 2008-01-20. Retrieved 2008-04-30.
- [36] Williams, Chris (2007-10-01). "Facebook wins Manx battle for face-book.com" (http://www.theregister.co.uk/2007/10/01/ facebook\_domain\_dispute/). The Register. . Retrieved 2008-06-13.
- [37] "Monthly growth" is the average percentage growth rate at which the total number of active users grows each month over the specified period.
- [38] "Blog post" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=28111272130). . Retrieved 2010-06-26.
- [39] "Blog post" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=72353897130). . Retrieved 2010-06-26.
- [40] "Blog post" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=136782277130). . Retrieved 2010-06-26.
- [41] "Announcement" (http://www.facebook.com/notes/facebook-ads/ new-navigation-for-users-and-400-million-active-users-announcement/326050130129). Facebook. . Retrieved 2010-06-26.
- [42] Dempsey, Laura (2006-08-03). "Facebook is the go-to Web site for students looking to hook up". Dayton Daily News.
- [43] Lerer, Lisa (2007-01-25). "Why MySpace Doesn't Card" (http://www.forbes.com/security/2007/01/25/ myspace-security-identity-tech-security-cx\_ll\_0124myspaceage.html). Forbes. . Retrieved 2008-06-13.
- [44] Lacy, Sarah (2006-09-12). "Facebook: Opening the Doors Wider" (http://www.businessweek.com/technology/content/sep2006/ tc20060912\_682123.htm?chan=top+news\_top+news+index\_technology). BusinessWeek. . Retrieved 2008-03-09.
- [45] Abram, Carolyn (2006-09-26). "Welcome to Facebook, everyone" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=2210227130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-08.
- [46] "Terms of Use" (http://www.facebook.com/terms.php). Facebook. 2007-11-15. . Retrieved 2008-03-05.
- [47] "Facebook and Microsoft Expand Strategic Alliance" (http://www.microsoft.com/Presspass/press/2007/oct07/10-24FacebookPR. mspx). Microsoft. 2007-10-24. . Retrieved 2007-11-08.
- [48] "Facebook Stock For Sale" (http://www.businessweek.com/magazine/content/08\_33/b4096000952343. htm?chan=rss\_topEmailedStories\_ssi\_5). BusinessWeek. . Retrieved 2008-08-06.
- [49] "Press Releases" (http://www.facebook.com/press/releases.php?p=59042). Facebook. 2008-11-30. . Retrieved 2008-11-30.
- [50] "Facebook 'cash flow positive,' signs 300M users" (http://www.cbc.ca/technology/story/2009/09/16/tech-facebook-300-million-users. html). Cbc.ca. 2009-09-16. . Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [51] Narasu Rebbapragada (2010-06-21). "What Is Your Facebook Data Worth?". PC World.
- [52] "Facebook Reaches Top Ranking in US" (http://weblogs.hitwise.com/heather-dougherty/2010/03/facebook\_reaches\_top\_ranking\_i. html).
- [53] "Product Overview FAQ: Facebook Ads" (http://www.facebook.com/press/faq.php#Facebook+Ads). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-10.
- [54] Story, Louise (2008-03-10). "To Aim Ads, Web Is Keeping Closer Eye on You" (http://www.nytimes.com/2008/03/10/technology/ 10privacy.html). The New York Times. . Retrieved 2008-03-09.
- [55] Cluley, Graham (February 1, 2010). "Revealed: Which social networks pose the biggest risk?" (http://www.sophos.com/blogs/gc/g/ 2010/02/01/revealed-social-networks-pose-biggest-risk/). Sophos. . Retrieved July 12, 2010.
- [56] "Facebook May Revamp Beacon" (http://www.businessweek.com/technology/content/nov2007/tc20071128\_366355\_page\_2.htm). BusinessWeek. 2007-11-28. Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [57] "Google AdWords Click Through Rates Per Position" (http://www.accuracast.com/seo-weekly/adwords-clickthrough.php). AccuraCast. 2009-10-09. . Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [58] Denton, Nick (2007-03-07). "Facebook 'consistently the worst performing site'" (http://valleywag.gawker.com/242234/ facebook-consistently-the-worst-performing-site). Gawker. . Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [59] "Facebook Says Click Through Rates Do Not Match Those At Google" (http://techpulse360.com/2009/08/12/ facebook-says-its-click-through-rates-do-not-match-those-at-google/). TechPulse 360. 2009-08-12. Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [60] Leggatt, Helen (2007-07-16). "Advertisers disappointed with Facebook's CTR" (http://www.bizreport.com/2007/07/ advertisers\_disappointed\_with\_facebooks\_ctr.html). BizReport. . Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [61] Arrington, Michael (2006-04-26). "Facebook Goes Beyond College, High School Markets" (http://techcrunch.com/2006/04/26/ facebook-goes-beyond-college-high-school-markets/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2010-07-13.
- [62] Schonfeld, Erick (2008-01-31). "Facebook Finances Leaked" (http://techcrunch.com/2008/01/31/facebook-finances-leaked/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2010-07-13.

- [63] Arrington, Michael (2009-05-19). "Facebook Turns Down \$8 billion Valuation Term Sheet, Claims 2009 Revenues Will Be \$550 million" (http://techcrunch.com/2009/05/19/facebook-turns-down-8-billion-valuation-term-sheet-claims-2009-revenues-to-be-550-million/). TechCrunch. Retrieved 2010-07-13.
- [64] Projected revenue for 2010
- [65] Kincaid, Jason (2010-06-22). "Zuckerberg: Facebook Revenue Estimates Of \$1.1 Billion "Not So Far Off.." (http://techcrunch.com/2010/ 06/22/facebook-revenues/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2010-07-13.
- [66] Klaassen, Abbey (2009-08-13). "Facebook's Click-Through Rates Flourish ... for Wall Posts" (http://adage.com/digitalnext/ post?article\_id=138442). AdAge. Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [67] "Involver Delivers Over 10x the Typical Click-Through Rate for Facebook Ad Campaigns" (http://www.prweb.com/releases/2008/07/ prweb1162804.htm). Press release. 2008-07-31. Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [68] Walsh, Mark (2010-06-15). "Study: Video Ads On Facebook More Engaging Than Outside Sites" (http://www.mediapost.com/ publications/?fa=Articles.showArticle&art\_aid=130217). *MediaPost.*. Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [69] "Facebook Factsheet" (http://www.facebook.com/press/info.php?factsheet). . Retrieved September 9, 2010.
- [70] David Kirkpatrick. The Facebook Effect. p. 322. ISBN 1439102112.
- [71] McCarthy, Caroline (May 11, 2008). "As Facebook goes corporate, Mark Zuckerberg loses an early player" (http://news.cnet.com/ 8301-13577\_3-9941488-36.html). CNET.com. . Retrieved July 12, 2010.
- [72] "Edit Your Profile" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080227212605/http://www.facebook.com/sitetour/profile.php). Facebook. Archived from the original (http://www.facebook.com/sitetour/profile.php) on 2008-02-27. Retrieved 2008-03-07.
- [73] "Search Privacy" (http://www.facebook.com/privacy/?view=search). Facebook. . Retrieved 2009-06-13.
- [74] Barton, Zoe (2006-04-28). "Facebook goes corporate" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080526001748/http://news.zdnet.com/ 2100-9588\_22-6066533.html). ZDNet. Archived from the original (http://news.zdnet.com/2100-9588\_22-6066533.html) on May 26, 2008. Retrieved 2008-03-09.
- [75] "Choose Your Privacy Settings" (http://www.facebook.com/settings/?tab=privacy). Facebook. . Retrieved 2009-09-10.
- [76] Stone, Brad (2007-05-25). "Facebook Expands Into MySpace's Territory" (http://www.nytimes.com/2007/05/25/technology/25social. html). The New York Times. Retrieved 2008-03-08.
- [77] Ciccone, David (2009-05-07). "Facebook Connect fully integrated into Mobility Today" (http://mobilitytoday.com/news/009500/ facebook\_connect\_mt). Retrieved 2010-09-10.
- [78] Sullivan, Mark (2007-07-24). "Is Facebook the New MySpace?" (http://www.pcworld.com/article/id,134635-c,categories/article.html). PC World. Retrieved 2008-04-30.
- [79] Der, Kevin. "Facebook is off-the-wall" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=3532972130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2007-07-30.
- [80] "Inbox, Messages and Pokes" (http://www.facebook.com/help.php?page=20). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-09.
- [81] "The Facebook Gifts" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=2406207130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-05.
- [82] Ramadge, Andrew (2007-11-26). "Facebook is... reconsidering the word "is"" (http://www.news.com.au/technology/story/ 0,25642,22822400-5014108,00.html). News Limited. . Retrieved 2008-03-08.
- [83] Sanghvi, Ruchi (2006-09-06). "Facebook Gets a Facelift" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=2207967130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-02-11.
- [84] "Facebook: Celebrate Your Birthday Every Day" (http://blog.colnect.com/2010/03/facebook-celebrate-your-birthday-every.html). . Retrieved 2010-03-09.
- [85] Lacy, Sarah (2006-09-08). "Facebook Learns from Its Fumble" (http://www.businessweek.com/technology/content/sep2006/ tc20060908\_536553.htm?campaign\_id=rss\_tech). BusinessWeek. . Retrieved 2008-06-28.
- [86] Gonsalves, Antone (2006-09-08). "Facebook Founder Apologizes In Privacy Flap; Users Given More Control" (http://www. informationweek.com/news/internet/ebusiness/showArticle.jhtml?articleID=192700574). InformationWeek. Retrieved 2008-06-28.
- $\label{eq:sect1} \end{tabular} \end{tabula$
- [88] "US Patent No. 7669123" (http://themelis-cuiper.com/22/us-patent-no-7669123.html). . Retrieved 2010-03-09.
- [89] "Facebook's news-feed patent could mean lawsuits" (http://www.cnn.com/2010/TECH/02/26/facebook.patent/index.html). CNN. Retrieved July 12, 2010.
- [90] Arrington, Michael (2007-05-24). "Facebook Launches Facebook Platform; They are the Anti-MySpace" (http://www.techcrunch.com/ 2007/05/24/facebook-launches-facebook-platform-they-are-the-anti-myspace/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2008-06-28.
- [91] "Share More Memories with Larger Photo Albums" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=87157517130). . Retrieved 2010-01-04.
- [92] "Upload: 60 or 200 photos in the same album?" (http://www.facebook.com/topic.php?uid=2305272732&topic=7363). . Retrieved 2009-01-25.
- [93] "How can I add more than 60 photos to an album?" (http://www.facebook.com/topic.php?uid=2305272732&topic=4947). Retrieved 2009-01-25.
- [94] "Example of album from a regular user with a 200-photo limit" (http://www.facebook.com/album.php?aid=2003726&l=5f3c8& id=1352160452). Retrieved 2009-01-25.
- [95] "Photos" (http://www.facebook.com/help.php?page=7). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-15.
- [96] Eugene (2008-05-14). "Facebook Chat" (http://www.facebook.com/note.php?note\_id=14218138919&id=9445547199&index=0). Facebook. Retrieved 2008-06-02.

- [97] Facebook (2008-04-06). "April 6, 2008 Press Release" (http://www.facebook.com/press/releases.php?p=27681). Press release. . Retrieved 2008-04-11.
- [98] "Give gifts on Facebook!" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=2234372130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-15.
- [99] "Gifts" (http://www.facebook.com/help.php?page=16). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-15.
- [100] "The Marketplace Is Open..." (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=2383962130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-03-15.
- [101] McCarthy, Caroline (2007-05-13). "Hands-on with Facebook Marketplace" (http://www.news.com/8301-10784\_3-9718779-7.html). CNET. . Retrieved 2008-03-15.
- [102] "Facebook Facelift Targets Aging Users and New Competitors" (http://www.nytimes.com/idg/ IDG\_852573C4006938800025748D0064C292.html?ref=technology). The New York Times. July 21, 2008.
- [103] "Moving to the new Facebook" (http://blog.new.facebook.com/blog.php?post=30074837130). Facebook. . Retrieved 2008-09-12.
- [104] Facebook Testing Even Simpler Sign Up; Closing The Gap With MySpace In The U.S. (http://www.techcrunch.com/2008/12/11/ facebook-testing-even-simpler-sign-up-closing-the-gap-with-myspace-in-the-us/), TechCrunch. Published December 11, 2008.
- [105] http://www.facebook.com/facebook
- [106] http://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=20531316728
- [107] DiPersia, Blaise (2009-06-09). "Coming Soon: Facebook Usernames" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog.php?post=90316352130). . Retrieved 2009-06-13.
- [108] Techtree News Staff (2008-08-13). "Facebook: Largest, Fastest Growing Social Network" (http://www.techtree.com/India/News/ Facebook\_Largest\_Fastest\_Growing\_Social\_Network/551-92134-643.html). Techtree.com. ITNation. . Retrieved 2008-08-14.
- [109] "Privacy, Schmivacy: Facebook Is Attracting Near-Record Numbers Of New Visitors" (http://techcrunch.com/2010/06/07/ privacy-facebook-visitors/). TechCrunch. 2010-06-07. . Retrieved 2010-09-08.
- [110] "Related info for: facebook.com/" (http://www.alexa.com/data/details/traffic\_details/facebook.com?q=facebook). Alexa Internet. . Retrieved 2008-03-08.
- [111] "Facebook.com Web Site Audience Profile" (http://www.quantcast.com/facebook.com). Quantcast. . Retrieved 2010-09-09.
- [112] "We're Number Two! Facebook moves up one big spot in the charts" (http://blog.compete.com/2010/02/17/
- weâlltre-number-two-facebook-moves-up-one-big-spot-in-the-charts/). Compete.com. . Retrieved 2010-09-09.
- [113] McGrath, Kristin (2010-07-22). "Status update: Facebook logs 500 million members" (http://www.usatoday.com/tech/news/ 2010-07-21-facebook-hits-500-million-users\_N.htm). USA Today. . Retrieved 2010-09-09.
- [114] Yum, Kenny (2007-05-18). "Facebook says 'Thanks, Canada'" (http://network.nationalpost.com/np/blogs/posted/archive/2007/05/ 18/facebook-says-thanks-canada.aspx). National Post. . Retrieved 2008-04-30.
- [115] Malkin, Bonnie (2007-09-26). "Facebook is UK's biggest networking site" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/main.jhtml?xml=/news/ 2007/09/25/nface125.xml). The Daily Telegraph (London). Retrieved 2008-04-30.
- [116] Caverly, Doug (16 June 2009). "comScore: Facebook Catches MySpace in U.S." (http://www.webpronews.com/topnews/2009/06/16/ comscore-facebook-catches-myspace-in-us). WebProNews. iEntry Network. . Retrieved 24 September 2009.
- [117] "Facebook grows as MySpace cuts back" (http://atlanta.bizjournals.com/atlanta/stories/2009/06/15/daily47.html). Atlanta Business Chronicle. 17 June 2009. . Retrieved 24 September 2009. "The Conference Board report on first quarter online users in the U.S. showed Facebook with an even larger lead, with 78 percent of social network participants, followed by MySpace (42 percent), LinkedIn (17 percent) and Twitter (10 percent)."
- [118] Hasselback, Drew (17 June 2009). "Comscore says Facebook has surpassed MySpace for U.S. users" (http://network.nationalpost.com/ np/blogs/fpposted/archive/2009/06/17/comscore-says-facebook-has-surpassed-myspace-for-u-s-users.aspx). FP Posted. The National Post Company. . Retrieved 24 September 2009. "Comscore says Facebook surpassed MySpace among U.S. users in May, while Nielsen figures that actually happened back in January."
- [119] Wood, Cara (31 August 2009). "Keeping pace with mainstream social media" (http://www.dmnews.com/ keeping-pace-with-mainstream-social-media/article/147429/). DMNews. Haymarket Media. Retrieved 24 September 2009. "The giant in the space remains Facebook, which gets 87.7 million unique viewers per month, according to ComScore. MySpace, with nearly 70 million unique monthly visitors, has seen growth stagnate over the past year."
- [120] McCarthy, Caroline (2010-07-21). "Who will be Facebook's next 500 million?" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-13577\_3-20011158-36. html). c (New York). Retrieved 2008-09-23.
- [121] "Social Networking" (http://www.pcmag.com/article2/0,2817,2169354,00.asp). PC Magazine. 2007-08-13. . Retrieved 2008-05-09.
- [122] "12th Annual Webby Awards Nominees" (http://www.webbyawards.com/webbys/current.php?season=12). International Academy of Digital Arts and Sciences. Retrieved 2008-05-06.
- [123] "Survey: College Kids Like IPods Better Than Beer" (http://www.foxnews.com/story/0,2933,198632,00.html). Fox News. 2006-06-08.
  Retrieved 2008-03-10.
- [124] Kincaid, Jason (2010-01-08). "Facebook Takes Best Overall For The Hat Trick" (http://techcrunch.com/2010/01/08/crunchies-winner/). Techcrunch.com. Retrieved 2010-07-08.
- [125] "Lead411 launches "Hottest Silicon Valley Companies" awards" (http://www.lead411.com/silicon-valley-companies.html). Lead411.com. 2010-05-25. Retrieved 2010-07-08.
- [126] Fowler, Geoffrey A. (2010-07-20). "Users Rate Facebook Slightly Above the Tax Man" (http://blogs.wsj.com/digits/2010/07/20/ users-rate-facebook-slightly-above-the-tax-man/). *The Wall Street Journal*. Retrieved 2010-07-21.

- [127] "The Age article on the world's first court documents to be served via Facebook" (http://www.theage.com.au/articles/2008/12/16/ 1229189579001.html). Melbourne: Theage.com.au. 2009-06-15. . Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [128] The Age article on NZ also using Facebook to issue court orders (http://www.theage.com.au/news/technology/web/ kiwis-follow-australian-facebook-precedent/2009/03/16/1237054723620.html); "Facebook trap criminals in its web" (http://www.iol.co. za/index.php?set\_id=1&click\_id=13&art\_id=vn20090405104820309C778226&newslett=1&em=197599a6a20090405ah).
- [129] Jason Cochran (November 6, 2008). "DWatch out! Bosses are saving money by firing employees over Facebook posts" (http://www. walletpop.com/blog/2008/11/06/watch-out-bosses-are-saving-money-by-firing-employees-over-face/). Retrieved May 6, 2010.
- [130] Soraya Nadia McDonald (July 4, 2005). "Facebooking, the rage on college campuses" (http://community.seattletimes.nwsource.com/ archive/?date=20050704&slug=btfacebook04). The Seattle Times. . Retrieved September 14, 2009.
- [131] December 21, 2007 Kristen Nicole View comments Comments (2007-12-21). "Mashable.com" (http://mashable.com/2007/12/21/ facebook-noun-verb-collins-english-dictionary/). Mashable.com. . Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [132] "Unfriend is New Oxford dictionary's Word of the Year" (http://content.usatoday.com/communities/ondeadline/post/2009/11/ unfriend-is-new-oxford-dictionarys-word-of-the-year-/1). USA Today. . Retrieved July 12, 2010.
- [133] Norimitshu Onishi (April 19, 2010). "Debate on Internet's Limits Grows in Indonesia" (http://www.nytimes.com/2010/04/20/world/ asia/20indonet.html?ref=asia). The New York Times. Retrieved April 19, 2010.
- [134] "ACFTA: It Certainly Sounds Better Without the 'C', Doesn't It? | Hey Diaspora! For Misplaced and Displaced Indonesians" (http:// heydiaspora.com/acfta-it-certainly-sounds-better-without-the-c-doesnt-it/). Hey Diaspora!. . Retrieved 2010-11-07.
- [135] "Openbook Connect and share whether you want to or not" (http://youropenbook.org/about.html). Youropenbook.org. 2010-05-12. . Retrieved 2010-06-26.
- [136] Steel, Emily and Fowler, Geoffrey A. (October 18, 2010). "Facebook in Privacy Breach" (http://online.wsj.com/article/ SB10001424052702304772804575558484075236968.html). *The Wall Street Journal* (Dow Jones). Retrieved October 18, 2010.
- [137] "ABC News Joins Forces With Facebook" (http://abcnews.go.com/Technology/Politics/story?id=3899006&page=1). ABCnews.go.com. 2007-12-18. . Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [138] Doug Minor (2007-11-29). "Saint Anselm to Host ABC Debates Jan. 5" (http://blogs.saintanselmcollege.net/2007/11/29/abcdebates/). blogs.saintanselmcollege.net. Retrieved 2010-07-18.
- [139] Tahman Bradley (2007-12-12). "Republicans Lead off ABC News, WMUR-TV and Facebook Back-To-Back Debates in New Hampshire" (http://blogs.abcnews.com/politicalradar/abc\_wmur\_and\_facebook\_debates/index.html). Blogs.abcnews.com. Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [140] Ezra Callahan (2008-01-05). "Tune in to the ABC News/Facebook Debates, Tonight 7pm/6c on ABC" (http://blog.facebook.com/blog. php?post=8183627130). Blog.facebook.com. . Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [141] Russell Goldman (2007-01-05). "Facebook Gives Snapshot of Voter Sentiment" (http://abcnews.go.com/Politics/story?id=4091460& page=1). ABCnews.go.com. Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [142] Michelle Sullivan (2008-11-03). "Facebook Effect' Mobilizes Youth Vote" (http://www.cbsnews.com/stories/2008/11/04/politics/ uwire/main4568563.shtml). CBSnews.com. . Retrieved 2010-03-23.
- [143] Brodzinsky, Sibylla (2008-02-04). "Facebook used to target Colombia's FARC with global rally" (http://www.csmonitor.com/World/ Americas/2008/0204/p04s02-woam.html). Christian Science Monitor. Retrieved 2010-08-01.
- [144] Roberts, Laura (2010-08-21). "North Korea joins Facebook" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/technology/facebook/7957222/ North-Korea-joins-Facebook.html). *Telegraph*. Retrieved 2010-08-22.
- [145] "Oldest Tweeter talks cuppas and casserole on Twitter at 104" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/technology/twitter/5327822/ Oldest-Tweeter-talks-cuppas-and-casserole-on-Twitter-at-104.html), Daily Telegraph, 15 May 2009
- [146] Alex Millson "Stars pay tribute to world's oldest Twitter user Ivy Bean after she dies aged 104" (http://www.dailymail.co.uk/tvshowbiz/ article-1298433/Stars-pay-tribute-worlds-oldest-Twitter-user-Ivy-Bean-dies-aged-104.html?ITO=1490), Daily Mail, 28 July 2010
- [147] Gray, Melissa (28 July 2010). "Ivy Bean, 'world's oldest Twitter user,' dead at 104" (http://edition.cnn.com/2010/TECH/social.media/ 07/28/obit.ivy.bean/index.html?hpt=T2#fbid=txV8eA\_Nah8). cnn.com. Retrieved 31 July 2010.
- [148] "The IT Crowd series 3 DVD review" (http://www.denofgeek.com/Reviews/222991/the\_it\_crowd\_series\_3\_dvd\_review.html). Den Of Geek.com. 22 March 2009. . Retrieved 7 June 2010. "Anyone who passes more than 15% of their working day on Facebook will love the 'Friendface' episode in series 3, which gently suggests that the likes of Friends Reunited and Facebook have a tendency to dig up situations – and people – that were buried with good reason"
- [149] Hempel, Jessi (2009-06-25). "The book that Facebook doesn't want you to read" (http://money.cnn.com/2009/06/25/technology/ founding\_of\_facebook.fortune/). *money.cnn.com* (Cable News Network). Retrieved 3 July 2010.
- [150] Hussain, Waqar (2010-05-27). "AFP: Pakistanis create rival Muslim Facebook" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5iOAHXhFHXrWMDdtAajYAxmypKT2w). Google.com. Retrieved 2010-06-09.
- [151] "South Park parodies Facebook" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/media/mediamonkeyblog/2010/apr/08/ south-park-season-4-episode-14-facebook). *The Guardian* (London). 8 April 2010. . Retrieved 7 June 2010.
- [152] "The Social Network (2010)" (http://www.imdb.com/title/tt1285016/). imdb.com. amazon.com. . Retrieved 3 July 2010.
- [153] "Mark Zuckerberg Calls The Social Network Inaccurate" (http://www.limelife.com/blog-entry/ Mark-Zuckerberg-Calls-The-Social-Network-Inaccurate-VIDEO/77351.html), , retrieved 2 October 2010

# References

# **External links**

- Official website (http://www.facebook.com/)
- "Facebook news and reviews" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/technology/facebook/) at The Daily Telegraph
- The Wiktionary definition of facebook
- 💩 Media related to Facebook at Wikimedia Commons

bjn:Facebook

# LinkedIn

Linkedin		
URL	www.linkedin.com <sup>[1]</sup>	
Commercial?	Yes	
Type of site	Professional network service	
Registration	Required	
Created by	Reid Hoffman	
Launched	May 2003	
	Mountain View, CA, USA	
Alexa rank	▲ 22 (October 2010) <sup>[2]</sup>	
Revenue	\$17 million (December 31, 2008 Fiscal Year)	
Current status	Active	

**LinkedIn** (pronounced / lIŋkt.'In/) is a business-oriented social networking site. Founded in December 2002 and launched in May 2003,<sup>[3]</sup> it is mainly used for professional networking. As of 2 November 2010, LinkedIn had more than 80 million registered users, spanning more than 200 countries and territories worldwide.<sup>[4]</sup> The site is available in English, French, German, Italian, Portuguese and Spanish.<sup>[5]</sup> Quantcast reports Linkedin has 21.4 million monthly unique U.S. visitors and 47.6 million globally.<sup>[6]</sup>

# **Company background**

LinkedIn's CEO is Jeff Weiner, previously a Yahoo! Inc. executive. The company was founded by Reid Hoffman and founding team members from Paypal and Socialnet.com (Allen Blue, Eric Ly, Jean-Luc Vaillant, Lee Hower, Konstantin Guericke, Stephen Beitzel, David Eves, Ian McNish, Yan Pujante, and Chris Saccheri).

Founder Reid Hoffman, previously CEO of LinkedIn, is now Chairman of the Board. Dipchand Nishar is Vice President of Products.<sup>[7]</sup> LinkedIn is headquartered in Mountain View, California, with offices in Omaha, Chicago, New York and London. It is funded by Greylock, Sequoia Capital, Bain Capital Ventures,<sup>[8]</sup> Bessemer Venture Partners and the European Founders Fund. LinkedIn reached profitability in March 2006.<sup>[9]</sup>

On June 17, 2008, Sequoia Capital, Greylock Partners, and other venture capital firms purchased a 5% stake in the company for \$53 million, giving the company a post-money valuation of approximately \$1 billion.<sup>[10]</sup>

In June 2010, LinkedIn announced it would be opening up a European headquarters in Dublin, Ireland.<sup>[11]</sup>

On July 28, 2010, Tiger Global Management LLC purchased a 1% stake in the company at a valuation of approximately \$2 billion.<sup>[12]</sup>

On August 4, 2010, LinkedIn announced Mspoke acquisition. This is the company's first acquisition for an undisclosed amount. This acquisition aims to help LinkedIn users do more than just find a job, increase users' activity<sup>[13]</sup> and improve its 1% premium subscription ratio.<sup>[14]</sup>

# Membership

With 80 million users, LinkedIn is ahead of its competitors Viadeo (30 million)<sup>[15]</sup> and XING (9 million).<sup>[16]</sup> The membership grows by a new member approximately every second. About half of the members are in the United States and 11 million are from Europe. With 3 million users, India is the fastest-growing country as of 2009. The Netherlands has the highest adoption rate per capita outside the US at 30%.<sup>[17]</sup> LinkedIn recently reached 4 million users in UK<sup>[18]</sup> and 1 million in Spain.<sup>[19]</sup>

# Features

The purpose of the site is to allow registered users to maintain a list of contact details of people they know and trust in business. The people in the list are called *Connections*. Users can invite anyone (whether a site user or not) to become a connection.

This list of connections can then be used in a number of ways:

- A contact network is built up consisting of their direct connections, the connections of each of their connections (termed *second-degree connections*) and also the connections of second-degree connections (termed *third-degree connections*). This can be used to gain an introduction to someone a person wishes to know through a mutual, trusted contact.
- It can then be used to find jobs, people and business opportunities recommended by someone in one's contact network.
- Employers can list jobs and search for potential candidates.
- Job seekers can review the profile of hiring managers and discover which of their existing contacts can introduce them.
- Users can post their own photos and view photos of others to aid in identification.
- Users can now follow different companies and can get notification about the new joining and offers available.
- Users can save (i.e. bookmark) jobs which they would like to apply for.

The "gated-access approach" (where contact with any professional requires either a preexisting relationship, or the intervention of a contact of theirs) is intended to build trust among the service's users. LinkedIn participates in EU's International Safe Harbor Privacy Principles.<sup>[20]</sup>

LinkedIn also allows users to research companies with which they may be interested in working. When typing the name of a given company in the search box, statistics about the company are provided. These may include the ratio of female to male employees, the percentage of the most common titles/positions held within the company, the location of the company's headquarters and offices, or a list of present and former employees.

The feature LinkedIn Answers,<sup>[21]</sup> similar to Yahoo! Answers, allows users to ask questions for the community to answer. This feature is free and the main difference from the latter is that questions are potentially more business-oriented, and the identity of the people asking and answering questions is known.

The searchable LinkedIn Groups<sup>[22]</sup> feature allows users to establish new business relationships by joining alumni, industry, or professional and other relevant groups. LinkedIn groups can be created in any subjects and by any member of LinkedIn. Some groups are specialised groups dealing with a narrow domain or industry whereas others are very broad and generic in nature.

Another LinkedIn feature is LinkedIn Polls.

A mobile version of the site was launched in February 2008 which gives access to a reduced feature set over a mobile phone. The mobile service is available in six languages: Chinese, English, French, German, Japanese and Spanish.<sup>[23]</sup>

In mid-2008, LinkedIn launched LinkedIn DirectAds as a form of sponsored advertising.<sup>[24]</sup>

In October, 2008, LinkedIn revealed plans to opening its social network of 30 million professionals globally as a potential sample for business-to-business research. And, in doing so it's testing a potential social-network revenue model-research that to some appears more promising than advertising.<sup>[25]</sup>

In October, 2008, LinkedIn enabled an "applications platform" that allows other online services to be embedded within a member's profile page. For example, among the initial applications were an Amazon Reading List that allows LinkedIn members to display books they are reading, a connection to Tripit, and a Six Apart, WordPress and TypePad application that allows members to display their latest blog postings within their LinkedIn profile.<sup>[26]</sup>

In November, 2010, LinkedIn allowed businesses to list products and services on company profile pages; it also permitted LinkedIn members to "recommend" products and services and write reviews.<sup>[27]</sup>

### **Restricted access from some countries**

In 2009 Syrian users reported that LinkedIn server stopped accepting connections originating from IP addresses assigned to Syria. As company's Customer Support stated, services provided by them are subject to US export and re-export control laws and regulations and "As such, and as a matter of corporate policy, we do not allow member accounts or access to our site from Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudan, or Syria."<sup>[28]</sup>

Cuba, Iran, Sudan and Syria are not available in the list of countries that LinkedIn users can select as one's location. However, as of April 2010, North Korea is still present there.

### SNA LinkedIn

The Search, Network, and Analytics team at LinkedIn has a web site<sup>[29]</sup> that hosts the open source projects built by the group. The most notable one is Project Voldemort,<sup>[30]</sup> a distributed key-value structured storage system with low-latency similar in purpose to Amazon's Dynamo and Google's BigTable.

#### See also

- Business network
- Information Routing Group
- LinkedIn Answers
- · List of social networking websites
- Reputation systems
- Social network
- · Social software

# References

- [1] http://www.linkedin.com/
- [2] "Linkedin.com Traffic Details from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/linkedin.com). Alexa Internet, Inc. . Retrieved 2010-05-23.
- [3] "Linked-In Profile" (http://www.thealarmclock.com/mt/archives/2004/08/linkedin\_hq\_mou.html). alarm:clock. 2004-08-06. . Retrieved 2008-01-17.
- [4] "LinkedIn Public Relations Latest LinkedIn Facts" (http://press.linkedin.com/about). LinkedIn. . Retrieved 2010-04-23.
- [5] "Italians get a local flavour of LinkedIn" (http://press.linkedin.com/italy-launch-english). 2010-04-15. . Retrieved 2010-04-23.
- [6] http://www.quantcast.com/linkedin.com
- [7] "About LinkedIn: Management" (http://www.linkedin.com/static?key=management). Linkedin.com. . Retrieved 2009-12-07.
- [8] "Press Release about Sequoia Capital Investing in LinkedIn" (http://www.linkedin.com/static?key=investors). . Retrieved 2007-11-14.
- [9] "Press Releases: LinkedIn Premium Services Finding Rapid Adoption" (http://www.linkedin.com/static?key=press\_releases\_030706). LinkedIn. 2006-03-07. Retrieved 2009-12-07.
- [10] Guynn, Jessica (2008-06-17). "LinkedIn networks way to \$53-million investment" (http://www.latimes.com/business/ la-fi-linkedin18-2008jun18,0,6631759.story). The Los Angeles Times. . Retrieved 2008-06-17.
- [11] LinkedIn to open HQ in Dublin (http://www.insideireland.ie/index.cfm/section/news/ext/linkedin001/category/1091)

- [12] "Tiger Global Said to Invest in LinkedIn at \$2 Billion Valuation" (http://www.businessweek.com/news/2010-07-28/ tiger-global-said-to-invest-in-linkedin-at-2-billion-valuation.html). BusinessWeek.com. 2010-07-28. Retrieved 2010-07-29.
- [13] "LinkedIn Hooks Up" (http://www.forbes.com/2010/08/03/social-network-mspoke-technology-linkedin.html). Forbes. 2010-08-04. . Retrieved 2010-08-05.
- [14] "Does local beat global in the professional-networking business?" (http://www.economist.com/node/14931599). The Economist. 2009-11-19. . Retrieved 2010-08-05.
- [15] "LinkedIn competitor Viadeo hits 30 million members" (http://eu.techcrunch.com/2010/05/11/ linkedin-competitor-viadeo-hits-30-million-members/). TechCrunch.com. 11 May 2010. Retrieved 25 July 2010.
- [16] "Interim report for the first quarter 2010" (http://corporate.xing.com/fileadmin/image\_archive/XING\_AG\_results\_Q1\_2010.pdf). XING. 1 May 2010. Retrieved 25 July 2010.
- [17] "LinkedIn: 50 million professionals worldwide. LinkedIn. October 14, 2009. Retrieved 2009-11-03" (http://blog.linkedin.com/2009/10/ 14/linkedin-50-million-professionals-worldwide/). Blog.linkedin.com. . Retrieved 2009-12-07.
- [18] "Four million UK professionals opt for a LinkedIn profile. Retrieved 2010-07-25" (http://www.bankingtimes.co.uk/ 11062010-four-million-uk-professionals-opt-for-a-linkedin-profile/). bankingtimes.com. Retrieved 2010-07-25.
- [19] "LinkedIn reaches 1 million users in Spain, competitors keep up the pressure. Retrieved 2010-07-25" (http://eu.techcrunch.com/2010/07/ 21/linkedin\_reaches\_1\_million\_users\_in\_spain\_competition\_keeps\_up\_the\_pressure/). eu.techcrunch.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-25.
- [20] "Privacy Policy" (http://www.linkedin.com/static?key=pop\_privacy\_policy). LinkedIn. July 14, 2006. . Retrieved 2008-01-17.
- [21] "LinkedIn Answers unlocks the world's best source of business knowledge: trusted professionals" (http://www.linkedin.com/
- static?key=press\_releases\_011607). Linkedin.com. 2007-01-16. . Retrieved 2009-12-07.
- [22] "LinkedIn Groups FAQ" (http://www.linkedin.com/static?key=groups\_faq). .
- [23] "Social-networking site LinkedIN introduces mobile version" (http://life.tweakers.net/nieuws/52094/ social-networkingsite-linkedin-introduceert-mobiele-versie.html). tweakers.net. Retrieved 2008-02-25.
- [24] LinkedIn DirectAds launch (http://www.targetinfolabs.com/?p=87), by Zaki Usman Nov 2008
- [25] LinkedIn's promising new revenue model: sending you surveys. By: Neff, Jack, Advertising Age, 00018899, 10/27/2008, Vol. 79, Issue 40. Database: Business Source Complete
- [26] Facebook in a Suit: LinkedIn Launches Applications Platform (http://www.businessweek.com/the\_thread/techbeat/archives/2008/10/ linkedin\_launch.html), BusinessWeek, 2008-10-28
- [27] "LinkedIn Adopts 'Recommend' Over 'Like'" (http://www.clickz.com/clickz/news/1866328/linkedin-adopts-recommend), Clickz.com, 2010-11-02
- [28] "Syria: Linkedin Kicks Off Syrian Users!" (http://advocacy.globalvoicesonline.org/2009/04/18/syria-linkedin-kicks-off-syrian-users/). 2009-04-18. Retrieved 2010-04-30.
- [29] SNA-projects.com (http://sna-projects.com/)
- [30] Project-voldemort.com (http://project-voldemort.com/)

# **External links**

- Official website (http://www.linkedin.com/)
- Professional networking online: A qualitative study of LinkedIn use in Norway (2008) (https://bora.uib.no/ handle/1956/2935/) - Master thesis on how professionals in Norway use LinkedIn.

# **MySpace**

m	yspace		
Туре	Subsidiary		
Founded	Santa Monica, California (2003)		
Headquarters	Beverly Hills, California, U.S.		
Area served	Worldwide		
Key people	Tom Anderson (President) Austin "Chumlee" Russell (Co-Founder) Owen Van Natta (CEO) Mike Jones (COO) Jason Hirschhorn (CPO)		
Revenue	US\$385 million (2009 est.) <sup>[1]</sup>		
Owner	News Corporation		
Employees	1000 <sup>[2]</sup>		
Slogan	A Place for Friends		
Website	www.myspace.com <sup>[3]</sup>		
Alexa rank	▼ 40 (October 2010) <sup>[4]</sup>		
Type of site	Social network service		
Advertising	Google, AdSense		
Registration	Required		
Users	66 million (June 2010) <sup>[5]</sup>		
Available in	15 languages		
Launched	August 2003		
Current status	Active		

**Myspace**,<sup>[6]</sup> stylized **My**\_\_\_\_<sup>[7]</sup> and previously **MySpace**, is a social networking website. Its headquarters are in Beverly Hills, California<sup>[8]</sup> where it shares an office building with its immediate owner, News Corp. Digital Media, owned by News Corporation. Myspace became the most popular social networking site in the United States in June 2006.<sup>[9]</sup> According to comScore, Myspace was overtaken internationally by its main competitor, Facebook, in April 2008, based on monthly unique visitors.<sup>[10]</sup> [11] Myspace employs 1,000 employees, after laying off 30 percent of its workforce in June 2009;<sup>[12]</sup> the company does not disclose revenues or profits separately from News Corporation. Quantcast estimates MySpace's monthly U.S. unique visitors at 43.2 million.<sup>[13]</sup> The 100 millionth account was created on August 9, 2006,<sup>[14]</sup> in the Netherlands.<sup>[15]</sup>

### History

After the 2002 launch of Friendster, several eUniverse employees with Friendster accounts saw its potential and decided to mimic the more popular features of the social networking website, in August 2003. Within 10 days, the first version of Myspace was ready for launch.<sup>[16]</sup> A complete infrastructure of finance, human resources, technical expertise, bandwidth, and server capacity was available for the site, right out of the gate, so the Myspace team wasn't distracted with typical start-up issues. The project was overseen by Brad Greenspan (eUniverse's Founder, Chairman, CEO), who managed Chris DeWolfe (MySpace's starting president), and a team of programmers and resources provided by eUniverse.



Fox Interactive Media headquarters, 407 North Maple Drive, Beverly Hills, California, where Myspace is also housed.

The very first Myspace users were eUniverse employees. The company held contests to see who could sign-up the most users.<sup>[17]</sup> The company then used its resources to push Myspace to the masses. eUniverse used its 20 million users and e-mail subscribers to quickly breathe life into MySpace,<sup>[18]</sup> and move it to the head of the pack of social networking websites. A key architect was tech expert Toan Nguyen who helped stabilize the Myspace platform when Brad Greenspan asked him to join the team.<sup>[19]</sup>

The origin of the MySpace.com domain was a site owned by YourZ.com, Inc.<sup>[20]</sup> It was intended to be a leading online data storage and sharing site up until 2002. By 2004, Myspace and MySpace.com, which existed as a brand associated with YourZ.com,<sup>[21]</sup> <sup>[22]</sup> had made the transition from a virtual storage site to a social networking site. This is the natural connection to Chris DeWolfe and a friend, who reminded him he had earlier bought the URL domain, MySpace.com, intending it to be used as a web hosting site,<sup>[23]</sup> since both worked at one time in the virtual data storage business, which itself was a casualty of the "dot bomb" era.

Shortly after launching the site, team member Chris DeWolfe suggested that they start charging a fee for the basic Myspace service.<sup>[24]</sup> Brad Greenspan nixed the idea, believing that keeping Myspace free and open was necessary to make it a large and successful community.<sup>[25]</sup>

Some employees of Myspace including DeWolfe and Berman were later able to purchase equity in the property before MySpace, and its parent company eUniverse (now renamed Intermix Media) was bought in July 2005 for US\$580 million by Rupert Murdoch's News Corporation (the parent company of Fox Broadcasting and other media enterprises).<sup>[16]</sup> <sup>[26]</sup> Of this amount, approximately US\$327 million has been attributed to the value of Myspace according to the financial adviser fairness opinion.<sup>[27]</sup>

In January 2006, Fox announced plans to launch a UK version of Myspace in a bid to "tap into the UK music scene"<sup>[28]</sup> which they have since done. They also released a version in China<sup>[29]</sup> and have since launched similar versions in other countries.

By late 2007 into 2008, Myspace was considered the leading social networking site, and consistently beat out main competitor Facebook in traffic. When Facebook launched new features in an effort to attract a variety of users, Myspace found itself in a continuing decline of membership. As of July 2010, the site was ranked 25th in Internet traffic,<sup>[30]</sup> opposed to the 2nd position held by Facebook.<sup>[31]</sup>

The corporate history of Myspace as well as the status of Tom Anderson as a Myspace founder has been a matter of some public dispute.

#### New design

Throughout 2007 and 2008, Myspace redesigned many of the features of its site in both layout and in function. One of the first functions to be redesigned was the user home page, with features such as status updates, applications, and subscriptions being added in order to compete with Facebook. In 2008, the Myspace homepage was redesigned. Myspace Music was redecorated in 2008 and 2009, making it more like a online music store similar to iTunes and Rhapsody, along with the ability to create playlists. The use of Playlist.com on Myspace was abolished after the new Myspace music was launched. Some of the classic features of Myspace music, such as the artist directory, were also abolished.

On March 10, 2010, Myspace had some new features added like recommendation engine for new users which suggests games, music and videos based on their previous search habits. The security on Myspace was also accounted to, with the criticism of Facebook, to make it a safer site. The security of Myspace enables users to choose if the content could be viewed for Friends Only, 18 and older, or Everyone. The website will also release several mobile micro applications for Myspace gamers besides sending them games alerts. The site may release 20 to 30 micro apps and go mobile next year.<sup>[32]</sup>

In Summer 2010, the color scene of Myspace changed. The classic blue has been replaced by a more white interface, to resemble the look and feel of Facebook, and to attract users of Facebook to join or rejoin Myspace. The simplication of the navigation bar also made it easier to find features quickly. In August 2010, the home page was modified to give new room for the Myspace Stream and to make it resemble Facebook further. Profile 3.0 was launched as well, which was an upgrade from profile 2.0. That enabled users to have more creativity with a simpler interface. Templates, like profile 2.0, are added too but it also enabled simpler template creation methods and module control. Building templates has become simpler; without the use of custom HTML or CSS, users can upload photos from their computer or find background images on the internet by typing a URL, to give it more of a personal, more sentimental and individualist image than the prepackaged layout sites that were used before. HTML and CSS can be still used on the profile, but an HTML or CSS module must be added to promote a neater layout but still use the sponsored layout sites.

In September 2010, Myspace continued to work on improving the website. A photos section was added and the Fotoflexer app was added to photos. Myspace also enabled users to integrate their Myspace activity to their Twitter and Facebook accounts, to attract and show others that they are still on Myspace and to bring users back to Myspace. Myspace Movies was also added to promote movies and movie related media.

#### New image

On October 27, 2010, Myspace introduced a beta version of a new site design on a limited scale, with plans to switch all interested users to the new site in late November. Chief executive Mike Jones said the site as no longer competing with Facebook as a general social networking site. Instead, Myspace would be music-oriented and would target younger people. Jones believed most younger users would continue to use the site after the redesign, though older users might not. The goal of the redesign is to increase the number Myspace of users and how long they spend there. On October 26, BTIG analyst Richard Greenfield said, "Most investors have written off MySpace now," and he was unsure whether the changes would help the company recover.<sup>[33]</sup>

#### New logo design

A report in October 2010 at Techcrunch.com detailed Myspace's debut of a new logo. The "My" portion appears in a different font, while the part previously occupied by the word "Space" was replaced by a simple underline mark, representing a blank "space". The logo has not been implanted on Myspace's website yet.<sup>[34]</sup>

# **Revenue model**

Myspace operates solely on revenues generated by advertising as its user model possesses no paid-for features for the end user.<sup>[35]</sup> Through its Web site and affiliated ad networks, Myspace is second only to Yahoo! in its capacity to collect data about its users and thus in its ability to use behavioral targeting to select the ads each visitor sees.<sup>[36]</sup>

On August 8, 2006, search engine Google signed a \$900 million deal to provide a Google search facility and advertising on Myspace.<sup>[37]</sup> <sup>[38]</sup> <sup>[39]</sup> Myspace has proven to be a windfall for many smaller companies that provide widgets or accessories to the social networking giant. Companies such as Slide.com, RockYou!, and YouTube were all launched on Myspace as widgets providing additional functionality to the site. Other sites created layouts to personalize the site and made hundreds of thousands of dollars for its owners most of whom were in their late teens and early twenties.<sup>[40]</sup> <sup>[41]</sup>

In November 2008, Myspace announced that user-uploaded content that infringed on copyrights held by MTV and its subsidiary networks would be redistributed with advertisements that would generate revenue for the companies.<sup>[42]</sup>

Despite losing popularity to Facebook and Twitter in recent months, Rupert Murdoch has no plans to sell off Myspace, nor to buy out Twitter. Murdoch gave the site his personal support, while feeling that Twitter has yet to find a way to make money on its own.<sup>[43]</sup> However, in 2009, Myspace also added a new status update feature. If a Myspace user has a Twitter account, the tweet will also update the Myspace status. (Facebook also has a similar feature.) It does, however, require that the two accounts be synched up together.

# **Contents of a Myspace profile**

#### Moods

Moods are small emoticons that are used to depict a mood the user is in. The feature was added in July 2007. The mood feature as of 2010 is not included by default with the status updates, but could be shared on the homepage as a separate updated.

#### Blurbs, blogs, multimedia

Profiles contain two standard "blurbs": "About Me" and "Who I'd Like to Meet" sections. Profiles also contain an "Interests" section and a "Details" section. In the "Details" section, "Status" and "Zodiac Sign" fields will always display. However, fields in these sections will not be displayed if members do not fill them in. Profiles also contain a blog with standard fields for content, emotion, and media. Myspace also supports uploading images. One of the images can be chosen to be the "default image", the image that will be seen on the profile's main page, search page, and as the image that will appear to the side of the user's name on comments, messages, etc. A photo editor powered by Fotoflexer is available which can not only crop images and adjust contrast but also convert the image to a cartoon or a line drawing made with neon lights, or put the user's face in a photo of a \$100 bill. Flash, such as on MySpace's video service, can be embedded. Blogging features are also available. These features could be hidden on a profile by using the module customizer or using HTML/CSS codes. Photos could be displayed on the Myspace profile instead of a link that it was used in previous years. Photos can be made into a slide show.

#### Comments

Below the User's Friends Space (by default) is the "comments" section, wherein the user's friends may leave comments for all viewers to read. Myspace users have the option to delete any comment or require all comments to be approved before posting. If a user's account is deleted, every comment left on other profiles by that user will be deleted, and replaced with the comment saying "This Profile No Longer Exists". The option of using HTML in comments could be enabled or disabled.

#### **Profile customization (HTML/CSS)**

Myspace allows users to customize their user profile pages by entering HTML (but not JavaScript) into such areas as "About Me", "I'd Like to Meet", and "Interests". Videos and flash-based content can be included this way. Users also have the option to add music to their profile pages via Myspace Music, a service that allows bands to post songs for use on Myspace.

A user can also change the general appearance of his or her page by entering CSS (in a <style> ... </style> element) into one of these fields to override the page's default style sheet using Myspace editors. This is often used to tweak fonts and colors. The fact that the user-added CSS is located in the middle of the page (rather than being located in the <head> element) means that the page will begin to load with the default Myspace layout before abruptly changing to the custom layout. A special type of modification is a div overlay, where the default layout is dramatically changed by hiding default text with <div> tags and large images.

There are several independent web sites offering Myspace layout design utilities which let a user select options and preview what their page will look like with them.

In 2008, Myspace launched a new Profile 2.0 as the next generation of the Myspace profile. Profile 2.0 features a cleaner interface and the ability to hide or show modules of the profile, along with customize the position of the module on the profile. Profile 2.0 layouts were released on the internet quickly as the use of the classic Myspace layouts do not work with profile 2.0. Profile 2.0 also was criticized for not looking right when trying to add custom CSS. To add custom CSS, the original theme has to be scrapped and many Myspace tweaks were not functional in the Profile 2.0 layout. In 2010, Myspace abandoned the Profile 1.0 layout and made Profile 2.0 the standard features of the profile. That promoted a cleaner interface and many themes are prepackaged with the customizer, along with the make a custom theme using various parameters of profile editing. Applications are used for decoration. While Profile 2.0 is the standard layout, a new profile was launch as an optional upgrade. The new profile was launched to keep up with the trends of the modern profile interface and gives it a more mature and simpler design. Profile 3.0 enables users more flexible custimization and simpler theme building, but is not much different than the Profile 2.0 interface.

#### Music

Myspace profiles for musicians in the website's Myspace Music section differ from normal profiles in allowing artists to upload their entire discographies consisting of MP3 songs. The uploader must have rights to use the songs (e.g. their own work, permission granted, etc.). Unsigned musicians can use Myspace to post and sell music using SNOCAP, which has proven popular among Myspace users.

Shortly after Myspace was sold to Rupert Murdoch, the owner of Fox News and 20th Century Fox, in 2005, they launched their own record label, MySpace Records, in an effort to discover unknown talent currently on Myspace Music.<sup>[23]</sup> Regardless of the artist already being famous or still looking for a break into the industry, artists can upload their songs onto Myspace and have access to millions of people on a daily basis. Some well known singers such as Lily Allen and Sean Kingston gained fame through Myspace. The availability of music on this website continues to develop, largely driven by young talent. Over eight million artists have been discovered by Myspace and many more continue to be discovered daily.<sup>[44]</sup> In late 2007, the site launched The Myspace Transmissions, a series of live-in-studio recordings by well-known artists.

Myspace, in 2008, redesigned its music page adding new features for all musicians. These new features include the users' ability to create playlists, resembling the functions of Last.fm and other social music websites, along with the popular ProjectPlaylist that is popular on profiles. The new music features also archive songs from many popular artists, resembling the services of iTunes and Napster. In March 2010, listening to the full song in the search results has been disable and had been replaced by 30 second samples. Myspace music also suggests songs based on the songs you are currently listening to or the songs you had added to the playlist, making it as a music discovery tool. Myspace Music also added an improved playlist feature and artist profile, along with better music suggestion features, making it one of the highest rated and advanced music discovery sites on the Web. The site features charts similar to Billboard charts and it keeps track of the most popular music liked by users of all genres. It also enables user to view popular music in other countries of the world, mostly in Europe and major Asian countries such as China and Russia. That helped promote international music throughout the globe, globalizing the music scene easier than before. The site also enables users to discover new songs and albums, to get the cutting edge with new music.

## **Myspace features**

#### **Bulletins**

Bulletins are posts that are posted on to a "bulletin board" for everyone on a Myspace user's friends list to see. Bulletins can be useful for contacting an entire friends list without resorting to messaging users individually. They have also become the primary attack point for phishing. Bulletins are deleted after ten days.

#### Groups

Myspace has a Groups feature which allows a group of users to share a common page and message board. Groups can be created by anybody, and the moderator of the group can choose for anyone to join, or to approve or deny requests to join.

#### **MySpaceIM**

In early 2006, Myspace introduced MySpaceIM, an instant messenger that uses one's Myspace account as a screen name. A Myspace user logs in to the client using the same e-mail associated with his or her Myspace account. Unlike other parts of MySpace, MySpaceIM is stand-alone software for Microsoft Windows. Users who use MySpaceIM get instant notification of new Myspace messages, friend requests, and comments. MySpaceIM was added as an default feature of Myspace by the end of 2009.

#### MySpaceTV (video)

In early 2007, Myspace introduced MySpaceTV, a service similar to the YouTube video sharing website. Myspace has been showing videos as early as 2006, but it has changed it name to MySpaceTV for a while. In 2009, MySpaceTV has reverted back to Myspace Video once again. MySpsce video continues to be not as popular as other video sharing sites such as YouTube, but many sites had partnered with Myspace such as Hulu to promote their media to the Myspace community.

#### Applications

In 2008, Myspace introduced an API with which users could create applications for other users to post on their profiles. The applications are similar to the Facebook applications. In May 2008, Myspace had added some security options regarding interaction with photos and other media. Many applications that are popular on Myspace had spin off versions on Facebook. The Myspace app Mafia Wars has became a Facebook sensation as well. On the other hand, Facebook applications such as Bumper Stickers and Farmville has been used in Myspace and was popular as well. Many application partnerships such as Zygna and Slide has been responsible from creating third party apps for

use on both Myspace and Facebook, along with for use in the iTunes app store.

### **MySpace Mobile**

There are a variety of environments in which users can access Myspace content on their mobile phone. American mobile phone provider Helio released a series of mobile phones in early 2006 that can utilize a service known as Myspace Mobile to access and edit one's profile and communicate with, and view the profiles of, other members<sup>[45]</sup> Additionally, UIEvolution and Myspace developed a mobile version of Myspace for a wider range of carriers, including AT&T,<sup>[46]</sup> Vodafone<sup>[47]</sup> and Rogers Wireless.<sup>[48]</sup>

### **Myspace News**

In the month of April 2007, Myspace launched a news service called Myspace News <sup>[49]</sup> which displays news from RSS feeds that users submit. It also allows users to rank each news story by voting for it. The more votes a story gets, the higher the story moves up the page.

### **Myspace Classifieds**

Full service classifieds listing offered beginning in August 2006. It has grown by 33 percent in one year since inception. Myspace Classifieds was launched right at the same time the site appeared on the internet.<sup>[50]</sup>

### **Myspace Karaoke**

Launched April 29, 2008, ksolo.myspace.com is a combination of Myspace and kSolo, which allows users to upload audio recordings of themselves singing onto their profile page. Users' friends are able to rate the performances. A video feature is not yet available, but Tom Anderson, Myspace co-founder and president, states that it is in the works.<sup>[51]</sup>

### **Myspace Polls**

Myspace Polls is a feature on Myspace that was brought back in 2008 to enable users to post polls on their profile and share them with other users.

### **MySpace forums**

MySpace uses an implementation of Telligent Community for its forum system.<sup>[52]</sup>

# **Politics**

- During the 2008 presidential election in the United States, candidates set up Myspace profiles, presumably in an effort to attract younger voters. Most profiles feature photos, blogs, videos, and ways for viewers to get involved with campaigning. Myspace features these politicians' profiles on its front page in the "Cool New People" section, on what appears to be a random rotation.
- Many political organizations have created Myspace accounts to keep in touch with and expand their membership base. These range from larger organizations like the John Birch Society and the ACLU to smaller locally focused environmentalist groups and Food Not Bombs activists.

## Criticism

#### Accessibility and reliability

Because most Myspace pages are designed by individuals with little HTML experience, a very large proportion of pages do not satisfy the criteria for valid HTML or CSS laid down by the W3C. Poorly formatted code can cause accessibility problems for those using software such as screen readers.<sup>[53]</sup> The Myspace home page, as of May 20, 2009, fails HTML validation with around 101 errors (the number changes on sequential validations of the home page due to dynamic content), using the W3C's validator.<sup>[54]</sup>

Furthermore, Myspace is set up so that anyone can customize the layout and colors of their profile page with virtually no restrictions, provided that the advertisements are not covered up by CSS or using other means. As Myspace users are usually not skilled web developers, this can cause further problems. Poorly constructed Myspace profiles could potentially freeze up web browsers due to malformed CSS coding, or as a result of users placing many high bandwidth objects such as videos, graphics, and Flash in their profiles (sometimes multiple videos and sound files are automatically played at the same time when a profile loads). While Myspace blocks potentially harmful code (such as JavaScript) from profiles, users have occasionally found ways to insert such code. *PC World* cited this as its main reason for naming Myspace as #1 in its list of twenty-five worst web sites ever.<sup>[55]</sup>

In addition, new features have been gradually added (see featuritis).

#### Security

In October 2005, a flaw in MySpace's site design was exploited by "Samy" to create the first self-propagating cross-site scripting (XSS) worm. MSNBC has reported that "social-networking sites like Myspace are turning out to be hotbeds for spyware," and "infection rates are on the rise, in part thanks to the surging popularity of social-networking sites like MySpace.com."<sup>[56]</sup> In addition to this, the customization of user pages currently allows the injection of certain HTML which can be crafted to form a phishing user profile, thus keeping the myspace.com domain as the address.<sup>[57]</sup> More recently, there has been spam on bulletins that has been the result of phishing.<sup>[58]</sup> Users find their Myspace homepage with bulletins they didn't post, realizing later they had been phished. The bulletin consists of an advertisement that provides a link to a fake login screen, tricking people into typing in their Myspace e-mail and password.

Other security fears regarding profile content itself are also present. For example, the embedding of videos inherently allows all of the format's abilities and functions to be used on a page. A prime example of this surfaced in December 2006, when embedded QuickTime videos were shown to contain hyperlinks to JavaScript files, which would be run simply by a user visiting a 'phished' profile page, or even in some cases by simply viewing a user's 'about me' elsewhere on the site. Users who entered their login information into a fake login bar that appeared would also become 'phished', and their account would be used to spam other members, thus spreading this security problem.<sup>[59]</sup>

Myspace's anti-phishing and anti-spam measures have also come under fire. In 2007 Myspace made changes such that external links on profiles would be redirected through the http://msplinks.com domain. For example, http://en.wikipedia.org would be changed to http://www.msplinks.com/MDFodHRwOi8vZW4ud2lraXBlZGlhLm9yZw==. (The new links are determined by Base64 encoding, as there are ways of decoding the link back into its original URL.<sup>[60]</sup>) Myspace staffers would be able to disable potentially dangerous links. (The changed links only work if the HTTP referrer is a Myspace page; otherwise, the link will appear to be disabled.) This move has been criticized that it makes profile editing inconvenient and that it does nothing to deter spammers. In February 2008 Myspace changed the system such that users who click such links (except for whitelisted domains like Wikipedia and YouTube) will receive a warning that they will be leaving the myspace.com domain. As of March 2008, this "feature" has been extended to blogs as well, although previous blog entries are unaffected unless the user updates them.

In January 2008 the state attorneys general of 49 states of the USA wrote guidelines for online safety for Myspace and other services. They included restrictions for behavior on social networking services.<sup>[61]</sup>

On January 26, 2008, over 567,000 private Myspace user pictures were downloaded from the site by using a bug published on YouTube and put on the Piratebay torrent site for download.<sup>[62]</sup>

#### Myspace party problems

Myspace is often used as a venue for publicizing parties, sometimes with the host's knowledge and sometimes without. There have been some well-publicized incidents where Myspace parties have caused thousands of dollars damage to property, and even (in at least one case) loss of life.

- A party hosted by Corey Worthington, a sixteen-year-old boy from Narre Warren in Melbourne, Australia, and advertised on MySpace, attracted 500 people. Police cars were attacked, and the dog squad and a helicopter were called in. The incident received international coverage. (Worthington subsequently found work as a party promoter, and appeared on the Ten Network's Australian version of *Big Brother*.)<sup>[63]</sup> The *Sydney Morning Herald*'s online technology writer, Asher Moses, has noted that MySpace/Facebook parties are particularly prone to gatecrashing because news of events can spread to uninvited guests via "newsfeeds." He suspects some party hosts are oblivious to the actual number of people who get the message."<sup>[64] [64] [65]</sup>
- In April 2007, a seventeen-year-old British girl hosted a party after distributing information about it on Myspace that was reportedly subtitled "Let's trash the average family-sized house disco party." Her parents were left with an approximately £24,000 (\$48,000) bill from police.<sup>[64]</sup>
- Allen Joplin, a seventeen-year-old American high school student from Seattle, was shot dead at a party which had been publicized through Myspace.<sup>[64]</sup> <sup>[67]</sup>

#### **Child safety**

The minimum age to register an account on Myspace is 13, but it was 14 at one time and some still think of it as being 14.<sup>[68]</sup> <sup>[69]</sup> <sup>[70]</sup> Profiles with ages set from 13 to 15 years are automatically private. Users whose ages are set at 16 or over have the option to set their profile to public viewing. Accessing the full profile of, or messaging someone when their account is set to "private" (or if under sixteen) is restricted to a Myspace user's direct friends.

Myspace will delete fake profiles if the victim verifies their identity and points out the profile via e-mail.<sup>[71]</sup> In July 2007, the company found and deleted 29,000 profiles belonging to registered sex offenders.<sup>[72]</sup>

Recently, Myspace has been the focus of a number of news reports stating that teenagers have found ways around the restrictions set by Myspace. Stricter methods for enforcing age admission will be enforced in the future, such as blocking a person from accessing Myspace using a computer's IP address.<sup>[73]</sup> In response, Myspace has given assurances to parents that the website is safe for people of all ages. Beginning in late June 2006, Myspace users whose ages are set over 18 could no longer be able to add users whose ages are set from 13 to 15 years as friends unless they already know the user's full name or email address.<sup>[74]</sup> Some third party Internet safety companies such as Social Shield<sup>[75]</sup> have launched online communities for parents concerned about their child's safety on Myspace.

In June 2006, sixteen-year-old American Katherine Lester flew to the Middle East, to Tel Aviv, Israel, after having tricked her parents into getting her a passport in order to be with a twenty-year-old man she met through Myspace.<sup>[76]</sup> U.S. officials in Jordan persuaded the teen to turn around and go home.

In October 2006, thirteen-year-old Megan Meier committed suicide after being the victim of cyber-bullying instigated by the mother of a friend who had posed as a sixteen-year-old named "Josh Evans".<sup>[77]</sup>

In December 2006, Myspace announced new measures to protect children from known sex offenders. Although precise details were not given they said that "tools" would be implemented to prevent known sex offenders from the USA creating a Myspace profile.<sup>[78]</sup>

In February 2007, a U.S. District Judge in Texas dismissed a case when a family sued MySpace for negligence, fraud, and misrepresentation; a girl in the family had been sexually assaulted by a man she met through MySpace, after she had misrepresented her age as 18 when she was 13. Regarding his dismissal of the case, U.S. District Judge Sam Sparks wrote: "If anyone had a duty to protect young girls, it was her parents, not MySpace."<sup>[79]</sup>

In October 2007, a study published in the *Journal of Adolescence* conducted by Sameer Hinduja (Florida Atlantic University) and Justin W. Patchin (University of Wisconsin-Eau Claire) concluded that most adolescents use Myspace responsibly: "When considered in its proper context, these results indicate that the problem of personal information disclosure on Myspace may not be as widespread as many assume, and that the overwhelming majority of adolescents are responsibly using the website," they say.<sup>[80]</sup>

#### Social and cultural

Dave Itzkoff, in the June 2006 *Playboy* magazine, related his experiences of experimentation with membership in Myspace. Among his other criticisms, one pertains to the distance afforded by the Internet that emboldens members, such as females who feature photos of themselves in scant clothing on their profile pages or behave in ways they would not in person, and he indicated that this duplicity undercuts the central design of MySpace, namely, to bring people together. Itzkoff also referenced the addictive, time-consuming nature of the site, mentioning that the *Playboy* Playmate and Myspace member Julie McCullough, who was the first to respond to his add-friend request, pointedly referred to the site as "cybercrack". Itzkoff argued that Myspace gives many people access to a member's life, without giving the time needed to maintain such relationships and that such relationships do not possess the depth of in-person relationships.

Furthermore, in terms of MySpace's potential for underhanded commercial exploitation, Itzkoff is particularly critical of the disturbing and fraudulent behavior of people who can contact a member, unsolicited, as when he was contacted by someone expressing a desire to socialize and date, but whose blog (to which Itzkoff was directed via subsequent emails) was found to be a solicitation for a series of commercial porn sites. Itzkoff is similarly critical of the more subtle commercial solicitations on the site, such as the banner ads and links to profiles and video clips that turn out to be, for example, commercials for new 20th Century Fox films. He also observed that MySpace's much-celebrated music section is heavily weighted in favor of record labels rather than breakthrough musicians.

In relating criticism from another person, whom Itzkoff called "Judas," he illustrated that, while the goal of attempting to bring together people who might not otherwise associate with one another in real life may seem honorable, Myspace inherently violates a social contract only present when people interact face-to-face, rendering, in his opinion, the website nothing more than a passing fad:

There will come a moment when, like deer quivering and flicking up their ears toward a noiseless noise in the woods, the first adopters will suddenly realize they're spending their time blogging, adding, and gawking at the same alarming photos as an army of fourteen year olds, and quick as deer, they'll dash to the next trend. And before you know it, we'll all follow.

#### **Controversy over corporate history**

After the sale of Myspace to News Corp, Brad Greenspan (the former CEO, founder, and shareholder of Intermix Media the parent company that owned and launched MySpace.com) contested the sell of the company to News Corp. Greenspan claimed that new Intermix Media CEO Richard Rosenblatt and other board members cheated shareholders by selling the company for less than it was actually worth.<sup>[82]</sup> <sup>[83]</sup> Valleywag, a gossip blog that reported on the allegations, also claimed that founder and public face of MySpace, Tom Anderson, was a public relations invention.<sup>[84]</sup> It was later confirmed by Newsweek that Anderson's age on the site had been lowered to "appeal" to younger users.<sup>[85]</sup>

In October 2006, Greenspan published "The Myspace Report" on a personal website, calling for government investigation into News Corp's acquisition of Myspace.<sup>[86]</sup> Greenspan's main allegation is that News Corp. should

62

have valued Myspace at US\$20 billion rather than US\$327 million, and had defrauded Intermix shareholders through an unfair deal process.<sup>[87]</sup> However the report was not widely accepted by the financial press and a lawsuit led by Greenspan challenging the acquisition was dismissed by a judge.<sup>[88]</sup>

# Censorship

Activist group MoveOn.org has criticized MySpace, claiming that the website practices censorship by not showing anti-media ads, removing fake profiles for high-profile media executives like Rupert Murdoch, and attempting to force users away from using certain third-party Flash applications on their profiles, a move necessary to improve site security.<sup>[90]</sup>

# Stalking

According to Alison Kiss, program director for Security on Campus, social networking websites such as Myspace and Facebook have made it easier for stalkers who target women on college campuses.<sup>[91]</sup>

# **MySpace China**

The simplified Chinese version of MySpace, launched in April 2007, has many censorship-related differences from other international versions of the service. Discussion forums on topics such as religion and politics are absent, and a filtering system that prevents the posting of content about Taiwan independence, the Dalai Lama, Falun Gong, and other "inappropriate topics" has been added.<sup>[92]</sup> Users are also given the ability to report the "misconduct" of other users for offenses including "endangering national security, leaking state secrets, subverting the government, undermining national unity, and spreading rumors or disturbing the social order."<sup>[93]</sup>

## **Religious discrimination**

On January 30, 2008, Bryan J. Pesta, a Cleveland State University assistant professor, and moderator of the Atheist and Agnostic Group, accused Myspace of pandering to religious intolerance by deleting atheist users, groups and content. Specifically, Pesta alleges that Myspace deleted AAG's account, and his own personal profile, based on complaints from people offended by atheism, and this was the second time Myspace deleted the group since November 2007, even though, according to Pesta, it had never violated the site's Terms of Service.

# **International sites**

Since early 2006, Myspace has offered the option to access the service in different regional versions. The alternative regional versions present automated content according to locality (e.g. UK users see other UK users as "Cool New People," and UK oriented events and adverts, etc.), offer local languages other than English, or accommodate the regional differences in spelling and conventions in the English-speaking world (e.g. United States: "favorites," mm/dd/yyyy; the rest of the world: "favourites," dd/mm/yyyy).

Sites currently offered are:

	[2]		[04]
•	Myspace Global <sup>[3]</sup>	•	Myspace Japan <sup>[94]</sup> (currently in beta)
•	Myspace Australia <sup>[95]</sup>	•	Myspace Korea <sup>[96]</sup> (currently in beta)
•	Myspace Brazil <sup>[97]</sup> (currently in beta)	•	Myspace Mexico <sup>[98]</sup>
•	Myspace Canada <sup>[99]</sup> (English) (currently in beta)	•	Myspace Netherlands <sup>[100]</sup>
•	Myspace Canada <sup>[101]</sup> (French) (currently in beta)	•	Myspace New Zealand <sup>[102]</sup>
•	Myspace China <sup>[103]</sup> (currently in beta)	•	Myspace Poland <sup>[104]</sup> (currently in beta)
•	Myspace Denmark <sup>[105]</sup>	•	Myspace Portugal <sup>[106]</sup>
•	Myspace France <sup>[107]</sup>	•	Myspace Russia <sup>[108]</sup> (currently in beta)
•	Myspace Finland <sup>[109]</sup>	•	Myspace Spain <sup>[110]</sup>
•	Myspace Germany <sup>[111]</sup> (currently in beta)	•	Myspace Sweden <sup>[112]</sup>
•	Myspace Ireland <sup>[113]</sup>	•	Myspace Turkey <sup>[114]</sup> (currently in beta)
•	Myspace Latin America <sup>[115]</sup> (Spanish) (currently in beta)	•	Myspace UK <sup>[116]</sup>
•	Myspace India <sup>[117]</sup> (currently in beta)	•	Myspace USA <sup>[118]</sup> (English) (this is, in fact, identical to the "global" site)
•	Myspace Italy <sup>[119]</sup> (currently in beta)	•	Myspace USA <sup>[120]</sup> (Spanish)

# **MySpace Developer Platform (MDP)**

On February 5, 2008, Myspace set up a developer platform which allows developers to share their ideas and write their own Myspace applications. The opening was inaugurated with a workshop at the MySpace, San Francisco offices two weeks before the official launch. The MDP <sup>[121]</sup> is based on the Open Social API which was presented by Google in November 2007 to support social networks to develop social and interacting widgets and can be seen as an answer to Facebook's developer platform. The first public beta of the Myspace Apps was released on March 5, 2008, with around 1,000 applications available.<sup>[122] [123]</sup>

# Myspace server infrastructure

At QCon London 2008,<sup>[124]</sup> Myspace Chief Systems Architect Dan Farino indicated that Myspace was sending 100 gigabits of data per second out to the Internet, of which 10 gigabits was HTML content and the remainder was media such as videos and pictures. The server infrastructure consists of over 4,500 web servers (running Windows Server 2003, IIS 6.0, ASP.NET and .Net Framework 3.5), over 1,200 cache servers (running 64-bit Windows Server 2003), and over 500 database servers (running 64-bit Windows Server 2003 and SQL Server 2005) as well as a custom distributed file system which runs on Gentoo Linux.

As of 2009, Myspace has started migrating from HDD to SSD technology in some of their servers, resulting in space and power usage savings.<sup>[125]</sup>

# Musicians' rights and Myspace terms of use agreement

Until June 2006, there was a concern amongst musicians, artists, and bands on Myspace such as songwriter Billy Bragg owing to the fine print within the user agreement that read, "You hereby grant to MySpace.com a non-exclusive, fully paid and royalty-free, worldwide license (with the right to sublicense through unlimited levels of sublicensees) to use, copy, modify, adapt, translate, publicly perform, publicly display, store, reproduce, transmit, and distribute such Content on and through the Services." The fine print brought particular concern as the agreement was being made with Murdoch's News Corporation. Billy Bragg brought the issue to the attention of the media
during the first week of June 2006.<sup>[126]</sup> Jeff Berman, a Myspace spokesman swiftly responded by saying, "Because the legalese has caused some confusion, we are at work revising it to make it very clear that Myspace is not seeking a license to do anything with an artist's work other than allow it to be shared in the manner the artist intends."

By June 27, 2006, Myspace had amended the user agreement with, "MySpace.com does not claim any ownership rights in the text, files, images, photos, video, sounds, musical works, works of authorship, or any other materials (collectively, 'Content') that you post to the Myspace Services. After posting your Content to the Myspace Services, you continue to retain all ownership rights in such Content, and you continue to have the right to use your Content in any way you choose."

## Blocking

Multiple schools, public libraries, and employers in the United States, United Kingdom, France, Finland, Sweden, Germany, Russia, Australia and Malaysia have restricted access to MySpace, seeing it as "a haven for gossip and malicious comments."<sup>[127]</sup>

A Catholic school in New Jersey has even prohibited students from using Myspace at home, an action made to protect students from online predators as claimed by the school, although experts questioned the legality of such a ban and if it is constitutional. In autumn of 2005 Pope John XXIII Regional High School in Sparta Township, New Jersey made headlines by forbidding its students to have pages on Myspace or similar websites (such as Gaia) under threat of suspension or expulsion.<sup>[128]</sup> [129] [130]

In Turkey, Myspace had been blocked on September 19, 2009, due to copyright issues of MÜ-YAP. Turkish rock musician Aylin Aslım, who has a Myspace account said the block was a serious violation of rights for independent musicians of Turkey. As of October 6, the block has been lifted.<sup>[131]</sup>

## Legal issues

In May 2006, Long Island, New York teenagers Shaun Harrison and Saverio Mondelli were charged with illegal computer access and attempted extortion of MySpace, after both had allegedly hacked into the site to steal the personal information of Myspace users before threatening to share the secrets of how they broke into the website unless Myspace paid them \$150,000. Both teens were arrested by undercover Los Angeles police detectives posing as Myspace employees.<sup>[132]</sup>

In April 2007, police in County Durham, United Kingdom, arrested a 17-year-old girl on charges of criminal damage following a party advertised on MySpace, held at her parents' house without their consent. Over 200 teenagers came to the party from across the country, causing £20,000 of damage, such as cigarette butts, urine on clothing, and writing on the walls. The girl's parents, who were away at the time, had to move out of the house.<sup>[133]</sup> [134]

## **Acquisition of Imeem**

On November 18, 2009, Imeem was acquired by Myspace Music for an undisclosed amount. After the acquisition was completed in December 8, 2009, it was confirmed that Myspace Music bought Imeem for less than US\$1 million in cash.<sup>[135]</sup> [136] Myspace has also stated that they will be transitioning Imeem's users, and migrating all their play lists over to Myspace Music. On January 15, 2010, Myspace began restoring Imeem playlists.<sup>[137]</sup>

## YouTube

YouTube debuted in April 2005, and it quickly gained popularity on Myspace due to Myspace users' ability to embed YouTube videos in their Myspace profiles. Realizing the competitive threat to the new Myspace Videos service, Myspace banned embedded YouTube videos from its user profiles. Myspace users widely protested the ban, prompting Myspace to lift the ban shortly thereafter.<sup>[138]</sup>

Since then YouTube has become one of the fastest-growing websites on the World Wide Web,<sup>[139]</sup> outgrowing MySpace's reach according to Alexa Internet.<sup>[140]</sup> In July 2006 several news organizations reported that YouTube had overtaken Myspace.<sup>[141]</sup> In a September 2006 investor meeting, News Corp. COO Peter Chernin claimed that virtually all modern Web applications (naming YouTube, Flickr, Blogger, Google, and Photobucket) were really just "driven off the back of MySpace" and that "we ought to be able to match them if not exceed them."<sup>[142]</sup>

## See also

- AsianAve
- Bebo
- Buzznet
- gOS 2.9 "Space" Linux distribution geared toward Myspace users, see gOS (operating system)
- List of Internet phenomena
- · List of social networking websites
- LiveJournal
- Myartspace
- MyDeathSpace.com
- Social software
- SoundCloud

## References

- "Social Network Spending Shifts" (http://www.emarketer.com/Article.aspx?R=1007432). eMarketer. 2009-12-22. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [2] Goldman, David (2009-06-16). "MySpace to cut 30%, or 430 jobs" (http://money.cnn.com/2009/06/16/technology/myspace\_layoffs/ index.htm). CNN. Retrieved 2010-03-30.
- [3] http://www.myspace.com/
- [4] "Alexa.com" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/myspace.com). Alexa.com. . Retrieved 2010-10-26.
- [5] Site profile for MySpace (https://www.google.com/adplanner/planning/site\_profile#siteDetails?identifier=myspace.com&geo=001& trait\_type=1&lp=true)
- [6] Myspace concedes to Facebook, changes focus (http://arstechnica.com/web/news/2010/10/ myspace-concedes-to-facebook-changes-focus.ars)
- [7] Praise for MySpace's new look but that logo? CNN.com (http://edition.cnn.com/2010/TECH/web/10/27/myspace.revamp/)
- [8] My Space is not their space anymore (http://www.laobserved.com/biz/2006/08/my\_space\_is\_not\_thei.php) Article on the move to Beverly Hills. Retrieved March 16, 2007.
- [9] Pete Cashmore (2006-07-11). "MySpace, America's Number One" (http://mashable.com/2006/07/11/myspace-americas-number-one/). Mashable.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [10] Techtree News Staff (2008-08-13). "Facebook: Largest, Fastest Growing Social Network" (http://www.techtree.com/India/News/ Facebook\_Largest\_Fastest\_Growing\_Social\_Network/551-92134-643.html). Techtree.com. ITNation. . Retrieved 2008-08-14.
- [11] "Site Comparison of facebook.com (rank #3), myspace.com (#9), twitter.com (#27) | Compete" (http://siteanalytics.compete.com/ facebook.com+myspace.com+TWITTER.com/?metric=uv). Siteanalytics.compete.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [12] "MySpace to Cut 30% of Workforce" (http://www.time.com/time/business/article/0,8599,1905010,00.html). TIME Magazine. 2009-06-16. Retrieved 2009-06-16.
- [13] myspace.com Quantcast Audience Profile (http://www.quantcast.com/myspace.com). Quantcast.com (2010-10-27). Retrieved on 2010-11-07.
- [14] "100,000,000th Account" (http://profile.myspace.com/index.cfm?fuseaction=user.viewprofile&friendID=100000000). MySpace. 2007-02-25. Retrieved 2007-02-21.
- [15] Murdoch, Rupert (2006-08-09). "Rupert Murdoch Comments on Fox Interactive's Growth" (http://internet.seekingalpha.com/article/ 15237). SeekingAlpha. Retrieved 2006-09-12.
- [16] Lapinski, Trent (2006-09-11). "MySpace: The Business of Spam 2.0 (Exhaustive Edition)" (http://valleywag.com/tech/myspace/ myspace-the-business-of-spam-20-exhaustive-edition-199924.php). ValleyWag. . Retrieved 2008-03-13.
- [17] "?" (http://freemyspace.com/08-28-03.JPG). freemyspace.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [18] "Welcome to" (http://freemyspace.com/N.jpg). Freemyspace.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [19] "Welcome to" (http://freemyspace.com/09-03-03-f.jpg). Freemyspace.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.

- [20] "Keep your data safe and available while roaming" (http://portal.acm.org/citation.cfm?id=545048.545055). Portal.acm.org. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [21] "Forums" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080307191151/http://www.dacity.com/airwolf/myspace.htm). Dacity.com. Archived from the original (http://www.dacity.com/airwolf/myspace.htm) on March 7, 2008. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [22] Punch Networks (2000-07-25). "punchnetworks.com" (http://www.punchnetworks.com/company/articles/home.jsp?pnid=730024). punchnetworks.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [23] Sellers, Patricia (2006-08-29). "money.cnn.com" (http://money.cnn.com/magazines/fortune/fortune\_archive/2006/09/04/8384727/ index.htm). money.cnn.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [24] "Welcome to" (http://freemyspace.com/I-2.jpg). Freemyspace.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [25] "MySpace History" (http://freemyspace.com/?q=node/13). FreeMySpace. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [26] "News Corp in \$580m internet buy" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/business/4695495.stm). BBC News. 2005-07-19. . Retrieved 2008-03-13.
- [27] PRNewsWire (2007-06-20). "Internet Entrepreneur & Myspace Founder Brad Greenspan Leads Investment Group Seeking to Take Non-Controlling Stake in Dow Jones Corp." (http://www.prnewswire.com/cgi-bin/stories.pl?ACCT=104&STORY=/www/story/ 06-20-2007/0004612480&EDATE=). Press release. . Retrieved 2008-03-13.
- [28] "MySpace looks to UK music scene" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/technology/4642622.stm). BBC News. 2006-01-24. Retrieved 2006-01-24.
- [29] Yunker, John (2006-06-21). "MySpace China, Germany, and France this Summer?" (http://goingglobal.corante.com/archives/2006/06/ 21/myspace\_china\_germany\_and\_france\_this\_summer.php). Goingglobal.corante.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [30] "Myspace.com Site Info from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/myspace.com). Alexa. Retrieved July 12, 2010
- [31] "Facebook.com Site Info from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/facebook.com). Alexa. 2010-06-29. . Retrieved 2010-06-29.
- [32] "MySpace adds new tools after revamp" (http://www.newstatesman.com/digital/2010/03/site-myspace-users-revamp). New Statesman.11 March 2010. Retrieved 11 March 2010.
- [33] Oreskovic, Alexei (2010-10-27). "MySpace launching new version of website" (http://www.reuters.com/article/ idUSTRE69Q11M20101027). *Reuters*. Retrieved 2010-10-31.
- [34] Alexia Tsotsis, Myspace Unveils New, Artsy Logo (http://techcrunch.com/2010/10/08/new-myspace-logo/), Techcrunch.com, October 8, 2010. Retrieved 2010-10-12.
- [35] "Is Myspace free?" (http://www.myspace.com/Modules/Help/Pages/HelpCenter.aspx?Category=1&Question=33). MySpace.com. . Retrieved 2008-03-11.
- [36] Story, Louise and comScore (March 10, 2008). "They Know More Than You Think" (http://www.nytimes.com/imagepages/2008/03/ 10/technology/20080310\_PRIVACY\_GRAPHIC.html) (JPEG). *The New York Times*. in Story, Louise (March 10, 2008). "To Aim Ads, Web Is Keeping Closer Eye on You" (http://www.nytimes.com/2008/03/10/technology/10privacy.html). *The New York Times* (The New York Times Company). . Retrieved 2008-03-09.
- [37] "Google signs \$900m News Corp deal" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/business/5254642.stm). BBC News. 2006-08-07. Retrieved 2006-09-09.
- [38] Vance, Ashlee (2006-08-07). "Google pays \$900m to monetise children via MySpace" (http://www.theregister.co.uk/2006/08/07/ google\_wins\_myspace/). The Register. Retrieved 2006-09-09.
- [39] Clark, Andrew (2006-08-08). "Google to pay \$900m for Myspace link-up" (http://business.guardian.co.uk/story/0,,1839333,00.html). London: Guardian Unlimited Business. Retrieved 2006-09-09.
- [40] Rosmarin, Rachel (2006-10-04). "The Myspace Economy" (http://www.forbes.com/2006/04/07/ myspace-google-murdoch-cx\_rr\_0410myspace.html). Forbes. . Retrieved 2006-10-04.
- [41] Graham, Jefferson (2006-08-14). "Google search ads find momentum" (http://www.usatoday.com/tech/techinvestor/ 2006-08-13-google-search\_x.htm). USA Today. . Retrieved 2006-08-14.
- [42] Wallenstein, Andrew (2008-11-03). ""Reuters" "MySpace, MTV test piracy-profit plan." Wallenstein, Andrew. Nov.3, 2008" (http://www.reuters.com/article/technologyNews/idUSTRE4A20P520081103?feedType=RSS&feedName=technologyNews). Reuters.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [43] "The top tech news and technology headlines Yahoo! News" (http://tech.yahoo.com/news/nm/20090709/tc\_nm/ us\_sunvalley\_newscorp). Tech.yahoo.com. 2010-07-09. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [44] Siwal (2008-01-11). "Facebook, Myspace Statistics" (http://techradar1.wordpress.com/2008/01/11/facebookmyspace-statistics/). techradar1.wordpress.com. Retrieved 2010-10-17.
- [45] "Myspace Mobile To Debut On Helio; Details on Handsets" (http://web.archive.org/web/20060901003014/http://www.moconews. net/?p=5176). Dis\*Content Media LLC. 2006-02-16. Archived from the original (http://www.moconews.net/?p=5176) on 2006-09-01. . Retrieved 2006-09-08.
- [46] "Myspace Picks UIEvolution to Develop Mobile User Interface, Experiences" (http://web.archive.org/web/20061021132337/http:// www.screenplaysmag.com/news\_exclusives/MySpace-UIEvolution-091406.html). ScreenPlays. Archived from the original (http://www. screenplaysmag.com/news\_exclusives/MySpace-UIEvolution-091406.html) on 2006-10-21. Retrieved 2006-09-27.
- [47] "Myspace partners with Vodafone" (http://live.marketclusters.com/cl2/view/2007/02/07/myspace\_partners\_with\_vodafone/). StrategyWire. Retrieved 2007-02-08.

- [48] "Myspace Launches Mobile Site In Canada With Rogers Wireless; Charges Fee" (http://www.moconews.net/entry/ 419-myspace-launches-mobile-site-in-canada-with-rogers-wireless/). MocoNews. . Retrieved 2007-08-16.
- [49] http://news.myspace.com/
- [50] delawareonline | The News Journal, Wilmington, Del. | The article requested can not be found! Please refresh your browser or go back. (BL,20070904,BUSINESS,709040311,AR) (http://www.delawareonline.com/apps/pbcs.dll/article?AID=/20070904/BUSINESS/ 709040311/1003)
- [51] Coyle, Jack (2008-04-28). "Myspace unveils new karaoke feature" (http://www.msnbc.msn.com/id/24358965/). Associated Press. . Retrieved 2008-04-29.
- [52] "MySpace.com : Community Server" (http://communityserver.com/showcases/marketing/myspace/). .. The Myspace forums is a standard community forum that allows people to discuss many topics of interests such as politics, news, automotive, food, music, and so on.
- [53] "Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 1.0" (http://www.w3.org/TR/WAI-WEBCONTENT/). W3C. 1999-05-05. . Retrieved 2006-12-30.
- [54] "Invalid] Markup Validation of http://www.myspace.com/ W3C Markup Validator" (http://validator.w3.org/check?uri=http://www. myspace.com/&charset=(detect+automatically)&doctype=Inline). Validator.w3.org. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [55] Tynan, Dan (2006-09-15). "The 25 Worst Web Sites" (http://www.pcworld.com/article/id,127116-page,7-c,sites/article.html). PC World. . Retrieved 2006-10-08.
- [56] "Social-networking sites a 'hotbed' for spyware" (http://www.msnbc.msn.com/id/14413906/). MSNBC. .
- [57] "MySpace Phishing Attack Appears on 3000 Pages" (http://news.netcraft.com/archives/2006/10/27/ myspace\_accounts\_compromised\_by\_phishers.html). 2006-10-27.
- [58] "Analysing 20000 Myspace Passwords" (http://www.cyber-knowledge.net/blog/2006/09/16/analyzing-20000-myspace-passwords/). 2006-09-16.
- [59] "Myspace Phish Attack Leads Users to Zango Content" (http://blog.spywareguide.com/2006/12/myspace\_phish\_attack\_leads\_use. html). 2006-12-01.
- [60] (http://makcoder.sourceforge.net/demo/base64.php)
- [61] "Joint Statement on Key Principles of Social Networking Sites Safety" (http://ago.mo.gov/newsreleases/2008/pdf/ MySpace-JointStatement0108.pdf), January 14, 2008
- [62] Poulsen, Kevin. "Pillaged Myspace Photos Show Up in Massive BitTorrent Download" (http://www.wired.com/politics/security/news/ 2008/01/myspace\_torrent). Wired.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [63] Teenagers charged in relation to party [[ABC News (http://www.abc.net.au/news/stories/2008/01/16/2139975.htm)] (Australian Broadcasting Corporation)]
- [64] "Party dangers of being host with the most" (http://www.smh.com.au/articles/2008/01/18/1200620210426.html). The Sydney Morning Herald. 2008-01-19.
- [65] Larter, Paul (2008-01-26). "Aussie Party Boy Corey Plans World tour, Next stop UK" (http://www.timesonline.co.uk/tol/news/world/ article3252251.ece). Times (London). . Retrieved 2010-03-30
- [66] Payne, Stewart (2007-04-13). "Police arrest Myspace party girl" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/main.jhtml?xml=/news/2007/04/ 13/nparty213.xml). London: Telegraph.co.uk. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [67] "A High School Party turns deadly" (http://seattlepi.nwsource.com/local/346083\_shooting05.html). Seattlepi.nwsource.com. 2008-01-04. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [68] "MySpace terms of service" (http://collect.myspace.com/misc/terms.html). .
- [69] "new Myspace terms of service" (http://www.myspace.com/index.cfm?fuseaction=misc.terms).
- [70] "14:52, 30 May 2009 version of this article" (http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=MySpace&oldid=293320906#Child\_safety). .
- [71] Anderson, Tom (2006-09-12). "MySpace FAQ" (http://www.myspace.com/Modules/Help/Pages/HelpCenter.aspx?Category=2& Question=26). MySpace Stuff. Retrieved 2006-09-12.
- [72] "MySpace deletes 29,000 sex offenders" (http://www.reuters.com/article/domesticNews/idUSN2424879820070724?feedType=RSS& rpc=22&sp=true). Reuters.com. 2007-07-24. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [73] "MySpace, Facebook attract online predators" (http://www.msnbc.msn.com/id/11165576/). MSNBC. .
- [74] "MySpace plans restrictions to protect younger teens" (http://www.mercurynews.com/mld/mercurynews/business/14867119. htm?source=rss&channel=mercurynews\_teens). San Jose Mercury News. .
- [75] "Social Shield Offers Help for Parents Struggling with Children on MySpace.com and other Social Networks" (http://www.prweb.com/ releases/2006/08/prweb426711.htm). PR Web. .
- [76] 'MySpace' Teen Returns From Middle East (http://www.foxnews.com/story/0,2933,198981,00.html) Foxnews.com
- [77] Steve Pokin (November 11, 2007). 'My Space' hoax ends with suicide of Dardenne Prairie teen (http://suburbanjournals.stltoday.com/ articles/2007/11/11/news/sj2tn20071110-1111stc\_pokin\_1.ii1.txt) Suburban Journals. Accessed May 18, 2008.
- [78] "Myspace to 'block sex offenders'" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/technology/6216736.stm). BBC News Online. 2006-12-07. Retrieved 2006-12-07.
- [79] Lee, Ellen (2007-02-15). "Myspace suit dismissed by judge in Texas" (http://www.sfgate.com/cgi-bin/article.cgi?file=/chronicle/ archive/2007/02/15/BUGEKO4VU01.DTL&type=business). San Francisco Chronicle. . Retrieved 2007-02-16.
- [80] "Journal of Adolescence, Volume 33, Issue 4, Pages 499-574 (August 2010)" (http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/journal/ 01401971). ScienceDirect. Retrieved 2010-07-24.

- [81] Itzkoff, Dave; *Playboy* magazine; June 2006
- [82] "Will Success Spoil MySpace.com?" (http://www.vanityfair.com/ontheweb/features/2006/03/myspace200603?printable=true& currentPage=all). Vanity Fair. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [83] Mitchell, Dan (2006-09-16). "What's Online; The Story Behind Myspace" (http://select.nytimes.com/gst/abstract. html?res=F10B12FF38550C758DDDA00894DE404482). Select.nytimes.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [84] "MySpace : History of Spam & Deception Exposed" (http://www.searchenginejournal.com/myspace-history-of-spam-deception-exposed/ 3790/). Search Engine Journal. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [85] by Jessica BennettOctober 27, 2007 (2007-10-27). "Is Age Just a Number?" (http://www.newsweek.com/id/62330). Newsweek.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [86] "Myspace.com Founder Issues Report Finding News Corp.'s Myspace Acquisition Defrauded Shareholders of More Than \$20 Billion" (http://news.ecoustics.com/bbs/messages/10381/277195.html). ecoustics.com. 2006-10-09. Retrieved 2007-02-25.
- [87] Chmielewski, Dawn C. (2006-10-08). "MySpace Founder Seeks Inquiry" (http://pqasb.pqarchiver.com/latimes/access/1141294651. html?dids=1141294651:1141294651&FMT=ABS&FMTS=ABS:FT&type=current&date=Oct+6,+2006&author=Dawn+C.+ Chmielewski&pub=Los+Angeles+Times&edition=&startpage=C.1&desc=MySpace+Founder+Seeks+Inquiry). Los Angeles Times. . Retrieved 2007-02-25.
- [88] "Was Myspace Sold on the Cheap?" (http://www.businessweek.com/technology/content/oct2006/tc20061005\_397237.htm?chan=top+news\_top+news+index\_businessweek+exclusives). Business Week. 2006-10-06. Retrieved 2007-02-25.
- [89] "Suit over sale of Myspace dismissed" (http://seattlepi.nwsource.com/business/288111\_myspace10.html). Seattle Post-Intelligencer. 2006-10-10. Retrieved 2007-02-25.
- [90] anti-censorship campaign against Myspace for the censoring of user-generated content (http://www.civic.moveon.org/pdf/myspace/).
- [91] Stalking 'definitely a problem' for women at college (http://www.usatoday.com/news/nation/2007-04-23-vt-stalking\_N.htm?csp=1) from the USA Today, 04-23-07
- [92] Lu Enjie (2007-04-26). "Myspace now available in China minus politics and religion" (http://texyt.com/MySpace+China+censors+ politics+religion+064). Texyt.com. .
- [93] "MySpace.cn使用协议条款" (http://www.cn.myspace.cn/Modules/Common/Pages/TermsConditions.aspx) (in Chinese). MySpace.cn. . Retrieved 2007-04-28.
- [94] http://jp.myspace.com/
- [95] http://au.myspace.com/
- [96] http://kr.myspace.com/
- [97] http://br.myspace.com/
- [98] http://mx.myspace.com/
- [99] http://ca.myspace.com/
- [100] http://nl.myspace.com/
- [101] http://cf.myspace.com/
- [102] http://nz.myspace.com/
- [103] http://myspace.cn/
- [104] http://pl.myspace.com/
- [105] http://dk.myspace.com/
- [106] http://pt.myspace.com/
- [107] http://fr.myspace.com/
- [108] http://ru.myspace.com/
- [109] http://fi.myspace.com/
- [110] http://es.myspace.com/
- [111] http://de.myspace.com/
- [112] http://se.myspace.com/
- [113] http://ie.myspace.com/
- [114] http://tr.myspace.com/
- [115] http://la.myspace.com/
- [116] http://uk.myspace.com/
- [117] http://in.myspace.com/
- [118] http://us.myspace.com/
- [119] http://it.myspace.com/
- [120] http://latino.myspace.com/
- [121] http://developer.myspace.com/community/
- [122] "Let me see my app!" (http://developer.myspace.com/Community/blogs/devteam/archive/2008/02/05/let-me-see-my-app.aspx). MySpace MDP. 2008-02-05. Retrieved 2008-02-05.
- [123] "MySpace Open to Developers" (http://www.all4myspace.com/news/2008/1). MySpace News. 2008-02-05. . Retrieved 2008-02-05.
- [124] "Behind the Scenes at MySpace.com" (http://www.infoq.com/presentations/MySpace-Dan-Farino). InfoQ.com. 2009-02-10. . Retrieved 2009-12-12.

- [125] "MySpace Replaces Storage with Solid-State Drive Technology in 150 Standard Load Servers" (http://www.infoq.com/news/2009/12/ myspace-ssd). InfoQ.com. 2009-12-12. Retrieved 2009-12-12.
- [126] Orlowski, Andrew (2006-06-08). "Billy Bragg prompts Myspace Rethink" (http://www.theregister.co.uk/2006/06/08/ blly\_bragg\_myspace/). The Register. . Retrieved 2006-09-12.
- [127] "Schools race to restrict MySpace". Curriculum Review. October 2005.
- [128] "The Myspace case" (http://www.tdn.com/articles/2006/01/22/top\_story/news01.txt). The Daily News, Longview, Washington. 2006-01-22. Retrieved 2006-02-15.
- [129] Kaufman, Gil (2005-10-25). "Catholic School Bans Blogs For Students News Story | Music, Celebrity, Artist News | MTV News" (http://www.mtv.com/news/articles/1512215/20051025/index.jhtml?headlines=true). Mtv.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [130] Blogging ban provokes a debate over cyberspace: Pope John H.S. demands that online profiles end, calls forums havens for sexual predators (http://www.dailyrecord.com/apps/pbcs.dll/article?AID=/20051024/NEWS01/510240324/1005), Daily Record, October 24, 2005
- [131] Özgür Öğret. "Turkish music industry vs Myspace, Last.fm Hurriyet Daily News and Economic Review" (http://www. hurriyetdailynews.com/n.php?n=turkish-music-industry-vs-myspace-and-last.fm-2009-10-11). Hurriyetdailynews.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [132] Leyden, John (2006-05-25). "Teen hack suspects charged over Myspace extortion bid" (http://www.theregister.co.uk/2006/05/25/ myspace\_hack\_charges/). The Register. . Retrieved 2006-09-09.
- [133] Craven, Nick (2007-04-21). "What Rally happened at the Myspace party from hell" (http://www.dailymail.co.uk/pages/live/femail/ article.html?in\_article\_id=449819&in\_page\_id=1879). London: Daily Mail. . Retrieved 2007-04-22.
- [134] Payne, Stewart (2007-04-13). "'Let's trash the house' party girl in hiding" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/main.jhtml?xml=/news/ 2007/04/13/nparty13.xml). London: Telegraph.co.uk. . Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [135] "Myspace Music Completes Acquisition of Imeem" (http://techcrunch.com/2009/12/08/imeem-myspace-music-completes-acquisition/
  ). TechCrunch. 08 December 2009.
- [136] "Myspace Pressroom" (http://www.myspace.com/pressroom?url=/article\_display.cfm?article\_id=1126). Myspace. 08 December 2009.
- [137] Rosoff, Matt (2010-01-16). "MySpace restores Imeem playlists | Digital Noise: Music and Tech CNET News" (http://news.cnet.com/ 8301-13526\_3-10436396-27.html). News.cnet.com. Retrieved 2010-07-24.
- [138] Carlos (2006-01-10). "So That's Why Myspace Blocked YouTube" (http://www.techdirt.com/articles/20060110/0735214.shtml). Techdirt.com. Retrieved 2006-07-28.
- [139] "YouTube Fastest Growing Website" (http://adage.com/digital/article.php?article\_id=110632) Advertising Age
- [140] "Info for YouTube.com" (http://www.alexa.com/data/details/traffic\_details?&range=max&size=large&compare\_sites=myspace. com&y=r&url=youtube.com#top). Alexa.com. 2006-07-26. Retrieved 2006-07-26.
- [141] Sweney, Mark (2006-07-31). "YouTube overtakes MySpace" (http://technology.guardian.co.uk/news/story/0,,1834036,00.html). London: Guardian Unlimited. . Retrieved 2006-07-31.
- [142] Kirkpatrick, Marshall (2006-09-12). "MySpace: We don't need Web 2.0" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2006/09/12/ myspace-we-dont-need-web-20/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2006-10-10.

# **Further reading**

- Angwin, Julia. 2009. Stealing MySpace: The Battle to Control the Most Popular Website in America (http:// books.google.com/books?id=c-lEzyA4TSQC&printsec=frontcover), New York: Random House. ISBN 978-1-4000-6694-0
- Davis, Donald Carrington, Myspace Isn't Your Space: Expanding the Fair Credit Reporting Act to Ensure Accountability and Fairness in Employer Searches of Online Social Networking Services, 16 Kan. J.L. & Pub. Pol'y 237 (2007).
- Dodero, Camille, "Lost in MySpace: Log on, tune in, and hook up with 22 million people online" (http:// bostonphoenix.com/boston/news\_features/top/features/documents/04838542.asp), The Boston Phoenix, July 22–28, 2005.
- Dodero, Camille, "You and your tech-chic: As of 2006, new media isn't just for geeks anymore" (http://www. thephoenix.com/article\_ektid30132.aspx), The Boston Phoenix, December 20, 2006.
- Tapscott, Don and Anthony D. Williams. 2007. Wikinomics: How Mass Collaboration Changes Everything. New York: Penguin.

# **External links**

- Official website (http://www.myspace.com)
- Tom Anderson, Myspace co-founder (http://www.myspace.com/tom) at Myspace

# Newsvine

🗱 newsvine	
URL	http://newsvine.com/
Commercial?	Yes
Type of site	Social News
Registration	Optional
Available language(s)	English
Owner	msnbc.com
Created by	Newsvine, Inc.
Launched	March 1, 2006
Alexa rank	6,782 (as of Jul 11, 08) <sup>[1]</sup>
Current status	Online

**Newsvine** is a community-powered, collaborative journalism news website, owned by msnbc.com, which draws content from its users and syndicated content from mainstream sources such as The Associated Press. Users can write articles, seed links to external content, and discuss news items submitted by both users and professional journalists.

Newsvine, the company, is not a news bureau and exercises no editorial voice, but acts as a social news platform for the community which has grown around it. Members decide with their actions what news makes it onto the site and what news is removed, and the Newsvine staff works to keep the platform operating and evolving.

Newsvine was named the Top News Site of 2006 and one of the 50 Best Websites of 2007 by Time magazine.<sup>[2]</sup>

# History

Seattle-based Newsvine, Inc. was founded in the spring of 2005 by Mike Davidson, Calvin Tang, Lance Anderson and Mark Budos. Josh Yockey joined the company shortly after it opened its offices, with Tom Laramee and Tyler Adams being hired later. The development team consists of several veterans from the Walt Disney Internet Group and ESPN.

The company moved into its offices near Downtown Seattle on August 1, 2005, and launched newsvine.com into private alpha on December 1, 2005. On January 5, 2006, the site went into private beta, and then launched to the public on March 1, 2006.

On October 7, 2007, Newsvine announced its acquisition by the news website msnbc.com, effective October 5, 2007. Since the acquisition, Newsvine has continued to run as a separate website and brand from msnbc.com, operating out of its original headquarters in Seattle.

#### Features

#### Seeding

Newsvine allows users to "seed," or post links for others to view. Seeds usually contain a short description or direct quotation from the linked article. With the "Newsvine Button," users can select "Seed Newsvine" from their bookmarks and a seeding dialog will appear. Seeds allow for all of the same options as articles except the ability to insert photographs and/or polls.

	ires employees who downloaded Leopard
	News Type: Event — Seeded on Tue Aug 22, 2006 12:40 PM PD
Read Article	Article Source: Think Secret
hnology, apple, tech, co eded by Alec Ananian	mputers, computer, osx, jobs, os-x, piracy, steve-jobs, download, mac-os-x, leopard, worde, warez
At loagt flug of	nolovees of Apple's retail stores
	d after admitting to having
	ples of Mac OS X 10.5 Leopard from
the Internet t	hat were distributed to developers
at Apple's Wor	ldwide Developers Conference two

		News Type: Other - Fri A	or 21, 2006 2:48 AM PDT
		,	
echnology, neusvine, journalism, interview, citizens-journal Cleuz Jecobzen	ism, online-journa	ism, participatory-journalism	
What is Newsvine?			
I have decided to develop on a new type	NO. CONTRACTOR	Resource - SERTILE	CONTRACTOR OF
I have decided to develop on a new type of journalism that we are beginning to	Neuroise August MATTL	197	
	The first Book II.	iperts Paritics Such Entertainment Science Resinere Fee	eth didd fease - Lag (bat
grow acquainted to here on Newsvine. The method is: I post a number of	_	The Wite	The Vice - restore to
questions, each in its own commentary	Altech Changest	Microsoft Releases Patch for Windows Flaw	Neuroine Anna (Annine Annahan  Neuroine and Annahan  Neuroine and Annahan
field. Afterwards I write an article on the	Address Addres		women global femalence from property the safe.
basis of the incoming answers. If this	A local franch		1 1 1 1 1 1
experiment goes down well, I'll try to	entrep		C First Take Newsolve
apply the method to a wider range of	Barthers Char Barther Char Your Matchilet -		First impressions from Some Rest's Seconds
topics.	C free big too here.		RANNE, BELTE, SEL 1998, MA. 1998.
	Autors Tra	Alastan Alastaticha	The least's Times Denny
By replying you agree to be quoted in the	Un KEI for your researcher prof.85	Monuted Carp, wheneve a software patch for its Windows, preparities property Thursday to fix a few that has interacted	Westman, A law from and its holdy/st
article. Please answer all questions – the	Generative for an existing lifest	atemps to tala cannol of internet-connected computers. Complete Story Internets, encode, access 1	Analy prior price about just Abound?, his hubris, and his connection to one of features, need approximate and firms.
more questions you answer the larger	ALL Month Price	T + HE -	survey not process as time, artist, an around, taken, same,
the probability that I will quote you.	AL WALLY	Basing Cets Record Plane Orders in 2001	10.00
For credibility I would very much	Construction in the local	urtesy of O'reilly Net	
appreciate if you would be ready to step	Screensnot co	urtesy of 0 relly Net	
forward with your real name – in return I			
promise you that the article will contain a lini			

#### Articles

One of the most defining features of Newsvine is the ability for users to write their own articles. Commonly known as citizen journalism, this allows users to express their opinions for public discussion or even report in a journalistic manner. The most popular articles for top tags appear in the "Featured Writers" section, where article writers can receive extra publicity.

While writing articles, users can upload their own photographs or choose from a list of Flickr photos registered under a Creative Commons license for addition to the post. Captions can be written to clarify the meaning of the photograph.

#### Voting

Another common feature among social bookmarking websites is the ability to vote for content. Users who enjoy reading an article/seed or agree with its content are encouraged to vote for the content. Articles and seeds with the most votes appear in the "Top Wire," "Top Seeds," or "Top of the Vine" sections of the site.

Newsvine also allows for users to vote for comments that they enjoyed reading. When a comment receives at least five votes, a green star is placed in the upper right-hand corner, signifying that many users enjoyed or agreed with the comment. Clicking the star will lead viewers to the next highly rated comment.

Negative votes are also registered, and a comment that receives too many negative votes will often be collapsed, so that it can only be viewed by deliberately opening it. This limits discussion under that comment, since new comments under it will not be seen automatically.

#### Commenting

The ability to comment on seeds and articles allows for extra discussions regarding the content. While debates are welcome, useless, insulting, and self-promoting comments are not. If a comment receives enough reports, that comment will be collapsed and its contents can only be shown by choosing to expand it. The Newsvine comment system also allows for semi-threaded comments, easing the confusion of comment direction. Users can edit but not delete their own comments, writers are allowed to delete comments on their own content. Unregistered users are also allowed to have their say, but comments by unregistered users are not made public until that user creates a registered account.



#### **User Columns**

Newsvine user columns give users the ability to manage and share their articles, seeds, friends, recommendations, and other statistical information. Every user has one, and each is given their own subdomain to access it (<user>.newsvine.com). User columns are customizable: aspects of the layouts can be moved or hidden, a user photo and biography can be added, a header (such as a welcome message) can be added, friends can be invited to Newsvine or added to the user's friends list, recommendations (such as favorite books, bands, blogs, etc.) can be shown, and comments and feedback from other users can be managed. Also, through user columns, members have the ability to add others to their watchlist and friend list or to send another

a chat invitation.

#### Earnings

Newsvine tells users that they will receive 90% of revenue from advertisements on their personal Newsvine pages. These earnings are "based on traffic to your articles and seeds," but it is unclear exactly how Newsvine calculate earnings. The remaining 10% go to whoever referred the user to Newsvine, or for site maintenance if there was no referrer. Newsvine does not publish the amount of revenue that has gone to users.

#### Watchlist

If a user finds a writer or tag that he/she enjoys to read content from, it can be added to the Watchlist. Watchlists are lists of members and tags that a user can compile to easily find interesting news. Items on a user's watchlist appear on the left column and, if there is content that the user has not read by a watchlisted author or tag, a number will appear next to the item name signifying how many articles or seeds have not been read.

#### **Conversation Tracker**

Much like the Watchlist, the Conversation Tracker allows users to track other members. However, the Conversation Tracker is a notifier of new comments. There are three sections to the Conversation Tracker: new comments from a user's Newsvine column, new comments from articles that a user has commented on, and new comments from an article a user's friend has commented on. If a user has added members to the friend list that share a common interest in content, the Conversation Tracker can act as a list of recommended articles.

#### **Friends List**

The Friends List gives users the ability to meet new people and find others with common interests, but there are no requirements in doing so. Creating a populated friends list gives users the ability to find interesting new articles through the Conversation Tracker. Once a user adds a friend to the list, the added friend receives a notification and is given the ability to accept or decline the offer.



#### Vineacity

Vineacity is a measure of six elements that contribute to a Newsvine user's overall rating as a positive influence to the Newsvine community. Earned as 'branches' on a Newsvine logo icon displayed next to the user's name, the six areas of excellence include:

- Courtesy earned when a user's positive feedback outweighs any abuse reports they may have received.
- Longevity earned when the users has been active for at least two months after registering.
- Fruitfulness earned when the user has submitted a substantial amount of content or comments that have received votes.
- · Connectedness earned when the user appears on a substantial number of watchlists and/or friendlists.
- Random Act of Vineness earned for an exceptional moment of greatness on Newsvine.
- Lifetime achievement earned when a user has received a combined number of votes on all articles, links and comments around Newsvine.

## References

- [1] "Traffic Details from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/data/details/traffic\_details/newsvine.com?site0=newsvine.com&y=r&z=3& h=300&w=610&c=1&u[]=newsvine.com&x=2008-07-11T08:11:41.000Z&check=www.alexa.com& signature=fyd001p6MZ6dBHudJO/Cy5qNyao=&range=6m&size=Medium). Alexa. Retrieved 2008-07-11.
- [2] "50 Best Websites 2007" (http://www.time.com/time/specials/2007/article/0,28804,1633488\_1633530\_1633560,00.html). *Time*. July 8, 2007. . Retrieved May 20, 2010.

## **External links**

- Newsvine (http://www.newsvine.com)
- Newsvine Code of Honor (http://www.newsvine.com/\_cms/info/codeofhonor)
- Inside the Net Episode 8 (http://www.twit.tv/itn8)
- Mike Davidson (co-founder, CEO) (http://www.mikeindustries.com/blog/)
- Calvin Tang (co-founder, COO) (http://www.calvintang.com/blog/)

# Reddit

Reddit front page on July 23, 2010	
URL	www.reddit.com <sup>[1]</sup>
Commercial?	Yes
Type of site	News aggregation, General discussion & advice forum.
Registration	Optional
Owner	Advance Publications via Condé Nast Publications
Created by	Steve Huffman and Alexis Ohanian
Launched	2005

**Reddit** (stylized as **reddit**; pronounced /'rɛdīt/, "red it") is a social news website, owned by Condé Nast Digital, a subsidiary of Advance Magazine Publishers Inc. Users (also called *redditors*) can browse and have the option to submit links to content on the Internet or submit "self" posts that contain original, user-submitted text. Other users may then vote the posted links "up" or "down" with the most successful links gaining prominence by reaching the front page. In addition, users can comment on the posted links and reply to other commentators consequently forming an online community. Reddit users may create their own topical sections, called *subreddits*, for which to submit their links and to comment.<sup>[2]</sup>

# Overview

The site has discussion areas in which users may discuss submissions and vote for or against other people's comments. When there are enough votes against a given comment, it will not be displayed by default, although a reader can display it by clicking an additional link or by changing the preferences. The default preferences cut-off comments whose value is -4 or less, meaning they had received at least five more negative votes than they did positive votes. The default comment sorting



is set in such a way that so-called 'best' comments are displayed on top (defined by reddit's algorithm as having a better positive to negative ratio but still influenced by the amount of total votes), however the user can change that according to his preference. The appearance of submissions on the front page is determined by the age of the submission, positive to negative feedback ratio and the total vote count.<sup>[4]</sup>

## Subreddits

Reddit includes topical sections called "subreddits" which focus on specific topics, such as pics, funny, politics, worldnews, atheism, programming, travel, food, science or the all-encompassing reddit. Each section focuses on user-generated content that is relevant to each reddit. There are hundreds of reddits and users are encouraged to create their own.<sup>[2]</sup> Submissions that are voted up receive prominence by being displayed on the front page of the specific reddit. Those submissions receiving a high rate of votes are then displayed on the main front page of Reddit.<sup>[4]</sup> Users may also subscribe and unsubscribe to various reddit sections allowing them to choose which links

from which reddit is displayed on their personal front page.

Subreddit name	Subscribers	Age
pics	384,455	2 years
reddit.com	378,576	4 years
funny	385,041	2 years
politics	327,023	3 years
AskReddit	282,755	2 years
WTF	374,328	2 years
gaming	258,556	3 years
science	372,859	3 years
worldnews	296,064	2 years
programming	236,492	4 years

As of 16 October 2010 19:28 EDT

#### Karma system

Reddit.com employs a moderation-based "karma" reward system for users who make submissions and comment on stories. Users gain one point of link karma when another user votes up their submission and lose a point when a user votes down their submission. Individual comments may also be voted up or down by other users and result in a user's comment karma. Users stop losing karma after their submission reaches 0. This is not the case for comments.

Karma points are also not gained from votes for direct submissions of Reddit-hosted posts to reddits (also known as "self" posts, usually indicated by "self.(name of sub-reddit)" listed next to the name of the post);<sup>[5]</sup> this was implemented by the administrators to counteract against "karma-whoring".

The site also fosters discussion and a sense of community by notifying users of replies to with an "orangered" envelope. The site administrators are also active users replying directly to users, submitting their own submissions and commenting on stories. They also host video interviews with questions submitted by the community. The community have also been known to socialize at local parks and bars around the world.

#### Logo

The Reddit logo changes for various holidays and pays homage to geek culture in general. It often changes in response to major discussion subjects within the site or major news stories. Subreddits exist for the purpose of designing such logos for both the main site<sup>[6]</sup> and for new subreddits,<sup>[7]</sup> usually featuring the Reddit "alien" mascot that has been called "Snoo", the name that the creators of Reddit reportly wanted to originally give to the site itself (but couldn't because the name was already owned).<sup>[8]</sup>

## History

Reddit was founded by Steve Huffman and Alexis Ohanian in 2005, both 22-year-old graduates of the University of Virginia.<sup>[3]</sup> It received its initial funding from Y Combinator. The team expanded to include Christopher Slowe and Aaron Swartz in 2005. Aaron Swartz joined in late January 2006 as part of the company's merger with Swartz's Infogami.<sup>[9]</sup> The combined company was known as "not a bug." Condé Nast Publications, owner of *Wired*, acquired "not a bug" on October 31, 2006.<sup>[10]</sup>

On June 18, 2008, Reddit became an open source project.<sup>[11]</sup> With the exception of the anti-spam/cheating portions, all of the code and libraries written for Reddit became freely available on another website dubbed "Fixxit."<sup>[12]</sup>

Reddit was named by Ohanian while browsing the University of Virginia's Alderman Library.<sup>[13]</sup>

In January 2010, Reddit users raised over \$185,000 for the victims of the 2010 Haiti earthquake.<sup>[14]</sup>

In July 2010 Reddit implemented Reddit Gold, offering new features for a price of \$3.99/month or \$29.99/year.<sup>[15]</sup>

In July 2010 Reddit expanded their team, hiring Jeff Sandberg.<sup>[16]</sup>

In August 2010, Ben Huh, owner of the popular comedy photoblog I Can Has Cheezburger and its spinoffs, made a public offer to acquire Reddit, believing that the site would deserve the benefit of more resources and decreased corporate influence he would bring to the site in the midst of conflicts between operators and Condé Nast.<sup>[17]</sup>

## The 'Restoring Truthiness' Campaign

In September 2010, Reddit users started a movement to persuade Stephen Colbert to have a rally in Washington DC.<sup>[18]</sup> The movement was started by user mrsammercer, in a post where he describes waking up from a dream in which Stephen Colbert holds a satirical rally in D.C.<sup>[19]</sup>

He writes, "This would be the high water mark of American satire. Half a million people pretending to suspend all rational thought in unison. Perfect harmony. It'll feel like San Francisco in the late 60s, only we won't be able to get any acid."

The idea resonated with the Reddit community, who quickly sprung into action creating webpages and Facebook groups to organize the call, as well as contacting producers for the show. Stephen acknowledged the building momentum on his show, saying that only a sign from God, in the form of a goose, could decide if he should hold a rally. The organized supporters of the rally quickly sent live and stuffed animal geese to the Colbert Report studio, by the hundreds.

In order to show how serious and potentially influential the Reddit community is, a donation drive for DonorsChoose.org was called into action by a Reddit moderator. Colbert sits on the Board of Directors for this particular charity. Reddit managed to raise more than \$100,000 in 24 hours, \$250,000 over 3 days, and over \$500,000 by the rally date to help teachers across United States buy supplies for their classrooms.

On September 13, 2010, Jon Stewart announced on The Daily Show the "Rally to Restore Sanity", to be held on October 30, 2010. In the following episode of The Colbert Report, Stephen Colbert announced a "March to Keep Fear Alive" counter-rally to be held on the same day at the same location, the National Mall. On October 14, 2010, Colbert appeared as a surprise guest on The Daily Show, and the two announced they were combining their two rallies into one: The Rally to Restore Sanity and/or Fear.

After the rally on October 30, during a press conference, Reddit co-founder Alexis Ohanian asked, "What role did the Internet campaign play in convincing you to hold this rally?" Stewart and Colbert responded by saying that, though it was a very nice gesture, the two had already thought of the idea prior and the deposit on using the National Mall was already paid during the summer, so it acted mostly as a "validation of what we were thinking about attempting."<sup>[20]</sup>

## Awards

Reddit received the 2008 Open Web Award.<sup>[21]</sup> In May 2010, Blurb is named in Lead411's "2010 Hottest San Francisco Companies" list.<sup>[22]</sup>

# Technology

## Python backend

Reddit was originally written in Common Lisp but was rewritten in Python in 2005.<sup>[23]</sup> The reasons given for the switch were faster performance, wider access to code libraries, and greater development flexibility. The Python web framework that former Reddit employee Aaron Swartz developed to run the site, *web.py*, is now available as an open-source project.<sup>[24]</sup>

Reddit currently uses Pylons as its web framework.<sup>[25]</sup> The site was hosted on several Linux servers running lighttpd, HaProxy, and paster;<sup>[26]</sup> however, as of November 2009, Reddit has decommissioned their physical servers and migrated to Amazon Web Services.<sup>[27]</sup> In early 2009, Reddit started using jQuery.<sup>[28]</sup>

## Mobile web

On June 7, 2010 Reddit staff launched a revamped mobile site located at i.reddit.com <sup>[29]</sup> and m.reddit.com <sup>[30]</sup>, replacing a previous iteration. The new site features rewritten CSS, a new color scheme, and a multitude of improvements.<sup>[31]</sup>

## iPhone

On February 18, 2009, Reddit released an iPhone Application called iReddit for \$1.99, which allows users to more easily navigate the site while using the iPhone. There were also several other Reddit iPhone Applications available prior to the official application's release date. The first unofficial application was named "Satellite", which was released in November 2008. Satellite originally cost \$4.99 but its price was later reduced to just \$.99 after the release of the official Reddit application.<sup>[32]</sup> The unofficial second application, released in December 2008 was called "Open Source Reddit", differing from Satellite by being free of charge. As of June 17, 2010, iReddit is available free of charge and had joined Open Source Reddit by making its source available for community updates on GitHub.<sup>[33]</sup>

## Android

There are several unofficial applications in the Android Market that use the Reddit API, including *Reddit is Fun*<sup>[34]</sup> and *Andreddit*.<sup>[35]</sup>

# Notable Community contributions

- Reddit user Alan Schaaf created the popular free image hosting site Imgur.<sup>[36]</sup>
- Graphic artist Mike Mitchell created the "I'm with Coco" poster, which has subsequently been adopted by Conan O'Brien for his The Legally Prohibited from Being Funny on Television Tour.

## See also

- Diigo
- Delicious
- Digg
- Fark
- Imgur
- StumbleUpon
- Slashdot
- Social bookmarking
- Web 2.0

# References

- [1] http://www.reddit.com/
- [2] Nations, Daniel. "A Review of Reddit" (http://webtrends.about.com/od/reddit/gr/reddit\_review.htm). About.com: Web Trends. . Retrieved 3 September 2010.
- [3] Adams, Richard (2005-12-08). "reddit.com" (http://technology.guardian.co.uk/innovations/story/0,,1660870,00.html). The Guardian. . Retrieved 2006-12-23.
- [4] "reddit algorithm" (http://www.seomoz.org/blog/reddit-stumbleupon-delicious-and-hacker-news-algorithms-exposed).
- [5] Sorry, karma-whores. No more karma for self-posts (http://www.reddit.com/comments/6p5ef/ sorry\_karmawhores\_no\_more\_karma\_for\_selfposts/)
- [6] "Logos of Reddit" (http://www.reddit.com/r/logo). Reddit.com. .
- [7] "Reddit Alien Logos" (http://www.reddit.com/r/redditlogos). Reddit.com.
- [8] "Hacker News" (http://news.ycombinator.com/item?id=1389494). news.ycombinator.com. .
- [9] Swartz, Aaron (February 27, 2006). "Introducing Infogami" (http://infogami.com/blog/introduction). Infogami. . Retrieved 2007-01-06.
- [10] Arrington, Michael (October 31, 2006). "Breaking news: Condé Nast/Wired Acquires reddit" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2006/10/31/ breaking-news-conde-nastwired-acquires-reddit/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2007-01-06.
- [11] Open source announcement on the Reddit blog (http://blog.reddit.com/2008/06/reddit-goes-open-source.html)
- [12] "reddit â€" Trac" (http://code.reddit.com/). Code.reddit.com. . Retrieved 2010-07-29.
- [13] "reddit nostalgia: whence came the name?," on Alexis Ohanian's blog (http://reddit.blogspot.com/2008/02/ reddit-nostalgia-whence-came-name.html)
- [14] "Direct Relief International: Support Us Tributes:" (http://dri.convio.net/site/TR?pg=fund&fr\_id=1030&pxfid=1511). Dri.convio.net.
  Retrieved 2010-07-29.
- [15] Posted by mike [raldi] (2010-07-19). "what's new on reddit: Three new features for reddit gold: Choose-your-own ads, Userpage sorting, and Friends with Benefits" (http://blog.reddit.com/2010/07/three-new-features-for-reddit-gold.html). blog.reddit. Retrieved 2010-07-29.
- [16] Posted by Chris [KeyserSosa] (2010-06-22). "Welcome Jeff" (http://blog.reddit.com/2010/07/welcome-jeff.html). blog.reddit. .
- [17] Kincaid, Jason. "Ben Huh Asks: "I Can Haz Reddit?"" (http://techcrunch.com/2010/08/27/reddit-conde-nast-cheezburger/). TechCrunch.
- [18] Colbert Rally in Time Magazine (http://newsfeed.time.com/2010/09/14/reddit-campaign-for-colbert-rally-breaks-charity-records/)
- [19] Reddit post suggesting the Colbert Rally idea (http://www.reddit.com/r/politics/comments/d7ntl/ ive\_had\_a\_vision\_and\_i\_cant\_shake\_it\_colbert/)
- [20] Rally to Restore Sanity Press Conference Video (http://www.mediaite.com/tv/ jon-stewart-and-stephen-colbert-hold-post-rally-to-restore-sanity-press-conference/) Mediaite. October 30, 2010.
- jon-stewart-and-stephen-contert-noid-post-rany-to-restore-samty-press-conterence/) Mediane. October 50, 2010.
- [21] Open Web Awards: Final Winners Announced! (http://mashable.com/2007/12/21/open-web-awards-winners/)
- [22] Lead411 launches "Hottest Companies in San Francisco" awards (http://www.lead411.com/san-francisco-companies.html)
  [23] "On lisp" blog post by Reddit founder "spez," detailing the reasons for switching to python from lisp (http://blog.reddit.com/2005/12/
- on-lisp.html)
- [24] Official web.py site (http://webpy.org/)
- [25] Sites Using Pylons (http://wiki.pylonshq.com/display/pylonscommunity/Sites+Using+Pylons) Pylons Community PythonWeb
- [26] Netcraft report on reddit.com (http://toolbar.netcraft.com/site\_report?url=http://www.reddit.com)
- [27] Moving to the cloud on blog.reddit.com (http://blog.reddit.com/2009/11/moving-to-cloud.html)
- [28] what's new on reddit: reddit now powered by jQuery (http://blog.reddit.com/2009/01/reddit-now-powered-by-jquery.html) Posted by Chris Slowe (keysersosa) (Friday, January 30, 2009) - blog.reddit
- [29] http://i.reddit.com
- [30] http://m.reddit.com

- [32] Shortly after iReddit was released, the guys at 3Cube Technologies released Satellite at \$4.99-now just \$.99. (http://blog.reddit.com/2009/ 01/i-read-it-on-ireddit-official-reddit.html) - Posted by alexis kn0thing at 16:43 on (February 14th, 2009)
- [33] "We've open sourced iReddit" (http://blog.reddit.com/2010/06/weve-open-sourced-ireddit.html). Reddit.com. 2010-06-17. . Retrieved 2010-07-29.
- [34] http://www.appbrain.com/app/com.andrewshu.android.reddit
- [35] http://www.appbrain.com/app/com.tomdryer.reddit
- [36] http://www.mediaite.com/online/imgur-accounts-alan-schaaf-interview/

# **External links**

- Reddit (http://reddit.com/)
- Fixxit (Reddit's code repository) (http://code.reddit.com/)
- Reddit's job board (http://redditjobs.com/)

# **Reddit clones**

- proddit, in Romanian (http://www.proddit.com/)
- culter in Spanish (http://www.culter.com.mx/)

#### SubReddit search engines

SubReddit Finder (http://subredditfinder.com/)

Reddit User Karmanaut's bubble diagram (http://s272568090.onlinehome.us/reddit/karmanaut-redditmap.html)

Metareddit (http://metareddit.com)

# StumbleUpon

	5	
Elle Edit View History Bookmarks Tools Help		
C X 🟠 Q W http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/StumbleUpon		
应 Most Visited 🚞 Others 🚞 Website 🔞 FileHippo.com - Downl 🏶 Guild Wars Wiki 📕 Softpedia 🚟 YouTube		
외 Stumble! 🀁 I like it! 🤻 🔹 All 🔹 🥐 Share 🕈 🖻 Info		
StumbleUpon Toolbar in Firefox 3.5		
Original author(s)	Garrett Camp & Geoff Smith <sup>[1]</sup>	
Developer(s)	Geoff Smith	
Initial release	November 2001 <sup>[2]</sup>	
Stable release	3.75 <sup>[3]</sup> / November 5, 2010	
Platform	Firefox, Seamonkey, Internet Explorer, Safari, Opera, Google Chrome	
Туре	Web site ranking and discovery	
License	Proprietary freeware	
Website	http://www.stumbleupon.com/	

**StumbleUpon** is a discovery engine that finds the best of the web, recommended to each unique user. It allows its users to discover and rate Web pages, photos, and videos that are personalized to their tastes and interests using peer-sourcing and social-networking principles.

Toolbar versions exist for Firefox, Mozilla Application Suite, Google Chrome and Internet Explorer, but StumbleUpon also works with some independent Mozilla-based browsers. Third party toolbars have also been created for Safari<sup>[4]</sup> and Opera<sup>[5]</sup>.

# History

The StumbleUpon was founded in November 2001<sup>[2]</sup> by Garrett Camp, Geoff Smith, Justin LaFrance and Eric Boyd during Garrett's time in post-graduate school in Calgary, Canada. The idea of creating a company was established before the content: of the five or six ideas for products, StumbleUpon was chosen. Garrett describes in a BBC interview the moment for him in which he felt the company had really taken off: "When we passed the half a million mark (in registered users), it seemed more real."<sup>[6]</sup>

The popularity of the software attracted Silicon Valley investor Brad O'Neill to take notice of the company and assist with a move to San Francisco, as well as bringing in subsequent fund-raising totaling \$1.2 million from other angel investors including Ram Shriram (Google), Mitch Kapor (Mozilla Foundation), First Round Capital, and Ron Conway. Garrett Camp and Geoff Smith now reside in San Francisco, where StumbleUpon is headquartered.

StumbleUpon was owned by eBay from May 2007, when it was acquired for \$75,000,000,<sup>[7]</sup> until April 2009, when Garrett Camp, Geoff Smith and several investors bought it back.<sup>[8]</sup> StumbleUpon is now an independent, investor-backed startup once again, with offices in San Francisco and New York City.

# Service details

StumbleUpon uses collaborative filtering (an automated process combining human opinions with machine learning of personal preference) to create virtual communities of like-minded Web surfers. Rating Web sites updates a personal profile (a blog-style record of rated sites) and generates peer networks of Web surfers linked by common interest. These social networks coordinate the distribution of Web content, so that users "stumble upon" pages explicitly recommended by friends and peers. Giving a site a thumbs up results in the site being placed under the user's "favorites".

Users rate a site by giving it a thumbs up, thumbs down selection on the StumbleUpon toolbar, and can optionally leave additional commentary on the site's review page, which also appears on the user's blog. This social content discovery approach automates the "word-of-mouth" referral of peer-approved Web sites and simplifies Web navigation.

Stumblers also have the ability to rate and review each others' blogs and join interest groups, which are community forums for specific topics. Users can post comments in the manner of a discussion board in these groups and post links to Web sites that apply to the specific topic.

#### **StumbleVideo**

On December 13, 2006, StumbleUpon launched their StumbleVideo site at http://video.stumbleupon.com/.The new site allows users without a toolbar to "stumble" through all the videos that toolbar users have submitted and rate them using an AJAX interface. The site currently aggregates videos from CollegeHumor, DailyMotion, FunnyOrDie, Google, MetaCafe, MySpace, Vimeo and YouTube.

StumbleUpon launched a version of StumbleVideo for the Internet Channel Web browser that runs on the Wii console on February 12, 2007. This version of StumbleVideo is optimized for the Wii's smaller screen resolution and offers similar functionality to that of the original version.

#### StumbleThru

In April 2007, StumbleUpon launched the StumbleThru service, allowing users of the toolbar to stumble within sites such as Youtube, The Onion, Public Broadcasting Service and Wikipedia. According to the announcement of the feature, StumbleUpon plans on adding additional Web sites in the future.

As of June 13, 2010, sites using StumbleThru include BBC.com, Blogger, Break.com, CNN.com, Collegehumor, CreditLoan.com, Flickr.com, Funnyjunk.com, FunnyorDie.com, Howstuffworks.com, HuffingtonPost.com, Metacafe.com, MySpace, Pbs.org, PhysOrg, Rolling Stone, Scientific American, The Onion, Wikipedia, Wired.com, Wordpress, Youtube.com

## Su.pr

In March 2009, StumbleUpon launched the Su.pr service. Its primary usage is for Twitter and Facebook statuses and updates.<sup>[9]</sup> The service is similar to that of bit.ly and tinyURL. In March through May, the su.pr service was only available to people who have gotten an invite code. In June, the service went under public beta. This service has gotten mixed reviews.

# Advertising

StumbleUpon uses knowledge of user preferences to deliver targeted advertising. A small proportion of the "stumbles" users come across (typically less than 2%) are sponsored pages matching their topics of interest. For example, those signed up for photography will occasionally see an ad related to photography. Such content is vetted by humans for "quality and relevance" prior to its delivery. A sponsored site is identifiable by a green "person" logo on the toolbar. Paid accounts (referred to as "Sponsors") have a variety of options, including the ability to turn off

such advertising.

# Growth

In July 2006, StumbleUpon had 1 million users.<sup>[10]</sup> StumbleUpon claims to have more than 8,772,000 members as of December 5, 2009. StumbleUpon said that before the end of May 2008, it would have collected its five-billionth "stumble", more than one billion of which would have taken place in 2008 alone.<sup>[11]</sup>

# eBay

In May 2007, StumbleUpon was purchased by eBay. Early reports indicated that the company was also in talks with Google before the eBay announcement. In September 2008 eBay hired Deutsche Bank to try to sell StumbleUpon again.<sup>[12]</sup> On April 13, 2009, founders Garrett Camp and Geoff Smith and other investors including Ram Shriram bought the company.<sup>[8] [13]</sup>

## See also

- Delicious (website)
- Digg
- Fark
- Reddit
- Slashdot
- bit.ly
- tinyURL
- Social bookmarking
- Web 2.0

# References

- [1] "The StumbleUpon Management Team" (http://www.stumbleupon.com/management/). StumbleUpon. . Retrieved 2009-11-01.
- [2] "Interview with Garrett Camp, StumbleUpon Co-Founder" (http://www.centernetworks.com/interview-with-garrett-camp-stumbleupon). CenterNetworks. December 12, 2006. . Retrieved 2009-11-01.
- [3] "StumbleUpon Changelog" (http://www.stumbleupon.com/changelog.php). . Retrieved 2007-07-20.
- [4] "Stumbi: A StumbleUpon plugin for Safari" (http://www.soyasoftware.com/stumbi). .
- [5] "Opera Stumbler: A StumbleUpon Toolbar For Opera" (http://www.operastumbler.com/). .
- [6] "Web 2.0 wonders: StumbleUpon" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/technology/6506055.stm). BBC News. 29 March 2007. . Retrieved 2009-11-01.
- [7] "eBay Acquires StumbleUpon" (http://web.archive.org/web/20070707122554/http://biz.yahoo.com/bw/070530/20070530006201. html). Business Wire, mirrored at archive.org. 2007-05-03. Archived from the original (http://biz.yahoo.com/bw/070530/ 20070530006201.html) on 2007-07-07. Retrieved 2007-11-11.
- [8] "StumbleUpon's founders buy service back from eBay" (http://www.salon.com/wires/ap/scitech/2009/04/13/ D97HSSH00\_ebay\_stumbleupon/index.html). Salon.com. . Retrieved 2009-04-14. "The founders, Garrett Camp and Geoff Smith, bought the company back with the help of investors including Ram Shriram of Sherpalo Ventures, Accel Partners, and August Capital, they said. Financial terms were not disclosed."
- [9] Ferriss, Tim. "Exclusive First Look: SU.PR Stumble Upon's New Traffic Builder" (http://www.fourhourworkweek.com/blog/2009/06/ 09/stumble-upon-supr/). Fourhourworkweek.com. . Retrieved 2010-06-07.
- [10] Keizer, Gregg (2006-07-18). "StumbleUpon Launches Plug-In For Microsoft Internet Explorer" (http://www.informationweek.com/news/ showArticle.jhtml?articleID=190500706&subSection=Breaking+News). InformationWeek. . Retrieved 2007-02-28.
- [11] Schonfeld, Erick (2008-04-23). "Five Million Users And Nearly Five Billion Stumbles Later" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2008/04/23/ five-million-users-and-nearly-five-billion-stumbles-later/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved 2008-04-25.
- [12] Arrington, Michael (2008-09-18). "That Was Fun, But Now Ebay's Selling Off StumbleUpon" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2008/09/18/ that-was-fun-but-now-ebays-selling-stumbleupon/). Techcrunch.com. Retrieved 2010-06-07.
- [13] "StumbleUpon Goes Independent; Backed by Founders and New Investors" (http://news.prnewswire.com/DisplayReleaseContent. aspx?ACCT=104&STORY=/www/story/04-13-2009/0005005074&EDATE). News.prnewswire.com. 2009-04-13. Retrieved

2010-06-07.

# **External links**

- Official website (http://www.stumbleupon.com/)
- Advanced Stumbling Wiki (http://stumbleupon.wikia.com/wiki/Advanced\_Stumbling)
- StumbleVideo for Wii (http://stumble.tv/) (Browser sniffing forwards non-Wii visitors to the normal StumbleVideo interface)
- Garrett Camp in TR35 (http://www.technologyreview.com/tr35/Profile.aspx?Cand=T&TRID=606)

# Twitter

	witter
Туре	Private
Founded	San Francisco, California, United States
Founder	Jack Dorsey Evan Williams Biz Stone
Headquarters	795 Folsom St., Suite 600, San Francisco, CA 94107 <sup>[1]</sup> , United States
Area served	Worldwide
Key people	Jack Dorsey (Chairman) Dick Costolo (CEO) Evan Williams (Product Strategy) Biz Stone (Creative Director)
Revenue	▲ US \$150 million (projected 2010) <sup>[2]</sup>
Employees	300 (2010) <sup>[3]</sup>
Slogan	What's happening?
Website	twitter.com <sup>[4]</sup>
Alexa rank	▲ 9 (October 2010) <sup>[5]</sup>
Type of site	mobile social network service, microblogging
Registration	Required
Users	190 million (visitors monthly) <sup>[6]</sup>
Available in	Multilingual English, Spanish, Japanese, German, French, and Italian
Launched	July 15, 2006 <sup>[7]</sup>
Current status	Active

**Twitter** is a website, owned and operated by Twitter Inc., which offers a social networking and microblogging service, enabling its users to send and read other users' messages called *tweets*. Tweets are text-based posts of up to 140 characters displayed on the user's profile page. Tweets are publicly visible by default, however senders can restrict message delivery to their friends list. Users may subscribe to other users' tweets—this is known as *following* and subscribers are known as *followers*.<sup>[8]</sup>

All users can send and receive tweets via the Twitter website, compatible external applications (such as for smartphones), or by Short Message Service (SMS) available in certain countries.<sup>[9]</sup> While the service is free, accessing it through SMS may incur phone service provider fees. The website is based in San Francisco, California (where the website was first based). Twitter also has servers and offices in San Antonio, Texas and Boston, Massachusetts.

Since its creation in 2006 by Jack Dorsey, Twitter has gained popularity worldwide and currently has more than 175 million users.<sup>[10]</sup> Quantcast estimates Twitter has 54 million monthly unique U.S. visitors.<sup>[11]</sup> It is sometimes

described as the "SMS of the Internet."<sup>[12]</sup>

## History

Twitter's origins lie in a "daylong brainstorming session" that was held by board members of the podcasting company Odeo. While sitting in a park on a children's slide and eating Mexican food, Jack Dorsey introduced the idea of an individual using an SMS service to communicate with a small group.<sup>[13]</sup> The original project code name for the service was **twttr**, inspired by Flickr and the five character length of American SMS short codes. The developers initially considered "10958" as a short code, but later changed it to "40404" for "ease of use and memorability."<sup>[14]</sup> Work on the project started on March 21, 2006, when Dorsey published the first Twitter message at 9:50 PM Pacific Standard Time (PST): "just setting up my twttr."<sup>[15]</sup>

[W]e came across the word "twitter," and it was just perfect. The definition was "a short burst of inconsequential information," and "chirps from birds." And that's exactly what the product was.



A blueprint sketch, circa 2006, by Jack Dorsey, envisioning an SMS-based social network.

—Jack Dorsey<sup>[16]</sup>

The first Twitter prototype was used as an internal service for Odeo employees and the full version was introduced publicly on July 15, 2006.<sup>[7]</sup> In October 2006, Biz Stone, Evan Williams, Dorsey, and other members of Odeo formed Obvious Corporation and acquired Odeo and all of its assets—including Odeo.com and Twitter.com—from the investors and shareholders.<sup>[17]</sup> Twitter spun off into its own company in April 2007.<sup>[18]</sup>

The tipping point for Twitter's popularity was the 2007 South by Southwest (SXSW) festival. During the event Twitter usage increased from 20,000 tweets per day to 60,000.<sup>[19]</sup> "The Twitter people cleverly placed two 60-inch plasma screens in the conference hallways, exclusively streaming Twitter messages," remarked *Newsweek's* Steven Levy. "Hundreds of conference-goers kept tabs on each other via constant twitters. Panelists and speakers mentioned the service, and the bloggers in attendance touted it."<sup>[20]</sup>

Reaction at the festival was highly positive. Blogger Scott Beale said that Twitter "absolutely rul[ed]" SXSW. Social software researcher Danah Boyd said Twitter "own[ed]" the festival.<sup>[21]</sup> Twitter staff received the festival's Web Award prize with the remark "we'd like to thank you in 140 characters or less. And we just did!"<sup>[22]</sup>

On September 14, 2010, Twitter launched a redesigned site including a new logo.<sup>[23]</sup>

On October 4, 2010, Evan Williams announced that he was stepping down as CEO. Dick Costolo, formerly COO of Twitter, took over Williams' position. Williams will stay with the company and "be completely focused on product strategy."<sup>[24]</sup>



#### Growth

Twitter had 400,000 tweets posted per quarter in 2007. This grew to 100 million tweets posted per quarter in 2008. By the end of 2009, 2 billion tweets per quarter were being posted. By March 2010, Twitter recorded over 70,000 registered applications, according to the company.<sup>[25]</sup> In February 2010 Twitter users were sending 50 million tweets per day.<sup>[26]</sup> In the first quarter of 2010, 4 billion tweets were posted. As of June 2010, about 65 million tweets are posted each day, equaling about 750 tweets sent each second, according to Twitter.<sup>[27]</sup>

Twitter's usage spikes during prominent events. For example, a record was set during the 2010 FIFA World Cup when fans wrote 2,940 tweets per second in the 30 second period after Japan scored against Cameroon on 14 June

2010. The record was broken again when 3,085 tweets a second were posted after the Los Angeles Lakers' victory in the 2010 NBA Finals on 17 June 2010.<sup>[28]</sup> When American singer Michael Jackson died on June 25, 2009, the Twitter server crashed after users were updating their status to include the words "Michael Jackson" at a rate of 100,000 tweets per hour.<sup>[29]</sup>

Twitter acquired application developer Atebits on April 11, 2010. Atebits had developed the Apple Design Award-winning Twitter client Tweetie for Mac and iPhone. The application, now called "Twitter" and distributed free of charge, is the official Twitter client for the iPhone.<sup>[30]</sup>

## Overview

Technology author Steven Johnson describes the basic mechanics of Twitter as "remarkably simple:"<sup>[31]</sup>

As a social network, Twitter revolves around the principle of followers. When you choose to follow another Twitter user, that user's tweets appear in reverse chronological order on your main Twitter page. If you follow 20 people, you'll see a mix of tweets scrolling down the page: breakfast-cereal updates, interesting new links, music recommendations, even musings on the future of education.

Twitter has been compared to a web-based Internet Relay Chat (IRC) client.<sup>[32]</sup>

#### Messages

Users can group posts together by topic or type by use of *hashtags* — words or phrases prefixed with a #.<sup>[33]</sup> Similarly, the letter d followed by a username allows users to send messages privately. Finally, the @ sign followed by a username is used for mentioning or replying to other users.<sup>[34]</sup>

In late 2009, the "Twitter Lists" feature was added, making it possible for users to follow (as well as mention and reply to) lists of authors instead of individual authors.<sup>[8] [35]</sup>

Through SMS, users can communicate with Twitter through five gateway numbers: short codes for the United States, Canada, India, New Zealand, and an Isle of Man-based number for international use. There is also a short code in the United Kingdom which is only accessible to those on the Vodafone, O2<sup>[36]</sup> and Orange<sup>[37]</sup> networks. In India, since Twitter only supports tweets from Bharti Airtel,<sup>[38]</sup> an alternative platform called smsTweet<sup>[39]</sup> was set up by a user to work on all networks.<sup>[40]</sup> A similar platform called GladlyCast<sup>[41]</sup> exists for mobile phone users in Singapore, Malaysia and the Philippines.

The messages were initially set to 140-character limit for compatibility with SMS messaging, introducing the shorthand notation and slang commonly used in SMS messages. The 140 character limit has also increased the usage of URL shortening services such as bit.ly, goo.gl, and tr.im, and content hosting services, such as Twitpic, memozu.com and NotePub to accommodate multimedia content and text longer than 140 characters. Twitter uses bit.ly for automatic shortening of all URLs posted on its website.<sup>[42]</sup>

#### **Tweet contents**

San Antonio-based market research firm Pear Analytics analyzed 2,000 tweets (originating from the US and in English) over a 2-week period in August 2009 from 11:00 AM to 5:00 PM (CST) and separated them into six categories:<sup>[43]</sup>

- Pointless babble 40%
- Conversational 38%
- Pass-along value 9%
- Self-promotion 6%
- Spam 4%
- News  $4\%^{[43]}$

Social networking researcher Danah Boyd responded to the Pear Analytics survey by arguing that what the Pear researchers labelled "pointless babble" is better characterized as "social grooming" and/or "peripheral awareness" (which she explains as persons "want[ing] to know what the people around them are thinking and doing and feeling, even when co-presence isn't viable").<sup>[44]</sup>



## Rankings

Twitter is ranked as one of the 10 most visited websites worldwide by Alexa's web traffic analysis.<sup>[45]</sup> Daily user estimates vary because the company does not release the number of active accounts. A February 2009 Compete.com blog entry ranked Twitter as the third most used social network based on their count of 6 million unique monthly visitors and 55 million monthly visits.<sup>[46]</sup> In March 2009, a Nielsen.com blog ranked Twitter as the fastest-growing website in the Member Communities category for February 2009. Twitter had a monthly growth of 1,382%, increasing from 475,000 unique visitors in February 2008 to 7 million in February 2009. It was followed by Zimbio with 240% increase, and Facebook with 228% increase.<sup>[47]</sup> However, only 40% of Twitter's users are retained.<sup>[48]</sup>

#### Adding and following content

There are numerous tools for adding content, monitoring content and conversations including Tweetdeck, Salesforce.com, HootSuite, and Twitterfeed.<sup>[49]</sup> Less than half of tweets are posted using the web user interface with most users using third-party applications (based on analysis of 500 million tweets by Sysomos).<sup>[50]</sup>

#### Authentication

As of August 31, 2010, third-party Twitter applications are required to use OAuth, an authentication method that allows users to use applications without having to give the applications their passwords. Previously, this authentication method was optional, but now third-party applications that try to use a username and password will fail. Twitter stated that the move to OAuth will mean "increased security and a better experience."<sup>[51]</sup>

#### **Demographics**

Twitter is mainly used by older adults who might not have used other social sites before Twitter, says Jeremiah Owyang, an industry analyst studying social media. "Adults are just catching up to what teens have been doing for years," he said.<sup>[52]</sup> According to comScore only 11% of Twitter's users are aged 12 to 17.<sup>[52]</sup> comScore attributes this to Twitter's "early adopter period" when the social network first gained popularity in business settings and news outlets attracting primarily older users. However, comScore as of late, has stated that Twitter has begun to "filter more into the mainstream", and "along with it came a culture of celebrity as Shaq, Britney Spears and Ashton Kutcher joined the ranks of the Twitterati."<sup>[53]</sup>

According to a study by Sysomos in June 2009, women make up a slightly larger Twitter demographic than men — 53% over 47%. It also stated that 5% of users accounted for 75% of all activity, and that New York has the most Twitter users.<sup>[54]</sup>

According to Quancast, 27 million people in the US used Twitter as of 09/03/2009. 63% of Twitter users are less than 35 years old, 60% of Twitter users are Caucasian, but a higher than average (compared to other Internet properties) are African American (16%) and Hispanic (11%); 58% of Twitter users have a total household income of at least \$60K.<sup>[55]</sup>

#### Finances

Twitter raised over US\$57 million from venture capitalist growth funding, although exact numbers are not publicly disclosed. Twitter's first A round of funding was for an undisclosed amount that is rumored to have been between \$1 million and \$5 million.<sup>[56]</sup> Its second B round of funding in 2008 was for \$22 million<sup>[57]</sup> and its third C round of funding in 2009 was for \$35 million from Institutional Venture Partners and Benchmark Capital along with an undisclosed amount from other investors including Union Square Ventures, Spark Capital and Insight Venture Partners.<sup>[56]</sup> Twitter is backed by Union Square Ventures, Digital Garage, Spark Capital, and Bezos Expeditions.<sup>[58]</sup>



Twitter's San Francisco headquarters located at 795 Folsom St.

The Industry Standard has remarked that Twitter's long-term viability

is limited by a lack of revenue.<sup>[59]</sup> Twitter board member Todd Chaffee forecast that the company could profit from e-commerce, noting that users may want to buy items directly from Twitter since it already provides product recommendations and promotions.<sup>[60]</sup>

On April 13, 2010, Twitter announced plans to offer paid advertising for companies that would be able to purchase "promoted tweets" to appear in selective search results on the Twitter website, similar to Google Adwords' advertising model. As of April 13, Twitter announced it had already signed up a number of companies wishing to advertise including Sony Pictures, Red Bull, Best Buy, and Starbucks.<sup>[61]</sup> [62]

Some of Twitter's revenue and user growth documents were illegally published on TechCrunch by the hacker Croll Hacker. The documents projected 2009 revenues of \$400,000 in the third quarter and \$4 million in the fourth quarter along with 25 million users by the end of the year. The projections for the end of 2013 were \$1.54 billion in revenue, \$111 million in net earnings, and 1 billion users.<sup>[2]</sup> No information about how Twitter plans to achieve those numbers has been published. In response, Twitter co-founder Biz Stone published a blog post suggesting the possibility of legal action against the hacker.<sup>[63]</sup>

# Technology

#### Implementation

The Twitter Web interface uses the Ruby on Rails framework,<sup>[64]</sup> deployed on a performance enhanced Ruby Enterprise Edition implementation of Ruby.<sup>[65]</sup>

From the spring of 2007 until 2008 the messages were handled by a Ruby persistent queue server called Starling,<sup>[66]</sup> but since 2009 implementation has been gradually replaced with software written in Scala.<sup>[67]</sup> The service's application programming interface (API) allows other web services and applications to integrate with Twitter.<sup>[68]</sup> <sup>[69]</sup>

#### Interface

On April 30, 2009, Twitter adjusted its web interface, adding a search bar and a sidebar of "trending topics" — the most common phrases appearing in messages. Biz Stone explains that all messages are instantly indexed and that "with this newly launched feature, Twitter has become something unexpectedly important — a discovery engine for finding out what is happening right now."<sup>[70]</sup>

#### Outages

When Twitter experiences an outage, users see the "fail whale" error message image created by Yiying Lu,<sup>[71]</sup> illustrating several red birds using a net to hoist a whale from the ocean captioned "Too many tweets! Please wait a moment and try again."<sup>[72]</sup>



Twitter had approximately 98% uptime in 2007 (or about six full days of downtime).<sup>[73]</sup> The downtime was particularly noticeable during events popular with the technology industry such as the 2008 Macworld Conference & Expo keynote address.<sup>[74]</sup> [75]

- November 2010 A number of accounts encountered a fault that resulted in them seeing the 'fail whale' when they tried to login to their accounts. The accounts themselves weren't locked out as account holders could still see their 'mentions' page and post from there. But the timeline and a number of other features were unavailable during this outage (which remains ongoing).
- May 2008 Twitter's new engineering team made architectural changes to deal with the scale of growth. Stability issues resulted in down time or temporary feature removal.
- August 2008, Twitter withdrew free SMS services from users in the United Kingdom<sup>[76]</sup> and for approximately five months instant messaging support via a XMPP bot was listed as being "temporarily unavailable".<sup>[77]</sup>
- October 10, 2008, Twitter's status blog announced that instant messaging (IM) service was no longer a temporary outage and needed to be revamped. It was announced that Twitter aims to return its IM service pending necessary major work.<sup>[78]</sup>
- June 12, 2009, in what was called a potential "Twitpocalypse", the unique numerical identifier associated with each tweet exceeded the limit of 32-bit signed integers (2,147,483,647 total messages).<sup>[79]</sup> While Twitter itself was not affected, some third-party clients could no longer access recent tweets. Patches were quickly released, though some iPhone applications had to wait for approval from the App Store.<sup>[80]</sup>
- September 22, the identifier exceeded the limit for 32-bit *unsigned* integers (4,294,967,296 total messages) again breaking some third-party clients.<sup>[81]</sup>
- August 6, 2009, Twitter and Facebook suffered from a denial-of-service attack, causing the Twitter website to go offline for several hours.<sup>[82]</sup> It was later confirmed that the attacks were directed at one pro-Georgian user around the anniversary of the 2008 South Ossetia War, rather than the sites themselves.<sup>[83]</sup>

 17 December 2009 a hacking attack replaced the website's welcoming screen with an image of a green flag and the caption "This site has been hacked by Iranian Cyber Army" for nearly an hour. No connection between the hackers and Iran has been established.<sup>[84]</sup>

#### **Privacy and security**

Twitter collects personally identifiable information about its users and shares it with third parties. The service reserves the right to sell this information as an asset if the company changes hands.<sup>[85]</sup> While Twitter displays no advertising, advertisers can target users based on their history of tweets and may quote tweets in ads<sup>[86]</sup> directed specifically to the user.

A security vulnerability was reported on April 7, 2007, by Nitesh Dhanjani and Rujith. Since Twitter used the phone number of the sender of an SMS message as authentication, malicious users could update someone else's status page by using SMS spoofing.<sup>[87]</sup> The vulnerability could be used if the spoofer knew the phone number registered to their victim's account. Within a few weeks of this discovery Twitter introduced an optional personal identification number (PIN) that its users could use to authenticate their SMS-originating messages.<sup>[88]</sup>

On January 5, 2009, 33 high-profile Twitter accounts were compromised after a Twitter administrator's password was guessed by a dictionary attack.<sup>[89]</sup> Falsified tweets — including sexually explicit and drug-related messages — were sent from these accounts.<sup>[90]</sup>

Twitter launched the beta version of their "Verified Accounts" service on June 11, 2009, allowing famous or notable people to announce their Twitter account name. The home pages of these accounts display a badge indicating their status.<sup>[91]</sup>

In May 2010, a bug was discovered by İnci Sözlük users that allowed Twitter users to force others to follow them without the other user's knowledge. For example, comedian Conan O'Brien's account which had been set to follow only one person was changed to receive nearly 200 malicious subscriptions.<sup>[92]</sup>

In response to Twitter's security breaches, the Federal Trade Commission brought charges against the service which were settled on June 24, 2010. This was the first time the FTC had taken action against a social network for security lapses. The settlement requires Twitter to take a number of steps to secure users' private information including maintenance of a "comprehensive information security program" to be independently audited biannually.<sup>[93]</sup>

#### "MouseOver" exploit

On 21 September 2010, an XSS Worm became active on Twitter. When an account user held the mouse cursor over blacked out parts of a tweet, the worm within the script would automatically open links and re-post itself on the reader's account.<sup>[94]</sup> The exploit was then re-used to post pop-up ads and links to pornographic sites.

The origin is unclear but Pearce Delphin (known on Twitter as @zzap) and a Scandinavian developer, Magnus Holm, both claim to have modified the exploit of a user, possibly Masato Kinugawa, who was using it to create coloured Tweets.<sup>[95]</sup> Kinugawa, a Japanese developer, reported the XSS vulnerability to Twitter on August 14. Later, when he found it was exploitable again, he created the account 'RainbowTwtr' and used it to post coloured messages.<sup>[95]</sup>

Delphin says he exposed the security flaw by tweeting a JavaScript function for "onMouseOver",<sup>[95]</sup> and Holm later created and posted the XSS Worm that automatically re-tweeted itself.<sup>[94]</sup>

Accounts affected by the virus included Sarah Brown, wife of former British Prime Minister Gordon Brown. Security firm Sophos reported the virus was spread by people doing it for "fun and games", but noted it could be exploited by cybercriminals.<sup>[96]</sup> Twitter issued a statement on their status blog at 13:50 UTC that "*The exploit is fully patched*".<sup>[94]</sup> <sup>[97]</sup> Twitter representative Carolyn Penner has expressed that they will not be pressing charges over this incident.<sup>[98]</sup>

#### **Open source**

Twitter released several open source projects developed while overcoming technical challenges of their service.<sup>[99]</sup> Notable projects are the Gizzard Scala framework for creating distributed datastores and the distributed graph database FlockDB.

## t.co

**t.co** is a URL shortening service created by Twitter.<sup>[100]</sup> It is only available for links posted to Twitter and not available for general use.<sup>[100]</sup> Eventually all links posted to Twitter will use a t.co wrapper.<sup>[101]</sup>

Twitter hopes that the service will be able to protect users from malicious sites,<sup>[100]</sup> and will use it to track clicks on links within tweets.<sup>[100]</sup>

#### History

Having previously used the services of third parties TinyURL and bit.ly,<sup>[103]</sup> Twitter began experimenting with its own URL shortening service for direct messages in March 2010 using the twt.tl domain,<sup>[101]</sup> before it purchased the t.co domain.

The service is being tested on the main site using the accounts @TwitterAPI, @rsarver and @raffi.<sup>[101]</sup>

On 2 September 2010 an email from Twitter to users said they would be expanding the roll-out of the service to users.

# Reception

#### **Change of focus**

Twitter emphasized their news and information network strategy in November 2009 by changing the question asked users for status updates from "What are you doing?" to "What's happening?".<sup>[104]</sup> [<sup>105]</sup> *Entertainment Weekly* put it on its end-of-the-decade, "best-of" list, saying, "Limiting yourself to 140 characters—the maximum for messages on this diabolically addictive social-networking tool—is easy."<sup>[106]</sup>



#### Criticism

The Wall Street Journal wrote that social-networking services such as

Twitter "elicit mixed feelings in the technology-savvy people who have been their early adopters. Fans say they are a good way to keep in touch with busy friends. But some users are starting to feel 'too' connected, as they grapple with check-in messages at odd hours, higher cellphone bills and the need to tell acquaintances to stop announcing what they're having for dinner."<sup>[107]</sup>

"Using Twitter for literate communication is about as likely as firing up a CB radio and hearing some guy recite the *Iliad*", said tech writer Bruce Sterling.<sup>[108]</sup> "For many people, the idea of describing your blow-by-blow activities in such detail is absurd," hypothesized writer Clive Thompson. "Why would you subject your friends to your daily minutiae? And conversely, how much of their trivia can you absorb? The growth of ambient intimacy can seem like modern narcissism taken to a new, supermetabolic extreme—the ultimate expression of a generation of celebrity-addled youths who believe their every utterance is fascinating and ought to be shared with the world."<sup>[109]</sup>

On the other hand Steve Dotto opines that part of Twitter's appeal is the challenge of trying to publish such messages in tight constraints.<sup>[110]</sup> "The qualities that make Twitter seem inane and half-baked are what makes it so powerful,"

says Jonathan Zittrain, professor of Internet law at Harvard Law School.<sup>[111]</sup>

Nielsen Online reports that Twitter has a user retention rate of 40%. Many people stop using the service after a month therefore the site may potentially reach only about 10% of all Internet users.<sup>[112]</sup> In 2009, Twitter won the "Breakout of the Year" Webby Award.<sup>[113]</sup> [114]

During a February 2009 discussion on National Public Radio's *Weekend Edition*, Daniel Schorr stated that Twitter accounts of events lacked rigorous fact-checking and other editorial improvements. In response, Andy Carvin gave Schorr two examples of breaking news stories that played out on Twitter and said users wanted first-hand accounts and sometimes debunked stories.<sup>[115]</sup>

In an episode of *The Daily Show* on February 26, 2009, guest Brian Williams described tweets as only referring to the condition of the author. Williams implied that he would never use Twitter because nothing he did was interesting enough to publish in Twitter format.<sup>[116]</sup> During another episode of *The Daily Show* on March 2, 2009, host Jon Stewart negatively portrayed members of Congress who chose to "tweet" during President Obama's address to Congress (on February 24, 2009) rather than pay attention to the content of the speech. The show's Samantha Bee satirized media coverage of the service saying "there's no surprise young people love it — according to reports of young people by middle-aged people."<sup>[117]</sup>

In March 2009, the comic strip *Doonesbury* began to satirize Twitter. Many characters highlighted the triviality of tweets although one defended the need to keep up with the constant-update trend.<sup>[118]</sup> SuperNews! similarly satirized Twitter as an addiction to "constant self-affirmation" and said tweets were nothing more than "shouts into the darkness hoping someone is listening".<sup>[119]</sup>

In August 2010, South Korea tried to block certain content on Twitter due to the North Korean government opening a Twitter account.<sup>[120]</sup> The North Korean Twitter account created on August 12, @uriminzok, loosely translated to mean "our people" in Korean, acquired over 4,500 followers in less than one week. On August 19, 2010, South Korea's state-run Communications Standards Commission banned the Twitter account for broadcasting "illegal information."<sup>[121]</sup> According to BBC US and Canada, experts claim that North Korea has invested in "information technology for more than 20 years" with knowledge of how to use social networking sites to their power<sup>[122]</sup> This appears to be "nothing new" for North Korea as the reclusive country has always published propaganda in its press, usually against South Korea, calling them "warmongers."<sup>[122]</sup> With only 36 tweets, the Twitter account was able to accumulate almost 9,000 followers. To date, the South Korean Commission has banned 65 sites, including this Twitter account.<sup>[121]</sup>

## See also

- Ambient Awareness
- Blauk
- Comparison of micro-blogging services
- · List of Twitter services and applications

## References

- [1] "Contact Us" (http://twitter.com/about/contact).
- [2] "Hacker Exposes Private Twitter Documents" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2009/07/15/hacker-exposes-private-twitter-documents/ ?hpw.). The New York Times. July 15, 2009. Retrieved July 15, 2009.
- [3] "Press Info" (http://blog.twitter.com/2010/10/newtwitterceo.html), Twitter. Retrieved May 27, 2010.
- [4] http://twitter.com/
- [5] "twitter.com Traffic Details from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/twitter.com). Alexa Internet, Inc. . Retrieved August 27, 2010.
- [6] "Costolo: Twitter Now Has 190 Million Users Tweeting 65 Million Times A Day" (http://techcrunch.com/2010/06/08/ twitter-190-million-users/). TechCrunch. Retrieved July 14, 2010.
- [7] Michael Arrington Jul 15, 2006 (2006-07-15). "Odeo Releases Twttr" (http://techcrunch.com/2006/07/15/is-twttr-interesting/). Techcrunch.com. Retrieved 2010-09-18.

- [8] "There's a List for That" (http://blog.twitter.com/2009/10/theres-list-for-that.html). blog.twitter.com. October 30, 2009. . Retrieved February 1, 2010.
- [9] "Using Twitter With Your Phone" (http://help.twitter.com/entries/14226-how-to-find-your-twitter-short-long-code). Twitter Support. . Retrieved 2010-06-01. "We currently support 2-way (sending and receiving) Twitter SMS via short codes and 1-way (sending only) via long codes."
- [10] "Twitter: On-Track for 200 Million Users by Year's End" (http://www.pcmag.com/article2/0,2817,2371826,00.asp). Retrieved October 31, 2010.
- [11] "twitter.com Quantcast Audience Profile" (http://www.quantcast.com/twitter.com). Quantcast.com. . Retrieved 2010-10-30.
- [12] D'Monte, Leslie (April 29, 2009). "Swine flu's tweet tweet causes online flutter" (http://www.business-standard.com/india/news/ swine-flu\s-tweet-tweet-causes-online-flutter/356604/). Business Standard. . Retrieved May 28, 2009. "Also known as the 'SMS of the internet', Twitter is a free social networking and micro-blogging service"
- [13] Miller, Claire Cain (October 30, 2010). "Why Twitter's C.E.O. Demoted Himself" (http://www.nytimes.com/2010/10/31/technology/ 31ev.html). The New York Times. Retrieved October 31, 2010.
- [14] Sagolla, Dom (January 30, 2009). "How Twitter Was Born" (http://www.140characters.com/2009/01/30/how-twitter-was-born/). 140 Characters. Retrieved June 25, 2009.
- [15] Dorsey, Jack (2006). "just setting up my twttr" (http://twitter.com/jack/status/20). Twitter. . Retrieved June 19, 2009
- [16] Sano, David (February 18, 2009). "Twitter creator Jack Dorsey illuminates the site's founding document" (http://latimesblogs.latimes. com/technology/2009/02/twitter-creator.html). Los Angeles Times. . Retrieved June 18, 2009.
- [17] Malik, Om (October 25, 2006). "Odeo RIP, Hello Obvious Corp" (http://gigaom.com/2006/10/25/odeo-rip-hello-obvious-corp/). GigaOM. . Retrieved June 20, 2009.
- [18] Lennon, Andrew. "A Conversation With Twitter Co-Founder Jack Dorsey" (http://www.thedailyanchor.com/2009/02/12/ a-conversation-with-twitter-co-founder-jack-dorsey/). The Daily Anchor. Retrieved February 12, 2009.
- [19] Douglas, Nick (March 12, 2007). "Twitter blows up at SXSW Conference" (http://gawker.com/tech/next-big-thing/ twitter-blows-up-at-sxsw-conference-243634.php). Gawker. . Retrieved June 20, 2009.
- [20] Levy, Steven (April 30, 2007). "Twitter: Is Brevity The Next Big Thing" (http://www.newsweek.com/id/35289). Newsweek. Retrieved June 20, 2009.
- [21] Terdiman, Daniel (March 10, 2007). "To Twitter or Dodgeball at SXSW?" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-17939\_109-9696264-2.html). CNET. Retrieved June 20, 2009.
- [22] Stone, Biz (March 14, 2007). "We Won!" (http://blog.twitter.com/2007/03/we-won.html). Twitter. . Retrieved May 7, 2008.
- [23] Cashmore, Pete (September 16, 2010). "New Twitter' shows the Web isn't dead" (http://www.cnn.com/2010/TECH/social.media/09/ 16/cashmore.twitter.web/index.html). CNN. . Retrieved September 16, 2010.
- [24] "#newtwitterceo" (http://blog.twitter.com/2010/10/newtwitterceo.html). blog.twitter.com. October 4, 2010. .
- [25] "Twitter registers 1,500 per cent growth in users" (http://www.newstatesman.com/digital/2010/03/twitter-registered-created). 4 March 2010. Retrieved March 5, 2010.
- [26] Beaumont, Claudine (February 23, 2010). "Twitter users send 50 million tweets per day" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/technology/ twitter/7297541/Twitter-users-send-50-million-tweets-per-day.html). The Daily Telegraph (London).
- [27] "Big Goals, Big Game, Big Records" (http://blog.twitter.com/2010/06/big-goals-big-game-big-records.html). blog.twitter.com. 18 June 2010. . Retrieved 4 August 2010.
- [28] Miller, Claire Cain (18 June 2010). "Sports Fans Break Records on Twitter" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2010/06/18/ sports-fans-break-records-on-twitter/). *The New York Times*. Retrieved 19 June 2010.
- [29] Shiels, Maggie (2009-06-26). "Technology | Web slows after Jackson's death" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/technology/8120324.stm). BBC News. . Retrieved 2010-09-26.
- [30] "Twitter Acquires Atebits, Maker of Tweetie" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2010/04/09/twitter-acquires-atebits-maker-of-tweetie/). The New York Times. 11 April 2010. Retrieved 12 April 2010.
- [31] "How Twitter Will Change the Way We Live" (http://www.time.com/time/printout/0,8816,1902604,00.html). Time. June 5, 2009. . Retrieved August 21, 2009.
- [32] Stutzman, Fred (April 11, 2007). "The 12-Minute Definitive Guide to Twitter" (http://dev.aol.com/article/2007/04/ definitive-guide-to-twitter). AOL Developer Network. . Retrieved November 12, 2008.
- [33] Flynn, Montana (April 8, 2009). "How To: #Hashtags on twitter (#quote, #followfriday, etc..)" (http://blog.complimedia.com/2009/04/ how-to-hashtags-on-twitter-quote-followfriday-etc/). Complimedia. Retrieved June 17, 2009.
- [34] Strachan, Donald (February 19, 2009). "Twitter: how to set up your account" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/travel/4698589/ Twitter-how-to-set-up-your-account.html). *The Daily Telegraph* (London). Retrieved June 14, 2009.
- [35] "Twitter Lists!" (http://help.twitter.com/forums/10711/entries/76460). help.twitter.com. November 9, 2009. Retrieved February 1, 2010.
- [36] Andrews, Robert (March 27, 2009). "Twitter brings back UK SMS; Vodafone first, others to follows" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/ media/pda/2009/mar/27/twitter-socialnetworking1). *The Guardian* (London). Retrieved June 7, 2009.
- [37] "Blog.Twitter.com" (http://blog.twitter.com/2009/11/another-first-in-uk.html). Blog.Twitter.com. November 16, 2009. . Retrieved March 28, 2010.

- [38] "Twitter, Bharti Airtel tie-up to activate Twitter SMS service in Indi" (http://www.topnews.in/ twitter-bharti-airtel-tieup-activate-twitter-sms-service-india-2224961). India: TopNews. Thu, 15/10/2009 – 11:45. . Retrieved December 18, 2009.
- [39] "SMStweet :: Send Twitter Message using SMS in India" (http://www.smstweet.in/). India. . Retrieved April 3, 2010.
- [40] "Tweeting via SMS is in, the way it should be" (http://www.dnaindia.com/scitech/ report\_tweeting-via-sms-is-in-the-way-it-should-be\_1324562). India: Daily News and Analysis. Thursday, December 17, 2009 9:22 IS. . Retrieved December 18, 2009.
- [41] "gladlyCast >> Update Twitter or Plurk by sending an SMS to a Singapore or Malaysia local number" (http://gladlycast.com/). Singapore.
  Retrieved April 3, 2010.
- [42] Wauters, Robin (May 6, 2009). "TechCrunch.com" (http://www.techcrunch.com/2009/05/06/ url-shortening-wars-twitter-ditches-tinyurl-for-bitly). TechCrunch.com. . Retrieved March 28, 2010.
- [43] Kelly, Ryan, ed (August 12, 2009). "Twitter Study August 2009" (http://www.pearanalytics.com/blog/wp-content/uploads/2010/05/ Twitter-Study-August-2009.pdf) (PDF). Twitter Study Reveals Interesting Results About Usage. San Antonio, Texas: Pear Analytics. . Retrieved Jun 3, 2010
- [44] Boyd, Danah (August 16, 2009). "Twitter: "pointless babble" or peripheral awareness + social grooming?" (http://www.zephoria.org/ thoughts/archives/2009/08/16/twitter\_pointle.html). Retrieved September 19, 2009.
- [45] "Twitter.com Traffic Details from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/twitter.com). Alexa Internet. August 26, 2010. . Retrieved August 26, 2010.
- [46] Kazeniac, Andy (February 9, 2009). "Social Networks: Facebook Takes Over Top Spot, Twitter Climbs" (http://blog.compete.com/2009/ 02/09/facebook-myspace-twitter-social-network/). Compete.com. . Retrieved February 17, 2009.
- [47] McGiboney, Michelle (March 18, 2009). "Twitter's Tweet Smell of Success" (http://blog.nielsen.com/nielsenwire/online\_mobile/ twitters-tweet-smell-of-success/). Nielsen. . Retrieved April 5, 2009.
- [48] Hoffman, Stefanie (April 29, 2009). "Twitter Quitters Outnumber Those Who Stay, Report Finds" (http://www.crn.com/security/ 217200834; jsessionid=0AQSMPNH52QRQQSNDLOSKHSCJUNN2JVN). United Business Media. . Retrieved April 29, 2009.
- [49] "Publishing web content to Twitter" (http://www.gossinteractive.com/twitterfeed). Goss Interactive. February 16, 2010. . Retrieved Feb 16, 2010.
- [50] "Inside Twitter Clients an analysis of 500 million tweets" (http://www.sysomos.com/insidetwitter/clients). Sysomos. Nov, 2009. . Retrieved Aug 23, 2010.
- [51] "Twitter Applications and OAuth" (http://blog.twitter.com/2010/08/twitter-applications-and-oauth.html). Twitter. August 30, 2010. . Retrieved Sep 13, 2010.
- [52] Miller, Claire Cain (August 25, 2009). "Who's Driving Twitter's Popularity? Not Teens" (http://www.nytimes.com/2009/08/26/ technology/internet/26twitter.html). The New York Times. . Retrieved September 18, 2009.
- [53] Lipsman, Andrew (September 2, 2009). "What Ashton vs. CNN Foretold About the Changing Demographics of Twitter" (http://blog. comscore.com/2009/09/changing\_demographics\_of\_twitter.html). comScore. . Retrieved September 18, 2009.
- [54] Cheng, Alex; Evans, Mark (June 2009). "An In-Depth Look Inside the Twitter World" (http://www.sysomos.com/insidetwitter/). . Retrieved June 17, 2010.
- [55] Bluff Brian (May 2010). accessdate=Sept. 22, 2010 "Who Uses Twitter?" (http://www.site-seeker.com/\_blogs/ who-uses-twitter-demographic/). accessdate=Sept. 22, 2010.
- [56] "Twitter Raises Over \$35M in Series C" (http://www.marketingvox.com/twitter-raises-over-35m-in-series-c-043192//). MarketingVOX. February 16, 2009. . Retrieved June 17, 2009.
- [57] Womack, Brian (November 12, 2008). "Twitter Shuns Venture-Capital Money as Startup Values Plunge" (http://www.bloomberg.com/ apps/news?pid=20601109&sid=afu06n0L7LZ4). Bloomberg L.P. . Retrieved November 12, 2008.
- [58] Miller, Claire Cain (October 16, 2008). "Twitter Sidelines One Founder and Promotes Another" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2008/10/ 16/ttwitter-sidelines-one-founder-and-promotes-another/#more-1642). The New York Times. . Retrieved November 5, 2008.
- [59] Snyder, Bill (March 31, 2008). "Twitter: Fanatical users help build the brand, but not revenue" (http://www.thestandard.com/news/2008/ 03/28/twitter-fanatical-users-help-build-brand-not-revenue). *The Industry Standard*. Retrieved May 7, 2008.
- [60] Miller, Claire (June 19, 2009). "Twitter Plans to Offer Shopping Advice and Easy Purchasing" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2009/06/ 19/twitter-plans-to-offer-shopping-advice-and-easy-purchasing/). The New York Times. . Retrieved June 20, 2009.
- [61] Arthur, Charles (April 13, 2010). "Twitter unveils 'promoted tweets' ad plan" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/technology/2010/apr/13/ twitter-advertising-google). *The Guardian* (London). Retrieved May 26, 2010.
- [62] Kimberley, Sara (2010-04-13). "Twitter debuts 'Promoted Tweets' ad platform" (http://www.mediaweek.co.uk/news/996226/ Twitter-debuts-Promoted-Tweets-ad-platform/). Media Week. Retrieved 2010-06-01.
- [63] Stone, Biz (July 15, 2007). "Twitter, Even More Open Than We Wanted" (http://blog.twitter.com/2009/07/ twitter-even-more-open-than-we-wanted.html). Twitter. . Retrieved May 7, 2008.
- [64] Gomes, Lee (June 22, 2009). "The Pied Piper of Pay" (http://www.forbes.com/forbes/2009/0622/ software-internet-innovation-digital-tools.html). *Forbes*. Retrieved June 16, 2009.
- [65] ryan king (September 25, 2009). "Twitter on Ruby" (http://blog.evanweaver.com/articles/2009/09/24/ree/). Retrieved October 31, 2009. "We recently migrated Twitter from a custom Ruby 1.8.6 build to a Ruby Enterprise Edition release candidate, courtesy of Phusion. Our primary motivation was the integration of Brent's MBARI patches, which increase memory stability."

- [66] Payne (January 16, 2008). "Announcing Starling" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080120141113/http://dev.twitter.com/2008/01/ announcing-starling.html). Twitter. Archived from the original (http://dev.twitter.com/2008/01/announcing-starling.html) on January 20, 2008. Retrieved January 11, 2009.
- [67] Venners, Bill (April 3, 2009). "Twitter on Scala" (http://www.artima.com/scalazine/articles/twitter\_on\_scala.html). Artima Developer. . Retrieved June 17, 2009.
- [68] "API Documentation" (http://groups.google.com/group/twitter-development-talk/web/api-documentation). Google Groups. . Retrieved May 8, 2008.
- [69] "Twitter API Wiki / FrontPage" (http://apiwiki.twitter.com/). Apiwiki.twitter.com. . Retrieved 2010-09-18.
- [70] Stone, Biz (April 30, 2009). "Twitter Search for Everyone!" (http://blog.twitter.com/2009/04/twitter-search-for-everyone.html). Twitter. Retrieved May 7, 2008.
- [71] Walker, Rob (February 15, 2009). "Fail Whale" (http://www.nytimes.com/2009/02/15/magazine/15wwln\_consumed-t.html?\_r=2). Consumed (New York Times Magazine): p. 17. . Retrieved February 15, 2009.
- [72] Whyte, Murray (June 1, 2008). "Tweet, tweet there's been an earthquake; How an online social network chirpily called Twitter is becoming anything but trivial" (http://www.thestar.com/News/Ideas/article/434826). Toronto Star. . Retrieved June 1, 2008.
- [73] "Twitter growing pains cause lots of downtime in 2007" (http://royal.pingdom.com/2007/12/19/
- twitter-growing-pains-cause-lots-of-downtime-in-2007/). Pingdom. December 19, 2007. . Retrieved June 17, 2009.
- [74] Dorsey, Jack (January 15, 2008). "MacWorld" (http://blog.twitter.com/2008/01/macworld.html). Twitter. . Retrieved May 7, 2008.
- [75] Kuramoto, Jake (January 15, 2008). "MacWorld Brings Twitter to its Knees" (http://theappslab.com/2008/01/15/ macworld-brings-twitter-to-its-knees/). Oracle AppsLab. . Retrieved May 7, 2008.
- [76] "Changes for Some SMS Users—Good and Bad News" (http://blog.twitter.com/2008/08/changes-for-some-sms-usersgood-and-bad. html). Twitter (blog). August 13, 2008. Retrieved June 14, 2009.
- [77] Dorsey, Jack (May 23, 2008). "Twitter IM down May 23rd-May 24th" (http://getsatisfaction.com/twitter/topics/ twitter\_im\_down\_may\_23rd\_may24th). Get Satisfaction. Retrieved July 29, 2008.
- [78] Williams, Evan (October 10, 2008). "IM: Not coming soon" (http://status.twitter.com/post/53978711/im-not-coming-soon). Twitter status blog. . Retrieved December 31, 2008.
- [79] Siegler, MG (June 12, 2009). "Twitter Moves Up The Twitpocalypse. All Hell May Break Loose Today." (http://www.techcrunch.com/ 2009/06/12/all-hell-may-break-loose-on-twitter-in-2-hours/). TechCrunch. . Retrieved July 18, 2009.
- [80] O'Brien, John (June 24, 2009). "The age of the Twitpocalypse" (http://blogs.news.com.au/techblog/index.php/news/comments/ macchat\_2009\_the\_age\_of\_the\_twitpocalypse/56653). news.com.au. News Limited. . Retrieved July 13, 2009.
- [81] Parr, Ben (September 21, 2009). "Twitpocalypse II: Twitter Apps Might Break Tomorrow" (http://mashable.com/2009/09/21/ twitpocalypse-ii-update/). Retrieved September 23, 2009.
- [82] Claburn, Thomas (August 6, 2009). "Twitter Downed By Denial Of Service Attack" (http://www.informationweek.com/news/security/ attacks/showArticle.jhtml?articleID=219100308). InformationWeek. . Retrieved August 6, 2009.
- [83] "Web attack 'aimed at one blogger'" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/technology/8189162.stm). BBC News. August 7, 2009. Retrieved August 7, 2009.
- [84] "CNN: Twitter attacked" (http://edition.cnn.com/2009/TECH/12/18/twitter.hacked/index.html). Edition.cnn.com. December 18, 2009. Retrieved March 28, 2010.
- [85] "Twitter Privacy Policy" (http://twitter.com/privacy/). Twitter. May 14, 2007. . Retrieved March 11, 2009.
- [86] Hansell, Saul (July 16, 2009). "Advertisers Are Watching Your Every Tweet" (http://bits.blogs.nytimes.com/2009/07/16/ advertisers-are-watching-your-every-tweet/). The New York Times. . Retrieved July 17, 2009.
- [87] Gilbertson, Scott (June 11, 2007). "Twitter Vulnerability: Spoof Caller ID To Take Over Any Account" (http://www.webmonkey.com/ blog/Twitter\_Vulnerability:\_Spoof\_Caller\_ID\_To\_Take\_Over\_Any\_Account). Webmonkey. . Retrieved April 6, 2009.
- [88] Leyden, John (March 6, 2009). "Twitter SMS spoofing still undead" (http://www.theregister.co.uk/2009/03/06/ twitter\_sms\_spoofing\_risk/). The Register. . Retrieved June 17, 2009.
- [89] Stone, Biz (January 5, 2009). "Monday Morning Madness" (http://blog.twitter.com/2009/01/monday-morning-madness.html). . Retrieved June 17, 2009.
- [90] Bellantoni, Christina; Stephen Dinan (January 5, 2009). "Obama's Twitter site hacked?" (http://www.washingtontimes.com/news/2009/ jan/05/obamas-twitter-site-hacked/). The Washington Times. . Retrieved January 5, 2009.
- [91] "Twitter power players get shiny 'verified' badges" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-13577\_3-10263759-36.html). June 12, 2009. Retrieved July 1, 2009.
- [92] Ostrow, Adam (May 10, 2010). "Twitter Bug Lets You Control Who Follows You" (http://mashable.com/2010/05/10/ twitter-follow-bug/). *Mashable*. Retrieved May 11, 2010.
- [93] Gonsalves, Antone. "Twitter, Feds Settle Security Charges Social Network Privacy" (http://www.informationweek.com/news/security/ privacy/showArticle.jhtml?articleID=225701450&subSection=Privacy). InformationWeek. . Retrieved 2010-09-18.
- [94] "BBC News Twitter scrambles to block worms" (http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/technology-11382469). bbc.co.uk. September 21, 2010. . Retrieved 21 September 2010.
- [95] "17-year-old Australian Boy, Japanese Developer Take Blame for Twitter Meltdown" (http://mashable.com/2010/09/22/ twitter-meltdown-17-year-old/). *mashable.com*. Retrieved 22 September 2010.

- [96] "Twitter flaw pumps out spam links" (http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/technology-11382469). BBC. 21 September 2010. . Retrieved 21 September 2010.
- [97] "Twitter Status XSS attack identified and patched." (http://status.twitter.com/post/1161435117/xss-attack-identified-and-patched). status.twitter.com. Retrieved 21 September 2010.
- [98] [] "Kiwi link to Twitter 'mouseover' chaos" (http://www.nzherald.co.nz/technology/news/article.cfm?c\_id=5&objectid=10675311). New Zealand Herald. 2010-09-22. ISSN 1170-0777. Retrieved 2010-09-22.
- [99] "Twitter / OpenSource" (http://twitter.com/about/opensource). Twitter.com. . Retrieved 2010-06-01.
- [100] "About Twitter's Link Service <a href="http://t.co>" (http://support.twitter.com/entries/109623">http://t.co>" (http://support.twitter.com/entries/109623</a>). Retrieved 2010-09-03.
- [101] "Twitter Blog: Links and Twitter: Length Shouldn't Matter" (http://blog.twitter.com/2010/06/links-and-twitter-length-shouldnt.html). . Retrieved 2010-09-03.
- [102] "Twitter tightens grip on own firehose" (http://www.theregister.co.uk/2010/09/02/twitter\_ipad\_app\_and\_url\_shortener/). Retrieved 2010-09-03.
- [103] "Twitter Switches From TinyURL To Bit.ly" (http://www.businessinsider.com/twitter-switches-from-tinyurl-to-bitly-2009-5). Retrieved 2010-09-05.
- [104] "What's happening? A lot, says Twitter COO | Tech Blog | FT.com" (http://blogs.ft.com/techblog/2009/11/ whats-happening-a-lot-says-twitter-coo/). Blogs.ft.com. November 20, 2009. . Retrieved March 28, 2010.
- [105] "Twitter Blog: What's Happening?" (http://blog.twitter.com/2009/11/whats-happening.html). Blog.twitter.com. November 19, 2009. . Retrieved March 28, 2010.
- [106] Geier, Thom; Jensen, Jeff; Jordan, Tina; Lyons, Margaret; Markovitz, Adam; Nashawaty, Chris; Pastorek, Whitney; Rice, Lynette; Rottenberg, Josh; Schwartz, Missy; Slezak, Michael; Snierson, Dan; Stack, Tim; Stroup, Kate; Tucker, Ken; Vary, Adam B.; Vozick-Levinson, Simon; Ward, Kate (December 11, 2009), "The 100 Greatest Movies, TV shows, Albums, Books, Character, Scenes, Episodes, Songs, Dresses, Music Videos, and Trends that entertained us over the past 10 years". Entertainment Weekly. (1079/1080):74-84
- [107] Lavallee, Andrew (March 16, 2007). "Friends Swap Twitters, and Frustration" (http://online.wsj.com/public/article/ SB117373145818634482-ZwdoPQ0PqPrcFMDHDZLz\_P6osnI\_20080315.html). *The Wall Street Journal*. Retrieved May 7, 200 8.
- [108] Jason, Pontin (April 22, 2007). "From Many Tweets, One Loud Voice on the Internet" (http://www.nytimes.com/2007/04/22/business/ yourmoney/22stream.html). *The New York Times*. Retrieved June 21, 2009.
- [109] Thompson, Clive (September 5, 2009). "I'm So Totally, Digitally Close to You" (http://www.nytimes.com/2008/09/07/magazine/ 07awareness-t.html?\_r=1&pagewanted=all). The New York Times Magazine. Retrieved August 22, 2009.
- [110] Lewis, Nick (April 16, 2009). "Tweet this: It's the year of the Twitter" (http://www.vancouversun.com/Entertainment/Tweet+this+ year+Twitter/1470046/story.html). The Vancouver Sun. Retrieved April 13, 2009.
- [111] Cohen, Noam (June 20, 2009). "Twitter on the Barricades: Six Lessons Learned" (http://www.nytimes.com/2009/06/21/weekinreview/ 21cohenweb.html?\_r=1&hp). The New York Times. . Retrieved June 21, 2009.
- [112] Goldsmith, Belinda (April 29, 2009). "Many Twitters are quick quitters: study" (http://www.reuters.com/article/deborahCohen/ idUSTRE53S1A720090429). Reuters (Thompson Reuters). Retrieved April 29, 2009.
- [113] "13th Annual Webby Special Achievement Award Winners" (http://www.webbyawards.com/webbys/specialachievement13.php/ #twitter). Webby Awards. Retrieved May 5, 2009.
- [114] Paul, Ian (May 5, 2009). "Jimmy Fallon Wins Top Webby: And the Winners Are PC World May 5, 2009" (http://www.pcworld.com/ article/164374/jimmy\_fallon\_wins\_top\_webby\_and\_the\_winners\_are.html). PC World. . Retrieved May 5, 2009.
- [115] Carvin, Andy (February 28, 2009). "Welcome to the Twitterverse" (http://www.npr.org/templates/story/story. php?storyId=101265831). National Public Radio. . Retrieved May 16, 2009.
- [116] "Brian Williams" (http://www.thedailyshow.com/video/index.jhtml?videoId=219509&title=Brian-Williams). Comedy Central. February 26, 2009. . Retrieved March 5, 2009.
- [117] "Twitter Frenzy" (http://www.thedailyshow.com/video/index.jhtml?videoId=219519&title=twitter-frenzy). Comedy Central. March 2, 2009. . Retrieved March 3, 2009.
- [118] Trudeau, Garry (March 2, 2009). "Doonesbury@Slate Daily Dose 3 March 2009" (http://www.doonesbury.com/strip/dailydose/index. html?uc\_full\_date=20090302). The Washington Post. . Retrieved March 4, 2009.
- [119] Faure-Brac, Josh (March 16, 2009). "Twouble with Twitters // Current" (http://current.com/items/89891774\_twouble-with-twitters. htm). SuperNews!. Retrieved April 8, 2009.
- [120] Post Store (August 21, 2010). "South Korea tries to block Twitter messages from North" (http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/ content/article/2010/08/20/AR2010082005741.html). Washingtonpost.com. Retrieved 2010-09-18.
- [121] August 19, 2010 Zachary Sniderman View Comments (2010-08-19). "North Korea's Newly Launched Twitter Account Banned by South Korea" (http://mashable.com/2010/08/19/north-korea-twitter-banned/). Mashable.com. Retrieved 2010-09-18.
- [122] Boyd, Clark (2010-08-18). "BBC News North Korea creates Twitter and YouTube presence" (http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/ world-us-canada-11007825). Bbc.co.uk. . Retrieved 2010-09-18.

# **External links**

- Official website (http://twitter.com/)
- Twitter (http://twitter.com/twitter) on Twitter
- Twitter Demographics and Audience Profile (http://www.quantcast.com/twitter.com#demographics) at Quantcast
- Twitter in Depth Archive (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/technology/twitter/) by The Daily Telegraph
- The Library of Congress is Archiving Your Tweets (http://www.npr.org/templates/story/story. php?storyId=126086325) audio report by *NPR*
- Twittermania sweeps Russia's politicians (http://rt.com/Top\_News/2010-08-31/ russia-politicians-twitter-mania.html) (RT article)

# YouTube

<b>You Tube</b> Broadcast Yourself <sup>™</sup>	
Туре	Subsidiary, limited liability company
Founded	February 2005
Founder	Steve Chen Chad Hurley Jawed Karim
Headquarters	901 Cherry Ave, San Bruno, California, United States
Area served	Worldwide
Key people	Salar Kamangar, CEO Chad Hurley, Advisor
Owner	YouTube LLC (2005–2006) Google Inc. (2006–present)
Slogan	Broadcast Yourself
Website	[youtube.com youtube.com] (see list of localized domain names)
Alexa rank	<b>3</b> (July 2010) <sup>[1]</sup>
Type of site	video hosting service
Advertising	Google AdSense
Registration	Optional
Available in	34 languages are available through the user interface <sup>[2]</sup>
Launched	February 14, 2005
Current status	Active

**YouTube** is a video-sharing website on which users can upload, share, and view videos. Three former PayPal employees created YouTube in February 2005.<sup>[3]</sup>

The company is based in San Bruno, California, and uses Adobe Flash Video technology to display a wide variety of user-generated video content, including movie clips, TV clips, and music videos, as well as amateur content such as video blogging and short original videos. Most of the content on YouTube has been uploaded by individuals, although media corporations including CBS, BBC, VEVO and other organizations offer some of their material via the site, as part of the YouTube partnership program.<sup>[4]</sup>

Unregistered users can watch the videos, while registered users are permitted to upload an unlimited number of videos. Videos that are considered to contain potentially offensive content are available only to registered users 18 and older. In November 2006, YouTube, LLC was bought by Google Inc. for \$1.65 billion, and now operates as a subsidiary of Google.

## **Company history**



YouTube was founded by Chad Hurley, Steve Chen and Jawed Karim, who were all early employees of PayPal.<sup>[5]</sup> Hurley studied design at Indiana University of Pennsylvania, while Chen and Karim studied computer science together at the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign.<sup>[6]</sup>

According to a story that has often been repeated in the media, Chad Hurley and Steve Chen developed the idea for YouTube during the early months of 2005, after they had experienced difficulty sharing videos that had been shot at a dinner party at Chen's apartment in San Francisco. Jawed Karim did not attend the party and denied that it had occurred, while Chad Hurley commented that the idea that YouTube

was founded after a dinner party "was probably very strengthened by marketing ideas around creating a story that was very digestible."<sup>[7]</sup>

YouTube began as a venture-funded technology startup, primarily from a US\$11.5 million investment by Sequoia Capital between November 2005 and April 2006.<sup>[8]</sup> YouTube's early headquarters were situated above a pizzeria and Japanese restaurant in San Mateo, California.<sup>[9]</sup> The domain name www.youtube.com was activated on February 14, 2005, and the website was developed over the subsequent months.<sup>[10]</sup> The first YouTube video was entitled *Me at the zoo*, and shows founder Jawed Karim at San Diego Zoo.<sup>[11]</sup> The video was uploaded on April 23, 2005, and can still be viewed on the site.<sup>[12]</sup>

YouTube offered the public a beta test of the site in May 2005, six months before the official launch in November 2005. The site grew rapidly, and in July 2006 the company announced that more than 65,000 new videos were being uploaded every day, and that the site was receiving 100 million video views per day.<sup>[13]</sup> According to data published by market research company comScore, YouTube is the dominant provider of online video in the United States, with a market share of around 43 percent and more than 14 billion videos viewed in May 2010.<sup>[14]</sup> YouTube says that 24 hours of new videos are uploaded to the site every minute, and that around three quarters of the material comes from outside the United States.<sup>[15]</sup> <sup>[16]</sup> It is estimated that in 2007 YouTube consumed as much bandwidth as the entire Internet in 2000.<sup>[17]</sup> Alexa ranks YouTube as the third most visited website on the Internet, behind Google and Facebook.<sup>[18]</sup>

The choice of the name www.youtube.com led to problems for a similarly named website, www.utube.com. The owner of the site, Universal Tube & Rollform Equipment, filed a lawsuit against YouTube in November 2006 after being overloaded on a regular basis by people looking for YouTube. Universal Tube has since changed the name of its website to www.utubeonline.com.<sup>[19]</sup> <sup>[20]</sup> In October 2006, Google Inc. announced that it had acquired YouTube for US\$1.65 billion in Google stock, and the deal was finalized on November 13, 2006.<sup>[21]</sup> Google does not provide detailed figures for YouTube's running costs, and YouTube's revenues in 2007 were noted as "not material" in a regulatory filing.<sup>[22]</sup> In June 2008, a Forbes magazine article projected the 2008 revenue at US\$200 million, noting progress in advertising sales.<sup>[23]</sup>

In November 2008, YouTube reached an agreement with MGM, Lions Gate Entertainment and CBS, allowing the companies to post full-length films and television episodes on the site, accompanied by advertisements in a section for US viewers called "Shows". The move was intended to create competition with websites such as Hulu, which features material from NBC, Fox, and Disney.<sup>[24]</sup> <sup>[25]</sup> In November 2009, YouTube launched a version of "Shows" available to UK viewers, offering around 4000 full-length shows from more than 60 partners.<sup>[26]</sup> In January 2010, YouTube introduced an online film rentals service,<sup>[27]</sup> which is currently available only to users in the United States.<sup>[28]</sup> <sup>[29]</sup>
In March 2010, YouTube began free streaming of certain content, including 60 cricket matches of the Indian Premier League. According to YouTube, this was the first worldwide free online broadcast of a major sporting event.<sup>[30]</sup>

On March 31, 2010, the YouTube website launched a new design, with the aim of simplifying the interface and increasing the time users spend on the site. Google product manager Shiva Rajaraman commented: "We really felt like we needed to step back and remove the clutter."<sup>[31]</sup> In May 2010, it was reported that YouTube was serving more than two billion videos a day, which it described as "nearly double the prime-time audience of all three major US television networks combined."<sup>[32]</sup> In October 2010, Google published its third quarter financial results for the year, which stated that YouTube was serving two billion videos a week accompanied by advertising.<sup>[33]</sup>

In October 2010, Chad Hurley announced that he would be stepping down as chief executive officer of YouTube to take an advisory role, and that Salar Kamangar would take over as head of the company.<sup>[34]</sup>

#### Social impact

Before the launch of YouTube in 2005, there were few easy methods available for ordinary computer users who wanted to post videos online. With its simple interface, YouTube made it possible for anyone with an Internet connection to post a video that a worldwide audience could watch within a few minutes. The wide range of topics covered by YouTube has turned video sharing into one of the most important parts of Internet culture.

An early example of the social impact of YouTube was the success of the Bus Uncle video in 2006. It shows a heated conversation between a youth and an older man on a bus in Hong Kong, and was discussed widely in the mainstream media.<sup>[35]</sup> Another YouTube video to receive extensive coverage is *guitar*,<sup>[36]</sup> which features a performance of Pachelbel's Canon on an electric guitar. The name of the performer is not given in the video, and after it received millions of views *The New York Times* revealed the identity of the guitarist as Jeong-Hyun Lim, a 23-year-old from South Korea who had recorded the track in his bedroom.<sup>[37]</sup>

YouTube was awarded a 2008 George Foster Peabody Award and cited for being "a 'Speakers' Corner' that both embodies and promotes democracy."<sup>[38]</sup> [39] *Entertainment Weekly* put it on its end-of-the-decade, "best-of" list, saying, "Providing a safe home for piano-playing cats, celeb goof-ups, and overzealous lip-synchers since 2005."<sup>[40]</sup>

#### Criticism

#### **Copyrighted material**

YouTube has been criticized for failing to ensure that uploaded videos comply with the law of copyright. At the time of uploading a video, YouTube users are shown a screen with the message "Do not upload any TV shows, music videos, music concerts or advertisements without permission, unless they consist entirely of content that you created yourself".<sup>[41]</sup> Despite this advice, there are still many unauthorized clips of copyrighted material on YouTube. YouTube does not view videos before they are posted online, and it is left to copyright holders to issue a takedown notice under the terms of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act.

Organizations including Viacom, Mediaset and the English Premier League have filed lawsuits against YouTube, claiming that it has done too little to prevent the uploading of copyrighted material.<sup>[42]</sup> <sup>[43]</sup> <sup>[44]</sup> Viacom, demanding US\$1 billion in damages, said that it had found more than 150,000 unauthorized clips of its material on YouTube that had been viewed "an astounding 1.5 billion times". YouTube responded by stating that it "goes far beyond its legal obligations in assisting content owners to protect their works". Since Viacom filed its lawsuit, YouTube has introduced a system called Video ID, which checks uploaded videos against a database of copyrighted content with the aim of reducing violations.<sup>[45]</sup> <sup>[46]</sup> On June 23, 2010, Viacom's lawsuit against Google was rejected in a summary judgment, with Judge Louis Stanton stating that Google was protected by provisions of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act. Viacom announced its intention to appeal against the ruling.<sup>[47]</sup>

In August 2008, a U.S. court ruled in Lenz v. Universal Music Corp. that copyright holders cannot order the removal of an online file without first determining whether the posting reflected fair use of the material. The case involved Stephanie Lenz from Gallitzin, Pennsylvania, who had made a home video of her 13-month-old son dancing to Prince's song "Let's Go Crazy" and posted the 29-second video on YouTube.<sup>[48]</sup>

#### Privacy

In July 2008, Viacom won a court ruling requiring YouTube to hand over data detailing the viewing habits of every user who has watched videos on the site. The move led to concerns that the viewing habits of individual users could be identified through a combination of their IP addresses and log in names. The decision was criticized by the Electronic Frontier Foundation, which called the court ruling "a set-back to privacy rights".<sup>[49]</sup> U.S. District Court Judge Louis Stanton dismissed the privacy concerns as "speculative", and ordered YouTube to hand over documents totaling around 12 terabytes of data. Judge Stanton rejected Viacom's request that YouTube hand over the source code of its search engine, saying that it was a "trade secret."<sup>[50]</sup> [51]

#### **Controversial content**

YouTube has also faced criticism over the offensive content in some of its videos. The uploading of videos containing defamation, pornography and material encouraging criminal conduct is prohibited by YouTube's terms of service.<sup>[52]</sup> Controversial areas for videos have included conspiracy theories, religion, Holocaust denial, and the Hillsborough Disaster, in which 96 football fans from Liverpool were crushed to death in 1989.<sup>[53]</sup> [54]

YouTube relies on its users to flag the content of videos as inappropriate, and a YouTube employee will view a flagged video to determine whether it violates the site's terms of service.<sup>[52]</sup> However, this procedure has been criticized by the United Kingdom government: in July 2008 the Culture and Media Committee of the House of Commons of the United Kingdom stated that it was "unimpressed" with YouTube's system for policing its videos, and argued that "Proactive review of content should be standard practice for sites hosting user generated content." YouTube responded by stating: "We have strict rules on what's allowed, and a system that enables anyone who sees inappropriate content to report it to our 24/7 review team and have it dealt with promptly. We educate our community on the rules and include a direct link from every YouTube page to make this process as easy as possible for our users. Given the volume of content uploaded on our site, we think this is by far the most effective way to make sure that the tiny minority of videos that break the rules come down quickly."<sup>[55]</sup>

#### User comments

Most videos enable users to leave comments, and these have attracted attention for the negative aspects of both their form and content. When *Time magazine* in 2006 praised Web 2.0 for enabling "community and collaboration on a scale never seen before", it added that YouTube "harnesses the stupidity of crowds as well as its wisdom. Some of the comments on YouTube make you weep for the future of humanity just for the spelling alone, never mind the obscenity and the naked hatred".<sup>[56]</sup> *The Guardian* in 2009 described users' comments on YouTube as follows: "Juvenile, aggressive, misspelled, sexist, homophobic, swinging from raging at the contents of a video to providing a pointlessly detailed description followed by a LOL, YouTube comments are a hotbed of infantile debate and unashamed ignorance – with the occasional burst of wit shining through".<sup>[57]</sup> In September 2008, the *Daily Telegraph* commented that YouTube was "notorious" for "some of the most confrontational and ill-formed comment exchanges on the internet", and reported on YouTube Comment Snob, "a new piece of software that blocks rude and illiterate posts".<sup>[58]</sup>

#### Blocking

Several countries have blocked access to YouTube:

- As of October 2010, YouTube is blocked in the People's Republic of China.<sup>[59]</sup> [60]
- Morocco shut down access to YouTube in 2008.<sup>[61]</sup>
- Thailand blocked YouTube between 2006 and 2007 due to offensive videos relating to King Bhumibol Adulyadej.<sup>[62] [63]</sup>
- Turkey blocked access to YouTube between 2008 and 2010 after controversy over videos deemed insulting to Mustafa Kemal Atatürk.<sup>[64]</sup> [65] [66] The block was lifted briefly but reimposed in November 2010.<sup>[67]</sup>
- On December 3, 2006, Iran temporarily blocked access to YouTube, along with several other sites, after declaring them as violating social and moral codes of conduct. The YouTube block came after a video was posted online that appeared to show an Iranian soap opera star having sex.<sup>[68]</sup> The block was later lifted and then reinstated after Iran's 2009 presidential election.<sup>[69]</sup>
- On February 23, 2008, Pakistan blocked YouTube because of "offensive material" towards the Islamic faith, including display of the Danish cartoons of the prophet Muhammad.<sup>[70]</sup> This led to a near global blackout of the YouTube site for around two hours, as the Pakistani block was inadvertently transferred to other countries. Pakistan lifted its block on February 26, 2008.<sup>[71]</sup> Many Pakistanis circumvented the three-day block by using virtual private network software.<sup>[72]</sup> In May 2010, following the Everybody Draw Mohammed Day, Pakistan again blocked access to YouTube, citing "growing sacrilegious content".<sup>[73]</sup>
- On January 24, 2010, Libya blocked access to YouTube after it featured videos of demonstrations in the Libyan city of Benghazi by families of detainees who were killed in Abu Salim prison in 1996, and videos of family members of Libyan leader Moamer Kadhafi at parties. The blocking was criticized by Human Rights Watch.<sup>[74]</sup>

Some schools have blocked access to YouTube, citing the inability to determine what sort of video material might be accessed by students.<sup>[75]</sup>

#### Features

#### Video technology

#### Playback

Viewing YouTube videos on a personal computer requires the Adobe Flash Player plug-in to be installed in the browser. The Adobe Flash Player plug-in is one of the most common pieces of software installed on personal computers and accounts for almost 75% of online video material.<sup>[76]</sup>

In January 2010, YouTube launched an experimental version of the site that uses the built-in multimedia capabilities of web browsers supporting the HTML5 standard. This allows videos to be viewed without requiring Adobe Flash Player or any other plug-in to be installed.<sup>[77]</sup> <sup>[78]</sup> The YouTube site has a page that allows supported browsers to opt in to the HTML5 trial. Only browsers that support HTML5 Video using the H.264 or WebM formats can play the videos, and not all videos on the site are available.<sup>[79]</sup> <sup>[80]</sup>

#### Uploading

Videos uploaded to YouTube by standard account holders are limited to 15 minutes in duration. When YouTube was launched in 2005 it was possible to upload longer videos, but a ten minute limit was introduced in March 2006 after YouTube found that the majority of videos exceeding this length were unauthorized uploads of television shows and films.<sup>[81] [82]</sup> The ten minute limit was increased to fifteen minutes in July 2010.<sup>[83]</sup> Partner accounts are permitted to upload longer videos, subject to acceptance by YouTube.<sup>[84]</sup> File size is limited to 2 GB for uploads from YouTube web page, and to 20 GB if Java-based Advanced Uploader is used.

YouTube accepts videos uploaded in most container formats, including .AVI, .MKV, .MOV, .MP4, DivX, .FLV, and .ogg and .ogv. These include video formats such as MPEG-4, MPEG, and .WMV. It also supports 3GP, allowing videos to be uploaded from legacy mobile phones.<sup>[85]</sup> Videos with progressive scanning or interlaced scanning can be uploaded, but for the best video quality, YouTube prefers interlaced videos to be deinterlaced prior to uploading. All the video formats on YouTube use progressive scanning.<sup>[86]</sup>

#### Quality and codecs

YouTube originally offered videos at only one quality level, displayed at a resolution of 320x240 pixels using the H.263 Sorenson Spark codec, with mono MP3 audio.<sup>[87]</sup> In June 2007, YouTube added an option to watch videos in 3GP format on mobile phones.<sup>[88]</sup> In March 2008, a high quality mode was added, which increased the resolution to 480x360 pixels<sup>[89]</sup> In November 2008 720p HD support was added.<sup>[90]</sup> With this new feature, YouTube began a switchover to H.264/MPEG-4 AVC as its default video codec. In November 2008, the YouTube player was also changed from a 4:3 aspect ratio to a widescreen 16:9. In November 2009, 1080p HD support was added. In July 2010, YouTube announced that it had launched a range of videos in 4k format, which allows a resolution of up to 4096x3072 pixels.<sup>[91] [92]</sup>

YouTube videos are available in a range of quality levels. The former names of standard quality (SQ), high quality (HQ) and high definition (HD) have been replaced by numerical values representing the vertical resolution of the video. The default video stream is encoded in H.264/MPEG-4 AVC format, with stereo AAC audio.<sup>[93]</sup>

fmt value <sup>[1]</sup>		5	34	35	18	22	37	38	43	45	17
Default container		FLV			MP4				WebM <sup>[94]</sup>		3GP
Video	Encoding	H.263	H.263 MPEG-4 AVC (H.264) VP8			MPEG-4 Visual					
	Max width (pixels)	400	640	854	480	1280	1920	4096	854	1280	176
	Max height (pixels)	240	360	480	360	720	1080	3072	480	720	144
	Bitrate <sup>[2]</sup> (Mbit/s)	0.25	0.5	0.8 - 1	0.5	2	3.5 - 5	-	-	-	-
Audio	Encoding	MP3		ľ	1	AAC			Vo	rbis	AAC
	Channels	1-2		2 (stereo)							
	Sampling rate (Hz)	22050	44100 48000 44100			44100					
	Bitrate, Kbit/s <sup>[2]</sup>	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	96	128	-

#### Comparison of YouTube media encoding options

1 fmt is an undocumented URL parameter that allows selecting YouTube quality mode without using player user interface.

2 Approximate values based on statistical data; actual bitrate can be higher or lower due to variable encoding rate. [95] [96] [97] [98]

#### **3D videos**

In a video posted on July 21, 2009,<sup>[99]</sup> YouTube software engineer Peter Bradshaw announced that YouTube users can now upload 3D videos. The videos can be viewed in several different ways, including the common anaglyph (cyan/red lens) method which utilizes glasses worn by the viewer to achieve the 3D effect.<sup>[100]</sup> [101] [102]

#### **Content accessibility**

One of the key features of YouTube is the ability of users to view its videos on web pages outside the site. Each YouTube video is accompanied by a piece of HTML, which can be used to embed it on a page outside the YouTube website. This functionality is often used to embed YouTube videos in social networking pages and blogs.<sup>[103]</sup> Embedding, as well as ranking and commenting, can be disabled by the video owner.

YouTube does not usually offer a download link for its videos, and intends for them to be viewed through its website interface.<sup>[104]</sup> A small number of videos, such as the weekly addresses by President Barack Obama, can be downloaded as MP4 files.<sup>[105]</sup> Numerous third-party web sites, applications and browser plug-ins allow users to download YouTube videos.<sup>[106]</sup> In February 2009, YouTube announced a test service, allowing some partners to offer video downloads for free or for a fee paid through Google Checkout.<sup>[107]</sup>

#### Platforms

Some smart phones are capable of accessing YouTube videos, dependent on the provider and the data plan. YouTube Mobile was launched in June 2007, and uses RTSP streaming for the video.<sup>[108]</sup> Not all of YouTube's videos are available on the mobile version of the site.<sup>[109]</sup>

Since June 2007, YouTube's videos have been available for viewing on a range of Apple products. This required YouTube's content to be transcoded into Apple's preferred video standard, H.264, a process that took several months. YouTube videos can be viewed on devices including Apple TV, iPod Touch and the iPhone.<sup>[110]</sup> A TiVo service update in July 2008 allowed the system to search and play YouTube videos.<sup>[111]</sup> In January 2009, YouTube launched "YouTube for TV", a version of the website tailored for set-top boxes and other TV-based media devices with web browsers, initially allowing its videos to be viewed on the PlayStation 3 and Wii video game consoles.<sup>[112]</sup> <sup>[113]</sup> In June 2009, YouTube XL was introduced, which has a simplified interface designed for viewing on a standard television screen.<sup>[114]</sup>

#### Localization

On June 19, 2007, Google CEO Eric E. Schmidt was in Paris to launch the new localization system.<sup>[115]</sup> The interface of the website is available with localized versions in 24 countries and a worldwide version.<sup>[116]</sup> [117]

Country	Language	Launch date
- Argentina	Spanish	September 8, 2010 <sup>[116]</sup>
🏝 Australia	English (Australia)	October 22, 2007 <sup>[118]</sup>
📀 Brazil	Portuguese (Brazil)	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
Canada	English (Canada) and French (Canada)	November 6, 2007 <sup>[119]</sup>
Czech Republic	Czech	October 9, 2008 <sup>[120]</sup>
France	French	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
Germany	German	November 8, 2007 <sup>[121]</sup>
* Hong Kong	English and Chinese (Traditional)	October 17, 2007 <sup>[122]</sup>
⇒ Israel	Hebrew	September 16, 2008
India	English (India) and Hindi	May 7, 2008 <sup>[123]</sup>
Ireland	English (Ireland)	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
Italy	Italian	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
<ul> <li>Japan</li> </ul>	Japanese	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
🍽 Korea	Korean	January 23, 2008
Mexico	Spanish (Mexico)	October 11, 2007 <sup>[124]</sup>
Netherlands	Dutch	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>

🗮 New Zealand	English (New Zealand)	October 22, 2007 <sup>[118]</sup>
Poland	Polish	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
Russia	Russian	November 13, 2007
Spain	Spanish	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>
South Africa	English (South African)	May 17, 2010 <sup>[115]</sup>
Sweden	Swedish	October 22, 2008
Taiwan	Chinese (Traditional)	October 18, 2007 <sup>[122]</sup>
United Kingdom	English (United Kingdom)	June 19, 2007 <sup>[115]</sup>

The YouTube interface suggests which local version should be chosen on the basis of the IP address of the user. In some cases, the message "This video is not available in your country" may appear because of copyright restrictions or inappropriate content.<sup>[125]</sup>

The interface of the YouTube website is available in 29 different languages, including Danish, Finnish, Greek, Hungarian, Slovenian and Norwegian, which do not have local channel versions.<sup>[2]</sup>

Plans for YouTube to create a local version in Turkey have run into problems, since the Turkish authorities asked YouTube to set up an office in Turkey, which would be subject to Turkish law. YouTube says that it has no intention of doing this, and that its videos are not subject to Turkish law. Turkish authorities have expressed concerns that YouTube has been used to post videos insulting to Mustafa Kemal Atatürk and some material offensive to Muslims.<sup>[126]</sup> [127]

In March 2009, a dispute between YouTube and the British royalty collection agency PRS for Music led to premium music videos being blocked for YouTube users in the United Kingdom. The removal of videos posted by the major record companies occurred after failure to reach agreement on a licensing deal. The dispute was resolved in September 2009.<sup>[128]</sup> In April 2009, a similar dispute led to the removal of premium music videos for users in Germany.<sup>[129]</sup>

## **April Fools**

YouTube has featured an April Fools prank on the site on April 1 of every year since 2008:

- 2008: All the links to the videos on the main page were redirected to Rick Astley's music video "Never Gonna Give You Up", a prank known as "Rickrolling".<sup>[130]</sup> [131]
- 2009: When clicking on a video on the main page, the whole page turned upside down. YouTube claimed that this was a new layout.<sup>[132]</sup>
- **2010:** YouTube temporarily released a "TEXTp" mode, which translated the colors in the videos to random upper case letters. YouTube claimed in a message that this was done in order to reduce bandwidth costs by \$1 per second.<sup>[133]</sup>

#### See also

- Alternative media
- CNN-YouTube presidential debates
- Comparison of video services
- · Dailymotion Similar video sharing site located in Paris, France
- List of Internet phenomena
- List of YouTube personalities
- Motion picture rating system#YouTube YouTube ratings
- Viacom International Inc. v. YouTube, Inc.
- Viral video
- YouTube Awards
- YouTube Live
- YouTube Instant

### References

- [1] "Youtube.com Site Info from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/youtube.com). Alexa. . Retrieved July 5, 2010
- [2] "YouTube Getting Closer to Supporting 40 Languages" (http://www.findmysoft.com/news/ YouTube-Getting-Closer-to-Supporting-40-Languages/). . Retrieved 24 October, 2010.
- [3] Hopkins, Jim (October 11, 2006). "Surprise! There's a third YouTube co-founder" (http://www.usatoday.com/tech/news/ 2006-10-11-youtube-karim\_x.htm). USA Today. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- Weber, Tim (March 2, 2007). "BBC strikes Google-YouTube deal" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/business/6411017.stm). BBC. ... Retrieved January 17, 2009.
- [5] Graham, Jefferson (November 21, 2005). "Video websites pop up, invite postings" (http://www.usatoday.com/tech/news/techinnovations/ 2005-11-21-video-websites\_x.htm). USA Today. . Retrieved July 28, 2006.
- [6] "YouTube: Sharing Digital Camera Videos" (http://www.cs.uiuc.edu/news/articles.php?id=2006Feb3-126). University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [7] Cloud, John (December 16, 2006). "The Gurus of YouTube" (http://www.time.com/time/printout/0,8816,1570721,00.html). Time Magazine. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [8] Miguel Helft and Matt Richtel (October 10, 2006). "Venture Firm Shares a YouTube Jackpot" (http://www.nytimes.com/2006/10/10/ technology/10payday.html). The New York Times. . Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [9] Sara Kehaulani Goo (October 7, 2006). "Ready for Its Close-Up" (http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/content/article/2006/10/06/ AR2006100600660.html). Washington Post. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [10] "Whois Record for www.youtube.com" (http://whois.domaintools.com/youtube.com). DomainTools. . Retrieved April 1, 2009.
- [11] Alleyne, Richard (July 31, 2008). "YouTube: Overnight success has sparked a backlash" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/uknews/ 2480280/YouTube-Overnight-success-has-sparked-a-backlash.html). London: Daily Telegraph. . Retrieved January 17, 2009.
- [12] "Me at the zoo" (http://youtube.com/watch?v=jNQXAC9IVRw). YouTube. April 23, 2005. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [13] "YouTube serves up 100 million videos a day online" (http://www.usatoday.com/tech/news/2006-07-16-youtube-views\_x.htm). USA Today. July 16, 2006. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [14] "comScore Releases May 2010 U.S. Online Video Rankings" (http://www.comscore.com/Press\_Events/Press\_Releases/2010/6/ comScore\_Releases\_May\_2010\_U.S.\_Online\_Video\_Rankings). comScore. . Retrieved June 27, 2010.
- [15] "24 hours of video uploaded to YouTube every minute" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5jbG1BC718u9Njm7Yo9QV7GLN4uMA). AFP. . Retrieved March 18, 2010.
- [16] "Eric Schmidt, Princeton Colloquium on Public & Int'l Affairs" (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9nXmDxf7D\_g#t=14m52s). YouTube. . Retrieved June 1, 2009.
- [17] Carter, Lewis (April 7, 2008). "Web could collapse as video demand soars" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/main.jhtml?xml=/news/ 2008/04/07/nweb107.xml). London: Daily Telegraph. . Retrieved April 21, 2008.
- [18] "Alexa Traffic Rank for YouTube (three month average)" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/youtube.com). Alexa Internet. . Retrieved March 30, 2010.
- [19] Zappone, Christian (October 12, 2006). "Help! YouTube is killing my business!" (http://money.cnn.com/2006/10/12/news/companies/ utube/index.htm). CNN. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [20] Blakely, Rhys (November 2, 2006). "Utube sues YouTube" (http://business.timesonline.co.uk/tol/business/industry\_sectors/media/ article623050.ece). London: The Times. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [21] Reuters (November 14, 2006). "Google closes \$A2b YouTube deal" (http://www.theage.com.au/news/Busness/ Google-closes-A2b-YouTube-deal/2006/11/14/1163266548827.html). Melbourne: The Age. . Retrieved November 29, 2008.

- [22] Yen, Yi-Wyn (March 25, 2008). "YouTube Looks For the Money Clip" (http://techland.blogs.fortune.cnn.com/2008/03/25/ youtube-looks-for-the-money-clip). . Retrieved March 26, 2008.
- [23] Hardy, Quentin; Evan Hessel (May 22, 2008). "GooTube" (http://www.forbes.com/forbes/2008/0616/050.html). Forbes Magazine (Forbes.com). Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [24] Brad Stone and Brooks Barnes (November 10, 2008). "MGM to Post Full Films on YouTube" (http://www.nytimes.com/2008/11/10/ business/media/10mgm.html?ref=technology). The New York Times. Retrieved November 29, 2008.
- [25] Staci D. Kramer (April 30, 2009). "It's Official: Disney Joins News Corp., NBCU In Hulu; Deal Includes Some Cable Nets" (http://www. washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/content/article/2009/04/30/AR2009043001853.html). paidContent.org. Retrieved April 30, 2009.
- [26] Allen, Katie (November 19, 2009). "YouTube launches UK TV section with more than 60 partners" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/media/ 2009/nov/19/youtube-uk-full-length-shows). London: The Guardian. . Retrieved December 13, 2009.
- [27] Miguel Helft (2010-01-20). "YouTube takes a small step into the film rental market" (http://www.nytimes.com/2010/01/21/technology/ internet/21youtube.html). The New York Times. . Retrieved 2010-08-13.
- [28] Shiels, Maggie (January 21, 2010). "YouTube turns to movie rental business" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/8471635.stm). BBC News. . Retrieved May 7, 2010.
- [29] "YouTube Store" (http://www.youtube.com/store). . Retrieved 2010-08-13.
- [30] Sweney, Mark (January 20, 2010). "Cricket: IPL goes global with live online deal" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/media/2010/jan/20/ youtube-live-indian-premier-league). London: The Guardian. Retrieved February 6, 2010.
- [31] "YouTube redesigns website to keep viewers captivated" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5jfGfKKsiwbxNv8XoUbm8ZlRZZWyw). AFP. . Retrieved April 1, 2010.
- [32] Chapman, Glenn. "YouTube serving up two billion videos daily" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5jK4sI9GfUTCKAkVGhDzpJ1ACZm9Q). AFP. . Retrieved May 17, 2010.
- [33] "Google Opens Up About Its Non-Search Businesses" (http://paidcontent.org/article/ 419-google-opens-up-about-its-non-search-businesses/). *paidcontent.org*. October 14, 2010. . Retrieved October 15, 2010.
- [34] "Hurley stepping down as YouTube chief executive" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5ggtnJSISuXoPHgxu6HwPJJqVTT6g?docId=CNG.f7ff59e3829714d23524d35ed1afdd63.921). AFP. October 29, 2010. . Retrieved October 30, 2010.
- [35] Bray, Marianne. "Irate HK man unlikely Web hero" (http://edition.cnn.com/2006/WORLD/asiapcf/06/07/hk.uncle/). CNN. . Retrieved May 28, 2008.
- [36] "guitar" (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QjA5faZF1A8). YouTube. December 20, 2005. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [37] Heffernand, Virginia (August 27, 2006). "Web Guitar Wizard Revealed at Last" (http://www.nytimes.com/2006/08/27/arts/television/ 27heff.html?ei=5088&en=5b993ce30a7b7039&ex=1314331200&partner=rssnyt&emc=rss&pagewanted=all). The New York Times. . Retrieved July 2, 2007.
- [38] "Complete List of 2008 Peabody Award Winners" (http://www.peabody.uga.edu/news/event.php?id=59). Peabody Awards, University of Georgia. April 1, 2009. Retrieved April 1, 2009.
- [39] Ho, Rodney (2009-04-02). "Peabody honors CNN, TMC" (http://www.ajc.com/services/content/printedition/2009/04/02/ peabody0402.html). Atlanta Journal-Constitution. Retrieved April 14, 2009.
- [40] Geier, Thom; Jensen, Jeff; Jordan, Tina; Lyons, Margaret; Markovitz, Adam; Nashawaty, Chris; Pastorek, Whitney; Rice, Lynette; Rottenberg, Josh; Schwartz, Missy; Slezak, Michael; Snierson, Dan; Stack, Tim; Stroup, Kate; Tucker, Ken; Vary, Adam B.; Vozick-Levinson, Simon; Ward, Kate (December 11, 2009), "THE 100 Greatest MOVIES, TV SHOWS, ALBUMS, BOOKS, CHARACTERS, SCENES, EPISODES, SONGS, DRESSES, MUSIC VIDEOS, AND TRENDS THAT ENTERTAINED US OVER THE PAST 10 YEARS". Entertainment Weekly. (1079/1080):74-84
- [41] Marsden, Rhodri (August 12, 2009). "Why did my YouTube account get closed down?" (http://www.independent.co.uk/life-style/ gadgets-and-tech/features/rhodri-marsden-why-did-my-youtube-account-get-closed-down-1770618.html). The Independent (London). . Retrieved August 12, 2009.
- [42] "Viacom will sue YouTube for \$1bn" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/business/6446193.stm). BBC News. March 13, 2007. Retrieved May 26, 2008.
- [43] "Mediaset Files EUR500 Million Suit Vs Google's YouTube" (http://money.cnn.com/news/newsfeeds/articles/djf500/ 200807301025DOWJONESDJONLINE000654\_FORTUNE5.htm). CNNMoney.com. July 30, 2008. Retrieved August 19, 2009.
- [44] "Premier League to take action against YouTube" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/sport/main.jhtml?xml=/sport/2007/05/05/ufnrup05. xml). London: Daily Telegraph. May 5, 2007. Retrieved May 24, 2008.
- [45] "YouTube law fight 'threatens net'" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/technology/7420955.stm). BBC News. May 27, 2008. . Retrieved May 28, 2008.
- [46] Allen, Katie (November 1, 2009). "Google seeks to turn a profit from YouTube copyright clashes" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/ technology/2009/nov/01/google-youtube-monetise-content). London: The Guardian. . Retrieved November 2, 2009.
- [47] Lefkow, Chris (June 23, 2010). "US judge tosses out Viacom copyright suit against YouTube" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/ article/ALeqM5h\_AfErLSMMGD41718aR0CYib0aNQ). AFP. . Retrieved June 24, 2010.
- [48] Egelko, Bob (August 20, 2008). "Woman can sue over YouTube clip de-posting" (http://www.sfgate.com/cgi-bin/article.cgi?f=/c/a/ 2008/08/20/MNU412FKRL.DTL). San Francisco Chronicle. . Retrieved August 25, 2008.

- [49] "Google must divulge YouTube log" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/technology/7488009.stm). BBC News (BBC News Online). July 3, 2008.
- [50] "Google must divulge YouTube Log" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/technology/7488009.stm). BBC News. 2008-07-03. .
- [51] Helft, Miguel (July 4, 2008). "Google Told to Turn Over User Data of YouTube" (http://www.nytimes.com/2008/07/04/technology/ 04youtube.html). *The New York Times*.
- [52] "YouTube Community Guidelines" (http://youtube.com/t/community\_guidelines). YouTube. . Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [53] "YouTube criticized in Germany over anti-Semitic Nazi videos" (http://www.haaretz.com/hasen/spages/898004.html). Reuters. . Retrieved May 28, 2008.
- [54] "Fury as YouTube carries sick Hillsboro video insult" (http://icliverpool.icnetwork.co.uk/0100news/0100regionalnews/ tm\_headline=fury-as-youtube-carries-sick-hillsboro-video-insult&method=full&objectid=18729523&page=1&siteid=50061-name\_page. html). icLiverpool. . Retrieved May 24, 2008.
- [55] Kirkup, James; Martin, Nicole (July 31, 2008). "YouTube attacked by MPs over sex and violence footage" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/ connected/main.jhtml?xml=/connected/2008/07/31/dlyoutube131.xml). London: Daily Telegraph. . Retrieved August 21, 2008.
- [56] "Time's Person of the Year: You" (http://www.time.com/time/magazine/article/0,9171,1569514,00.html), Time, December 13, 2006
- [57] "Our top 10 funniest YouTube comments what are yours?" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/technology/blog/2009/nov/03/ youtube-funniest-comments), *The Guardian*, November 3, 2009
- [58] "YouTube's worst comments blocked by filter" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/newstopics/howaboutthat/2668997/ YouTubes-worst-comments-blocked-by-filter.html), *Daily Telegraph*, September 2, 2008
- [59] Lococo, Edmond; Lee, Mark (October 17, 2010). "Youku Transcends YouTube as China Becomes Center of Internet" (http://www. businessweek.com/news/2010-10-17/youku-transcends-youtube-as-china-becomes-center-of-internet.html). Bloomberg News. . Retrieved October 23, 2010.
- [60] Sommerville, Quentin (March 24, 2009). "China 'blocks YouTube video site'" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/asia-pacific/7961069.stm). BBC News. . Retrieved March 24, 2009.
- [61] Richards, Jonathan (May 30, 2007). "YouTube shut down in Morocco" (http://technology.timesonline.co.uk/tol/news/tech\_and\_web/ article1859557.ece). London: The Times. . Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [62] "Thailand blocks access to YouTube" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/asia-pacific/6528303.stm). BBC. April 4, 2007. Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [63] "Ban on YouTube lifted after deal" (http://nationmultimedia.com/2007/08/31/headlines/headlines\_30047192.php). The Nation. 2007-08-31.
- [64] "Google's Gatekeepers" (http://www.nytimes.com/2008/11/30/magazine/30google-t.html?\_r=1&partner=rss&emc=rss&pagewanted=all). The New York Times. November 30, 2008. Retrieved December 1, 2008.
- [65] "Turkey goes into battle with Google" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/europe/10480877.stm). BBC News. July 2, 2010. . Retrieved July 3, 2010.
- [66] "Turkey lifts two-year ban on YouTube" (http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/technology-11659816). BBC News. October 30, 2010. . Retrieved October 31, 2010.
- [67] "Turkey Reinstates YouTube Ban" (http://online.wsj.com/article/SB10001424052748704462704575590420251199614. html?mod=googlenews\_wsj). Wall Street Journal. November 2, 2010. . Retrieved November 2, 2010.
- [68] Tait, Robert (November 4, 2006). "Censorship fears rise as Iran blocks access to top websites" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/iran/story/ 0,,1963166,00.html). *The Guardian* (London). Retrieved December 17, 2006.
- [69] "Mobile phones, Facebook, YouTube cut in Iran" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5jSPImVgh-SfeEO9WhpOVG6SInu0w). American Free Press. Google. July 13, 2009. Retrieved July 8, 2009.
- [70] "Pakistan blocks YouTube website" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/south\_asia/7261727.stm). BBC. February 24, 2008. . Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [71] "Pakistan lifts the ban on YouTube" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/technology/7262071.stm). BBC. February 26, 2008. . Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [72] "Pakistan web users get round YouTube ban" (http://web.archive.org/web/20080629065235/http://www.siliconrepublic.com/news/ news.nv?storyid=single10381). Silicon Republic. Archived from the original (http://www.siliconrepublic.com/news/news. nv?storyid=single10381) on 2008-06-29. Retrieved November 30, 2008.
- [73] "Pakistan blocks access to YouTube in internet crackdown" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/south\_asia/10130195.stm). BBC News. May 20, 2010. Retrieved May 20, 2010.
- [74] "Watchdog urges Libya to stop blocking websites" (http://www.google.com/hostednews/afp/article/ ALeqM5gMqNCaIpcd74x\_33F16sT\_6IDriw). Agence France-Presse. . Retrieved February 7, 2010.
- [75] Colley, Andrew (March 6, 2007). "States still hold out on YouTube" (http://www.australianit.news.com.au/story/ 0,24897,21330109-15306,00.html). Australian IT. . Retrieved October 11, 2007.
- [76] Fildes, Jonathan (October 5, 2009). "Flash moves on to smart phones" (http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/8287239.stm). BBC. . Retrieved November 30, 2009.
- [77] "Watch this YouTube Video without the Flash Player" (http://www.labnol.org/internet/youtube-video-without-flash-player/9016/). . Retrieved November 30, 2009.

- [78] "HTML5 YouTube viewer: close, but not quite there" (http://www.downloadsquad.com/2009/11/08/ html5-youtube-viewer-close-but-not-quite-there/). . Retrieved November 30, 2009.
- [79] "YouTube HTML5 Video Player" (http://www.youtube.com/html5). . Retrieved January 21, 2010.
- [80] Shankland, Stephen (May 19, 2010). "Google tries freeing Web video with WebM" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-30685\_3-20005378-264. html?tag=mncol). CNET. . Retrieved June 30, 2010.
- [81] Fisher, Ken. "YouTube caps video lengths to reduce infringement" (http://arstechnica.com/news.ars/post/20060329-6481.html). Ars Technica. . Retrieved December 4, 2008.
- [82] "Account Types: Longer videos" (http://www.google.com/support/youtube/bin/answer.py?answer=71673&ctx=sibling). YouTube. . Retrieved December 4, 2008.
- [83] Lowensohn, Josh (July 29, 2010). "YouTube bumps video limit to 15 minutes" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-27076\_3-20012090-248. html). CNET. Retrieved July 29, 2010.
- [84] "How do I upload a video longer than ten minutes?" (http://help.youtube.com/group/youtube-howto/browse\_thread/thread/ acb7ce49f5109570/98e13404b0554e5d?lnk=gst&q=). YouTube. . Retrieved 2009-08-21.
- [85] "Video Formats: File formats" (http://www.google.com/support/youtube/bin/answer.py?answer=55744&topic=10526). YouTube. . Retrieved December 4, 2008.
- [86] "Getting Started: File formats" (http://www.google.com/support/youtube/bin/answer.py?hl=en&answer=55744). YouTube. . Retrieved 2010-08-14.
- [87] "Market Demand for Sorenson Media's Sorenson Spark Video Decoder Expands Sharply" (http://www.sorensonmedia.com/news/ ?n=379). Sorenson Media. June 2, 2009. . Retrieved July 31, 2009.
- [88] "YouTube Mobile goes live" (http://www.downloadsquad.com/2007/06/17/youtube-mobile-goes-live/). June 17, 2007. . Retrieved August 11, 2010.
- [89] "YouTube Blog YouTube Videos in High Quality" (http://youtube-global.blogspot.com/2008/03/youtube-videos-in-high-quality. html). YouTube. March 24, 2008. Retrieved April 4, 2009.
- [90] "YouTube videos go HD with a simple hack" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-17939\_109-10104182-2.html?tag=mncol;txt). CNET. November 20, 2008. Retrieved August 14, 2010.
- [91] "What's bigger than 1080p? 4K video comes to YouTube" (http://youtube-global.blogspot.com/2010/07/ whats-bigger-than-1080p-4k-video-comes.html). Official YouTube Blog. July 9, 2010. Retrieved July 10, 2010.
- [92] Lowensohn, Josh (July 9, 2010). "YouTube now supports 4k-resolution videos" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-27076\_3-20010174-248. html). CNET. Retrieved July 10, 2010.
- [93] "YouTube to get high-def 1080p player" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-17939\_109-10396826-2.html). CNET. November 29, 2009. . Retrieved December 2, 2009.
- [94] "This format is part of the HTML5 trial" (http://www.youtube.com/html5). Youtube.com. . Retrieved 2010-08-08.
- [95] McFarland, Patrick (2010-05-24). "Approximate Youtube Bitrates" (http://adterrasperaspera.com/blog/2010/05/24/ approximate-youtube-bitrates). Retrieved 2010-08-12.
- [96] "Bigger and Better: Encoding for YouTube 720p HD" (http://webvideotechniques.com/123/bigger-and-better-encoding-for-youtube-hd). December 2008. Retrieved 2010-08-12.
- [97] Greenfield, Trevor (2009-11-22). "Youtube's 1080p Failure Depends on How You Look At It" (http://trevorgreenfield.com/ rants-and-raves/youtubes-1080p-failure-depends-on-how-you-look-at-it). . Retrieved 2010-08-12.
- [98] Biggs, Billy (2009-11-12). "1080p HD Is Coming to YouTube" (http://youtube-global.blogspot.com/2009/11/ 1080p-hd-comes-to-youtube.html). Retrieved 2010-08-12.
- [99] "YouTube in 3D". YouTube. July 21, 2009.
- [100] Marquit, Miranda (July 23, 2009). "YouTube in 3D?" (http://www.physorg.com/news167575864.html). Physorg. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [101] Dsouza, Keith (July 20, 2009). "YouTube 3D Videos" (http://techie-buzz.com/video-tools/youtube-3d-videos.html). Techie Buzz. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [102] Sobti, Kshitij (July 21, 2009). "YouTube adds a dimension, 3D goggles not included" (http://www.thinkdigit.com/Internet/ YouTube-adds-a-dimension-3D-goggles-not\_3219.html). *thinkdigit*. Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [103] YouTube. "Sharing YouTube Videos" (http://youtube.com/sharing). . Retrieved January 17, 2009.
- [104] "Terms of Use, 5.B" (http://www.youtube.com/t/terms). YouTube. . Retrieved 2010-08-25.
- [105] CNET (January 16, 2009). "(Some) YouTube videos get download option" (http://news.cnet.com/8301-17939\_109-10144823-2.html). . Retrieved January 17, 2009.
- [106] Milian, Mark (February 19, 2009). "YouTube looks out for content owners, disables video ripping" (http://latimesblogs.latimes.com/ technology/2009/02/---mark-milian.html?cid=149000259). Los Angeles Times. . Retrieved February 21, 2009.
- [107] Rao, Leena (February 12, 2009). "YouTube Hopes To Boost Revenue With Video Downloads" (http://www.washingtonpost.com/ wp-dyn/content/article/2009/02/12/AR2009021203239.html). Washington Post. . Retrieved February 19, 2009.
- [108] "YouTube Mobile" (http://m.youtube.com/). .
- [109] Google Operating System (June 15, 2007). "Mobile YouTube" (http://googlesystem.blogspot.com/2007/06/mobile-youtube.html). . Retrieved January 17, 2009.

- [110] "YouTube Live on Apple TV Today; Coming to iPhone on June 29" (http://www.apple.com/pr/library/2007/06/20youtube.html). Apple. June 20, 2007. . Retrieved January 17, 2009.
- [111] "TiVo Getting YouTube Streaming TODAY" (http://gizmodo.com/5026092/tivo-getting-youtube-streaming-today). Gizmodo. July 17, 2007. . Retrieved February 17, 2009.
- [112] "YouTube video comes to Wii and PlayStation 3 game consoles" (http://latimesblogs.latimes.com/technology/2009/01/ youtube-wii-ps3.html). Los Angeles Times. January 15, 2009. . Retrieved January 17, 2009.
- [113] "Coming Up Next... YouTube on Your TV" (http://www.youtube.com/blog?entry=sDFlZe7FwJI). YouTube Blog. January 15, 2009. . Retrieved May 10, 2009.
- [114] "Experience YouTube XL on the Big Screen" (http://www.youtube.com/blog?entry=ByKmsHdhra8). YouTube Blog. YouTube. June 2, 2009. Retrieved June 20, 2009.
- [115] Sayer, Peter (June 19, 2007). "Google launches YouTube France News" (http://www.pcadvisor.co.uk/news/index. cfm?NewsID=9772). PC Advisor. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [116] "YouTube launches in Argentina" (http://www.webcitation.org/5sbofbU9A). September 9, 2010. . Retrieved September 9, 2010.
- [117] "YouTube content locations" (http://www.webdoodles.org/webimages/youtube\_content\_locations.png). . Retrieved 2010-09-10.
- [118] Nicole, Kristen (October 22, 2007). "YouTube Launches in Australia & New Zealand" (http://mashable.com/2007/10/22/ youtube-australia-new-zealand/). Mashable. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [119] Nicole, Kristen (November 6, 2007). "YouTube Canada Now Live" (http://mashable.com/2007/11/06/youtube-canada/). Mashable. . Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [120] Bokuvka, Petr (October 12, 2008). "Czech version of YouTube launched. And it's crap. It sucks." (http://czechdaily.wordpress.com/ 2008/10/12/czech-version-of-youtube-launched-and-its-crap-it-sucks/). *The Czech Daily Word* (Wordpress.com). Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [121] Ostrow, Adam (November 8, 2007). "YouTube Germany Launches" (http://mashable.com/2007/11/08/youtube-germany/). Mashable.
   Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [122] "Chita · 檢視主題 YouTube 台灣版推出" (http://chita.us/community/viewtopic.php?f=9&t=1294)..
- [123] Joshi, Sandeep (May 8, 2008). "YouTube now has an Indian incarnation" (http://www.hindu.com/2008/05/08/stories/ 2008050857242200.htm). *The Hindu*. Retrieved August 3, 2009.
- [124] "Presentan hoy YouTube México [YouTube México launched today]" (http://www.eluniversal.com.mx/articulos/43235.html) (in Spanish). El Universal. October 11, 2007. . Retrieved September 9, 2010.
- [125] "Learn More: Video not available in my country" (http://www.google.com/support/youtube/bin/answer.py?hl=en-uk& answer=92571). YouTube Help. . Retrieved August 4, 2009.
- [126] "Long-standing YouTube ban lifted only for several hours" (http://www.todayszaman.com/tz-web/detaylar.do?load=detay& link=145219&bolum=101). Today's Zaman. June 19, 2008. Retrieved July 10, 2008.
- [127] Danforth, Nick (July 31, 2009). "Turks censor YouTube censorship" (http://www.sfgate.com/cgi-bin/article.cgi?f=/c/a/2009/07/30/ ED68191LKM.DTL). San Francisco Chronicle. . Retrieved August 4, 2009.
- [128] Barnett, Emma (September 3, 2009). "Music videos back on YouTube in multi-million pound PRS deal" (http://www.telegraph.co.uk/ technology/google/6127624/Music-videos-back-on-YouTube-in-multi-million-pound-PRS-deal.html). London: Daily Telegraph. . Retrieved September 3, 2009.
- [129] "Now YouTube stops the music in Germany" (http://www.guardian.co.uk/media/pda/2009/apr/01/youtube-digital-music-and-audio). London: The Guardian. April 1, 2009. Retrieved April 2, 2009.
- [130] "YouTube RickRolls Users" (http://techcrunch.com/2008/03/31/youtube-rickrolls-users/). TechCrunch.com. March 31, 2008. . Retrieved April 2, 2010.
- [131] "YouTube RickRolls April Fools In" (http://ryanspoon.com/blog/2008/03/31/youtube-rickrolls-april-fools-in/). RyanSpoon.com. March 31, 2008. Retrieved April 2, 2010.
- [132] "April fools: YouTube turns the world up-side-down" (http://www.searchcowboys.com/news/453). searchcowboys.com. April 1, 2009.
   Retrieved April 2, 2010.
- [133] "TEXTp saves YouTube bandwidth, money" (http://youtube-global.blogspot.com/2010/03/textp-saves-youtube-bandwidth-money. html). YouTube. April 1, 2010. . Retrieved April 2, 2010.

## Bibliography

• Lacy, Sarah (2008). The Stories of Facebook, YouTube and MySpace: The People, the Hype and the Deals Behind the Giants of Web 2.0. Richmond: Crimson. ISBN 9781854584533

## **External links**

• Official website (http://www.youtube.com)

# XING

	XING × open <b>BC</b>			
Туре	Public, Aktiengesellschaft (AG), ISIN: DE000XNG8888 <sup>[1]</sup> , Symbol:O1BC.DE			
Founded	Hamburg, Germany (2003)			
Headquarters	Hamburg, Germany			
Key people	Dr. Stefan Gross-Selbeck, CEO			
Revenue	€25.09 million (QI-QIII 2008)			
Slogan	1			
Website	Xing.com <sup>[2]</sup>			
Alexa rank	▲ 217 (May 2010) <sup>[3]</sup>			
Type of site	Professional network service			
Registration	Required			
Available in	Simplified Chinese, Dutch, English, Finnish, French, German, Hungarian, Italian, Japanese, Korean, Polish, Portuguese, Russian, Spanish, Swedish, Turkish			
Launched	November 2003			

**XING** (named **openBC***/Open Business Club* until November 17, 2006) is a social software platform for enabling a small-world network for professionals. The company claims that it is used by people from over 200 countries. Available languages include English, German, Spanish, Portuguese, Italian, French, Dutch, Simplified Chinese, Finnish, Swedish, Korean, Japanese, Russian, Polish, Turkish and Hungarian. By displaying how each member is connected to any other member, it visualizes the small-world phenomenon.

The platform offers personal profiles, groups, discussion forums, event coordination, and other common social community features. Basic membership is free. But many core functions, like searching for people with specific qualifications or messaging people to whom one is not already connected, can only be accessed by the premium members. Premium membership comes at a monthly fee of  $5 \in (\text{around 9 USD})$ .<sup>[4]</sup> The platform uses https and has a rigid privacy and no-spam policy. Unlike many other networking websites, XING provides its paying members very easy email access to any members.

XING has a special Ambassador program for each city or region around the world with a substantial constituency. The Ambassadors hold local events that promote the use of social networking as a business tool, letting members introduce business ideas to one and other, and get to know each other on a personal level.

XING competes with the American platform LinkedIn and the European Viadeo<sup>[5]</sup> for social networking among businesses.<sup>[6]</sup>

XING also offers the system for closed communities, called Enterprise groups with their own access paths and interface designs. The platform serves as the infrastructure for corporate groups, including IBM, McKinsey, Accenture and others.<sup>[7]</sup>

XING

- OPEN Business Club AG was founded in August 2003 in Hamburg, Germany as a German limited liability company by Lars Hinrichs and co-founder Bill Liao. The platform was officially launched on November 1, 2003.<sup>[8]</sup> It was renamed from OpenBC to XING on November 17, 2006.
- It gained much attention in German media and is widely used as a business network in German-speaking countries (DACH Region). Membership from other countries throughout Europe and the Far East helped the network platform grow to more than 1.5 million members in July 2006.<sup>[9]</sup>
- In March 2007, XING purchased the Spanish social networking business eConozco and intends to merge its members into Xing over the next 12 months.<sup>[10]</sup>
- In June 2007, XING purchased the Spanish social networking business Neurona. <sup>[11]</sup>. Neurona users were migrated to Xing on March 31, 2008.
- In January 2008, XING purchased the Turkish social networking business Cember. <sup>[12]</sup>. Cember.net users were
  migrated to Xing on July 26, 2008.
- In March 2009, XING opened offices in Italy.

## IPO

The company went public (IPO) on December 7, 2006 with an issue price of 30 Euros. The Open Business Club Stock Ticker symbol is O1BC.DE and its ISIN number is: DE000XNG8888. XING became the first Web 2.0 company to go public in Europe.<sup>[13]</sup>

## **XING Mobile**

Xing.com Mobile allows users to access some of its functions using a mobile phone, PDA or smartphone. Standards supported: HTML 3.2, XHTML MP 1.0, WML 1.1.

## **XING Plug-Ins**

Xing.com Plugins are available for free download that allow contact synchronization with Lotus Notes, Microsoft Outlook, Windows Address Book and Outlook Express. It also allows manual CSV File import–export and has a Firefox search plug-in.

### XING Premium (paid) services

The Xing.com openBC Premium Groups were developed for major global communities, from university and corporate alumni groups to leading business magazines and multinational organizations. This social software offering enables effective management and growth of existing communities within the professional context of openBC.

## See also

- Viadeo
- LinkedIn
- BoardEx
- Meettheboss
- Professional network
- Social software
- Social networking
- spoke\_(website)
- · List of social networking websites

## References

- [1] http://uk.finsearch.yahoo.com/uk/index.php?nm=DE000XNG8888&tp=\*&r=\*&sub=Look+Up
- [2] http://www.xing.com
- [3] "xing.com Traffic Details from Alexa" (http://www.alexa.com/siteinfo/xing.com). Alexa Internet, Inc. . Retrieved 2010-05-23.
- [4] Premium Account Upgrade, 2007-11-23 (https://www.xing.com/app/upgrade)
- [5] The Economist (http://www.economist.com/node/14931599) Does local beat global in the professional-networking business?
- [6] Move Over Silicon Valley, Here Come European Start-Ups (http://www.nytimes.com/2007/01/24/technology/24munich.html) By John Markoff, 24/01/2007, The New York Times, USA
- [7] LinkedIn takes on Xing, or the other way around! (http://www.searchenginejournal.com/?p=4328) by Carsten Cumbrowski, January 29th, 2007, SearchEngineJournal.com (http://www.searchenginejournal.com)
- [8] Xing.com Q&A (http://corporate.xing.com/index.php?id=311&L=1#c451) Question 2. When was the company founded?
- [9] Süddeutsche Zeitung, 2006-07-12 (http://www.sueddeutsche.de/wirtschaft/artikel/520/80440/) (German)
- [10] Xing buys Spanish business social network (http://www.e-consultancy.com/news-blog/362951/ xing-buys-spanish-business-social-network.html?keywords=xing) 27 March 2007, e-Consultancy.com
- [11] Neurona Joins XING (http://blog.xing.com/2007/06/our-dedication-.html) 22 June 2007, Xing.com
- [12] Cember.net Joins XING (http://blog.xing.com/2008/01/cembernet-joins.html) 23 January 2008, Xing.com
- [13] Web 2.0 company Xing raises €35.7 million in IPO (http://www.e-consultancy.com/news-blog/362352/ web-2-0-company-xing-raises-35-7-million-in-ipo.html?keywords=xing) by Graham Charlton, 12. Dec 2006, e-Consultancy.com

## **External links**

- XING public entry site (http://www.xing.com)
- Company weblog (http://blog.xing.com)
- Company information and press releases (http://corporate.openbc.com/) (source of membership numbers, languages etc.)

## **Article Sources and Contributors**

Social media Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395137201 Contributors: \*drew, -sd-, 3000records, 4twenty42o, A.DesAutels, Aarkangel, AaronEndre, Abuain543, Accounting4Taste, Addept, Adrian 1001, Afonvill, AgadaUrbanit, Ageekgal, Ahallaz, Alansohn, Alex de carvalho, AlexTheHorrible, AlexanderShelton, Alphabettvien, Amanverma121, Amberine, Amzimti, Anastrophe, Andy Dingley, Andy 120, Angela, Angrysusan, Ankitwizard, Anne LB, Anneaholaward, Apeelsolutions, Arnastya, Asdfgbnmkiuytfv, AspectusPR, Atravisscorry, Audiovocal, Axelschultze, Azapatatx, Bakheer, BamukaDelish, Battoo, BeTheVillain, Bermudadr, BigDunc, BiggersBetter, Binaemanvel, Boones6433, BradyHarquin, Briansolis, Brooklahn, Btily, Bubba hotep, BunnyColvin, CY3AHHA, Capitocapito, Cedarcottage, Ceedaley26, Cenarium, Chaojoker, ChemGardener, Chenaultashley, Chicagorb, ChiragPatnaik, Chockenb, Chris at msco, Chris22smith, Cjmsnoopy, Ckatz, Courcelles is travelling, Cyberkrack, DJKamber, Daamsie, DaisyAdair, Dancter, Daniel G Rego, DanielHerndon, Daniellecoley88, Danlev Darrellberry, Davidc85, Davidhrosen, DeepDishChicago, Deepth, Dgwsu23, DickHamilton, DigiSmarts, Dittaeva, Dpeck0404, Dpm64, Dragan Varagic, Dreamyshade, Drewbenvie, Drmies, EdJohnston, Eighteights, Epastore, Evansdave, Evo253, Expertjohn, FHMRUSSIA, FatLester, FatalError, Favonian, Felineafro, FeverBee, Finin, Fish and karate, Fjg5, Fkemeny, Fliti, Flowanda. FogE13, Foobar323, Fotoflo, Fourmiz59, Frankzeye, Fratrep, Frondean, Funandtrvl, Fuquit, Fæ, Gary King, Gatemansgc, Geschichte, GhostExecutive, Goapsy, Googlization, Gooseinoz, GradysGhost, Green Giant, Groveislet, Gywst, Haagend, Henry W. Schmitt, Hughnewman7, Hydromon, Ian Morris, Ibearg, Igorberger, Introsoft, Iridescent, Isabelwh, J3st3r6969, JForget, Jahub, JamesBWatson, JamesBullFromPerth, Jamesggilmore, Jamieparkins, Jansegers, Jarekmace, Jayfader, Jbapowell, Jblossom, Jehochman, Jeroen Smit, JessaRinaldi, Jfrombrighton, Jinibandelier, Jodi.a.schneider, Joeanglos, Johinsa, JohnScottDixon, Jonneidar, Jonmrich, Jossi, Jtimed, JuanOrtiz99, Katy Cowan, Kbeasley, Keensdesign, Kenyonsf, Khatru2, KlipperP, Koavf, Konachic, Ksbrown, Kuji, Kunnskap, Kuru, Leighblackall, Lemani, Levineps, Lingxue, Lordknox, Lostraven, Lostwinter, MER-C, Malcolmgillis, Malcolmx15, Manks, Manomilda, Markush8, MattSparkes, Mbpieck, Mechlin, Media Socialist, Mediainnovations, Mel21clc, Mentionablehonor, Michael Hardy, Mikeandrewonlinecoach, Mimihitam, Mintyjones, Mmanuel, Mmcneal766, Mmeiser, Mpulfr, MrOllie, Mrburnz, Mrvoycer, Mseyfang, Mstfcn, Mtippett, Mushin69, Mvuijlst, Mystalic, Nabeth, Narenpublic, Natters02, Nep, NewfZ, Ngiove, Nicapicella, Nichagerman, NijaBLAQUE, Nkhstudio, Nollakersfan, Nobodyknows007, Nrodovsky, Nypaulm, Odd nature, Ohnoitsjamie, Olivemachine6, Oneinfinitemonkey, PBR Recordings, Pabeaufait, Palmood, Pascalvenier, Paul W, Pchaney, Pdelongchamp, Pechette, Perfectiix, Peternoges, Petersonlinds, Philrj, Pietrow, Pja de bruijn, Plusorminus, Pojunis, Ppalatnik, Prax c, Praynolds, Prettyblossom, PsychoFox, Qsecofr, Rahulkr23, Rdjfraser, Redthoreau, Refsworldlee, Rgbroitman, Rick Wolfe, Rlest, Robbertf, Robofish, Roncasalotti, Ronz, RussNelson, Sabrina111, Saffrony, Salmar, Samuraispy, Sanevoice, Sara-rockworth, Saramcgo, Satori Son, Sbenson 14, Schumin Web, Scottwrites, Sd ca, Seedingyourlife, Sellyminime, Seo08, Sethgoldstein, Sfelkner, Shadow 1, Sharanyan, Sharkface217, Shawntracywilson, Shizhao, Shoeofdeath, Shortandtweet, Simoncollister, SiteFling, Sittizen, Slave101, Sleuth707, Slindsayopenfilm, Smaccatino, Smithers2008, SmokeyTheCat, Snigbrook, Socialcache, Socially, Socialmarketinglady, Soktrain, Speciate, SpikeTorontoRCP, Spimeco, Spojrzenie, Stephen Turner, Steven Walling, Stevensclan, Stheorist, Studente1000, Stumptowner, SunDragon34, Sundar77, Sunflower fan, Sunshine4sarah, Superman3188, THF, Tagough, Taylor Karras, Tbhotch, Tcocheu, TerriersFan, TheHOB, TheNewPhobia, Themfromspace, Tigerpalm, Tizzey, Tommy2010, Torquecustomerstrategy, Tradingcalc, Tripter, Ulric1313, Uncle Dick, UnitedStatesian, Utcursch, Vanhoosear, VeredAvr, Vijay138, Wakeyjamie, Wavelength, Web20advocate, Wendamoon, Wikidemon, Wikihuzu, Www.photon.in, XLerate, Xp54321, Yaron K., Z10x, Zachw945, Zerdale, ZimZalaBim, 522 anonymous edits

Social web Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=393048109 Contributors: Alpha Quadrant, Angelgrinder, Angrysusan, Arthena, Aryff, Bblfish, Bchen4, Bobo192, Bonadea, Chocolateboy, Dancter, Dittaeva, DrummondReed, Elfknowsit, Gausie, Goapsy, Gogo Dodo, GoingBatty, HADRIANVS, IanManka, Jehochman, JeremyA, Johnpseudo, Jujutacular, Kaliya, Katerg, Leif, Logos.noreply, MihalOrel, Mike Rosoft, Mindmatrix, Nabeth, Rdale, Richmond Daniel, Salamurai, Satori Son, The bellman, Whoisjohngalt, Wikidemon, Woohookitty, Wprinz, 47 anonymous edits

Social media measurement Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=385931561 Contributors: Aaronnewman, Dna13, Dominic frost, Dreamyshade, Flowanda, Funandtrvl, Greenrd, Jfrombrighton, Ktp12345, Ltribe, Markush8, MrOllie, Ogundirans, Rabjohns, Rgbroitman, Sbenson14, Thedarxide, Tnxman307, Tob323, UnitedStatesian, Zzuuzz, 12 anonymous edits

Social media marketing *Source*: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395493095 *Contributors*: Aaron49, AdjoTan, Allthingstoallpeople, Along5418, Amberine, Amit kumaar, Anneaholaward, Aryalive, Barek, Biznickman, Bkohlmeier, Blacktigercub, Bonadea, Bryanglanz, Carl Steinbeißer, ChemGardener, Chrisbwallace, Ckatz, Cocytus, Codeshepherd, DGG, DMacks, Dancter, DanielHerndon, Danlev, Deanantink, Dharshanar, DreamGuy, Dwandelt, Erianna, Ericboggs, Ethical SMM, Fanslike, Favonian, Flowanda, Fæ, Gamebuff2020, Haakon, JodyLeon, Johnlee917, Jojhutton, Josephhurtado, Journ3eb, Jtimed, Kajalsharma1234, Kristymartin.bizonly, Kvcindia, MER-C, MTorbin, Mcstubble, MelissaSheaBarker, Mfurness, Mkt563s10, Momita kulkarni, MrOllie, Mushin69, Ohnoitsjamie, Pannu7, Pascal666, Pc4media, Poco a poco, Pojunis, Puretyy, R Bryan Anthony, Ravenclaz, Rgbroitman, Rinkjustice, Ryan Taft, Sabrina111, Samughal786, Sandeep74, Sander Säde, Schlichtm, Sfrasco, Smaccatino, Smucoxweb, Smurfn88, SpikeTorontoRCP, Sundar77, Tagough, Takucharael, Teambeck, Thegrue, Themfromspace, Tmarek, Tnxman307, Tomclopez, UNMMarketers, Ukexpat, Vinodnambiarp2, WikHead, YuanZuan, Zigojacko, 97 anonymous edits

Social media optimization Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=394144204 Contributors: 8komma3, Alansohn, Amberine, AzaToth, Beetstra, Berkley huk, Bonadea, Bsanders246, Buccaneer1965, ChemGardener, Ckatz, Coetzeen, CommonsDelinker, Cumbrowski, Dancter, Daniserra, Dfreedman2, Dgmoran, EagleFan, EdJohnston, Egbsystem, Freeflyflunky, Gmazeroff, Gogo Dodo, Grapevine marika, H.E.Muller, Hcfoste, Hu12, Igorberger, Ioeth, Jehochman, Jianjames, John Vandenberg, Johnfern99, Kalpha, King Lopez, MKS, MTiemersma, Masoodsabir, Mattgirling, Mattseo, Meewam, MichaelGray, Michaelgonline, Mikeandrewonlinecoach, Mmn100, MrOllie, Munazanjum, NSiln, NawlinWiki, Netometry, Nikolatosic, Novangelis, Ohnoitsjamie, Ontyx, Oscar39, Pangaconsultant, Poco a poco, Porges, Quakerfriend, Richardjkaiser, Rony888, Rupeshmandal, SMOChef, Sander Säde, Sharanyan, Siteexpert, Sjtpalmer, Socialmedia, Soregrapes, Stephenrobinsz, Sundar77, Sushilover boy, UnitedStatesian, Versageek, Viscount9, Voyagerfan5761, Wangi, Xanzzibar, Zzuzz, 114 anonymous edits

Social network service Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/windex.php?oldid=395571558 Contributors: 17Drew, 21655, 2D, 2close, 7, ADDISON396, AKeen, Aanievas, Aaronsharman, Abeg92, AbsolutDan, Access Denied, Acm1989, Adambro, AdelaMae, Adrianpena, Africanatuben, Afromayun, Agentcmk, Agentmori, Ak8866, Aladdin8444, Alan Au, Alansohn, Alex Kosorukoff. Algomaster, Alishehzad, Allstarecho, Aly89, Amijami3, Andonic, Andywhite111, Anecelis89, Angrysusan, Anna Lincoln, Anneaholaward, Ans-mo, Anthere, Aphilo, Apoapoapo, Aremith, Arthur Rubin, ArthurBorges, Aruton, Asesposito, Atmoz, Avoided, Awfadmin, Azumanga1, Baggio1089, Barefootmeg, Bblfish, Bdonaghy, Bellagio94, Bellagio99, Benbest, Benccc, Benechanuk, Benkill, BigDunc, Biker, Blake-, Blanchardb, Blissfind2, Bobo192, Bobzchemist, Bonadea, Booker uk, Borja Moll XAL 2010, BrambleDragon, Briaboru, Brian Kendig, Brillob, Brkress, Bruce404, Bteed, Bucs, Buridan, Buybooks Marius, CWii, Calenet, Calimo, Callidior, Can't sleep, clown will eat me, Canis Lupus, Capricorn42, Caseya96, Cbmilne33, Ccacsmss, Cdabroski, CecilWard, Cgmusselman, Chüben, Chainsawriot, Charlie.rentz, Chaser, Chelcielewis, Chip McShoulder, Chowbok, Chrisamw, Chrisemmins, ChristianD35, Chriswaterguy, Chronosel, Chubbyllss, Chuck SMITH, Chuckraverthy, CinchBug, Clareeh, Cleantech, Coldacid, ConcernedVancouverite, Connor. jackson, Copyspills, Corvus cornix Cosmopolita, Cosmopolita, Courcelles, CrazyChemGuy, Cretog8, Crossmr, Cryptic C62, Ctffmike, Cuzyournasty, Cybergen, DMacks, Dahamu, Dahole, Dancter, Danielsc2, Darth Panda, DarwinPeacock, Dasani, Dave6, Daveschappell, David Latapie, Dbrett480, Ddoza, DeadlyAssassin, Deanh, Debresser, DecadeMan, Deep1256, Dekisugi, DerHexer, Diannaa, Dieterh, DigitalHoodoo, Dimz793, Dirkx, Discospinster, DocWatson42, DoubleBlue, Doulos Christos, Drbreznjev, Drctmcc, Dreadstar, DrewP, Drewscool112, Drmies, Dunamis, Duncan, DuncanCragg, Dwyermas214, E.S. Blofeld, Edmundwoods, Edrprff, Edward, Edward321, Egoober, Ehilton, ElGreco123, ElKevbo, Element002, Elisor, Emily Jensen, Emt6131, Emulsionla, Endicium, Engineman, EricLexie, ErroneousFunk, Eubulides, EwokiWiki, Excirial, Expo1998, FT2, Fallow85, Familianica, Faryd, FayssalF, Fergdoug, FlavrSavr, Fleabitten, Flickknife, Flink the blind hemophiliac, Flomsk, Flowanda, Fmccown, Forestgarden, Freakmighty, FreplySpang, Friendocity, Frozenstars, FrummerThanThou, Fstutzman, Fyyer, G6ecx, G7yunghi, Gabi S., Gary King, Genelson, Generation 21, Gfp1968, Ghettodude, Giri.utsav, GlamorousLove, Glane 23, Gnowor, Godwilldie, Gogo Dodo, Golbez, Goldplace, Gopetion, GraemeL, Graham 87, Grantcharlesadams Gregorymurp, Gruznov, Gurch, Gurchzilla, Guyzero, Haakon, HamburgerRadio, Hamidtesta, Hathornt, Hdt83, Headlikeawhole, Hisham Sadik, Honzazi, Howcoolasn, Howdy2, Hu12, Hydrogen Iodide, I dream of horses, I is ori, IProduction, Ianmw, Ibbn, Icomment, Ignoranteconomist, Igorberger, Imaginationac, Inflation killer, Inkington, Ioeth, Iridescent, Isaac, Isocialnet, Ixfd64. J.delanoy, J13b08, JCam, JWikiHacker, Jabberwot, Jallen10, James086, JamesBWatson, Jameshutchinsonmas214, Jamess98, Jammer007, JamminBen, JaredInsanity, Jasontocute, Javert, Jay Litman, Jaymaxx2989, JazMc, Jbtrout, Jebba, Jedcore, Jeff G., Jengelh, Jfaulkes, Jimernst, Jknepfle, Joe280, John Riemann Soong, John259, JohnInDC, JohnUpp, Jonathanbishop, Jonneidar, Jonmrich, Jonobennett, Jonstowe, Jonverve, JorgeGG, Joseph Solis in Australia, Josephgrossberg, Jredmond, Jsperber, Jungle Girl, Jusdafax, Jw2034, Jwmsfoben, K12u, KSharma402, Karada, KaragouniS, Kaskaad, Katemartin, Kattmamma, Keithwalsh88, Kesharajcox, Khalfani khaldun, Kingpinkpanther, Kinkykisses, Kinu, Kirdes, Kkm010, Kleidimico, Klostermankl, KnowledgeOfSelf, Knowledgeofitall, Kollision, Korynd, Kozuch, Kraftlos, Kukini, Kvasilev, Kwiki, Kyle.Lindsay, Labongo, Larry laptop, Latka, Laurathered, Ldackerman, Lectonar, Lee.Sailer, LeftWikipedian99999, Leftgut, LeilaniSchweitzer, Leki, LemonPuddingPop, Leo R, Leobold1, LeslieJD, Lesly.bauer, Leuko, Levineps, LifeConnect, Linkspamremover, Lithistman, LiveChristian, Luckycharm 54, Lumos3, Lwayler, LyricaUpload, Lzyabc597, MBisanz, MCB, MER-C, Madhero88, Magioladitis, Malachi Raymon Richardson, Mamawrites, Manop, Manuelhp42, MarO, MarcButterly, Mark.Crosby, Marqueed, Mattbr, Maxelrod, McSly, Mebutnoone, MeoFillo, Mhealy13, Michael Shields, Michaeljj45, Michigan411, Micromagnate, Mifter, MikeBourne, Mimihitam, Minardi, Mindmatrix, Mitch Ames, Mmfc11, Modelships22, Mohitsg, Montgomery '39, Mortenoesterlundjoergensen, Mpw5013, Mr.Z-man, MrOllie, Mrbellek, Mrjackrichardson, Mscalculus, Msjvd, Mtownsel, Mufka, MultimediaGuru, Munibert, Mxn, Myhouseof, Mywymedia, N okla, Nabeth, Nalita2010, Natandoron9, NawlinWiki, Neogura, Nero8858, Netalarm, Newspaperman, NiceNews, Nonexistant User, Nshawty13, Nucumnon, Nuttycoconut, Nymf, Ogdens, Ohnoitsjamie, Oknazevad, Olapeter007, Oli Filth, Onefineham, OregonD00d, Ottre. Palastine.girl, PantherNC, Parker229, Partha53323, Pascal.kotte, Patriarch, Pavel Vozenilek, Paxsimius, Pboodark, Perebourne, Perfecto, Peteyboy0192, Philip5341, Pichu0102, Pieisgood999, Pigironjoe, Pigsonthewing, Pilif12p, Pindaregirl, Pinkballer, Piotrus, Polmorry, Poohnet, Ppntori, Progdev, PunkyMcPunkersen, Qbas81, Quarl, Qwyrxian, RJaguar3, Raaah, Raidenx18, Rajaasad, Rajgadwicki, Ramanbasu, Rambalagopal, Ramyalakshmanan, Rawling, Rbk34, RedHillian, RedLeaf81, Redskinsfan1, Refsworldlee, Regea, Richard0612, RichardRosse Richie.watson, Rinconsoleao, Rjwilmsi, Roberta F., RockMFR, Rocketrobbie, Roivo, RomeW, Romeo971987, Ronhjones, Ronz, RossPatterson, Rossami, Rrdieci, Rrmsjp, Ruptan, Ruudbwai, SPolgar, Sae sae, Saifur rahman saif, Sam's The Jazz Man, Samihah 125, Sammyho, Sandflea, Sandrafromgermany, Sango 123, Sarahragsdale, Savism, Sayyid Muhammad Emadi, Sborau, Scarian, Scepia, SchfiftyThree, Sdavis0830, Seaphoto, Seb az86556, Seckelberry, SeriouslyLey, Shadowjams, ShahChirag, Shaikhshoaib, Share4life, Sharon08tam, Shawisland, Sheelynnn, Shepard, Shiznit1618, Shortney, Showard-akoster, Shravanmishravonkerz, SigmaX54, Signalhead, Signed24, Signo, SimonP, SiobhanHansa, Sitethief, Skunkboy74, Slakr, SleepingInClass, Sluzzelin, Smcmanus, Sngouri, Snigbrook, SoWhy, Soap, SocialNetworking, Solphusion, Somertime, Somno, SpaceFlight89, Spacebungle, Spanchangam, Spikeysparrow, Spinner, Spongefrog, SquidSK, Starczamora, Starizing, Stassats, SteveD503, Stevepoppe43, Stickee, Strathallan Helper, Sunflower fan, Sunray, Superheat, Susri20, Szoluska, T, Talkin bout chicken, Tamsin250, TanishaElleBrown, Tauriel-1, Tcooling, Teles, Terryoleary 1981, Tezpur4u, The Chaos Corporation, The Giant Puffin, The Thing That Should Not Be, Thebearclub, Thephelpfulone,

Theinstantclassic07, Theremvie, Theskibum, This Is MySpace, Thomas.verhoog, Tide rolls, TimVickers, Tiptoety, Tisane, Tizzey, Toddst1, Tom4007, Tomlzz1, Toussaint, Towel401, TreasuryTag, Treekids, Trekden, Trivelt, USchick, Ujwaltickoo, UkPaolo, Uma.kane, Umdterp1, Uncle Dick, Uniposter, Utcursch, VCHunter, Valador, Vatsan34, Versageek, VictorAnyakin, Videomodelpics, Vishvax, Visualdeveloper, VladGenie, Vstariq, WOW, WaelSalloum, Wakeyjamie, Walton One, Wavelength, Waycool27, Wayne Olajuwon, WebWonderGal, Webconomist, Wefqawrgrefwea, Whatamldoing, Whoisjohngalt, WikHead, Wiki1010101, WikiWilliamP, Wikidemon, Wikiklrsc, Wnjr, Woohookitty, WookieInHeat, WordyGirl90, Wrjames7, Yankeedoodled, Yuwiepal, Zaphriielle, ZimZalaBim, Zodon, Zollerriia, Zondor, Zzuzz, Zzyzx11, 922 anonymous edits

Digg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395389611 Contributors: -Majestic-, A333, Aaron Brenneman, Abqwildcat, After Midnight, Agentmori, Aido2002, Aikisenshi, Aircorn, Ajmint, Aka042, Akamad, Akonews, AlabamaSteve, Alansohn, Alerante, Alex d 76, Alexius08, Alexjohnc3, Allholy1, Amitparikh, Amouge, AnOddName, Anarchopedia, Andrewlp1991, Angoodkind, Aniish72, Anonymousdigger, Anotherworld2, Antandrus, Anthony Appleyard, Antispammer, Anton1234, Anwar saadat, Appl3zealot, Arctic.gnome, AriaStar, Arichnad, Article709 f9 11 02 9d 74 e3 5b d8 41 56 c5 63 56 88 c0, Artistography, As847618, Ascii27, Asdfasdf1231234, Ash211, Atif.t2, AuburnPilot, AussieNickuss, Autoerrant, Az1568, Azimuth1, BCube, Baavaa, Barek, Baronnet, Bash, Bcasterline, Bdude, Beamerized, Bear.owned, Ben Laufer, Bender235, Bevo, Bewildebeast, Bgpaulus, Bhny, Bill37212, BillWSmithIr, Black and White, Bleek II, Bluestriker, Boarder8925, Bobrayner, Bodragon, Bookofjude, Boomshadow, Boothy443, Borch1jc, Boredzo, Boris Kaiser, Bossanueva, Bovineone, BradM, Brak710101, Brandon, BrokenSegue, Bryan Derksen, Bwats2, Cacycle, Calwatch, Capricorn42, CarlaJanssen9, Carotids, Cerejota, Chillzkid, Chriskelvie, Chrislk02, Clarkhuke, Clydeiii, Coccyx Bloccyx, Comic J, Commander, CommonsDelinker, ConradKilroy, CoolKid1993, Corevette, Cosmotron, Cptspiffy, Crash Underride, Crumb, Cryptic, Curps, Cy21, CyberSkull, Cyberoidx, Cyde, Cziltang Brone, Czj, DCJoeDog, DCrazy, DK4, DMCer, Daigboboh, Dan428, Danieljackson, Dannymilner, Danzik, Dapsycho, DarkZealot89, Darkstar949, Dash-2, Dataneger, Dave TheRed, Daveswagon, David Levy, Dea1ctivate, Deepakoberoi, Delechrom, Demers.alex, Denelson83, DerHexer, Deramisan, Dick Brandt, Digg, DiggKiller, Disavian, DiscordantJellyfish, Discospinster, Djtripp, Dmarom, DocWatson42, Dompody, Donwilson, Doubl3d, Downwards, Dr. WTF, Dr.alf, Drderail, Dreaded Walrus, Dreamyshade, Drizzit12, DropDeadGorgias, Dudeman13142002, Dumaka, Dwayne, Dynomites, ESkog, Ebashatly, Einsensteiner, ElTyrant, Enbeeone3, Enkrates, Erianna, Ethicalhacker, Everyking, Evilpig, Exoendo, Faisal.akeel, Falcon9x5, Fangfufu, Farry, Fayenatic london, FayssalF, Fendenhowzen, Fiber-optics, Finlay McWalter, FireMouseHQ, Firien, Fletchsliver, Floaterfluss, Flydpnkrtn, Foo bar, Foolfromhell, Fosibodu, Fran Rogers FrancoGG, Frankbkkcam1, Frederic Friedel, Frederikton, Fuhghettaboutit, Fullmetalape, Functionofxy, FuturePastTwo, Fæ, G-RaZoR, GVOLTT, Gamaliel, Gary King, Gavia immer Gayhomolib, Geilt, Gfoley4, Ghewgill, Ghost650, Glenn W, Gman890890, Gobonobo, Golbez, Goodolclint, Gotyear, GraemeL, Grahamu, Granburguesa, Grouse, Gseshoyru, Gudeldar, Gyutae, Haakon, Hackit12, HalHal, Halbared, Hammer Raccoon, Hamtechperson, HandsomeRob1977, Hawaiian717, Helland, HelloAnnyong, Henry W. Schmitt, Hermie2007, Herostratus, Hit bull, win steak, Hooverni, Howabout1, Hu12, IRP, Iahead, Jeure, Ihatecravons, Ilvag, Informationrulz, Interiot, Iridescent, Irish Souffle, Irishguy, Ishdarian, J.delanov, JCHall, JDavis680, JTASD111111, JYOuyang, JabberWok, Jacj, Jakewaage, Jamdonut, Jayjg, Jazzgrl, Jcm267, Jdavidb, Jdelamater, JebusbJS, Jeff94, Jennica, Jeremy Banks, Jeremy Visser, Jersey Devil, Jessehlittle, Jfb392, Jjafuller, Jkelly, Jmccorm, Jmlk17, Jnp2109, JoanneB, Joeblakesley, Joelgermeister, John Bokma, John.n-irl, John5170, Johnteslade, Johntheentrepreneur, Joshua H, Js1234, Jstohler, Julesd, Julienroger, JustinBlank, KBi, Kadavill, Ke5crz, Kellan, Kerttie, Kesal, Kev585, Kevin143, Khalid hassani, Kirils, Kirkio, Komitsuki, Koogunmo, Koregaonpark, Korimickster, Kotepho, Kross, Ksspauld, Kukini, L Kensington, LOL, Labbaipierre, Lancealot4, LancerEvolution ;, Larsinio, LatencyRemixed, Latka, LauriO, Lbh1402, Lcarscad, LeCorrector, Leki, Leszek Jańczuk Liamdaly620, Liberal00Q1, Life, Liberty, Property, Lightmouse, Linuxcluster, LiquidGUI, Longhair, Lorian, Lotje, Louislonc, Lstanley, LtPowers, Luckyluke, Luigi30, Lumping, Luna Santin, Lurker, MZMcBride, Mabisa, Mace, Madskjaer, Magister Mathematicae, Mahanga, Major optics, Malfourmed, Malo, Man with one red shoe, Mangyan88, MarkKB, Marsala, Mastiland, Masturnate, Mathiastck, Matt Gies, Mattarata, MatttK, Maxamegalon2000, Mazdapickup89, Mc hammerutime, McGeddon, Mechamind90, Melaen, Mercury888, Merope, MicahDCochran, Micahmn, MichaelBillington, Michaelbeckham, MightyWarrior, Mike Rosoft, Mikelima, Mikesolow, Mikm, Miles32, Minerclub, Mipadi, Misterdiscreet, MonkeyMan, Monkeykiss, MonsterShouter, MonstrousBone, Mookiefurr, Mossman93, Mporcheron, Mr.Kennedy 1, MrRacistMan, MrWhipple, Mrand, Mrmiscellanious, Msikma, Mtmelendez, Muchness, Muhandes Mundlapati, Mushroom King, Mysidia, N3c, NCSS, Nakon, Nareek, Narniaexpert, Nathan8225, NawlinWiki, Nemilar, Netscape Navigator, Netsnipe, Neurolysis, New Bully on the Block, Nick Garvey, NickBush24, NigariaKingo, Nima1024, NinaOdell, Nintendo Revolution, Nitrodist, Noclip, Norsktroll, Notared, Nothlit, NouvusOrdoSeclorum, Novangelis, Nrbelex, Nuclear Treason, NuclearWarfare, Nulall, Numbo3, O.neill.kid, OMGsplosion, Ohnoitsjamie, One, Ood, Operating, Oren0, Orlady, Otchster, Ourai, OutPhase, OverlordQ, P3net, PJY, PSWG1920, Pats1237, Paul1991, Paulish, Pearle, Penelopepope, Perceval, Persian Poet Gal, Peter McGinley, Pgan002, Phil Boswell, Philwiki, Piano non troppo, Pifvyubjwm, Plastic editor, Pmsyyz, Policeforcer, President Skroob, Prettyxvacant, Progressivenazism, Psamathos, Psykus, Pufnstuf, Pupster21, O-cue, Queen.zeal, Qwyrxian, Rack88, Raiz, Randolph, RandomStringOfCharacters, Randy Johnston, RaseaC, RattleMan, Ray4389, Rd232, Rdsmith4, Red Thrush, Reedy, Reefsurfer226, RejoicingPoet, Remember the dot, ReyBrujo, Rhobite, Rich Farmbrough, Ricky81682, Riksweeney, Rivemont, Rjwilmsi, Rm999, Robust Physique, RockMFR, Rodeosmurf, Ronjohn, Rtcpenguin, Rterminator69, Rubenarslan, Ruckgesicht, Rufous, Ruy Pugliesi, Ryankearney, S33k3r, SCZenz, SF007, SWAdair, Sahaskatta, Saintlink, SamJunior, Sammi84, Saralk, Satori Son, SaxTeacher, Schlichtm, Schzmo, Scott3, Scottyslist, Scryptographyk, Scy1192, Sdfisher, Seinman, Sentineneve, Shadowblade, Shanel, Siamesed, Sideburns Sam, Signalhead, Simeon, Singee15, Sir Gladspoke, SirGrant, SirNuke, SlapAyoda, SlashDot, Sleepyhead81, Slicing, Smeggysmeg, Snake 89, Someguyonearth, Soumyasch, Soupy sautoy, Spleeyah, SpuriousQ, Squids and Chips, Squink999, Sshoberi, Steel, Stephenb, Steveharoz, Steveoeo, Steviedpeele, Strznc, Styckx, StyroPro, SummonerMarc, Superm401, Svetovid, Szoltys, Szzuk, THEN WHO WAS PHONE?, Taciturnip, Tanman627, Tawlboy, Techietim, TehBrandon, Tempodivalse, TerraFrost, Texture, Th1rt3en, Th3un4g1v3n, Thatguy0900, The Psycho, The Thing That Should Not Be, The undertow, The wub, TheDJ, TheParanoidOne, TheSaladCaper, The TrueEditor 247, The Wizard, The friedone, The pulse 2007, Thorpe, Thryduulf, Thue, Tim 333, Tim Bentley, Tiptoety, Tmorton 166, Tobey, Todd 661, Tokek, Toussaint, Tranis, Trans Utopian, Treelovinhippie, Tregoweth, Truthdowser, Typatigertot, Ukt-zero, Uncle G, Unloud, Useight, Utcursch, Valwen, Van helsing, Varghesekishor, Vary, Vector4F, Veinor, Vereinigen, Versageek, Virtualnick, Vrapche, WJBscribe, WarMach, Wayne Olajuwon, Weeliljimmy, Weregerbil, Wiki. Tango. Foxtrot, WikiBone, Wikilost, Wikipedian06, William Graham, Wimt, Wm, Wolfeye90, XP1, Xanucia, Xaosflux, Xerves, Xeworlebi, Xeysz, YUL89YYZ, YanMill, Yavoh, Ynyfrik, Yoctobarryc, Yuckfoo, Zeality, Zeke pbuh, ZimZalaBim, Zincyams, Zoe, Ό οἶστρος, 1136 anonymous edits

Facebook Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395390124 Contributors: )3uthead, -ross616-, 1111tomica, 16@r, 1ForTheMoney, 1tweed3, 1wolfblake, 2tothe4, 6bongo6, 81dollar, 88mphsss, 9014user, A Toyota's A Toyota, A. B., A1sapat, A3camero, A8UDI, A930913, ACBest, ACupOfCoffee, ADM, ADNghiem501, AMK1211, ANB. AROY411, AThing, Abhinav777, Acalamari, Acasson, Ace the bunny, Adam1213, AdamClarke, Adamb0223, Adambro, Adashiel, Adeelbutt88, Adeez, AdelaMae, Adguide, Aditya Gautam, AdmRose, Adriaan, Aerotheque, Aervanath, Aezram, Afrowildo, Afterwriting, Agel to alive, AgentFade2Black, Ahmednh, Ahuskay, Aid85, Aidan129, Aido2002, Aim Here, Airplaneman, Akaala, Akamad, Al Fecund, Alansohn, Albany NY, Alex Klotz, AlexHammer, Alexandru Stanoi, Alexjohnc3, Alextrevelian 006, Alexy 527, Ali, AliRoolz, Alissa 98cp, All Is One, All in, Allansteel, Allsaints 23, Allstarecho, AlsoTrue, Altzinn, Amazins490, Ambrosia-, Amdma2003, Americanhero, Amjad z4, Amniarix, Amphytrite, Ams627, AnArchivist, Anabus, Anas Salloum, Andeep3450, Andonic, Andreakir, AndrewWTaylor, Andrewlp1991, Andrewrutherford, Andy, Andy Marchbanks, AndyAgr, Anetode, Anewpester, Angel caboodle, Angela, Angeloo, Angelocariati, Angleterre Anikingos, Animal91X, Animum, Anneaholaward, Apokrif, Appl3zealot, Arbon42, Archdeceiver, Archiveman, Arifhidayat, Arnabdas, Arstchnca, Arthur2045, Artichoker, Ash063, AshAloy, Ashellray, Ashfree 13, Ashleyy osaurus, Asigiam213, Asklepiades, AtionSong, Austinfidel, AxG, AxelBoldt, Aydin00, Aydinceri, Ayudante, Az1568, Azizasif, Aznxdarkricex, B Fizz, BHSMEtubaboy, BStarky, BaRiMzI, Babar54, Bandperson21, Barek, Bart133, Baseballbaker23, Basement12, Bashereyre, Bath116, Batmancj7, Bboy123, Bbqturtle, Bbriggs1, Bbruchs, Bcm5059, Bdesham, Beano, Beao, Bear199, Bearcat, Beefcake32, Beetstra, Beghrato, Behun, Belekvor, Belikedurkheim, Bellagio99, Ben Arnold, Ben Tera, Bendavidu, Bender235, Benjistern, Betacommand, Betdud, Betterusername, Beyondparadise, Bgold, Bhadani, Bhaggs, Bianca1130, Bifgis, Big Bird, BigaZon, Bigbluefish, Bigd14631, Biggymo6, Bigtimepeace, Biivii, Bikri. Bill37212, BillyMoses, Biruitorul, Bizjournals, Bjankuloski06en, Bjjjjj, Blackjack48, Blanchardb, Blehfu, BlueAg09, BlueSoxSWJ, Bluefoxicy, Blueroast, BnaiBrithChai, Boaltmag, Bob bobato, Bobamnertiopsis, Bobo192, Bobsaget69, BogdanM02, Bongwarrior, Bony devil, Bookofjude, Booyabazooka, Born Gay, Boston2austin, Bouklyloo, Bozonessinc, Bradv, Brahmanknight, Brandon, Brazucs, Bretbenz, Bretter90, Brianga, Brianreading, Briansince1988, BroadSt Bully, BrokenSphere, Brossow, BrotherE, Browardpat, Brucefry, Brusegadi, BryanG, Bsf436, Bstepp99, Bubba hotep, Bueller 007, Bugalugs13, Bull Market, Bullet234, Bungle, Burgessm, Burntsauce, Buteo lineatus, Buttermichi, Butterscotch, Bwithh, C.Fred, C628, CCRoxtar, CDThieme, CFM865, CHBMch05, CIreland, Cl Ramsay, CLW, CPColin, Cacofonie, Cafzal, Calabraxthis, Calliopejen1, Caltas, Camoz87, Can't sleep, clown will eat me, Canadian-Bacon Canido11, Canterbury Tail, CanuckViking, CaribDigita, Carlos boca, Carlosguitar, Caroline.duble, Cartoon Boy, CaseyPenk, Casper2k3, CassandraGemini, Catskul, Caulde, Cazort, Cbuckley, Cclear44, CecilWard, Cedars, Cedrus-Libani, Cenarium, Cephal-odd, Cgingold, Cguido, Chairlunchdinner, Chanlyn, Chantessy, Charismatic123, Chatfecter, Chendy, Chengdi, Chensiyuan, Cheong Kok Chun, Chesschampion, Chessphoon, Chester polarbear, Childzy, Chinamandan, Chloeobrian, Chocolate Dandelions, Chrhardy, Chris is me, Chris the speller, Chris14679, Christopher Parham, Christopherlin, ChronicallyUninspired, Chzz, Ciaccona, Cindamuse, Cinéma C, Cmfusco53515, Cmoney05x, CobraBK, Cobumphart04, Cocoaguy, Coemgenus, CokeBear, Colfulus, Colipon, Colleenthegreat, Colonies Chris, Columba livia, CommonsDelinker, Cool1097, CoolGuy, Coolcaesar, Coolmile88, Coop1128, Copana2002, Corbett3000, Cormacalian Cornisle, Corpx, Corvus cornix, Corwinlw, Cowbellallen, Cprompt, Crackerjack, CrazyInSane, CrazyLegsKC, Crazycomputers, CredoFromStart, Crockspot, Crosby87, Crossmr, Crystallina, Crzrussian, Csrempert, CuBiXcRaYflsH, Cubbie1783, Cube b3, CurranH, Curtmolloy, Cutcopy, Cutter, Cwolfsheep, Cybercobra, Cyfal, Cyktsui, CypherXero, Czj, D, D-Day, D.montero.melis, D2IraXBIZGIh, D9qhd8, DAMurphy, DC, DGuey, DHN, DJAlik, DMCer, DMTayag, DMacks, DMurphy, DVD R W, DVoit, DXBari, DaMenace123, Daa89563, Daftpunkboy93, Dakin700, Dale Arnett, Damiens.rf, Dancter, DandanxD, Danhw052289, Daniel, Daniel Christensen, Daniel5127, DanielCD, DanielNuyu, Danlev, Danno uk, DannyDaWriter, DannyMac, Dansiman, Danski14, Dante Alighieri, Darb02, DarkFalls, DarkPrincess128, Darkage7, Darp-a-parp, Darrenhusted, Darth Panda, Dasani, Dasium, Davedonohue, Daveeburke, Davemathis, Daverocks, Daveswagon, Davex1000, David, David Biddulph, David the Aspie, DavidFarmbrough, Davidlive, Davidyjeong, Dbloom, Dcamp314, De Katten, DeadEyeArrow, Deamon138, DeathNomad, Debresser, Dedtr9, Delband, Delivery:435, Dem393, Dendodge, DennisDallas, DerHexer, DerekHe, Deskana, Dethme0w, Detruncate, Dexter Nextnumber, Dextertittil, Dfrg.msc, Dhaluza Dheppens, Dhimwit, DiRocco, Dianebobk, Dickreuter, Didilorillard, Dilbert307, Dim386, Dina, Dipsy12, Disavian, Discospinster, Dismas, Dispenser, DividedByNegativeZero, Diving2010, Djc wi, Djej1, Djgreen101, Djlollyb, Djmckee1, Djnicholson, Djottercreek, Djsasso, Dklizz, Dlavender45, DoC352, DocWatson42, Dodi.Blow, Dollarq, Dom Kaos, Don Vito Corleone, DonVincenzo, Donaldd23, Donama, Dondilly, Doradus, DoubleBlue, Dougbast, Douglasr007, Download, Dr. Blofeld, Dr.alf, Dr.finkelstein09, DrDisco, Dragoburaggo, Drappel, Dratman DraxusD, Dread Specter, Dreaded Walrus, Dream out loud, Drinkadrink, Drmagnon, Drmaik, Drmies, Drur93, Dsemaya, Dstiling, Dt128, Dtremblay, Dubbya9, Dubtown11, Dudesleeper, Dunqn, Duoraven, DustinJunior, Dwight666, Dwilso, Dwo, Dyaa, Dynesclan, Dyolf, Dysepsion, DéRahier, EALacey, ECWAGuru, EGorodetsky, EJF, ESkog, EVula, Eags, Earldelawarr, EarthPerson, Eball, Ecopetition, Ed g2s, Eddron, Edison, Edmondmuirocks, Edmundwoods, Edward655, EdwinHJ, Efe, Efeinberg, Eh1821, Ehlkej, Eionm, Eivmeidwl, Ejk81, ElKevbo, ElSaxo, Elawen, Elcarmean, Elcobbola, Electricbassguy, Elementrocks, Eleuther, ElfWord, Elhector, Eli81993, EliasAlucard, Elmer Clark, Elpezmuerto, Emcee, Emeraldcityserendipity, Emx, EnderHegemony, Entoaggie09, Epbr123, Epeefleche, Eplack, Epson291, Erasoft24, Erencexor, EricWesBrown, Ericci8996, Erik503, Ermawiki, Esperant, Esprit15d, Esrogs, Estevoaei, Esthertaffet, Eternal Pink, Eternalsleeper, Euphrosyne, EurekaLott, Ev149, EventHorizon, Everlast1910, EveryDayJoe45, Everyguy, Everything counts, Evil saltine, Excirial, Exeunt, Expletivization, EyeRmonkey, FCYTravis, FDR, FF2010, Facebookghost, Falcon8765, Falsetto, Fancypants09, Farine, FatalError, Fbv65edel, Feasoron, Felixboy, Fennec, FeralDruid, Ferdiaob, FetchcommsAWB, Fielding42, Filippowiki, FireBlizzard, FirefoxRocks, Firsfron, Fishman17, Fixer1234, FlamingFlamingo, FlamingSilmaril, Flamurai, Flashflash;, Flewis, Flibbert, Florentino floro, Flyguy649, Flyingember

Fmccown, Fooladin, Foosh, Foregone conclusion, Former user 2, Fortdi33, Frank1470, Franz-kafka, Franz Frecklefoot, FrenchIsAwesome, FredvSpang, Frexes, Fridae'sDoom, Friendocity Froid, Fromgermany, Fstutzman, FullMetal Falcon, Funandtrvl, Fuzheado, FxckNelson, G7yunghi, GB fan, GBVrallyCI, GRRE, GRuban, GSchjetne, Gabe1972, Gaia Octavia Agrippa, Gakusha, Galileo99, Garethhamilton, Garik, Gary King, Gatewaycat, Gavzey, Gcr 2007, Gdo01, GeZe, Geary, Geneffects, GeneralBelly, GeneralCheese, Genkizkhan2004, Geo19 4, Geoking66, Geometry guy, George Pelltier, GeorgeBuchanan, Georgebrown92, Ger4llt, Geraldpringle, Gert7, Gianfranco, Giganotosaurus Fan12345, Gilliam, Gioto, Girlwithgreeneyes, Gizmoleeds, GlassCobra, Glassgowkiss, Glen, Glenn Magus Harvey, Glennh70, Gltimmons, Gogo Dodo, Gogomkd123, Golopoi23, Gonzonoir, Goob, Goodmanjaz, Goodnightmush, Gordi555, Goujas1979, Gphoto Gracenotes, Graham87, GrahameS, Grampion76, Grant McKenna, Grapetonix, Green-eyed girl, Greeves, Greg Comlish, Gregfitzy, GregorB, Gregorydavid, Grendles modor, Grundig, Gsarwa, Gscshoyru, Gtstricky, Gtsully, Gugubeans, Gunnetal Angel, Gunnar Larsson, Gurch, Guroadrunner, Gus Polly, Guyinblack 25, Guyjohnston, Gwernol, H2g2bob, HTIDPH, HYC, Ha us 70, Hacker2000, Hackstar18, Hadal, Haha169, Halsteadk, Hammer Raccoon, Hammer15, Hammer1980, Hamsterlopithecus, Hans3778, Haon, Happyme22, Hardeharhar, Harionlad, Harrydevoil, Hartewyu, HarveyHenkelmann, Haven40, Havocrazy, Hawkhkg11, Hbdragon88, Headit 3523, Hectorhector, HeinzzzderMannn, Heliostellar, Henrymrx, Hera1aphrodite, Hermione is a dude, HershlayDammit!, Hertz1888, Herwest, Hhi0901, Hhtfdomhki, HiLo48, Hildanknight, Hinchu, Hippo43, Historylover9893, Hleder, Hmains, Hmwith, Hoary, Hobbsface2000, Holder, Homologeo, Hordaland, Hotpinkshoes, HowardRob, Hschmid1, Htang3085, Htanna, Hunter95, Husond, Hv, Hyleslie, Hypnosadist, I lyk breathing, I'mDown, I5bala, I8ASHOE, IJA, Ianjdickson2, Iankap99, Icecradle, Icedog, Icetall, Icetea8, Ida Shaw, Idetik, Igorberger, Ihope127, IlSoge, Ilkeston1990, Illinois2011, Imcanadian69, InShaneee, Infinitum17, Ingenious14, Ingolfson, Instantnematode, Intelliot, Interchange88, Interscan, Iph, Ipodfanz, Iran.azadi, Iridescent, Irish Souffle, Irishguy, IronGargoyle, Irrypride, Isaac, Ishwasafish, Ismashed, Isnow It's-is-not-a-genitive, Its time for time, IvanLanin, Ixfd64, J Di, J-beda, J. Nguyen, J.delanoy, JARSInc, JCDenton2052, JForget, JGXenite, JHP, JHunterJ, JJJJust, JJLatWiki, JaGa, Jackdyson, Jacobnut, Jacobolus, Jacono, Jamcib, James Roberts, JamesBWatson, Jameshfisher, Jamestaylor121, JamminBen, Jammy Tan, Jampearls, Jandalhandler, JanusK, Jaranda, Jared Hunt, Jareha, Jarjarbinks10, Jarsta, Java13690, Jay Gatsby, JaysOnMyFeet190, Jbmurray, Jburge, Jdw4jesus, Jean-Marie Favre, Jeanenawhitney, Jedcore, Jeff G., Jeffwang16, Jek339, Jem76, Jengirl1988, Jennyfer b, Jeremy Banks, Jeremy Visser, JeremyMcCracken, Jerickson314, Jerroleth, Jersey Devil, Jersyko, Jethro 82, Jetong, Jezarnold, Jfade, Jgalt23, Jharris700, Jiffles1, Jim Douglas, Jim McKeeth, Jimmy, Jimmy19, JimmyMac82, Jj137, Jjb52, Jjflex, Jjmanoman, Jmfavre, JoeSmack, JoeyJoJoShabbaduJr, John, John Broughton, John Nevard, JohnKlax, Johningardia Johnjosephbachir, Johnuniq, Jojit fb, JonathonReinhart, Jonny-mt, Jonpin, Jonthon, Jopo sf, Joschuaz, Josh99666, Joshuagross, Joshuapaquin, Joshw, Jossi, Jpunzel, Jrgilmore, Jryfle, Jschwa1, Jsplegge, Jtneill, JuJube, Jubileeclipman, Juledi, Julesd, Junhua Chang, Junkcops, Jusdafax, Justinboden86, Justinmmitchell, Jvcdude, K. Takeda, K.O.T., KPH2293, KVDP, Kai svens Kakofonous, Kalyan3, Kamokazi, Kamoranakrre T. Eyaelitenan, Kane5187, Kansan, Kanyelover2231312, Kapla2004, KaragouniS, Karan9005, KarlDubost, Karthik Jagadeesh, Kate, Katerg, Katoh, Katydidit, Kbrose, Kea2, Keensdesign, Keeperoftheseal, Keepsleeping, Keilana, KeithD, Kencf0618, Kendrick7, Kenyon, Kernigh, Kernow, Kertof, Kevinmon, Kfeto, Khanbhaijaan, Kidlittle, King kilr, Kingboshcash, Kingboyk, KirbyMaster14, Kiwi Ranger, Kiy765630, Kkm010, Kkrouni, Klingon83, Kmsiever, Knowledge Seeker, Koavf, Komitsuki, Koolgiy, Kormin, Kozuch, Krylonblue83, Ktr101, Kudelv, Kukini, Kurt Shaped Box, Kuru, Kurykh, Kushboy, Kusma, Kycowboyntv, Kyle1278, Kyleoz, Kylevk, KyuuA4, LAX, LGagnon, LIVERPOOLFCCFLOOPREVIL, LOL, La Pianista, Laguna72, Lala887, Lambiam, Lambyuk, Lamperta, Larry laptop, Lasdlt, Laserusjm, LastLived, Latics, Latish redone, Law, Laxg0alie, Lazerhawk, Lbh1402, Lcarscad, Leafyplant, LeeHunter, Leftydan6, LegitimateAndEvenCompelling, Leki, Lemjok, Lesley.wheeler, Leuqarte, Level plus, Levineps, Liface, Lightmouse, Lights, Ligulem, Lihaas, Likeitsmyjob, Likelife, Lilac Soul, Lincolnite, LindsayH, Lineface, Ling.Nut, Lither, Little Professor, Ljkitson, Lkprinceton, Lmdxx, Lmessenger, LmfaoManX2, Localbatman, Locos epraix, Logan, Loganberry, Longshot. 222, LookingGlass, Lord Hawk, Lord Pistachio, Loren. wilton, Lost4eva, Lost98789, LostLeviathan, Lostart, Lotje, Lowellian, LoyolaDude, Lradrama, Luboogers25, Luisztdt, Luk, Lukeconnell, Luna Santin, Lutzee, Lvivske, M412k, MASTERuser, MBK004, MC32, MER-C, MMSwa02, MOF, MUFC47JJ, MacTire02, Macman16a, Madchester, Madras fp, Magacid, Maggiecuda, Magister Mathematicae, MainBody, Majorly, Makgraf, Malakai777, Malickfan86, Malinaccier, Manderson198, Manop, MarXidad, Marcoboy, Mariomedici707, Mark, Mark0528, MarkHab, MarkS, Markeilz, Markharding93, Markiyan, Markmayhew, Marlova, MarmadukePercy, Marozols, MarritzN, MarsRover, Martarius Martianlostinspace, Martin Hinks, Martinovic, MaryseHelene, Master of Puppets, Mathprog777, Matt Gies, Matt107bghs, Mattdaley1, Matteh, Matterson52, Matthew Komorowski, MatthewBurton, Maurice Carbonaro, Maury Markowitz, Max rspet, MaxVeers, Maxim, Maxí, Mazphd, Mcemce123, Mcmillin24, MdReisman, Mdavidson98, Mdawg728, Mdb20, Mdlawmba, Mdriver1981, Mdwh, Meandyou22, MearsMan, Meco, Meeples, Megandiamond, MegastarLV, Melb113, Meme918, Mememe909, MementoVivere, Memoirofdarkness, Memorized, Mencey, MercolaOverMerck, Merrickb, Metallurgist, Mharb12, Mhiji, Michael Hardy, Michael J Swassing, Michael Leap, Michael lambert84, MichaelsProgramming, Michaelvkim, MickMacNee, Mickleib, Micro101, Mido, Midway, Mieciu K, Mierdaan, Mike 7, Mike Halterman, Mike Schwartz, MikeAllen, MikeMorley, Mikeistheman, Mikieminnow, Mild Bill Hiccup, Mintchocicecream, Mipadi, Miranda, MississippiBeau, Mitch1981, Mjayers, Mjb1981, Mjbugeja, Mjm46530690, Mkdw, Mm40, Modster, Mohammed2696, Mohnkern, Moncrief, Mongol, MoodyGroove, Mooson25, Mooseking0, Morgensternen, MorrisS, Morshem, Mostlyharmless, Moveoverlol660, Mr Beale, Mr Chuckles, Mr. 57, Mr. Absurd, Mr.whiskers, MrBoo, MrJaywod1, MrOllie, MrZeebo, Mreditguy, Mrestko, Mrmuk, Mrprasad, Mrrightguy10, Mryozocripz, Mswer, Mtd074, Mukkakukaku, Mullahmatt, Mumble45, Mustycrusty, Muzzamo, Mx3, Mypantsarefun, Mysdaao, Mysekurity, N Shar, N-edits, N.B.Kitsune, N96, NAHID, NBS525, NCSS, NHRHS2010, Nadyes, Nakon, Namdlefhtes, NameThatWorks, Nareshov, Nasht, Nastajus, Natalie Erin, Nathan Williams, Naturada137, Nauticashades, Navigation12, NawlinWiki, Ndickson, Nealmcb, Neo-Jay, NeoVampTrunks, NeonMerlin, Neorge, Netwhizkid, Neverquick, Neward Rylet, Newkai, Ngb, Nhprman, Nic Waller, Niceley, Nickb32, Nicolas1981, Nightdevil40, Nightstallion, Nihiltres, Niljay, Nima1024, Nippoo, Nishantman, Nishkid64, Nitelighter, Niteowlneils, Nitya Dharma, Nivix, Nixdorf, Nixeagle, Nlsanand, Noeticsage, Nol888, Nomader, Nomore, Nopetro, Northern, Northern Thunder, Not a dog, Noteremote, Nothlit, Nowa, Nslimak, NuclearWarfare, Numbo3, Nurg, NurseryRhyme, Nvm, Nyroska, Nyttend, O, OCNative, ONEder Boy, OSUKid7, Octahedron80, Octane, Oddtoddnm, OhanaUnited, Ohnoitsjamie, Oli Filth, Ombudswiki, Omicronpersei8, Omphaloscope, Oneupthextraman, Onorem, Ont, Oore, Ophois, Opokoko22, Ordinaterr, OregonD00d, Oreo Priest, Orfannkyl, OsFan, OsamaK, Oscarthecat, Oskar Mayer Nguyener, Ott2, Overandover, OwenX, Owu07, Oxwil, Oxymoron83, Oyg, Ozzmosis, PGPirate, PRRfan, Pablothegreat85, Paddonm, Pais, Palashrijan, Palmiped, Pancakelizard, PandaSorn, Paridox, Parralax, Passingtramp, PassionoftheDamon, Patriarch, Patstuart, Paul Magnussen, Pauswa, Paxse, Peanut4, Peatymasta, PedroPerez, Penarc, Pengo, Pentasyllabic, Pepsidrinka, Per Abrahamsen, Perfecto, Perlman10s, Perspicacite, Peschomd, Peter Napkin Dance Party, PeterSymonds, Peterwhy, Petery05, Phansen, Phgao, Philip Trueman, PhilipO, Philippe, Philwelch, Phoenix2, Piano non troppo, Pilcrow, Pinas Central, Pinecar, Pinkadelica, Piotrus, Pip2andahalf, Pipep, Piper108, Pitoutom, Pixgarden, Pizza1512, Pkninja, Plasticbadge, Plasticup, Plazmatyk, Plm209, Plop, Poddarrishabh, Polarix, Pollo9087, Pomte, Pontillo, Pontus Lindengren, Poolboy8, Possum, Pradeepmallika, Pressforaction, PrezCRG, Proger, Protiek, Prowikipedians, Prune Ps2avery, Psantora, Pscheimann, Ptothej, Purple Paint, Purpledigital, Pwnage8, Pwu2005, Pxma, Pyroponce, Pyrospirit, Quadratic, Quantumor, Quarl, Quatloo, Quibik, Quinsareth, Quintin3265, Qviri, R27182818, RG2, RadioActive, Radon210, RainbowOfLight, Raineybt, Rajington, Ral725, Rami83, RandomHumanoid, Raprules 7942005, Rapterrorist, RaseaC, Rat144, Rathfelder, Ravanacker, Raysonho, Razvanus, Rbarpar, Rdc525, Rdsmith4, Red marquis, RedHouse18, RedRose333, Redeyed Treefrog, Redgecko20, Redgwan, Redsully, Redthoreau, Refsworldlee Reh303, ReidarM, Relly Komaruzaman, Remy B, Renosecond, Requestion, Ret.Prof, Retired username, RexNL, Reywas92, Rgb1110, Rgsupplies16, Rhetoricity, Riana, Ricebowl81, Rich Farmbrough, Richard001, Richard0612, RidinHood25, Rigid ember, Rimush, RjCan, Rjd0060, Rjwilmsi, Rlarue1, Rm999, Robbor, Robert9673, Robertson-Glasgow, RobinsonWM, Roboguyspacedude, Robor09, Robstothard, RockMFR, Rockapoc, RocketJohnson, Romit3, Romney yw, Ronline, Ronz, Ronzie, Rorschach, Rory096, RossPatterson, RoyBoy, Royalguard11, Rprpr, Rrjanbiah, Rrlynch, Rsciaccio, Rspahnn, Ru-G Corp., Ruckruck, Rusted AutoParts, Rusty8, Rwwww, Rwxrwxrwx, Ryalesw, RyanH135, RyanHassall, Ryn2me, Ryulong, S.dedalus, S.Örvarr.S, SE7, SF007, SFGiants, SQGibbon, ST47, STM86, SWAdair, Saeed Jahed, Sahasrahla, Salacio, Sallysafety, Salspsyche, SaltyBoatr, Sam77g77, SamTheOptomist, Samuel Buca, Samueljeisen, Samvscat, Sanajcs, SandManMattSH, Sandahl, Sander123, SandyDancer, Sannse, Santaduck, Sanxiyn, Sasha Callahan, SatansAngel231, Saulcruz, Saulesha, Savidan, Savirr, Sbankmfdmdfmk, Sbressler, Scartol, Scepia, Sceptre, Schmancy47, Schmloof, Schultz5, SchuminWeb, Schutz, Sclarfie, Scm83x, Scootnasty, Scottandrewhutchins, Scwlong, Scythe33, Scythre, Sean c griffin, Seaneld86, Seazzy, Sebcastle, SecretIdentityNumber26, Seprecee, Sepulveda, Seraphimblade, Sesshomaru, Shadow1, Shagmaestro, ShambhalaFestival, Shannonwulff, Shantavira, Shawne, Shenme, Sheppa28, Shii, Shimgray, Shirik, Shoecream, Shoeofdeath, ShootFrank, Shovonma17, Sicronet, Sidhekin, Silk/Tork, SilkySword, Simetrical, Simon Shek, Simon lock, SimonP, SimplySweet, Simulation90, Singularity, Sinn, Sir.xerces, Sirlibby, SixxiA, Sizzlemctwizzle, Skaltopunksax, Sketchmoose, Skier Dude, Skinnypez, Sko1221, Skysmith, Slavakion, Slavatrudu, SlimVirgin, Slowking Man, Slysplace, SmartGuy, Smartse, Smelendez, SmokeyTheCat, Smyth, Snail Doom, Solomonmaimen, Solphusion, Somertime, Something9162, Somody, Souljamike, Soulmerge, Soundcomm, Sp35k3r, Spangineer, Sparkyingva, SparqMan, SparrowsWing, Spartacusprime, Spartanfox86, Spartas, Spectorza, Spell4yr, Spiffy sperry, SpikeZoft, SportsBrain2009, Spud Gun, SpuriousQ, SqueakBox, SquidSK, Ssj5perfect cell, St ttb, St.daniel, Staka, Stakelum, Starbuzz3d, Starrynite81, Startstop123, Steamroller Assault, Stepheng3, Stepho22224, StepsTogether, Stevage, Steven Walling, Stevenmansour, Stickee, Stoboe, Strawberryfire, Straxus, Student4, Stunetii, Subdolous, Subsume, Suhel1992, Suhmeister, Sujeet787, SujinYH, Sulinda11, SuperHamster, Superbeecat, Superbowlbound, Superfascist, Superstan999, Superstan999, Supersuzanne, Susan118, SusanLesch, Susanwell, Swechsle, Swerty, TAGosselin, TJRC, TKD, TPIRFanSteve, Tackyjulio, Tagus, Tajalam2, Tanvir Ahmmed, Taopman, Taras, Tarheelcoxn, Tavix, Taylorhope, Tbhotch, Tcalight, Tcwilliams, Tdl1060, Tea and crumpets, TeaDrinker, Teanywini 123, Teapotgeorge, Teddy Carey, Telstar2, Templetongore, Tenebrae, Tennisuser 123, Terrett 101, Tetobigbro, Tetzcatlipoca, Tewfik, Tezero, Thadius 856, Thatperson, Thbsp, The Evil Spartan, The Founders Intent, The GOAT, The Giant Puffin, The Horned Water, The Jacobin, The Nut, The Obento Musubi, The Person Who Is Strange, The Realms of Gold, The Rock And Roll Pirate, The Wednesday Island, The lorax, The undertow, The AznSensation, TheBilly, TheCustomOfLife, TheGerm, TheNewPhobia, ThePedanticPrick, TheQuaker, TheTrueAPlus, Theanphibian, Thebrandonshow, Thecurran91, Thelegendofvix, Themaludude101, Thepulse2007, Thesquire, Thessaysno, Thingg, Thirdeyeopen33, Thomassnee, Threeafterthree, Thumperward, Tide rolls, Tigerghost, Timothyarnold85, Timsdad, Timstown, Tinton5, Titoxd, Tj21, Tkessler, Tkgd2007, Tm1000, Tobor0, TobyDZ, Toddfast, Tolbert5, Tom, TomServo, Tomfisherman, Tommy2010, Tomroes, Tony1, Tony4346, Tony7444, Tooto, Topher8, Topperray, Tosenton, Tourettes1993, Tpbradbury, Tranix, TrbleClef, TreasuryTag, Tree Biting Conspiracy, Tremolo, Trevor MacInnis, Treyjp, Treyt021, Tri400, TriciaAustin, Trivialist, Troysteinbauer, Truth2008Exists, Trvsdrlng, Tundern, TwilligToves, Twrdave, Tygar, Typhoonchaser, Typogr, TyrS, UCLARodent, URORIN, Ubiq, Ugen64, Uiteoi, UkPaolo, Ukulele, Ulflarsen, Ulkomaalainen, Ultiam, Ultiamu, Ultra-Loser, Umawera, Umer88, Uncfan2000, Uncle G, Uncompetence, Undertaker2134, Unitalk, Unitanode, UnitedStatesian, Universal Hero, Uogl, Userpd, Utcursch, UtherSRG, Utubegangsters, VKokielov, Vagary, Valley2city, Vanis314, Varco, Veetrag, Vegaswikian, Ventusa, Verdlanco, Veritycowper, Versageek, Vgmddg, Vic93, Vicarvictor, Vikipediisto, Vilefile, Violacadenza, Violiszt, Viriditas, Virtual Particle, VirtualSteve, Vlad, Vn4m, Vsmith, Vvuser, WAS, WILLY ON WHEELZzzz, WODUP, WTGDMan1986, Wabed, Wahabijaz, Waleed, Walloon, Walor, Wapondaponda, WarpstarRider, Waterjuice, Wavelength, Wayne Olajuwon, WebHamster, Webfan29, Weedar, Weesnaw117, Weierstrass, WestJet, WhatisFeelings?, Wherewithal, WhisperToMe, White eskimo, Whitecap, Wickethewok, Wiki alf, WikiAnthony, WikiDan61, WikiLaurent, Wikichange, Wikidemon, Wikidrone, Wikifox, Wikimalta, Wikipedian06, WikipedianMarlith, Wikipedical, Wikipidyst, Wikitonic, WikkiBurr, William Graham, Wimt, WinusB, Wirewad, Witz87, Wizardman, Wj32, Wknight94, Woober, Woody, Woohookitty, Wumas214, Wwallacee, XGA geek, Xaosflux, Xavier andrade, Xeno, Xijjix, Xkfusionxk, Xlittlewhitelieo, Xmnemonic, Xnatedawgx, Xnuala, Xobxela, Xp54321, Xqt, Xxxfy123xxx, Y2kcrazyjoker4, Yabaa, Yaifuz26, Yamamoto Ichiro, Yaoming7511, Yboord028, Yelsent, Yeshyesh93, Ygfperson, Yizmo, Yjo, Yuccara, Yug, Yuggihol, Yvesnimmo, ZacBowling, Zambaccian, Zankudi, Zanimum, Zaphraud, Zararo, Zaskie, Zchris87v, Zebov, Zeke72791, Zellin, ZimZalaBim, Zime2005, Ziva David, Zohaib ather, Zonath, ZoomDude, Zubair71, Zummis, Zzuuzz, ^δεμον, Александр Мотин, Петър Петров, 达伟, 2714 anonymous edits

LinkedIn Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=394876097 Contributors: 16x9, 2bar, 50Stars, A3RO, AAAAA, Aaronba, Adyourservice.biz, Ageekgal, Akonews, Alex Kosorukoff, Alexf, Altenmann, Amccall821, Amilator, Amire80, AnOddName, Angelthuylinh, Arkim, Arran31, AspectusPR, Auto469680, Avouac, Axelschultze, Badgernet, Barek, Bbatsell,

Beemer69, Bender235, Bubba73, CDT007, CambridgeBayWeather, Cameron Scott, Camoz87, Canadian, Carlos Rosa PT, CecilWard, ChangChienFu, Cheong Kok Chun, ChrisUK, Classical geographer, CliffC, Commit charge, Computerjoe, Cosmoskramer, Countmac01, Csaccheri, Cunnington A, Cwooten71, Cxz111, Czj, DMCer, Dangerousnerd, Danholmesdxb, Danlev, DataWraith, Dbiel, Ddxc, Derboq, DickieTruncheon, Dingar, Dirtpenguin, Discospinster, Dmama, Docket42, DominicConnor, Double.a.19, DrSlump, Dreamyshade, Dreminemike, Dtobias, DuLithgow, Dwacon, ESkog, Eabuhadi, EagleOne, Edgar181, ElKevbo, Elisabethod, Elisor, Emesik, Engineman, Enocent, Enricopulatzo, EricWesBrown, Estebancortez, Falcon8765, Fan-1967, Faznar, Fetchcomms, Ftiercel, Funjhunjhunwala, Fyrael, Gabi S., Gary King, Generic Player, Gidonb, Googol plex, GraemeL, GregorB, H005, Hu12, 13142p168, Iamcookiemonster, Ida Shaw, Iggypin, Ilcheste, Instant Noodle Soup, IvanLanin, JFG, JackLumber, Jaltcoh, Jancikotuc, Jannecke h, Jean-Marie Favre, Jeromewiley, Johnuniq, Jonathanleblang, Josh.hoggan, JoshXF, Joshdhaliwal, Julielaurent, Jungle-Tile, KFP, Kamnatijohn, Kbh3rd, Kcren, Kgopotsoj, Khalid hassani, Kidburla, Kkleinberg, Kkm010, Kwamikagami, LarRan, Laserprinter, LasseVartiainen, Lindaeo, LisaKatz, Locris, Logan, Lotje, MMuzammils, Mac, Madhero88, Mahoff, Marcireynolds, MattTM, Matthewrlee, Me Three, Mephistophelian, Mets501, Michael Jahn, Michaelbar123, Milfordwoman, MrOllie, Mrand, MsChristinaAdams, Munkyxtc, Mxn, NCSS, Netboy2005, Nickdella, Nsaa, Ohnoitsjamie, Paul Soomers, Ravel Vozenilek, Pcap, Ph.eyes, Philipwhiuk, PiiRSquared17, Pingveno, Piotrus, Pjot2, Poison Oak, Psantora, RJFIR, Rajesh4091989, Egbroitman, Rhombus, Rich Farmbrough, Richardswier, Richswier, Robcheyt Visser, Robchogo, Ronz, Runner628, Sales Community, SamJohnston, Samejreltub, Samtheboy, Sandolsky, Sciurinæ, Seancarlos, Sentity, Sha721, Shirulashem, SmartGuy, SoKashira, Sphawk, SqueakBox, Ssj5perfect cell, Stephen Gilbert, Stepheng3, Stev0, Supermarco, SusanLesch, TJRC, TYelliot, TenPoundHammer, The

MySpace Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=393336678 Contributors: 06whitec, 09gebejo, 16761, 16@r, 1EightT, 1wolfblake, 2, 22tarheel, 4RM0, 5150pacer, 80-MAN, A Magical Me, A Man In Black, A black coat, A metal shard, ABK20062, AEMoreira042281, AHTNF, AJR, AThing, Aaron Brenneman, Aaron Schulz, Aaronbrick, Abbyteal, Abonazzi, AboutFaace, Absalon, AbsolutDan, Abu-Fool Danyal ibn Amir al-Makhiri, AbyssWyrm, Academic Challenger, Ace Fool, Ace the bunny, Ace2112, AceKingQueenJack, Acethebunny, Adam mills2005, Adam1213, AdamJacobMuller, Adashiel, AdelaMae, Adkity, Adrian, AdunaicLayman, Aeosynth, Aetherfukz, Afffinals, AgentPeppermint, Agnte, Ahering@cogeco.ca, Ahoerstemeier, Aikrsb, Airplaneman, Ajdv94, Ajsh, Ajsproductions, Alansohn, Aleph-4, Alerante, Aleron235, Alex Bieser, Alex12 3, Alex43223, Alex537, AlexHale, AlexTheMartian, Alexescalona, Alexj.tx, Alexortease, Alexwcovington, Alhutch, Ali, Ali K, Ali@gwc.org.uk, Alias Flood, Aliciamariaort, AlistairMcMillan, Alixandra, Allstarecho, Alpha 4615, Altenhofen, Altered13, Always bored32658, Alvssa3467, Amada`, Amalthea, Amandeep.sohi, American Eagle, Amg503, AmiDaniel, Amic, Amichels, Amire80, AmitMx, Anabus, Anagram Analoguecommunication, Andreascarlet, Andrew.ce.turner, Andrew0921, Andrew1p1991, Android79, Andy Marchbanks, Andyreyes, AngelOfSadness, Angela, Anklepants, Anom8trw8, Anomaly1, Anonymous editor, Anonymous from the 21th century, Ansell, Antandrus, AntiVan, Antonrojo, Antony the genius, Any3893, Apathyjunkie, Aphasia83, Applextrent, Archfalhwyl, Areport, Aries green monkey, ArmadilloFromHell, Arrongourlay, Artisol2345, Arvindn, Asdfghjkl;', Asenine, Aspensti, AssassinX, Astrovega, Asusor, Atchius, AtheistFish, AtxApril, AuburnPilot, Aude, Audrey, Auge, Ava me 182, Avenged Sayain, Avillia, Avix, Awtribute, Axl, Axy, AySz88, B64, BBFootBallr54, BEAST1234, BFD1, BHC, BIRO, Babcockd, Babolo, BabuBhatt, Babyxdawl, Backtable, Badgonegood, Baileco, Balthazar, Baltimoretom, Bannet, Bane004, Barbiebrutal, Barneca, Barney Gumble, Bbatsell, Bbgames, Bbrolita, BbyxSander, Bdegfcunbbfy, Bdenfoshizurie45, Bduddy, Bean2, Bearcat, Beatdown, Beetstra, Bellatea, Bellingham09, Ben The Awesome, Benbread, Bender235, Bengoza, Benj87, Bennie Noakes, Berniethomas68, Berrowj03, Betacommand, Betterusername, Bewildebeast, Bhadani, Bianca1130, Biernot, BigBang19, Bigank, Bigbluefish, Bigboyhiphop, Bigjack123, Bigmike, Bignate48, Bigpacifisteyes, BillboardChart, Billion, Billy Bishop, BillyTFried, Binh Phan, Biocrite, BkarneyMV, Bkoth, Blackjack48, Blahbleh, Blahity, BlastOButter42, Blaxthos, Blazetrackz, Bleicha, Blindeman75, Blu Aardvark, Blue bear sd, Bluebry muffin, Bluestriker, BlytheG, Bmb8609, Bmecoli, Bmicomp, Bmsprint, Boalt2761, Bob bobato, Bobblewik, Bobo192, Bobsurasr, Boccobrock, Bodkinz0809, Boffy b, Bolesjohnb, Bona Fides, Bongwarrior, Bookofjude, Bopash4, Boston2austin, BostonMA, Bowie445, Bowserv2, Brandon, Brandon Sheley, Bratsche, Breadandroses, Brendanconway, Brendel94, Briaboru, Brian Kendig, BrianClass07, BrianRecchia, Brianreading, Bridger987, Brighterorange, Brockley brockley, Bruce89, Bruno567, Bryan Stein, Bryce, Brylcreem2, Bubba73, Buckdj, Bucketsofg, Bufferoverflow, Bugalugs13, Bull Market, BurnDownBabylon, Bwithh, CAPS LOCK, CJ, Caffey4, Cain Mosni, CalJW, Caleymhm, Calton, Cameron Green, Cammdog, Can't sleep, clown will eat me, Canderson7, Candyroks987, Cannibalicious!, Carney23carn, CaseyPenk, CaseyPrimeau, Caseywooley, Casull, Catcheryea, Causa sui, Cavanohara, Cbrickhouse, Cdepew, Cdyson37, CecilWard, Ceejavoz, Cenafan10, Centrx, CesarB, Cesty1020, Cezary Okupski, Ch!keNn00dl3s0up, Ch'marr, Chad5161, Chaddaignault, Chairboy, Chairboy, Chairlunchdinner, Chanlyn, Channelyoutub3, Chantessy, Chaosfeary, CharlieTC, CharlotteWebb, Charolastra charolo, Charvel67, Chase me ladies, I'm the Cavalry, Chasebadkids, Chatfecter, Cheatcode2, Check two you, Cheese13, Cheese223, Cheitz27, Cheong Kok Chun, Cherry blossom tree, Chery, ChesterG, Chevinki, Chickyfuzz123, Chilledsunshine, Chocolatepanda69, Chris is me, Chris the speller, Chris83, Chrisboven, Chrisch, Chriskid321, Chrislk02, Christopher Parham, Chriswiki, Citizensmith, Cjhar, Clarenceville Trojan, ClaytonRocks!, Cleared as filed, ClonedPickle, Closedmouth, CloudNine, Clumping, Cmk2034, CoJaBo, CoastTOcoast533, CobraBK, Colddog, Collard, Colorfulharp233, Cometstyles, Commander Keane, Computerjoe, Conga427, Conical Johnson, Conor Hanrahan, Conti, Coocooforcocopuffs, Coolcaesar, Cooljuno411, Coolmark18, Corporal, Corvus cornix, CosineKitty, Cox813, Cpalmieri90, Cracker182, Craig TheBrit, Crails, Cranborn, Crash Underride, Crazy4metallica, Crazytales, Create42000, Crossmr, Crscrs, Crules4, Crumbsucker, CryptoDerk, Cs-wolves, Csari, Csmaster, Cumbiagermen, Curps, Cyanidesandwich, CyberGhostface, Cyberkiller, Cylonhunter, Cyndicate, Cype1243, Cyrus Sixguns, D'Agosta, DCrazy, DECKitBRUISEit, DGJM, DHeyward, DJFrankie2468, DMP3G, DNBJerk, DXL, Da Vynci, Daa89563, Daabomb, Daedalus969, Dahamu, Daivox, Dale Arnett, DanEdmonds, DanKassem, DanMS, Dancraggs, DandanxD, Daniel Case, Daniel Olsen, Daniel15, Danieljo2013, DannyB !!, DannyDaWriter, Dannyboy5, Dannycali, Dannyp433, Dansiman, Danziger100, Daredevils, Dark Tichondrias, DarkFalls, DarkMario91, Darkage7, Darklilac, Darkmoth, DarknessKing, Darrenhusted, Darth Panda, Dasani, Dave101, Dave145, Daveswagon, David 78744, DavidEGonzalez, DavidFarmbrough, Davidbrake, Davidgauntlett, Davidjamesgill, Davtra, Day22, Dbchip, Dburg90, Dcdavis2, Dcice16, Dck7777, Dclouse, Dcooper, Deathawk, Deathphoenix, Deenoe, Delldot, Delta Spartan. Deltabeignet, Demiurge, Dendodge, Deon, Derek313, Derekt75, Derondantzler, Desmond Hobson, Dgmoran, Dhartung, Dhimwit, Dhwinfield, DiamondDragon, Dickreuter, DidYouLoseASock, Digitalme, Dilk86, Ding ding, Discospinster, Distinguish, Dittyh39, Diving2010, Djc wi, Djgreen101, Djjony, Djskein79, Dlohcierekim's sock, Dmarquard, Dmb0816, Dmron, Dnel, DoctorWho42, DoctorPibb, Doeki, Dogman15, Dollabill3x, Dolphinn, Dominic, Domonicrini, Donarreiskoffer, Donnie1, Donwilson, Doshindude, Dposse, DragonWR12LB, DragonflySixtyseven, Dralwik, Drewright, Dreaded Walrus, Dreamanderson, Drewhamilton, Driftacar, DriveMySol, Drumexpert510, Drumncaptn, Dtobias, Dtraill27, Dude1234777, Duncan, Dust Filter, Dwayne, Dwo, Dylang3893, ESkog, Eaefremov, Eags, Eastlaw, Editornumber2, Edonovan, Edwy, Eenu, Egard89, EgyptianSushi, Ehn, Eiyuu Kou, El Ranska, El Slameron, ElKevbo, Elcerulo, Elcetrified mocha chinchilla, Electronfox, Elijahmeeks, Eliz81, Elkrobber, Emc2, Emiellaiendiay, Emmgal8, Enchanteddrmzceo, Enigmaman, Entroper, EoGuy, Eraser Killer Alpha, Erebus555, Erianna, Eric outdoors, Ericlewis91, ErikNY, Esanchez7587, Esperant, Essexmutant, Estudiarme, EternalSoul 275, Eugenesomeone, Euphrosyne, Evan Robidoux, EvanCS, Evanruga, Evaunit666, Evercat, Everyguy, Everyking, EvocativeIntrigue, EwokiWiki, Exeunt, Explicit, Extransit, Extremecircuitz, FF2010, FMB, Faerie Queene, Falcon9x5, Falconleaf, Fallerd, Fallinboy, Fallout boy, Family Guy, Guy, Fan-1967, Fancy Dan, Fantri, Farawa, Fashionslide, Fast Rita, FatClemenza, FatalError, FatboiFrosty, Faunas, Fazz, Feline 1, Fendacasta, Fenwayguy, Ferretstu, Fervidfrogger, Fetchcomms, Feudonym, Fezmar9, Fiddler on the green, Firehydra2k, Fireman305, Firsfron, Flaming, Flashflash;, Flewis, Flockmeal, Floptickle, Florentino floro, Flyerhell, Fnovd, Footballfan07, Footyfan, Forgottentenshi, Fortdj33, Fourdee, Fox, Foxxygirltamara, Fr0, Fraberj, Fractions, Fractless, Fragglet, Fray123, Freakofnurture, Fred.bradley, Fredler Brave, Fredrik, Frehley, FrenchIsAwesome, FreplySpang, Freshmoon7, Frevidar, Friends04, FromanylanD, Fry2006, Frymaster, Fubar Obfusco, Fuined, Funky Monkey, Funnybunny, Fuperma FuriousFreddy, G S P, G-W, GMBFly98, GVOLTT, Gabet20, GabrielF, Gadfium, Galanskov, Galoubet, GamerSam, Gapgirl9, Garfield226, Garnethertz, Gary Kirk, GavinOB, Gazpacho, Gbhero8, Gciriani, Geeklisted, GeeksHaveFeelings, Geni, Getaaron, Getcrunk, Giant89, Giggy, Gilbert427, Giler, Gilliam, Gimboid13, Ginfu, GiollaUidir, GlassCobra, GlassSandwich, Gldavies, Gmtaylor, Gnominonwiki, GoDawgs, Goatasaur, Gobonobo, Gogo Dodo, Golbez, Gonzalo84, Google-Sheriff, Gorgan almighty, Goromike, GraemeL, Graggle, Green caterpillar, Green meklar, Gregory Shantz, Grejlen, Groupnex, Grtvw4, Grundle2600, Gscshoyru, Gslide, Guanjon, Gubaguy, Guillo7x, Gunblazin247, Gunbolt, Gunmetal Angel, Gurch, Guy named chris, Gwernol, Gzkn, H2g2bob, HN45, Hack-Man, Hackerblaster, Hackmiester, Hadal, HalJor, Halfpintlemon, HaloXXXV, Halosean, Hans3778, Hanu007, Harro5, Harvey994, Hatemyspace, Haubdan, Hbdragon88, Hdt83, Heatgurl11, Hecatonchires, Hede2000, Hello4321, Hendrixski, Hengsheng120, HenkvD, Henry Flower, Henry W. Schmitt, HenvY Heroeswithmetaphors, Hetar, Heterodoxus, HexaChord, HeyYouWithTheHair, Hi5ve2005, Hifrommike65, Hildanknight, Hipv2289, Hirsch.im.wald, Historylover9893, Hitrish, Hmrox, Hockeypuck, Hockeyrw, Hohohob, Hoodsta5109, Hoops Hype, Horizon1015, Horncomposer, Horrorfiend138, Horv.petya, Htanna, Hu12, Hungryfrog, Hunterprice, Hut 6.5, Huysman Hykos1045, Hz12kmblt, I.M. Rich, IACoolPerson, II MusLiM HyBRiD II, Iachimo, Iamogilvie, Ian Moody, Ian6650, IanUK, Ianjones50, Ianjones600, Iapetus, Icedog, Iceyx3, Icidem, Ido50, Idont Havaname, Ifnord, Igni, Iheartsergio, Ikanreed, Ikescs, Ikiroid, Ilikeplums, Ilovebass93, Ilovedistance, IlyaHaykinson, Imddasht, Imnice16, InShaneee, India25, Indon, Infinityfsho, Insineratehymn, InternetMeme, Invader Zim, InvisibleK, Invitatious, Ionescuac, Irishguy, Iron Chef, Irunbackwards, Isaac Dupree, Isis Link, Ismashed, Itsandrewomg, Ixfd64, J Milburn, J306, JBull12, JCraw, JGXenite, JGorton, JHMM13, JJJJust, JJSNgadget, JLaTondre, JR98664, JTCBlues, JTMILLER, JVz, Jacek Kendysz, Jack614, Jackbauer24, Jacksinterweb, Jacob Richardson, Jafeluv, Jahiegel, Jaked92, James Who, JamesMLane, JamesTeterenko, Jameshoban, Jamesk94, Jammycakes, Janeway216, Jaranda, Jareha, Jarwulf, Jaxl, Jazzy j47, Jdw4jesus, Jecroisenvou Jediforce, Jeff Silvers, Jeffbowman, Jeffizle, Jeffrey Smith, Jellypuzzle, Jeltz, Jen729w, Jennica, Jennifer M, Jeodonnell, JeremyMcCracken, Jesant13, JevriS, Jfiz, Jgera5, Jhon montes24. Jibjibjib, Jim Burton, Jim007, Jim182, Jimbob615, JinecouO.N.E, Jj98, Jkorbes, Jmount, Jni, JoWal, Joanberenguer, JoanneB, Joe M, Joebengo, Joecharlie4, Joelr31, Johnny-turbo, John, John F, John Nevard, John4grey, John999doe, JohnRussell, Johnnybagel, Johntarter, Johnuniq, Jonasaurus, Jonathan xx, Jonnighswander, Jons63, Jonwood2, Jordan Brown, Joseph Solis in Australia. Joshik, Joshtmoose, Joshuagross, JossDude, Journalist, Joyous!, Jpgordon, Jsmethers, Jsmith3393, Jsrnash12, Jtalledo, Jtan unleashed, Jtiza, Jtkiefer, Ju6613r, JuJube, Jufert, Juliensk8s, Jumping cheese, Justme89, Justtookacrap, Jvanore68, Jw2034, Jwissick, Jwy, K10wnsta, KD-G722, KPH2293, KWoolley, Kadri, Kafuffle, Kagome 85, Kalathalan, Kaobear, Karrmann, Katerg, Katimawan2005, Kbdank71, Kbh3rd, Keegan, Kegpistol, Kenasuta, Kencf0618, Kendrex, Kennansoft, Kenyon, Kermit2, Kerowyn, Kesiyaj, Kevin, B12, Kevin mills, KevinOrtega, Kevinharder, Keycard, Khaled7stars, Khfan93, Khoikhoi, Kidd13, Kidlittle, Kill.the.spangle, Killjoy Zero, Kilo-Lima, Kindlyhandmethebread, King Tarkus, Kingrioo, Kingfiogojr, Kingj17, Kingturtle, Kinneyboy90, Kittylove300, Kkm010, Kloy1334, Knight of rain, KnightRider592, KnowledgeOfSelf, Kobi L, Kollision, Koolgiy, Kowakian skater, Kozmik Pariah, KrakatoaKatie, Krazycev13, Krich, Kross, Ksmithone, Kudret abi, Kukukuku, Kungfuadam, Kungming2, Kuru, Kus9, Kycowboyntv, Kyle Jarvis, Kylu, Kyng, Kynn, Kyorosuke, LLL1424, LUUSAP, LaMenta3, Lachatdelarue, Ladycat45, Ladypulaski, Ladysybilla, Lamontanarusa, Lamrock, Landssshark!, Lantay77, Larry V, Larsvolta, Lasdlt, Last Avenue, Latitude0116, Lauren louise, Laurinaaaaa, LauringtonWright!, Laval, Lazyawol, Lcaa9, Leadgold, LeeHunter, LegitimateAndEvenCompelling, Lenin and McCarthy, Leo Collin, Leolapinos, Lester, Liamdaly620, Liface, Lifebeginswithhappyhour, Lightdarkness, Lilduff2008, Lilmikem8, Link chepf, Linkspamremover, Little Professor, Littlehawaiiangurl 808, Livajo, Living large, Llamalord54321, Lobstaish, Localbatman, Lollerskates, Lookingforgroup, Loompyloompy313, Looptvc, Lord Hawk, Lordford, Lostinverona, Lotje, LoveistheDrug, Lovelac7, Lradrama, Ltwo, Luccas, Luciasquirrel, Luckyluke, Luke255, Luna Santin, Luna7, Lx45803, Lykitzkc, Lynux1, Lyryxfan, M1ss1ontomars2k4, M2K 2, M3SCU, MER-C, MFantti, MPS, MVP0079, Mac Davis, Macman16a, Macosme, Magicmarc, Magister Mathematicae, Magwe, Mahanga, Mahdiislam, Mahjongg, Majorly, Make me sigh, Makemi, Malcolmx15, Malendras, Malerin, Malo, Mamboboy, Manci 12, Manop, Manson 0015, Mapleglobal all the way, Mark, Marknew, Marlboronj, Marlinite, Marlova, Martarius, Martin Jensen, Martini833, Martpol, Marysunshine, Masonexcell, Master of Puppets,

MasterBirdy, Mateo SA, Mathiastek, Matt Yeager, Matt365, Matt59254, Mattavacortez, Matt12001, Mavaddat, Max Schwarz, Max, goedien, MaxEspinho, Maxamegalon2000, Maxhunter, Maxkramer, Maxschmelling, Maxwahrhaftig, MazVaz, Mazy1, Mcoop06, Mdd, Mdwh, Meateebon, Mechajedi, Mecumbyah, Meeples, Meetfazan, Megastrike14, MegdalePlace, Mehudson1, Mehuln, Melly721, MeowMixer, Mercury1, Merodoc, Mets501, Mgard7331, Mggeeorange2, Mhiji, Mhking, Miagirljmw14, Micfrt345, Michael Hardy, Michaelpuk1, Michaelr2195, Michael Nebyla, Mick65, Mickey1904, Midway, Mig30m6, Migell, Mike 7, Mike Payne, MikeM2011, MikeOso, Mikepanhu, Mikeyjake, Miles, Miles, Hegg, Milowent, Mimihitam, Minardi, Minghong, Mipadi, Misortie, Misza13, Miszynth, Mjhy0926, Mjpieters, Mkb4evr, Mm40, Mnemeson, Moe Epsilon, Mofomojo, Monkeys2ruletheworld, MonstaPro, Moody30906, MoodyGroove Mordantkitten, MordredKLB, Mormondude 2009, Mortalias, Morwen, Mozeo, Mparent1963, Mr Majik 5, Mr Stephen, Mr. Lefty, Mr. Manningson, Mr. Sanchez 13, Mr. Unknown, Mr. weedle, MrHen, MrVibrating, Mrfun09, Mrifenba, Mrmanhattanproject, Mrrightguy10, Msafi311, Msteal2342, Muhand, Multikev, Mumble45, Mundilfari, Munibert, Mushroom, Mvk, Mwfnwa, Mx3, MyNameIsNotBob, Myrockstar, Mysekurity, Myspaceaddictaust, Myspacex, Mütze, N8lewis, NCSS, NK, NSOBethle, NSpossum, Naftprod, Nakon, Nanisnap, Naniwako, Naoko77, Narco, Narex, Nathan nfm, Nathan xx, Navigation 12, NawlinWiki, Nbafreakman, Nbdinz, Necromancer, Neiman02, Nelleh, Neo Geo, NeoVampTrunks, NeonGenesisPop, Netsnipe, NewsSource, Newyorkjoseph@yahoo.com, Niceley, Nick Boulevard, Nick C, NickBush24, Nicksta92, Nickyroose, NigelR, Nightscream, Nihilozero, Nikto22, Nima1024, Nintendude, Nirvanacr1231, Niteelfgen, No Guru, Non-notable educator, Noozgroop, Norkus007, Norwood6891, Notreallydavid, Nrbelex, Numbo3, Nunh-huh, Nwatson, Nzd, ONEder Boy, Oasisbob, OhanaUnited, Ojon98, Old Guard, OldakQuill, Oldkook, Oleg Alexandrov, Olga83, Oli Filth, Olorin28, Omegatron, Omicronpersei8, Onetwosevencrazie, Ont, OptiK, Optimalproc, Oracle989, Orayzio, OrbitOn Orderinchaos, OregonD00d, Oreo Priest, Orudge, Oscarrobertson, Oscarthecat, Otto ter Haar, Our Lady Overkill, Ourai, PCHS-NJROTC, PFHLai, PHDrillSergeant, PS2pcGAMER, PTSE, Pacific Coast Highway, Palaeologus, PanAndScan, Paragonmatrix, Paris1745, Pashman, Pat Berry, Pat961, Patentti, Patito25, Patrick925, Patrick925, Patrick983, Patrick9849, Patstuart, Paul August, Paul-L, Paul1337, PaulLev, Paulhorner, Paulir231, Pauric, Pearle, Pearljade, Pedro, Peecee1978, Pejhman, PencilSharpener, Penwhale, People Week Guy, PerfectStorm, Perfecto, Persian Poet Gal, Peschomd, Peter, Pgan002, Pgk, Phoenixj91, Pholi, PiMaster3, Picklerunderwoodfan, Piemanmoo, Pilotguy, Plainsong, Plasticup, Plattopus, Plutoxin, Pmount, Pne, Pnihill2000, Pochacco, Policey9876, Polihale, Politepunk, Pollo9087, Polylerus, Pomte, Popocatepetl, Porqin, Possum, Postdlf, Pp67, Pperos, PrettyMuchBryce, Proairsofter352, Profesh, Prolog, PrometheusX303, Promking, Propertius, Psantora, PseudoSudo, Psy guy, Psychofish25, Psycholilbunny, Pughtrid75, Punk201, PurpleHazley, Pyrojt07, Pyrospirit, Qluah, Qrc2006, Qtoktok, Quadratic, Quanain, Quaque, Quatloo, Quickliger, Quinsareth, Qwerty Binary, Qxz, R'n'B, RALPH, RCT Locomotion Wikipedia, REexpert44, RJL20, RLE64, RSEagle, Raastin, RadioActive, RadioKirk, Raelx, Rai27, Rainingblood667, RandallFlagg Scotland, Randomaccount990, Randombassist, Randomwellwisher, Ranveig, Rapfan227, RaseaC, RasputinAXP, Ratarsed, Raymie, Rberlow, Rchan89, Rcnaranja, Rdsmith4, Readerboy13, Readysteadystop, Real decimic, Realdiamonds, Realm of Shadows, Red Winged Duck, RedHotRadiators, RedRose333, Redcherrycola, Redtheidiot, Redvers, Redwolf24, Reginmund, Remand, Renfield, Rep07, Retired username, Rettetast, Rev. Atheist, RexNL, Rgsupplies16, Rhoganjosh, Rhysydude, RicegoneWILD, Rich Farmbrough, Richar4034, Richard0612, RichardKatano, Richardni, Rickscholz, Ricky. Adams, Ridethatpony35, Riffsyphon1024, Riksweeney, Rioli15174, Rjwilmsi, Rkoking, Rl, Rlogan2, Rnb, Robbiesmith, RobertCMWV1974, RobertG, Robertveneziano, Robors, Robth, RocketJohnson, Rodi01, Romansaf, Romestar, Romney yw, Rory096, Rose Garden, Rossami, Rowanoak, RoyBoy, Rschen7754, Rshoward, Rub3X, RucasHost, Ruck, RunOrDie, Running, Russ is the sex, Rwwww, RyanGFilm, Ryanch06, Ryanjunk, Ryans the giant, Rynolda, RyokoMocha, Ryulong, SWISHA HOUSE, Sabertooth, Sadia89, Safetyxpin89, Sagaciousuk, Saikuru, Sakuravon, Sam Hocevar, Sam Korn, Sami121299, Samir, Samuelsen, Samyismyhero, Sandahl, Sangild, Sango123, Sango1977, Sannyzhou, Sarahgal, Sars, Sartrehush, Sasquatch, SatCam, Satishthomas, Satori Son, Saturday, SavoySison, ScanDisk, Scarian, Scarlett8188, Scepia, Sceptre, Scetoaux, Schank1234, Schika, Schissel, Schnauzerhead, Schrandit, Schroeder74, SchuminWeb, Schwnj, Schzmo, Scottandrewhutchins, Scrabbleship, Scriptygirl, Sct72, Scythre, SeANMcBAY, Sean William, Seandals, Search4Lancer, Sebesta, Secfan, Secret Saturdays, Seminumerical, Senergy, Seqsea, Seraphim, Serge222, Sesshomaru, Shadel 1, Shanel, Shanes, Shaolin Samurai, Shaqluver10, Sharpdust, Shattereddd, ShaunES, Sherudo, Shii, Shimmera, Shizane, Shoaler, Shoat, Shoecream, Shogun, Shortride, Sickness112, SigmaEpsilon, SigmaX54, SilentRage, Siliconov, Simaloko, Simburger64, SimonD, SimonP, Simonkoldyk, Sinerma, Sir Baka Jones, Siroxo, Sjakkalle, Skittleys, SkittlzAnKomboz, Skizzell, Sklocke, Skuzmier, Skydog allman, Slakr, Slarre, Slasher600, SlaughterOfTheSoul, SlavaP, Slave4u, Slayemin, Sleepyasthesouth, Slinkeyts, Slugmaster, SmartGuy, Smartyllama, Smash, Smeggysmeg, Smogqueen, Smoth 007, SnakeSeries, SnappingTurtle, Snoopdoggune, So Smart s0 Dumb, SoCalSuperEagle, Sockies, Solarusdude, Soomw, Soonercary, Sophiness, SouthernNights, Spamcollector 13, SpikeJones, Spiralhighway, Splash22386, SportsMaster, SpuriousQ, Spyguy41, Squareboy, Squirrelfisher, Srikeit, Starcasey, Starionwolf, Startstop123, Starwind Amada, Steam5, Steel, Steevven1, Stefanlyl, Stenun, Stephenb, Stephenmusic, Steven J, Anderson, Stevenmitchell, Stevevance, Stifle, Stones1, Stormscape, Strafidlo, Strait, Straxus, Stretch 135, Strumz, StuffOfInterest, Style Boy, Subsume, Suepahflyeuv, Sumnerskate2, SunCreator, Suntiger, SuperDT, SuperDude115, SuperWiki10000, SuperWiki9999, Supermodella, Surturz, SusanLesch, Susurrus, Swatjester, Sweetfreek, Swive, Szyslak, TAz69x, TJDay, TJohnson, TKD, TKilbourn, TPIRFanSteve, TaborL, Taidawang, Talfethag7, Tamajared, Tamara R. Hunter, Taneb123, Tango, Tangotango, Tani unit, TankRamp, Tao of tyler, Tariqabjotu, Tarun.Varshney, Tawker, Technofreak90, Ted chou12, Teddifer, Tedickey, Teenwriter, Teh tennisman, TehFreezer, TehY3llowDart, Tehcarpet, Telebudist, TenOfAllTrades nisuser123, Terbospeed, Terence, Terminal Freeze, Terminalilness, TerraFrost, TexMurphy, TexasAndroid, Tfgbd, Tharun518, That one dude down the street, Thataznguy, The GOAT, The Inedible Bulk, The Legendary Ranger, The Ronin, The Scourge, The Thief, The Xenophobe, The tooth, The undertow, The Wub, TheBeaver, TheBlueFlamingo, TheCrazyB133, TheDefiniteArticle, TheHassan, TheKMan, TheKoG, TheLedHead, TheOneTheyCall, TheOtherSiguy, TheQuandry, TheRanger, TheSun, Theemo1josh666, Thegame2388, Thegraham, TheherenNow, Thekohser, Thelaw27, Themaludude101, Themangib, Themasterofwiki, Themissinglink2004, Thepulse2007, Thepulse98, Therealhazel, These7enthprophet, Theshizirl, Thesimpsons455, Thetrenchcoat, Thewhoissuperb24, Thezer0ist, Thingg, Thiseye, ThomasF, Thomasdrumm, Thor progeny, Thorpe, Thue, Thunderbrand, Thundersky209, Thursdayx20. TigerShark, Tigerfan368, Tigerghost, Tiggman, Tim1988, TimothyHorrigan, Tinton5, Tinykohls, Tiptoety, Tir38, Titoxd, Tjleo209 014, Tkgd2007, Tm1000, Toastthemost, Tog5632, Tom X. Tobin, Tom harrison, Tomlillis, Tommstein, Tonsomoxie, Tony1, Tonym88, Torenko, Totnesmartin, Toussaint, Toxin166, Tpbradbury, Tranix, Travelbird, Travs, TrbleClef, Tregoweth TreoBoy680, Trevor MacInnis, Treyvo, Trijah, Tripod86, Troublesleeping, Ttam, Tuspm, Tvland2009, Twintone, Twitch4thmay, Tyger, Tyler Banfield, Tyler2112, Tyrollama, Tywillis, U, UFPPavilion, ULTRAZORD, URORIN, UberScienceNerd, UkPaolo, Ultradude 1991, Ultras GE, Umbongo91, Ummakynes, Unbreakable 10000, Underthefade, Unicef12, Unitsdrama, Unixer, UnknownPg, UpThePunx!, Used1, User A1, User.lain, User2004, Usfanman, Utcursch, Uwishuwereme, V-townhood, VDeathPenaltyV, Vaderson1, Vakuta, Valhallia, Vaughnstull, Vcamp1, Vchimpanzee, Vegetator, Veinor, Velvetrope, Verdamondo, Vereinigen, Veritycowper, Verne Equinox, Vicpro, Viridian, Vivir tortura, Vizcarra, Vnbrooks, Voice of Reason, Voidvector, VoluntarySlave, VonDCW, Vorratt, Vultuk, Vyrsace, WAvegetarian, WODUP, Waninko, WarEagleTH, WarthogDemon, Waterofthemoon, Wavelength, Way2cute4u00, Wayward, Wbkelley, Wdr1, Webdinger, Weien, Wesley M. Curtus, Wesman1023, Whereizben, WhisperToMe, Whistle 25, WhiteOrchidBlues, Whomp, Wiikipedian, Wiki alf, WikiLeon, Wikibout, Wikieditor06, Wikieditor101, Wikien2009, Wikiklrsc, Wikipedian06, Wikipediarocksmysocks, Wikipediarules2221, Wikipeedio, Wikithom, Wikiviewer, Wild Bill, Will Beback, WillMak050389, Williamboldented, Willsangford, Willsketch, Willy.on.wheels, Willzter, WingZero, Winson1, Winxrockswitchsux, Wippy M, Wisedude, Witan, Wizardman, Womendiary, Wongo31, Woohookitty, Wotw90505, Wraithdart, Wrajradio, WriterFromAfar755, Wroush, Wslack, Wwagner, Wwwwolf, Wykebjs, XGA geek, XOsweetcandyyOx, XX55XX, Xanofar, Xcuref1endx, Xeysz, Xghettohoodx, Xiamcitizen, Xinoph, Xtc 2701, Xunex, Xverse, XxTrillvillexX9, Xxxdtox, Xxxplizit, Y0u, Yahia.barie, Yamaguchi先生, Yamamoto Ichiro, Yamla, Yanksox, Yasir106, Yian the man, Young boy senior, Youngwebprogrammer, Yousou, Yrface, Yumyumchicken, Zahid Abdassabur, Zanimum, Zaphraud, Zarchon, Zaruyache, ZayZayEM, Zbax1290, Zeb10s, Zeke 1120, Zenohockey, Zephoria, Zidane4028, Ziva David, Zoe, Zsinj, Zythe, Zzuuzz, ^demon, Åscended åpocålypse, 2826 anonymous edits

Newsvine Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=384553941 Contributors: A. B., AndrewTH, Anetode, AniMate, Arak80, Arpingstone, Artw, Astigmatism, AtlantaSantos, Auxblood, CaelumArisen, Corey.spring, CyberSkull, Czj, Darrelljon, Dean1970, DotShell, Dreamyshade, Drone007, ElinorD, Haniff, HarcourtArms, Hayfordoleary, JHP, Jatkins, Jesusfreak84, Jjjchang, KillerAsteroids, Lbneal, Mathwizxp, Mets501, Michaelczhang, Mipadi, MrArcadian, N cody46, Nono64, Obeattie, Ottawahitech, Peter, PigFlu Oink, Randy Johnston, Rappo11, RegBarc, SDC, Scarequotes, Sdalmonte, SpuriousQ, Tagus, TakuyaMurata, Tangfish, TheRegicider, TheTrueSora, Tiredandold, Tmcw, Unimaxium, UnitedStatesian, Walkiped, WikiLeon, Zorcon1617, 74 anonymous edits

Reddit *Source*: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=394688634 *Contributors*: 7, AaronSw, Acdx, Alansohn, Alex d 76, Alexis.ohanian, Allstarecho, Amitparikh, Ansible81, Avono, BarryWood, Bobbyllama, Bonadea, Boris Kaiser, Brandon, Brinkost, Camr, Camw, Canley, Cap'n Refsmmat, Cerberus12, Chandler, Chuq, Chwilliam, Clibble, Closetoeuphoria, Coccyx Bloccyx, Crysh, Cybercobra, Czj, Daedalus969, Dancter, Darkmeerkat, Darrenhusted, Dasony, Dave420, David Levy, David.rand, Dawdler, Dbmikus, DeadEyeArrow, Denelson83, DominatorMatrix, DonSlice, Dreish, Dreiss2, Drilnoth, Drizzit12, Eatwithaspork, Ebelular, Edward, Everard Proudfoot, Everything counts, Falcon8765, Falcon9x5, Fbg111, Figs, Finlay McWalter, Firefighterfo115, Fiskbil, Frankthewho, Freshyill, Gary King, Ghewgill, Gioto, Goodnightmush, Greenrd, Grue, Haakon, Hao2lian, Henrik, Henry W. Schmitt, Herbythyme, Highway Hitchhiker, Hmm..., HorseloverFat, Hue White, Hydrogen Iodide, Iahead, Ilyag, Imz, IndiWebPirate, Inklein, InternetMeme, JCDenton2052, JForget, Jacobolus, Jarro 2783, Jason404, Jaydec, Jeffrey Mall, Jehochman, Joe2832, Jomynow, Jonah Stein, Jonathan.s.kt, Jreferee, Judge373, Juggaleaux, Juliamae, KGasso, Karam.Anthony,K, King of Hearts, Kingboyk, Kingpin13, Kingturtle, KirbyWallace, Kirrages, Klow, Koavf, Kpias, Kross, L Kensington, LauriO, Lawrencekhoo, Leki, Lemmingway, Libertyaboveallelse, LightSpeed3, Looptvc, Luna Santin, M.nelson, Malo, Marie flwr, Marioo2, Marokwitz, Master of Puppets, MerchantofSoul, Michaelczhang, Midgrid, Mike Schiraldi, Mordgier, Mortense, Mptb3, Mrand, Mtrinque, Muboshgu, Mudwater, Mundlapati, Mythrilfan, Nae'blis, Nightscream, NisseSthlm, Nmogueira, Norlik, NorthernChaosGod, Olsoncal, Paul1991, Peer-LAN, Phantomsteve, Philip Trueman, Philwiki, Piano non troppo, Picklegnome, Piet Delport, Playdagame6991, Ponydepression, Pretzels, Priiiit, Psantora, Pstuart, Quriously unquenched, RainbowOfLight, Rainer Wasserfuhr, Razzairpina, ReyBrujo, Ripst420, Rogerbrent, Rory O'Kane, SF007, Sad squirrel, Sam Hughes, Satxer, Saw

StumbleUpon Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395138623 Contributors: ACREW, AVRS, AceMyth, Alex132, Alvinjaques, Andoru, Angela, AxG, Benji1304, Bensci54, Betacommand, Betterusername, Billso, BlankVerse, Bloggerprod, Bonadea, Boneheadmx, Booyabazooka, Bridies, Bronwyn in sf, Brucevdk, Canadaworker, Captain panda, Castorquinn, Cdyson37, Chasingamy, Chops76, Cinderelly007, Corvus cornix, Cs302b, Cunadol9, Cybe, Dancter, Danlev, Dantheman223, Darrenhusted, Dave Runger, Debresser, Deramisan, Discospinster, Dogadvicer, DominatorMatrix, Doyle75, Dvd Avins, Edgar181, Editor2020, Egoldber, Enivid, Evil Eccentric, Evil saltine, Eviljojo, Finnegar, Flowanda, FlyingToaster, Frazzydee, Frazzycaserole, Gail, Gmc, GraemeL, Graham87, Grey Horse, Guitarhhero, Gyrferret, Halbared, Hebrides, Hoo man, Hu12, JAStewart, JLaTondre, Jholis, Jhsounds, Jim7907, Jkonner, Jordantheking, Karolinger, KarthikKakarala, Kevin W., Konradc, KrakatoaKatie, Krelle, Kuru, Labnol, Lambo2409, LilHelpa, LinguistAtLarge, M4bwav, Mabuse, Magister Mathematicae, ManiacalMonkey, Mark alfred, Mathiastck, MattKeegan, MatthewMastracci, McGeddon, Meaghan, Melancholie, Meno25, Michaelbeckham, Micru, MikeCapone, Molinari, MrBussi, Mrdude, N Yo FACE, Nenwocalist, Nicolae6, Nixeagle, Nogwa, Notinasnaid, Oneforfortytwo, Pixelface, Playdagame6991, Probuzz, Profitine, Rastrh, Raithesoft, Rajah, RapPhenom, RazorICE, Rdsmith4, Receshenproof, ReinforcedReinforcements, Remember the dot, Rjwilmsi, Rm wa vu, Rvalles, Ryankrameretc, SMMcintyre, Samwaltz, Sastopeit, Scienceman123, Scriberius, Shishir0610, Simbamangu, Sketchee, Slon02, Sonnlaut, Shoberi, Starwed, Stevietheman, T3xs, Tafinucane, Tbone762, TheGreatEd, Theanphibian, Thumperward, Timanderso, Tkg2d007, TonyW,

Tregoweth, True Pagan Warrior, Trusilver, UkPaolo, Undergroundindeepthought, Unmerklich, UserDoe, VJ Emsi, Verrai, Vlad, Widefox, Wikinewguy, Wimt, WorldlyWebster, Xenophod, Xiner, Yiwen017, Zoe, Zvn, 294 anonymous edits

Twitter Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395556239 Contributors: (npcserver), 10metreh, 16@r, 1973mfb, 1wolfblake, 242Selby, 45ossington, 7OA, A3camero, AMK1211, APassionCane, Abunet, Acalamari, AdamG-PhotoShare, AdamJGSea, Adamwilcox, Adremja, Aeon17x, Aerodude96, Ageekgal, Agentbla, Aglyad, Ahirreddy, Akamad, Al3xpayne, Alansohn, Albertlg, Alboran, Aldaron, Alegoo92, Alex Neman, AlexBriggs13, AlexiusHoratius, Alhutch, AlisonW, Aliwa156, Alix.simon, Amalthea, AnOddName, Anaxial, And3k, Andy, Andy Dingley, Andy Marchbanks, Anirvan, Anonymous Dissident, Anonymoususer666, Antilived, Antonio Lopez, Antrikshy, Anwar saadat, Arctic Night, Aremisasling, Arsonal, Art LaPella, Aschmidt, Ashton Rainwater, Ashwin.sri, Asruge, Attilios, Auréola, AussieSamiLOL, Autarch, Avaarga, AvicAWB, Avicennasis, Avoided, Awb49, AxelBoldt, Aye Carumba Fajita Pizza, Ayrton Prost, Azure, BLOLMOM, Backtable, Bansipatel, Barefootmeg, Barek, Barkman, Barnabypage, BarretBonden, Bart133, Bblboy54, Bejinhan, Beland, Bellagio99, Bellewroy, Bender235, Bento00, Bevo, Beyoncé Superfanatic, Bhood4550, BigToe7000, Bigturtle, Biguana, Billbowery, Billinghurst, Billwhittaker, BillyPreset, Blainster, Blanchardb, Bnordlund, Boaf, Bob bobato, Boba-Fett64, Boerewors, Bogey97, Boing! said Zebedee, Boleyn, Borkert, BostonRed, Boul22435, Bowmanij, BradHD, Bradleytee, BrainyBabe, Brettstaylor, BritishWatcher, Britonkolber, BrotherSulayman, BrownHairedGirl, Browndog72, Brownsteve, Bruce 1ee, Bryan.burgers, Bsadowski1, Bubba73, C.Fred, C6541, CAH-x-, Cacuija, Cagedether, Calliopejen1, Cameron Scott, Camoz87, Can't sleep, clown will eat me, CanadianLinuxUser, Canaima, Candoent, CapitalR, Capitalistroadster, CardinalDan, Carolinesedda, Carre, Carruthk, Catgut, Cbreitel, Ccacsmss, CcolbyS, CenterofGravity, CerberuS, Cgmusselman, Chainsawriot, Charlette Proto, Chatfecter, Ched Davis, Cheong Kok Chun, Chexov29, Chickenlittle 850, Chitetskoy, Chost2016, ChrisThomson24, Chzz, Cic, Cjvandyk, Clamshell Deathtrap, Cleany 12, Cleared as filed, CliffC, Cmadler, Colbpa, Comccoy, Compasshc, Computerjoe, ConcernedVancouverite, Conti, Corbett3000, Crarysocom, Crash Underride, Crimsonnail, Cswpride, Cultureoftrust, Cursif, Cutfromtheteam, CyberSkull, Cybercobra, Cyvh, D-Notice, DAG JM, DARTH SIDIOUS 2, DMacks, DMahalko, Da Joe DaRaeMan, Dabomb87, Daedalus969, Dagko, Dagmon, Daj12192, Dancraggs, Daniel Hen, Danley, Danzigland, Darcyj, Daven200520, Davewho2, David Rush, David Shankbone, Deanybabeh, Deathgleaner, Debresser, Dejaphoenix, DelPlaya, Delish90, Denelson83, Dennis Brown, Dennistoninc, Derek.munneke, Deshabhakta, Diannaa, Dicesitalianice, Diobaithyn, Dionyziz, Discospinster, Dissolve, Diving2010, Diza, Dizikaygisiz, Djc wi, Docu, Dodiedodie, Dodomonkey221, Donebythesecondlaw, Doomsdayer520, Dottydotdot, Doug, Download, Dr. Blofeld, Dr.K., Draxtreme, Dreadstar, Dream out loud, Dreamyshade, Drmies, Drone007, Drpickem, Duagloth, Dumshizz, Dwell88, Dy2007, Dycedarg, EEMIV, EHartwell, ERcheck, Eagle744, Eastlaw, Ed g2s, EdJogg, Edkollin, EdoDodo, Eduardoferreira, Edward, Eenu, Efcmagnew, Egil, Eiland, Einstein runner, El Pocho, Elassint, Elb2000, Electricalaskan, EliasG21, Elsheimy, Emerson7, Emiltsch, Enviroboy, Epeefleche, Epgui, Ericlee, Erifneerg, Es330td, Escape Orbit, EscapedGorilla, Esprit15d, Ethel the aardvark, Everard Proudfoot, Everything counts, Evgenimakarov, Evildeathmath, Evyn, EwokiWiki, Explicit, ExplicitImplicity, F00P, FHen, Fabian5003, Faithlessthewonderboy, Falcon9x5, Fanatix, Fastily, FatalError, Fayenatic Iondon, Feduciary, Fetchcomms, Ff1959, Fifthnail, Finetooth, Finin, Fischer.sebastian, FlamingSilmaril, Flowanda, Fluppy, Fly by Night, FlyingToaster, Foodimentary, Foofighter20x, Fordmadoxfraud, Fram, FrameWave20, FrankCarper, FrankTobia, Frankarr, Fraxtil, Freakedout, Frecklefoot, Frehley, Fresheneesz, Fruitbat101, Funandtrvl, Funguy06, Funtaff, Furrykef, Fusho, Fvw, Fw5150, G.W., GDallimore, GFellows, GSK, Gabrielseed, Gaga111, GageSkidmore, Galahaut, Gameplaya888, Gargaj, Gary King, Gavint0, Gavreh, GearedBull, Geni, Geoffman13, Georger55, Gerardw Gforce20, Gfp1968, Gil mo, Giveitlegs, Glasscity09, Gleask, Glennwells, Gogo Dodo, GoodbyeRosie, Goog, Gpia7r, Grafen, Graham87, Grampion76, GreenGourd, Greenrd, Greg Tyler, GregC, GregManninLB, Ground Zero, Gunmetal Angel, Guy Harris, GyroMagician, H3llkn0wz, Haha169, HalfShadow, HandThatFeeds, Happyflappy1, Harry Lake, Haza-w, HeadlightMorning HelloImStorm, Hervegirod, Historypundit, Hjones567, Hmwith, Honeytech, HordeFTL, Horkana, Hrothgar15, Htanna, Hughtcool, Hullaballoo Wolfowitz, Hum0hallelujah, Humanisticmystic, Husky, Hydrargyrum, Hydrogen Iodide, HyperCapitalist, Hzshen, IGAT, ISD, Iamdeadnow, Iamhappy :), Iamzim93, Ida Shaw, Iluvwiki1, Ilyakub, Imorthodox23, Indon, Indonesiahits, IngerAlHaosului, Inknoise, Insanatic, Intelati, Ipsofacto123, Iridescent, Isaac Rabinovitch, Isaiah(creator), IvanLanin, IveFoundit, J o, J.delanoy, JBsupreme, JCDenton2052, JForget, JGXenite, JMS Old Al, JTroisi89, JV Smithy, JacksonProductions, Jacob Poon, Jahsonic, Jalabi99, JamesMLane, JamesMCGuiggan, Jamiedixon, JanCK, Jansegers, Jarhed, Jasondburkert, Jasperrees, Jatkins, JavaTenor, Jay2009m, JayJasper, Jayglenn204, Jeff G., Jenkinsp, Jenks24, Jenmitch, Jeppesn, Jeremy Bolwell, Jerzy, Jessaharp, Jgera5, Jhenderson777, Jhw57, Jibbist, JimParsons, Jjd24, Jjron, Jmatthew3, Jodrell, Joelrex, JohnCD, Johndburger, Johnjohn142, Johnred32, Jolly Janner, JonGarfunkel, JonSmet, Jonathannip, Jopo sf, Josephgrossberg, JoshMarino420, Jouva, Joycloete, Jpbowen, Jpgovekar, Juancnuno, Jujubean 55, Julesd, Julian colton, Jwmsfoben, K ideas, Kaarlows, Kai Tatsu, Kamath.nakul, Kapanka, Karen Viceroy, Kayvee, Kbh3rd, Kehrbykid, Kenyo Keristrasza, Kessler, Kevang, Kevin, Kevin Forsyth, Kevphenry, Khalfani khaldun, Kichwa, Kigabo, Kimmylimmited, Kingpin13, Kkm010, Klondike, Kmote, Koavf, Kolocha, Koman90, Komitsuki, Kriskras, Kross, Kshieh, Kuralyov, KuroiShiroi, Kyle1278, Kyng, L Kensington, Labboy, Lamename3000, Langhorner, Languagehat, Lansey, Lars Washington, Lars005, Laurence891, Lawl95, Lboulton, Leachyboy77, Leftmostcat, Legion fi, Lester, Levineps, Lewis TCM, Lightmouse, Lilac Soul, LinguistAtLarge, Linguisticgeek, Livecrunch, Llusiduonbach, Locos epraix, Lollbirdsey, Loranp, Lordb, Lotje, Louiemantia, Lucyatchalk, Lwc, Lynbarn, Lyverbe, M7, MER-C, MJ94, Ma sassan, MacsBug, Madberry, Mandarax, Manonfire94, Manop, Manormadman, Marasmusine, Mariah-Yulia, Mariomedici707, MarkGGN, Markdandrea, MarmadukePercy, Martarius, Martin451, MartinPackerIBM, Martindiano, Martnym, MassvMaster, Mattarata, Matthewrlee, Mattisse, Mattisse, Mattybusiness1, Mauler90, Maxamegalon2000, Mc8755, Mcdy, Mcld, Mcmahonc28, Mczapp, Mdaniels, Mdl53711, Meaghannf, Melikbilge, Melissabrah, Melvalevis, Mentifisto, Meowmix4jo, Mercury McKinnon, MetaManFromTomorrow, Michael Hardy, MichaelJohnNielsen, Michaelh2001, Michaelpraetorius, Midnight Love, Midway, Mieciu K, Mikecraig, Mikewax, Mimzy1990, Mipadi, Mmcneish, Mmmmm1000, Mmolaire, Mohamed mashaly, Mojei, MonkeyHouseOfPain, Mono, Montrealais, Moozipan Cheese, Morgankevinj, Moritherapy, Mortense, Movieguruman, MrHighway, MrOllie, Mrflip, Msr69er, Munchman, MylesCallum, Myomancer, Mzajac, NCSS, Naftprod, Nagy, Nakon, NameThatWorks, Nate1481, Nathan7la, Naumov, NawlinWiki, NecroBlze, Neon white, NerdyScienceDude, Neustradamus, Nicholaidrevin, NickD, Nickyus, Nicster09, Nightscream, Nihil, Nips, Noleander, Norquist9, Northumbrian, Not a dog, Notyourbroom, Notyourhoom, Nsaa, NuclearWarfare, Nyenyec, O.neill.kid, ONEder Boy, Ocaasi, Occono, Offenbach, OhSqueezy, Ohnoitsjamie, Oliphaunt, OliviaPhelps, Onebravemonkey, Onesius, Orbixhost, Orfen, Osborne, OsvaldoGago, Ottawahitech, Ottre, Outsidethewall, Ouvyt, OwenBlacker, Ozzdawg, PBP, Pafferguy, PahaOlo, Palfrey, Palmiped, Pankkake, Pauglester, Pauliewaulie64, Pauljtaylor, Pb30, Pedro96, Pennstatephil, Percy Snoodle, PercyLogan!, Petriedn, Pgan002, Phattcityusa, Philip Trueman, Phinicky, Phocks, Photographerguy, Phraine, Pigsonthewing, Pilotguy, Pinethicket, Pizza1512, Pjhsv, Pjoef, Pmlineditor, Pmsyyz, Poeloq, Poshi, Ppival, Prettyblossom, Proxy User, Ptemples, Ptomblin, Qawswaq, Quantamm, Quantumobserver, Quillaja, QuiteUnusual, Qwyrxian, RJW Times, Radagast3, Radiant chains, Rafelio, Rafiqphillips, Ragib, RainbowOfLight, Randy Wine, Rapachella, Ravendarque, Rbaal, Rchandra, Rcnaranja, Rculatta, Reach Out to the Truth, Realm of Shadows, Redthoreau, ReinforcedReinforcements, Rejectwater, Remember the dot, Renaissancee, RenniePet, Rich 99123, Richiekim, Richmond96, Riker666, Ripalda, Risker, Rjanag, Rjwilmsi, Rlancefield, Rnb, Rnc000, Robert Skyhawk, Robert1947, Robofish, RockMFR, Rockfang, Rockysmile11, Rodhullandemu, Ron Ritzman, Ronestar, Rookmdc, Rsrikanth05, Rufus12, Russavia, Rwiggum, RyanCross, S0aasdf2sf, S4xton, SAVE US.L2P, SJP, SamJohnston, Samati, SandyGeorgia, Sarz, Saxsux, Scarce, ScarletPepper, Scarletdivision, SchuminWeb, Scientus, Scifintel, Scole01, Scoops, Scootey, ScottMHoward, Scottcampbell195, SeanMooney, Seansinc, Seav, Secretlondon, SensuiShinobu1234, Sentryspotter2121, Sepahvand, Sepreece, Sevela.p, Sgt. R.K. Blue, Shadowjams, Shafqatislam, Shameonyoko, Sheilakinsella, Sherenk, Showmenights, Showtime2009, Sibeco, SigKauffman, Simon.painter, Simonxag, Sin-man, Sjc2128, Sjö, Skarebo, Skew-t, SkyeWaye, SlapTheTurtle, Sluzzelin, SmartGuy, Smdali Snowmanradio, SoWhy, Softyton, Solphusion, Spanglei, SparsityProblem, Species8473, Specr320, Spice3d, Spike the Dingo, SquierTheAspie, Sscheper, Sternenmeer, Steve2k2k3, Steven Walling, Steveradford, Stickee, Stifle, Storm Rider, Stormofthought, Stringanomaly, Studerby, Studio17, Stybn, Sublime98, Super5h33p, SuperChencho, SusanLesch, Svandy624, Svick, Syncopator, Syncopator, SyncrgyBlades, TJDay, TJRC, Tabledhote, Tarotcards, TastyCakes, TastyPoutine, Tbhotch, Tbone2001, Tchalvak, Techman224, TerraHikaru, Terryheath, Tetzcatlipoca, TexMurphy, The C of E, The Founders Intent, The Gnome, The Simpsons Fan100!, The Utahraptor, The Iorax, TheChrisD, TheHills14, TheListUpdater, TheRedPenOfDoom, Themfromspace, Themichaeljones, Thumperward, Thw416, Tide rolls, Timdorr, TimonyCrickets, Timrollpickering, Tinton5, TippTopp, Tkasmai, Tlogmer, Tmorton166, Tofutwitch11, Tommy2010, Toncek, Tony Sidaway, Topgun530, Tophee1, Topynate, Totalaero, Totnesmartin, Toxicityj, Tpbradbury, Tranquileye, Treasuretrooper55, TreasuryTag, Trendfreaks, Treybien, Tris2000, Trödel, Tuxlie, Tvoz, Tweetcash, Tweetco, Twinsday, Twp, Uch, UkePete, Unfree, UnicornTapestry, Unionhawk, Unreal ed, UpperPuppy, Usrnme h8er, UtahSurfer, VanTaylor12, Vanhoosear, Vencel, Verdecchia, Versageek, Versus22, Verticalanswer, Vicenarian, Vitund, Vj0su3, Wackywace, Wafulz, Waldir, WaldoJ, Walterk29, Waterjuice, Wavelength, Wayfarer, Web20junkie, Webulite, Weedwhacker128, Wellbelove, Werd678, Whalemobi, WhatisFeelings?, Whats new?, Whir, White 720, Whoisalejandro, Wickethewok, Wiki pv, Wiki1010101, WikiAC, WikiaAlexC, Wikidemon, Wikimam, Wikipedian06, Wikipedian64, Wikiuserj11, Within a dream, Wizardist, Wolfrock, WombatSamWilson, Woodbed71, Woohookitty, Worm That Turned, Woz2, X!, Хроsurepro, Yeshejampa, Yousou, Yoyolise, Zak110695, Zeldex, Zenohockey, ZeroOne, Zhou Yu, Zollerriia, Бегемот, יש דור לוי, 达伟, 1042 anonymous edits

YouTube Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=395128186 Contributors: !Darkfire!6'28'14, -Anthony-, -Majestic-, 007HoLyWoLf, 02barryc, 0dd1, 100110100, 100percentrecord, 10jaoste, 1111tomica, 11rcombs, 12345m, 16@r, 1938superman, 1990bacon, 1archie99, 1wolfblake, 1wolfblake, 2012sablakce, 2rusty22, 3193th, 35Hill, 4RM0, 54together, 555hotline, 5telios, 6afraidof7, 84user, 911ismynumba, 97198, 9allenride9, A. Exeunt, A18919, ACSE, ADman, AEMoreira042281, AGiorgio08, AIDSvideos, AKMask, ALIENDUDE5300, AMK152, Aarkangel, Aaron Pepin, Aaron Schulz, Aaru Bui, Abductive, Abecedare, Abgreen, Abigail alderate, Abigpurplemonkey, AbsolutDan, Abunakhli, Acalamari, Accedo, Acdx, Acglass, Achen, Acm2210, Ad Nauseam, Adam0500, AdamDeanHall, Adammw, Adamv88, Adaz91, Addict 2006, Addit, Adolphus79, Adrian35, Adrie7, Ae0ae, Aecis, Aeris211, Afed, After Midnight, Agent007ravi, Ahsaniqbal 93, Ahuskay, Aicra, Aiman619, Airforceone1234, Airsoftdude22, Ajani57, Ajfweb, Ajuk, Akar2, Akira2, Akirata, Aknorals, Akradecki, Alamandrax, Alangu, Albumleaf, Alecmconroy, Aleenf1, Alethiareg, AlexRampaul, Alexandroid, Alexandroid, Alexius08, Alexjohnc3, Algebraist, Ali Babar, Aliensow, Aliento, AlistairMcMillan, Allemannster, Allenday, Allreet, Alphachimp, Altonbr, Amchow 78, Americanjoe 1776, Amux, Anakin 101, Anarchist 1000, Anclation, Andjam, Andonic, Andrew 0921, Andrew Howse, Andrew bfife, Andrew 1991. Androidkaita, Andy, Andy Hays, Andy Marchbanks, Andy120290, Andypandy.UK, Andyroost, Andysoxd, Anetode, Angel Cupid, Angela, Animeem, Anna02120, Annulla, AnonGuy Anonymous Dissident, Anonymous from the 21th century, Anonymous44, Anthall1991, Antman26g, AntonShevchuk, Antonio Lopez, Antrozous, Aparna rajesh, Apoc2400, Apple1013, Archer3, Argonaught0, Aridu, Arjun G. Menon, Arjun01, ArlenCuss, Armageddon1994, Arnies, Arogi Ho, Arrenlex, Arshnet, Art LaPella, ArthBH, Artugon, Artynmay, Aseld, Ashershow1, Ashesdhakal, Astinus, AtaruMoroboshi, Atropos235, Aude, AussieLegend, AutoMe, Avicennasis, Awesomej1000, AxG, AxelBoldt, Axelstep, Aydcery000, Azizasif, Azninjax21, B&W Anime Fan, BCube, BMRR, Babajazz!, Babar54, Babyshambles, Backtable, Bad Graphics Ghost, Badwolftv, Bakanov, Ballinman, Balsa10, Bando26, Banzarti, Barbbeque, Barfly, Barinade2151, Baronnet. Barticus88, Barutazaru, Baseballlvr13, Baselnimer, Bashereyre, Batman123579, Bballfan20, Bdj, Bduddy, Bdude, Bdve, Beachman3, Beao, Beater123, Bebad.us, Becky-RE-fan, BeeblaBoo, Beetstra, Behemoth, Behun, Bellagio2, BenP94, Benblue, Benbread, Bender235, Benhead 07, Benmartin89, Beornas, Bestiege23, Betterusername, Bevinsky, Bgiz63, Bh3u4m, Bhny, Bianca1130, BiggestLoser, Biggy6491, Biivii, Binx, Bios Element, Biruitorul, Bitbit, Bkkbrad, Black Kat, Black-Velvet, Blackcfrout, Blacklist, Blanchardb, BlazingFire456, Bleedingshoes BloodyRose, Blubberboy92, Blue eyes gold dragon, BlueMario1016, Blueblue, Bluebrody7, Bluedude3011, Bm superpig, Boblikepie, Bobo92, Bobplum, Bobrayner, Boeingairbus1992, Boffob, Bogdangiusca, Boils, BolivarJonathan, Bollinger, Bonadea, Bookofjude, Booyabazooka, Boriquen252, Borofkin, Borrocco, BostonRed, Bowlearley, Bowling 0 o 300, Boxstaa, Boys Next Door Guy, BozMo, Brandobe, Brandon, Brandon5485, Brandontepapatapp, Branstu, Brat32, Brazucs, Bredon510, Brendan Madley, Brendankehoe, Brent Simpson, Brent65, Brian Kendig, BrianRFSU, Brianga, Briansince1988, Brighterorange, Brkn, Bruceteo, Bruno.lima, Brz7, Bschott, Bssc81, Btball, Bucs, Budster650, Buffmaster, Bugalugs13, Buh6173, Bull Market, Bully25, Buried now, BurningZeppelin, Buspar, Butros, Bwibbwz, C xong, C1k3, CIreland, CMBJ, CNN 5, CO, CPGACoast, CR85747, CRace, CRouleau, CZMQFRG, Cab88, CadetMan, Cadsuane Melaidhrin, CalendarWatcher, Callum85, Calvinps, Camerabuff, Can't sleep, clown will eat me, Canadian, Canberra User, CanesOL79, Canterbury Tail, Cantoni, Caramelldansener

Cardinal5100, Carnoustie2008, Caroetburn4, Casdeiro, CasevPenk, Castaa, Castlemi, Caulde, Chnano12, Cbreitel, Ccacsmss, Cdeighan12, Cdg123, CecilWard, Celestra, CelticJobber, Cenarium, Cescoby, Ceyockey, Chad427, Chadq, Chadvonnau, Chairman S., ChangChienFu, Charea, CharlesM, CharlieTC, Charmedhex, Chatfecter, Chensiyuan, Chilledsunshine, Chirchona, Chivista, Chris 73, ChrisPalmieri90, Chrisdonia, ChrisfromHouston, Chrishmt0423, Chrisportelli, Chuck Marean, Chugger1992, Chumchum7, Chun-hian, Cielomobile, Cinamon 10, Cirt, Citeoplasm, Civilwarrior, Claimgoal, Cleared as filed, Clerk-kent, Cliché Online, Clipper471, Closedmouth, Cm619, Cmbtrans, Coastergeekperson04, CobraBK, CocaCirca2009, Colin002, Colipon, Collegebookworm, CompuHacker, ComputerfreakHR, Compwized, Connormah, ContainerA, Conti, CookiePop, Cool Hand Luke, CoolKid1993, Coolavokig, Coolbeans39, Coolacesar, Cooldude1091, Coolest Kid 10, Coolix, Coryyo, CosmicMonkey, CraigD1993, Crash Underride, Crazyjr2, Crazymotherfunk, Cretanforever, Criptofcorbin, CrispinOfOrion, Cristan, Crscrs Crumbsucker, Crunch13, Cryme tyme24, Csaag, Ctjf83, Cubedman990, Cuddly Panda, Culexor, Cumbiagermen, Cutiebear, Cws125, CydeSwype, Cyf, Czj, D.M.N., D3athstardisco, DEEJAY JPM, DIEXEL, DJFrankie2468, DMF, DVDEnc, DWoolnoughUK, Da Vynci, Daabomb, Dabomb87, Dagibit, Dahamu, Dahveed323, Dalejenkins, Daminstant, Dan Guan, DanDud88, DanKassem, Daniel Christensen, Daniel Olsen, Danieljo2013, Daniellebelle1, Danielspencer2, Danny guitarkid, Darijoe, Dark Kyle, Dark-Devil, Darkangeloracle, Darkdisaster13, Darkquest21, Darkraii, Darksun, Darranc, Darrenhusted, Darrion102, Darxing, Darxus, Dasani, Davemcarlson, Daveswagon, Davewild, David Lipson, Davidhorman, Davidng150, Davidzx, Davocreative, Dayv, Ddwag1, De Katten, DeadlyAssassin, DeathNomad, Deathbox91, DebateLord, Deepthroat09, Delta Tango, Deltabeignet, Denizzje, Der Rabe Ralf, Derekgraf, Derild4921, Desplow, Desposy, Dessert fox, Dgenx223, Dgtlmoon, Diaa abdelmoneim, Diagonalfish, Didimos, Die2014, Diego Grez, Diego pmc, Dinesh smita, Disavian, Discospinster, Disgaea318, Disma Disneycat, Ditre, Diza, Dmacw6, Dminera, Docsavage20, Docski35, Doctor Motion, Dodehoekspiegel, Dolphin674, Donreed, Doo more, Dorcasloss, Dorftrottel, Dorholt, Dorman, Douglasr007, Download, Dposse, Dr. F.C. Turner, Dr.alf, Dragomiloff, Dragonslayerboy, Draktorn, Dran0n, Drangob, Drat, Drbreznjev, Dreadloco, DreamGuy, Dreftymac, Drivec, Drmies, Drmike, Drrll, Drugonot, Dseiko, Dtedman, Duck1, DuckeJ, Dudesleeper, Duncan, Dungcaaol, Dustin4528354, Dwightgenius, Dwipal, Dylan151, DylanWirta, Dynesclan, ECWAGuru, ERcheck, ESSEXHIGHSCHOOL, EWikist, Eahiv, EamonnPKeane, Eatrains, Echuck215, EconomistBR, Ectoplasm on Toast, Ecw.technoid.dweeb, EdGl, EddieVanZant, Edmoil, Edved27, Edward321, Edward655, Eenu, Ehn, Einsidler, El loko, ElKevbo, ElSaxo, Elaich, Elan515, ElbridgeGerry, Elchupachipmunk, Eli81993, Elias909, Elindstr, ElinorD, Elishan, ElizaBarrington, Ellamosi Elmufi, Eloquence, Elpaw, Elpy, Eltonjohn69, Emigdioofmiami, Emirdemir, Emr1028, Emurphy42, Eneufeld, Enigmaman, Epbr123, Era92, Erechtheus, Erencexor, Eric outdoors, Eric 119, EricD14, ErikNY, Esanchez7587, Esengulov, Eskimospy, Esperant, Esprit15d, Estoy Aquí, Ethna, Etrizz, Eugeneltc, Eurosong, Euryalus, Evan7878, Evekinz910, Everard Proudfoot, Evice EvilThouther, Evilgrug, Ewlyahoocom, Excalipoor79, Exodustheory, Exozito, Experting, Explicit, Extate, Eyewax, Eyreland, Ezra802, F1lm junkie, FIshstick, FMAFan1990, Factorylad, Faded, Fairlie2, Falcoboy7, Falconleaf, Fangusu, Farhadz, Farslayer, FatTux, Fathamster420, Fatimahaider, Fatty7, Fayenatic london, FayssalF, Fconaway, Fedkad, Feeling free, Feline1, Femto, Feral-Golduck, Ferdiaob, Fernando S. Aldado, Fez2005, Fighting for Justice, Finalius, Firsfron, FisherQueen, Fitzsy1216, Flakes, Flaming, Flan92, Flashflash;, FleetCommand, Flewis, FlipDarius, Floaterfluss, Florentino floro, FlowerOne, Flubbernugget, Fluteflute, Flygon, FocalPoint, FogDevil, Foobar323, Forgetaboutit3000, Forgetaboutit4000, Forrestino, Fortdj33, Fox P McCloud, Fragglet, Fram, Francis1864, FrancoGG, Frankyboy5, Fred J, Fred2028, Fredv959, Freezeoveride, Frogg, From da big smelly, FromanylanD, Froth, FrummerThanThou, FrysUniverse, Fstutzman, FullyClothedMike, Funeral, Funkywizard, Furbie22, Furrykef, Futurefunman, Fuzheado, Fuzzie, GENIUS(4th power), GMTV Chart Show, GRuban, GWST11, Gabi S., Gabrielhobro, Gadfium, Galoubet, Game Freak2600, Gamgee, GangstaMac1097, Gardener101, Garrison628, Garrywarne, Gary Cziko, Gary King, GateKeeper, Gatfish, Gbaor, Gdk411, Gdo01, Ge0rge, Ged UK, Geneffects, Gharman, GilbertoSilvaFan, Gilliam, Gilo1969, Gimme More, Gimmetrow, GizzleWizzle, GlamMetalRules, Glyniss, GoPurpleNGold24, Gobeirne, Goddot, Gogo Dodo, Gokupiccilo, GoldenGoose100, Goldfish007, Gonzob, GooGooDollz, Good Olfactory, Goodone121, Goodyear45, Goose31, GorillaWarfare, Got118115147, Gothicruler666, Gotyear, Graham87, Grammarcheckingdude, Grandmasterka, GravityExNihilo, GrayFox92, Green Dane, Greendayliberal, Greenrd, Greeves, Greg Grahame, Greg Tyler, Gregor-the-Underlander, GregorB, Grenno, Greudin, Grieferhate, GrothTheGooch, Ground Zero, Grumpman, Gscshoyru, Guardaviewer, Guat6, Guitarhero91, Gunmetal Angel, Gunnafan, Gurch, Guus Hoekman, Guy Harris, Guy Peters, Guyver1, Gwernol, Gyrferret, Gzgianfreda, H2g2bob, Haakon, Habanero-tan, Hack-Man, Hadger, HaeB, Hagerman, Hallor, Half-Blood Auror, Hamedog, Hanli 1995, Happysailor, Harryboyles. Hateless, Hateofhaters, Havarhen, Hayabusa future, Hayden A, Hbdragon88, Hdt83, Head-doctor, Heamsi, Hedkandee, Heelmijnlevenlang, Heeman, Heimm Old, HeinzzzderMannn, Hell in a Bucket, HellDragon, Hello32020, Helvetica, HenkvD, Henry W. Schmitt, Heresjonny 15, Hermant patel, Hermione499, Heroeswithmetaphors, Herricks1, Hersfold, Hetar, Heyann, Heymid, Hi878, HighlyEvolved, Hiou2, Hipo8000, Hirak 99, Historyfan04, Hk linus, Hl, Hmains, Hmitt, Hmrox, Hocknlim, Hom sepanta, Homologeo, Honza Záruba, Hoosteen5, Hopex, Hoponpop69, Hornet35, Howardchu, Ho3473, Hu12, HubmaN, Huii, Hulaburger, Human historian, Humavun shabbir, Humus sapiens, Hunterlitt99, Husond, Hvad, HvbridBov, Hvdraton31, Hvdril009, Hza100, I Feel Tired, I amm Beowulf!, I hate lee, ISbala, IJGainey, IKato, ISquishy, IZAK, Ian2894, IanManka, IanOsgood, Ianbamberger1, Ianie, Ianjones50, Ianmacm, Ibanez RYM, IceUnshattered, Iced Kola, Icedevil14, Icedog, Ichormosquito, Icy Chev, Idan d, Idle.man5216, IdreamofJeanie, Ignatz m., Ignorance is strength, Ihatestartrek, Iicatsii, Ikarus14, Illspirit, Ilse@, Imaginaryoctopus, Imaginationac, Imntgnalvntwnnymr, ImprintTALK, Inarcadiaego, InfamousX241, Insainiac3, Intelp4, Interchange88, InternetMeme, Intgr, Intriligator500, InvisibleSu Inx272, Iridescent, Irishguy, Irishgunktom, IronGargoyle, Ironfistofanarchy, Ironiridis, Irrypride, Isaac Dupree, IslandGyrl, IslaySolomon, Ismashed, Isotope23, Italiavivi, Iupolisci, Ivvan Cain. Ixfd64, J Milburn, J-masta, J-stan, J. M., J.T.Pickering, J.delanoy, JAKERS28730, JB196, JCDenton2052, JDizzleDubs, JForget, JKos12, JNCvids, JNW, JOS223, JPizzle1122, JRG, JSpung, JYOuyang, JaJaon, Jacob Menson, Jacoplane, Jagged 85, Jaguilar1324, JaiMoo7, Jaimetheskater, Jainvineet, Jak722, Jake3265, Jakobat, Jalapenos do exist, Jamandell (d69), Jamcib, James. Spudeman, James2001, James90064, Jamesmassola, Jamesooders, Jamminjay, Jammy0002, JaredInsanity, Jarjarbinks10, Jason.grossman, JayEsJay, JayKeaton, Jaysbro, Jaysscholar, Jaysweet, Jazeppi65, Jazman@UK, Jazmine17, Jbpanther20, Jclemens, Jedi787plus, Jeff G., Jeff Hood, Jeffq, Jekteir, Jeltz, Jengira, Jengod, Jenks24, JeremyMcCracken, Jerome Charles Potts, JeromeParr, Jerry571, Jerrysmp, Jessey2k, Jgulden, Jhenny38, Jhessela, Jimj wpg, Jinus.iman, Jmarut225, Jmcollier, Jmlk17, Jmt1414, Jnavas2, Jnelson09, Jnothman, JoJan, JoanneB, Joe2832, Joebears1, Joelehismyname, Joes a g, Joeyx22lm, John Riemann Soong, John Seward, JohnLeoWalsh, Johnleemk, Johnny Sumner, Johnsen953, Johnteslade, Johntheexpert, Joker0153, Jokron, Jonathan.s.kt, Jonghyunchung, Jonivy, Jonjames1986, Jonny, Jonpro, Jor70, Jordon Kalilich, Jorfer, Jorgen veisdal, Josecarlos1991, Joseph Solis in Australia, Josh958, Joshi1983, Joshua H-Star-R, Joshua Issac, Joshua4, JpGrB, Jsfunfun, Jsmaye, JuJube, Juancdg, JudahH, Judgesurreal777, Jump0000, Junebegorra, Jungwirthwillkillallrocks, JureLc, JustTruth101, JustinMullins, Justinroark, Jvogt, Jzhang, Jóna Þórunn, K Watson1984, K.Sørensen, K1372, KAUclan, KChiu7, KLLvr283, KStahlman, KUsam, Kablammo, Kachyna, Kagome 77, Kai, Kakesson, Kallahar, Kane5187, Kanesue, Kanonkas, Kaptincapo, Karrmann, Katy, Girl, Kausill, Kchishol1970, Keenum, Keeper76, Kefo77, Kei Jo, Keithkml, Ken08, KenSharp, Kenmetha, Kennethjaen, KennyBee, Kernow, Kerotan, Kesac, KevinAction, Kgagne, Khalid Mahmood, Khalid hassani, Khargas, Khoikhoi, Kickmeitalk, Kidigus, Kikumbob, Killerboy powerhead, Killhammer, Killthenoob1337, KingK327, KingsTCJB, Kirbytime, Kiteinthewind, Kitrus, Kittie93, Kjinho213, Kkm010, Kman618, Kmaster, KoRnholio8, Koalabear3, Koavf, Koetie, Koko571, Kontar, Koolgiy, Kornography, Kostasg82, Kozuch, Kp1125, Kpjas, Kriegman, KrisS, Kriskra, Ktr101, Kubigula, Kuhlio2008, Kukakreations, Kukini, Kungming2, Kuru, Kusma, Kustrle, Kwiki, Ky-Guy, Kyle1278, Kyleaa, Kythekid, L337p4wn, LAX, LCrazy, LOL, La goutte de pluie, Lacke, Laddiebuck, Lakeaustintx, Lamp301, Larry52333, Laserwolf65, LatencyRemixed, Latics, Lauciusa, Laugher002, Laugher003, Laugher005, Laughlikecrazy42, Laurentis, Lawyer2b, Lazyawol, Lectonar, Leevanjackson, Lengau, Lenin and McCarthy, Lenoxus, Leolapinos, Leon7, Leonardi, Leroyinc, Lestrad, Levi Afridi, Levineps, Lewys93, Lhasapso, Liamdanny2, Liface, Lifthrasir1, Lightmouse, Lightning Spike, Lights, Lijil, Lil-mis-lavery, Liffearless, Lilphil212, LindsayH, LittleOldMe, LittleOldMe old, Littleghostboo, Littlejeterboy7, LiveLinks, Livecrunch, Llama!, Lockesdonkey, Locos epraix, LocrialTheSequel, Logictheo, Logixoul, Longhair, Loopus9, Lord of Haha, Lordmetroid, Loser078, Love4girls, Lowellian, LtColonelBlack, Luckystars, Lucyin, Luigi-San, Luke Farrelly-Spain, LukeTheSpook, Lumarine, Luna Santin, Lushesturk, Luwilt, M neimeyer, MAGNAVOX power, ME YA SEE, MER-C, MK8, Ma1kel, Mabbass, Macarion, Maday94, Madchester, Mahanga, Maher27777, Maikel, Majopius, Majorly, Malaysian-Hardstyle, Malber, Malleus Fatuorum, Mallubear, MalwareSmarts, Mamaluigibob, MamboJambo, Mananaliksik, ManiF, Manic4000, Mankar Camoran, Manop, Manscher, Manuscripttt, Manutd.billie, Maork, Marc Lacoste, Marek69, Mariacer Cervantes, Marioface5, Mark0528, Markburg, Markdr, Markebson, Markie, Markwilliams91983, Martin S Taylor, Martinsizon, MaryBleeds Maryhodder, Marziah, Masky, Master Bigode, MasterOfTheXP, Mastrchf91, Masturnate, Mateusz5500, Mateuszica, Matt Fitzpatrick, Matt101, MattCuts, Mattavacortez, Mattbr, Mattderojas, MatthewBurton, MatthewWaller, Mattmeneil, Maverick Leonhart, Maxis ftw, McGeddon, Mcenroeucsb, Mdd, Me412, Mechamind90, Megamanfanx7, MegastarLV, Megs430, Mehalpatel54, Meleemaster2001, Melsaran, Memset, Meow, Merceris, Merope, MetroStar, Mets501, Mh12, Mhiji, Micfri, Michael Angelkovich, Michael Devore, Michael Greiner, Michael Hardy, Michaelbeckham, Michaelric, Michal Stankoviansky, Michelangelo24, Michi.bo, Microphone, Midnight115, Mike Payne, Mike Rosoft, Mikewhitcombe, Mikon8er, Mikus, Minestrone Soup, Mister Alcohol, Misza13, Mjroady, Mleinart, Mltinus, Mmazur, MoChan, Moairguard, Moccamonster, Mod.torrentrealm, Moe Epsilon, Mogweist, Molosztash, Momo san, Monkeykingje Moocha, Moorcroftlad, Morphine2546, Morton devonshire, Moss15 2000, Mosswoodmedia, MovieKidX3, Movingimage, Moxy, Moyogo, Mp3hist, Mporcheron, Mr.crabby, MrShowWUA, Mrdeleted, Mrmaroon 25, Mrschimpf, Mrsolutions, Msashleychen, Msr69er, Mstrangelove, Mtmelendez, Muchness, Munkymaze, MurrayCraven 24, Mushroom, Muzickrox 14, Mwanner, Mx3, Mxn, My Three Sons, MyReference, MySchizoBuddy, Mybighead, Myfanwy, Mysid, Mzaincontributor, N5iln, N734LO, NMChico24, NVDINorCal, Nach0king, Nakon, Namlas, Nanam Kamimura, Nanisnap, Narcism, Narusu1, NarutoD444, Nate Speed, NawlinWiki, Ncepts, Ndboy, Ndugu, Ned2507, Neelix, NeilN, Neo 2.3 Hylan, NerdyScienceDude, Nerval, Neufusdmurder, Neutrality, New Bully on the Block, NewYork1956, Newbs-07, Newdamage89, Newuser100, Night Gyr, Night Tracks, Nightbolt, Nighteater537, Nighthawkzx, Nightscream, Nihiltres, Ninja Wizard, Nintendo Maniac 64, Nintendo Maximus, Nintendude, Nishkid64, NisseSthlm, Nite Owl II, Nixeagle, Njuuton, Nk, Nkrumma, Nlu, No Rules Guy, Noahcs, Nocarsgo, Noclador, Noclip Nopetro, Northern Thunder, NotMuch ToSay, NotYouHaha, Novasair, Nr9krw, Nsaa, Ntrval, Nuggetboy, Numbo3, Nyttend, Nzgabriel, ONEder Boy, Oakshade, Obli, Oblivious, Ocatecir, Ocee Octane, Octavabasso, Of, Ogdens, Ohconfucius, Ohnoitsjamie, Okiefromokla, Olavid, Old Guard, Ollie williams, OmegaSpacePirate, Omicronpersei8, On Wheezier Plot, Ondokuzmart, OneSeg, Onebrightlight, Onetwosevencrazie, Oneupthextraman, Ont, Opelio, Oploader, Orangekubrick, Orangysb, Orbrax, Orca1 9904, Oscarva, Otets, OtherPerson, Otherwise24, Otolemur crassicaudatus, Oupals, OutRider2003, Ovguide, P106 peppy, PIL1987, PJ Pete, PROUD CAHIR BOY 1, PRRfan, PS2pcGAMER, PSP60, PYLrulz, Pacian, Pacific Coast Highway, Pacific PanDeist, Pagingmrherman, Pahari Sahib, Pampers, Pandacomics, Paraparanormal, Patiwat, Pats1, Patstuart, Paul Gard, Paul-L, Paul 1337, Paulinho28, Paul j 1532, Paulrotella, Paveet, Paxse Pdcook, Pdiperna, Peaceful.driver, Pediaguy 16, Pedro Aguiar, Pennysong, Pennythedog 781, Penubag, People Week Guy, Pepper, Pepso2, Persian Poet Gal, Perspicacite, Peter Grey, Petiatil, Pfulgione, PhantomS, Phase Theory, Philip Cross, Philspice1, Phoenix Hacker, Phoenix2, Phthoggos, Phycosymo, Phynicen, Pianist0521992, Pickles27, Pie Man 360, Piggggu, Pigsonthewing, Pilhokim, Pilot850, Pimp818, PinchasC, Pinikas, Pipedreambomb, Pixelface, Pjoef, Pkmon4ever, Planetlost01, Planetwarrior, Plau, Play38, PleaseRate!, Pm0110, Poetic Decay, Pointgrey, Polly, Polystyla, Pomte, Popageorgio, PorkyMamma, Possum, Posuur, Ppe42, Ppoi307, Ppunkgoddess, Preble, PrettyMuchBryce, Primadog, Prime Blue, Prodego, ProfessorPaul, Prolog, Pronoun, Provelt, Proxima Centauri, Prozzaknation, Psantora, Psdealer, PseudoSudo, Psychomelodic, Punter18, Purdonkurt, PureRED, Pushok, Pusht, Pvss, Pwnage8, Pyreforge, Pyro721, Pyromania153. Pythang, P®oof, Oed, Oelery, OuackOfaThousandSuns, Ouadzilla99, Ouaked, Ouatloo, OueenCake, Ouelcrime, Owerty Binary, Owertyblue64, Owertyos, Owikjus69, Oxz, R3ND13R. R9tgokunks, RFerreira, RG2, RJASE1, RVJ, Radicalcentrist9090, RadioFan, Raditzu, Radon210, Raerth, Rafalfr, Railwayfan2005, Ran4, RandomCritic, Randomtime, Ranel5310, Raomi RasputinAXP, RattleMan, Rborghese, Rcmero, Re commend, ReCover, Realg187, Realist2, Reapermage1990, Red Director, Red1530, RedRose333, Redleaf, Redmagemp3, Redux, Reece394, Regan 123, Regice4, Reisio, Reliancepowercoin, Remdabest, Remy B, Renamed user 1253, Renata3, Renato21 pe, Renegadez, Renosecond, Retiono Virginian, Retired username, Rettetast, Reub2000, RevolverOcelotX, RexNL, ReyBrujo, Rhorn, Rich Farmbrough, Richard Arthur Norton (1958-), Richard David Ramsey, Richard001, Richi, Richtom80, Rick 50000, Rinrin0,

Rividian, Rjanag, Rjcumigad, Rjwilmsi, Rkoking, Rlough, Rmky87, Rmojica, Rmrfstar, Robbytein, Robert K S, Robert Xia, Robertcathles, Robocracy, Rocafella, RockMFR, RocketMediaYT, Rockman234, Rockpocket, Rocksteadyman2, RockyRob, RoddyYoung, Rodimus Rhyme, Rodrigogomespaixao, Rollercoasterfweak, Rollo44, Roman 92, Rompe, Ronhjones, Ronline, Rory096, Rott3n, Rovermcdover, RoySmith, Royle duck in bathtub, Roytebogt, Rpenner, Rsm99833, Ruberyuka, Russavia, RyanCross, RyanGFilm, Ryanch06, Ryanrd, Rydia, Ryulong, S.Bowen, S3000,

SF007, SMP0328., ST47, SYSS Mouse, Saad64, Saberwolf116, Saefiftikhar, Saeaciousuk, Saimhe, Saimone, Saiman12, Sales2007, SallyForth123, Saltywood, Sam Blacketer, Samiohnson, Sammyb123, SamofGF, Samsamsameo, Samuel Blanning, Samuelscat, Sarahjansen, Sasajid, SaveFerris932, Saveatree, Savidan, Sawblade5, Sbierwagen, Sbr8, Sbritner, Scarecroe, Scepia, Schmiteye, SchuminWeb, Schuym1, Scientus, Score Under, Scottman108, Scoub, Scproductions, ScumMania1979, Sean.woodward, Seand59, Seanm028, Seansouthern, Seb az86556, Seduisant, Sega3dmm, Seinman, Semperfi76, Seresin, Sergiodf, Seriousspender, Sexyorge, Sfan00 IMG, SgtH3nry3, Shakafish, ShakespeareFan00, Shamscalade, Shantigk69, SharkD, Shastamcdayna, Shattersoul, Shawn in Montreal, Sherool, Sherzo, Shiftchange, Shimgray, Shinyam, Shopnetwork, ShowNoMercy, Shreevatsa, ShynSpryt4, Siawase, Siliconov, SimmerSon, Simonmf1234, Simply... Bret!, Simpsonic1111, SineWave, Singing4every1, Sinteractive, Sioraf, Sir Paul, Sirana, Sitk, Sizedude, Sjsharks89, Skinnydude19, SlapstickDizzy, Slash 444, Sleigh, SlimVirgin Slowspace, Slyder6, Smallman12q, Smartzy, Smokizzy, Smurfy, SmwExpert, Snail49, Sniper16, Soapyyy, Sobber, SohanDsouza, Sokhead93, SolanaRanger, Solidsnake1211, Someguy1221, Someone434, Someone963852, Sonarman 77, Sonic Hero Dude, Sonicrulerz, Sophie, Soporaeternus, Sorryunlucky, SoulSlaver, Soullessdemon, SouperAwesome, Sourside21, Soxwon, SpaceMan++, Spangineer, Spanish lullaby, Spec ops commando, Speckysecret, Speedleader, Speer320, Spellcast, Spencersutton, Spitfire, Spitfire19, Spoonman12818, Sporahk, SportsBrain2009, Sposato, SqueakBox, Squeakerismycat300, Squeeze me, Squidoh, Squids and Chips, Squirepants101, Ss112, StanfordProgrammer, StarWarsFanSWF, Stco23, Steam5, Stefanigaga, Stellis, Stephen B Streater, Stephen G. Brown, Stephen Shaw, StephenTech, Steve rlm, Steveslims, Stevenrasnick, Stevob2007, Stifle, Storkk, Str8hing, Street Mix Live Entertainment, Striker buzcu, Stroppolo, Strumz, Stupidstupidstupid, Stwalkerster, Stybn, Styrofoam 1994, Suansworks, Sujayt, Sumahoy, Summer Song, Sumsum 2010, SunCreator, Sundancin, Suneeth 152, Supasaru, Superior1, Supersword, Supertask, Supertigerman, Supremevo01, Suso, Svetovid, Sweetstudent, Synergy, Synthe, Szayat, Szili32, T-borg, T-rex, TG380, THENEWMIKON8ER, THEunique, TSLcrazier, TV Genius, TVfanatic2K, TaerkastUA, Tailspin711, Taintedbutter, Taktser, Tall Midget, TanookiMario257, Taopman, Tarikur, Tartan, Tawker, Tazmaniacs, Tbhotch, Tbone762, Tech12, TechnoFaye, Technopat, Teetzmagee, Tejoman, Teklund, Telstar2626436, Tenshi237, Teo64x, Tergum violinae, Ternto333, Tesseran, TexasAndroid, Tfine80, Th1rt3en, Thaksin, Thameen, Thatsminame, The Black Void, The Giant Puffin, The Jacobin, The Kinslayer, The Negotiator, The Nerd from Earth, The Nixinator, The Rogue Penguin, The Scarlet Letter, The Tsar User, The Ultimate Koopa, The Utahraptor, The Wednesday Island, The japanese user, The lorax, The monkeyhate, The-G-Unit-Boss, TheAlphaWolf, TheBaker6. TheBlackParade60, TheDashboard, TheFake, TheGrandAmanin, TheKMan, TheOneAllahOAkbar, TheRasIsBack, TheRhani, Thecatfish, Theexile, Thefabbee, Theholecookie, Themaludude101, Theonejanitor, Thepylongenius, Therequiembellishere, Theres.no.place.like.Om, Therianmysti, Theshadowfan, ThinkBlue, ThisIsAce, Tholly, ThomasF, Thomasa93, ThomasIknapp Thrashmeister, Thumperward, Tigerbreath13, Tim from Leeds, TimMagic, Tinton5, TitanicTarn, Titansolaris, Tjg50311, Tjleo209 014, Tktktk, Tktru, Tmazhindu, Tmmm, Tmopkisn, Tmst006, Toad of Steel, Tobias Conradi, Tobybuk, Tokachu, Tokyocolumbia, Tomballguy, Tomseddon, Tone, Tony1, Tonyf12, Toosmart215, Totalaero, Toussaint, Towsonu2003, Toyboytbfb, Tpbradbury, Trainfan01, Tranix, Treemonster123, Tregoweth, Treisijs, TreoBoy680, Tri400, Trini bwoi, Triona, Trivialist, Trodes, Trueblue9999, Trusilver, Truth4Sale, Tubing, Turnadoireacht, Tuncrypt, Tuxcantfly, Twili Emperor, Twillman1, Twinsday, Tylerw101, Tyman 101, Typer 525, UB65, UBeR, Uerba, Ufoozgur, UltimateSephiroth, Ultimus, Ultras GE, UnDeRsCoRe, UncleBobby629, Undyboy91, UnitedStatesian, Universearle, Unreal223, Unrulyevil, Urgo6667, User A1, Username12, Uw badgers, UZEE, VG Cats Tipe 2, Vaajicom, Valon25, Varg, Vargob, Vary, Vega84, Vegeta1221, VegitaU, Veinor, Veritycowper, Verne Equinox, Versageek, Vghistorian, Viabora, Vice regent, Videomixfan, Vidiot3786, Vikramsidhu, Viktor.Prokopenya, ViperSnake151, Viralmediaman, Viralvideo, Virgil Valmont, Vlad, Vmob, VoluntarySlave, VonV, WJBscribe, WJetChao, WPjcm, WTGDMan1986, WXYZ2, WaWa12, Wadooah, Waerth, Wahjava, Waisybabu, Waldo1967, Walkiped, Walterreed, Waqas1987, WarEagleTH, Warhead293, WarpstarRider, Watch Rider, WatermelonPotion, Wavelength, Waveofthefuture Waxxywilly77, Waycool27, WeTube, Weatherman87, Webgeek, Websurfer246, Weierstrass, Weregerbil, Westermarck, What!?Why?Who?, Whatfg, WhisperToMe, Whomp, Wi(c)ki, Widadita, Wikeman12, Wiki alf, WikiBone, WikiLaurent, WikiLoco, Wikianon, Wikiborg, Wikicarlwikicarl, Wikien2009, Wikifan12345, Wikifried, Wikimane, Wikimichael22, Wikinewguy, Wikipedascape, Wikipedian06, Wikipediastar, Wikipedical, Wikisuper, Wikitube 2, Wild mine, Wildlife Analysis, Wile e2005, Will Hawes, William Pietri, Winndm31, WinterRose, Wiug, Wknight94, Wmplayer, Wo78, Wog7777, Wolfhunter987, WongFeiHung, Woohlz!, Woohnokitty, Woohp978, Worlduser, WorthWatching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, WorkWatching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, WorkWatching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, WorkWatching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, Watching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, Woohlaw, Woohlaw, WorkWatching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, Woohlaw, Woohlaw, WorkWatching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, WulfTheSaxon, WurmWoode, Watching, WrcF1, Wsxccc, Watching, Wat Wwefan981, Wwwwolf, X3ni, XCache, XMajinx, XZeddx, Xanderall, Xaroker, Xbox360, Xeltran, Xeryus, XiaoShu, Xiaoyang4673, Xizer, Xleax, Xlegiofalco, Xnuala, Xtramental, Xtratalk, Xunflash, XxTimberlakexx, XxXxRKOxXxX, Xyzzyplugh, Xzityx, Yadon11, Yahel Guhan, YanA, Yarnalgo, Yasir106, Yasmeen1, Yeahwhynot, Yellowdesk, YesMapRadio, Yksspirits, Ylee, Yoare, YodelFool, Yogyog, Yohan euan o4, YoshiChief, Youngamerican, Yourname, Yowuza, Ytgy111, Yurimxpxman, Yuriybrisk, Zachunderoath, Zambani, Zanimum, Zanotam, Zappinzues, Zealotei, Zeix50, ZenCopain, Zenonigloo, Zepheus, Zethraith, Zhongchen, ZimZalaBim, ZirconiumTwice, Zoe, Zondor, Zone46, Zro, Zthechainz, Ztiank, Zuracech lordum, Zzedar, Zzuuzz, Zzyzx11, 747 anonymous edits

XING Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?oldid=394568374 Contributors: Aaronshaw, Anshelina, Arfurdaly, Arkim, Aweigend, Bender235, Boffob, Britishbusiness, Brz7, Burakordu, C3o, Chadwick11, Cheong Kok Chun, Clicketyclack, Conti, Cumbrowski, Czj, Damian Yerrick, Danholmesdxb, Do it man!, ElKevbo, Elisabethod, Estebancortez, Fan-1967, Faznar, Foobaz, Getcrunk, Gexplorer, Goodnightmush, Graham87, H005, Henrygb, Ingenosa, JzG, Karl Brodowsky, Kelly Martin, Kfr, Larsandl, LastChanceToBe, Leewilkins, LouisSerge, Lucs, Martinyan, Mboverload, Mild Bill Hiccup, Momo san, Mpirages, Mstroeck, Norsktroll, Oliver.Faulhaber, Paragon88, Paxsimius, Perfecto, Playmobilonhishorse, Quarl, Rainer Wasserfuhr, Richswier, Sciurinæ, Sebastian scha., SergioGeorgini, Ssj5perfect cell, Stefanben, TheRingess, ThomasPower, TitanOne, Tlrmq, Tomlion, UkPaolo, Versageek, Vieuxloup, VirtualSteve, Vlad, Waldir, WebWonderGal, Wiki-vr, Wisser, Yannmau, ^demon, MuraH Jenucasuth, 64 anonymous edits

## **Image Sources, Licenses and Contributors**

File:Digg-new.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Digg-new.svg License: unknown Contributors: Digg

Image:Digg1.6.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Digg1.6.png License: unknown Contributors: Cryptic, Dr. WTF, Tobey

File:Facebook.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Facebook.svg License: Trademarked Contributors: Facebook

File:Increase2.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Increase2.svg License: unknown Contributors: Sarang

File:MarkZuckerberg.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:MarkZuckerberg.jpg License: Creative Commons Attribution 2.5 Contributors: Elaine Chan and Priscilla Chan

File:1601californiaavelobby.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:1601californiaavelobby.jpg License: Creative Commons Attribution-Sharealike 3.0 Contributors: Coolcaesar, 1 anonymous edits

File:Facebook log in.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Facebook\_log\_in.png License: unknown Contributors: AGiorgio08, DARTH SIDIOUS 2, Iceman247, Jackdyson, Jj98, Mechanical digger, Melesse, Merlion444, Skier Dude, Totalaero, 9 anonymous edits

File:Facebook2010.JPG Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Facebook2010.JPG License: unknown Contributors: Anikingos, IronGargoyle, Skier Dude, 2 anonymous edits File:Facebook mobile.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Facebook\_mobile.png License: unknown Contributors: blogoehlert.typepad.com

File:Original-facebook.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Original-facebook.jpg License: unknown Contributors: NuclearWarfare, Pdcook, Sfan00 IMG, The lorax, Ww2censor, 8 anonymous edits

File:Facebook2007.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Facebook2007.jpg License: unknown Contributors: J.delanoy, The lorax, Uncle Dick, 4 anonymous edits File:Abc facebook debate saint anselm.JPG Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Abc\_facebook\_debate\_saint\_anselm.JPG License: Creative Commons Attribution-Sharealike 3.0 Contributors: User:Ericci8996

Image:Wiktionary-logo-en.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Wiktionary-logo-en.svg License: unknown Contributors: User:Brion VIBBER Image:commons-logo.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Commons-logo.svg License: logo Contributors: User:3247, User:Grunt

Image:LinkedIn logo.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:LinkedIn\_logo.png License: unknown Contributors: User:GregorB, User:Newlink

Image:Myspace 2010 logo.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Myspace\_2010\_logo.png License: Trademarked Contributors: KnightRider592

File:Decrease2.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Decrease2.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Sarang

Image:Foxinteractivemediaheadquarters.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Foxinteractivemediaheadquarters.jpg License: GNU Free Documentation License Contributors: Coolcaesar

Image:Newsvine logo.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Newsvine\_logo.png License: unknown Contributors: Auxblood, Sdrtirs Image:Newsvine, Voted Seed.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Newsvine\_\_Voted\_Seed.jpg License: unknown Contributors: Rappo11

Image:Newsvine, Article.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Newsvine,\_Article.jpg License: unknown Contributors: Rappo11

Image:Newsvine, User Column.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Newsvine,\_User\_Column.jpg License: unknown Contributors: Rappo11

Image:Newsvine, Friends List.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Newsvine,\_Friends\_List.jpg License: unknown Contributors: Rappo11

Image:Reddit logo.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Reddit\_logo.svg License: unknown Contributors: Svgalbertian

File:Reddit Mr. Splashy Pants.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Reddit\_Mr.\_Splashy\_Pants.png License: Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Contributors: Alexis Ohanian (kn0thing)

Image:StumbleUpon logo.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:StumbleUpon\_logo.png License: unknown Contributors: Remember the dot, Tkgd2007 Image:SU-Toolbar-Firefox.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:SU-Toolbar-Firefox.png License: unknown Contributors: DominatorMatrix, MatthewMastracci, Remember the dot

File: Twitter 2010 logo.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File: Twitter\_2010\_logo.svg License: unknown Contributors: 7OA, Nicosmos

File:Twttr\_sketch-Dorsey-2006.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Twttr\_sketch-Dorsey-2006.jpg License: Creative Commons Attribution 2.0 Contributors: Jack Dorsey

Image:Twitter logo.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Twitter\_logo.svg License: unknown Contributors: Original uploader was GageSkidmore at en.wikipedia File:Content of Tweets.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Content\_of\_Tweets.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Bryan.burgers, User:Quillaja

File:Twitter sf hq.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Twitter\_sf\_hq.jpg License: Creative Commons Attribution 2.0 Contributors: Olaf Koens

File:Failwhale.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Failwhale.png License: unknown Contributors: Fastily, Fetchcomms, The lorax, Totalaero, 2 anonymous edits File:Newmobiletwitter.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Newmobiletwitter.jpg License: unknown Contributors: User:Vencel

Image:YouTube logo.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:YouTube\_logo.svg License: unknown Contributors: 4twenty420, Abce2, Ahoerstemeier, Alansohn, Anakin101, Antiuser, Beao, Binary TSO, Cam33881, Cflm001, Danthemango, Davnor, Explicit, Fetchcomms, Gabrielkat, Hucz, Hydrogen Iodide, JForget, JamesR, Jared Preston, Jusdafax, KUsam, L Kensington, Melesse, Meno25, Mephiles602, Michal Nebyla, Mild Bill Hiccup, Nssswimmer, Odder, Paxse, Peeperman, Reach Out to the Truth, Satori Son, Smurfy, Spitfire19, Tbhotch, Tide rolls, Triona, Tyler178, Tyw7, Unitedklf, Wizardist, Wysprgr2005, Zigger, ZimZalaBim, 83 anonymous edits

File:901cherryave.jpg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:901cherryave.jpg License: GNU Free Documentation License Contributors: Alison, JenVan, 1 anonymous edits File:Flag of Argentina.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Argentina.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Dbenbenn

File:Flag of Australia.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Australia.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Ian Fieggen

File:Flag of Brazil.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Brazil.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Brazilian Government

File:Flag of Canada.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag of Canada.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:E Pluribus Anthony, User:Mzajac

File:Flag of the Czech Republic.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_the\_Czech\_Republic.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: special commission (of

code): SVG version by cs:-xfi-. Colors according to Appendix No. 3 of czech legal Act 3/1993. cs:Zirland. File:Flag of France.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag of France.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:SKopp, User:SKo

User:SKopp, User:SKopp

File:Flag of Germany.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Germany.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Madden, User:Pumbaa80, User:SKopp File:Flag of Hong Kong.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Hong\_Kong.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Designed by

File:Flag of Israel.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Israel.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: AnonMoos, Bastique, Bobika, Brown spite, Captain Zizi, Cerveaugenie, Drork, Etams, Fred J, Fry1989, Himasaram, Homo lupus, Humus sapiens, Klemen Kocjancic, Kookaburra, Luispihormiguero, Madden, Neq00, NielsF, Nightstallion, Oren neu dag, Patstuart, PeeJay2K3, Pumbaa80, Ramiy, Reisio, SKopp, Technion, Typhix, Valentinian, Yellow up, Zscout370, 31 anonymous edits

File:Flag of India.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_India.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:SKopp

File:Flag of Ireland.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Ireland.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:SKopp

File:Flag of Italy.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Italy.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: see below

File:Flag of Japan.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Japan.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Various

File:Flag of South Korea.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_South\_Korea.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Various

File:Flag of Mexico.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Mexico.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:AlexCovarrubias, User:Zscout370

File:Flag of the Netherlands.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_the\_Netherlands.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Zscout370

File:Flag of New Zealand.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_New\_Zealand.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Adambro, Arria Belli, Bawolff, Bjankuloski06en, ButterStick, Denelson83, Donk, Duduziq, EugeneZelenko, Fred J, Fry1989, Hugh Jass, Ibagli, Jusjih, Klemen Kocjancic, Mamndassan, Mattes, Nightstallion, O, Peeperman, Poromiami, Reisio, Rfc1394, Shizhao, Tabasco, Transparent Blue, Väsk, Xufanc, Zscout370, 35 anonymous edits

File:Flag of Poland.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Poland.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Mareklug, User:Wanted

File:Flag of Russia.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Russia.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Zscout370

File:Flag of Spain.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Spain.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: Pedro A. Gracia Fajardo, escudo de Manual de Imagen Institucional de la Administración General del Estado

File:Flag of South Africa.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_South\_Africa.svg License: unknown Contributors: Adriaan, Anime Addict AA, AnonMoos, BRUTE, Daemonic Kangaroo, Dnik, Duduziq, Dzordzm, Fry1989, Homo lupus, Jappalang, Juliancolton, Kam Solusar, Klemen Kocjancic, Klymene, Lexxyy, Mahahahaneapneap, Manuelt15, Moviedefender, Ninane, Poznaniak, SKopp, ThePCKid, ThomasPusch, Tvdm, Ultratomio, Vzb83, Zscout370, 33 anonymous edits

File:Flag of Sweden.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_Sweden.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Jon Harald Søby

File:Flag of the Republic of China.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_the\_Republic\_of\_China.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: 555, Bestalex, Bigmorr, Denelson83, Ed veg, Gzdavidwong, Herbythyme, Isletakee, Kakoui, Kallerna, Kibinsky, Mattes, Mizunoryu, Neq00, Nickpo, Nightstallion, Odder, Pymouss, R.O.C, Reisio, Reuvenk, Rkt2312, Rocket000, Runningfridgesrule, Samwingkit, Shizhao, Sk, Tabasco, Vzb83, Wrightbus, Zscout370, 72 anonymous edits

File:Flag of the United Kingdom.svg Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Flag\_of\_the\_United\_Kingdom.svg License: Public Domain Contributors: User:Zscout370 Image:Xing openbc logo.png Source: http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?title=File:Xing\_openbc\_logo.png License: unknown Contributors: User:Cumbrowski

# License

Creative Commons Attribution-Share Alike 3.0 Unported http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/